
 
 

 

 

 
LOCAL REVIEW BODY 

MONDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2024 
 

 
A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL 

HEADQUARTERS. NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on MONDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2024 at 10.00 am.  

This will be a blended meeting. 

 

All Attendees, including members of the public, should note that the public business in this 

meeting will be livestreamed and video recorded and that recording will be available 

thereafter for public view for 180 days . 

 
N. McKINLAY, 
Director of Corporate Governance  
 
16 February 2024 
 
 

BUSINESS 
  

1.  Apologies for Absence.  
  

2.  Order of Business.  
  

3.  Declarations of Interest.  
  

4.  Continuation of review of refusal in respect of the erection of dwellinghouse on 
Garden Ground of Glenbield, Redpath - 23/00046/RREF  
  

 (a)   Notice of Review  
 

  Inlcuding: 
Decision Notice 
Officers Report 
 

(Pages 5 - 56) 

 
 (b)   Papers Referred to in the Officer's Report  (Pages 57 - 58) 

  
 (c)   Additional Information  (Pages 59 - 74) 

  
 (d)   Consultations Replies                                                    (Pages 75 - 82) 

  
 (e)   List of Policies  (Pages 83 - 84) 

 
  

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

5.  Continuation of review of refusal in respect of the Erection of dwellinghouse on Land 
South of 1 Old Edinburgh Road, Eddleston - 23/00047/RREF  
  

 (a)   Notice of Review   
  Inlcuding: 

 
Decision Notice 
Officer’s report  
 

(Pages 85 - 98) 

 
 (b)   Papers referred to in the Officer's Report  

(Pages 99 - 100) 
  

 (c)   Additional Information  
(Pages 101 - 102) 
  

 (d)   Consultation Replies  
(Pages 103 - 108) 
  

 (e)   Objections  
(Pages 109 - 110) 
  

 (f)   List of Policies  
(Pages 111 - 112) 
  

6.  Consider request for review of refusal in respect of the Erection of dwellinghouse on 
Land Adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton - 23/00051/RREF  
  

 (a)   
  

Notice of Review  
(Pages 113 - 220) 
Including:- 
 
Decision Notice  
Officer’s Report  
  

 (b)   Papers Referred to in the Officers Report  
(Pages 221 - 236) 
  

 (c)   Further Representations  
(Pages 237 - 250) 
  

 (d)   General Comments  
(Pages 251 - 254) 
  

 (e)   Additional Information  
(Pages 255 - 268) 
  

 (f)   Consultation Replies  
(Pages 269 - 278) 
  

 (g)   Objections  
(Pages 279 - 292) 
 
  



 
 
 
 (h)   List of Policies  

(Pages 293 - 294) 
  

7.  Consider request for review of refusal in respect of the Erection of dwellinghouse on 
Land West of the Garden House, Brieryyards, Hornshole Bridge, Hawick - 
23/00052/RREF  
  

 (a)   Notice of Review  
  Including:- 

 
 
Decision  
Officer’s Report   
 

(Pages 295 - 346) 

 
 (b)   Paper's referred to in the Officer's Report  (Pages 347 - 348) 

  
 (c)   Consultation Replies  

(Pages 349 - 354) 
  

 (d)   List of Policies  
(Pages 355 - 356)  

8.  Consider request for review review of refusal in respect of the Erection of 
dwellinghouse with access and associated works on Land South of Mos Eisley, 
Teviothead - 23/00053/RREF  
  

 (a)   
  

Notice of Review  
(Pages 357 - 434) 
Including: 
 
Decision Notice  
Officer’s Report 
  

 (b)   Paper's referred to in the Officers Report  
(Pages 435 - 438) 

      
 (c)   Consultation Replies  

(Pages 439 - 448) 
  

 (d)   Objections  
(Pages 449 - 462) 
  

 (e)   List of Policies  
(Pages 463 - 464) 
  

9.  Consider request for review of refusal in respect of Replacement Windows at Middle 
House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles - 23/00054/RREF  
  

 (a)   
  

Notice of Review  (Pages 465 - 506) 
Including:- 
 
 
Decision Notice  
Officer’s Report   



 
 
 
 (b)   Papers Referred to in the Officers Report  

(Pages 507 - 558) 
  

 (c)   Additional Information   (Pages 559 - 564) 
  

 (d)   Consultation Replies   (Pages 565 - 568) 
  

 (e)   List of Policies   (Pages 569 - 570) 
  

10.  Any Other Items Previously Circulated  
  

11.  Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
  

 
 
NOTE 
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item 
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute 
of the meeting. 
 
 
Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Mountford (Chair), J. Cox, M. Douglas, D. Moffat, 
A. Orr, N. Richards, S. Scott, E. Small, V. Thomson    
 
 
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Henderson  01835 826502 
email fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk 
 
 



Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



Page 6



Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100634687-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Proposed erection of dwelling house as per drawings.

Page 37



Page 2 of 7

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Stuart Davidson Architecture

Mr

Stuart

Keith 

Davidson

Robertson

High Street

Redpath 

32

Design Studio

Glenbield 

01750 21792

TD7 4DD

TD4 6AD

Scotland

United Kingdom

Selkirk

Earlston 

info@stuartdavidsonarchitecture.co.uk

info@stuartdavidsonarchitecture.co.uk

Page 38



Page 3 of 7

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

GLENBIELD

757.26

Garden grounds to existing dwelling.

Scottish Borders Council

REDPATH

EARLSTON

TD4 6AD

635687 358189

Page 39



Page 4 of 7

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application
Site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular 
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Collection
Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste (including recycling)? *  Yes   No

0

2

Page 40



Page 5 of 7

If Yes or No, please provide further details: * (Max 500 characters)

Residential Units Including Conversion
Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? *  Yes   No

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Internal recycling + external wheelie bin space. 

Page 41



Page 6 of 7

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

I hereby certify that –

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the 
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at 
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Stuart Davidson

On behalf of: Mr Keith  Robertson

Date: 05/07/2023

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Page 42



Page 7 of 7

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Mr Stuart Davidson

Declaration Date: 05/07/2023
 

Payment Details

Cheque: Stuart Davidson,  000000
Created: 05/07/2023 14:34

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Mr Keith  Robertson
per Stuart Davidson Architecture 
Design Studio 
32 High Street 
Selkirk 
Scottish Borders 
TD7 4DD 

Please ask 
for: 


Julie Hayward 
01835 825585 

Our Ref: 23/01014/FUL

Your Ref: 

E-Mail: jhayward2@scotborders.gov.uk

Date: 20th September 2023

Dear Sir/Madam 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Garden Ground Of Glenbield Redpath Earlston Scottish 
Borders  

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of dwellinghouse 

APPLICANT:  Mr Keith Robertson

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 

Yours faithfully 

John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 45

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 
2013 

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 23/01014/FUL 

To :     Mr Keith  Robertson per Stuart Davidson Architecture Design Studio 32 High 
Street Selkirk Scottish Borders TD7 4DD  

With reference to your application validated on 6th July 2023 for planning permission under the 
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 

Proposal :   Erection of dwellinghouse 

at :   Garden Ground Of  Glenbield Redpath  Earlston Scottish Borders 

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the 
attached schedule. 

Dated 19th September 2023 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 46



Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  23/01014/FUL 

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 

Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

P818-PL-LOC2 Location Plan  Refused 
P818-PL-005 B Proposed Plans Refused 

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

It is considered that, due to the size of the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute 
overdevelopment that does not respect the character of the area or existing pattern of 
development in Redpath.  In addition, the orientation, layout and density of the proposal would be 
out of keeping with the established character and pattern of the street scene.  

The proposed dwellinghouse is poorly designed and is not the high quality of design and materials 
required by policies 7 and 14 of National Planning Framework 4 and policies PMD2 and EP9 of the 
Local Development Plan 2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and 
Design 2010.  The proposal would be detrimental to the surrounding area, adversely affecting the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

The development proposed would not comply with policies PMD2 and IS7 with regards access 
safety and parking as the layout and car parking proposed would not operate adequately due to 
the constrained nature of the layout and site.   

 SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 

 1 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policy 14 of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policies PMD2 and PMD5 of Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 
2016 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 
in that, due to the small size of the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute 
overdevelopment that would not respect the character of the area or existing pattern of 
development in Redpath. 

 2 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policies 7 and 14 of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policies PMD2, PMD5 and EP9 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and 
the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 in that the 
orientation, layout and density of the proposal would be out of keeping with the established 
character and pattern of the street scene resulting in adverse impacts on the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 

 3 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policies 7 and 14 of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policies PMD2, PMD5 and EP9 of Scottish Borders Local Development 
Plan 2016 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 
2010 in that the proposed dwellinghouse is poorly designed, detrimental to the surrounding 
area, adversely affecting the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

 4 The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2 and IS7 of the Scottish 
Borders Local Development Plan 2016 in that the layout and car parking proposed would 
not operate adequately due to the constrained nature of the layout and site resulting in 
vehicular access and parking to the detriment of road safety.  

Page 47



Regulatory Services

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice.  To seek a review of the decision, 
please complete complete a request for local review form and return it to the Clerk of the Local 
Review Body, Democratic Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 
OSA. 

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

Page 48

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/762/request_for_local_review


SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

REF :   23/01014/FUL 

APPLICANT :   Mr Keith  Robertson 

AGENT : Stuart Davidson Architecture 

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse 

LOCATION:  Garden Ground Of  
Glenbield 
Redpath 
Earlston 
Scottish Borders 

TYPE :  FUL Application 

REASON FOR DELAY:  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAWING NUMBERS: 

Plan Ref      Plan Type Plan Status 

P818-PL-LOC2  Location Plan Refused
P818-PL-005 B  Proposed Plans Refused 

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 

No representations have been received. 

CONSULTATIONS: 

Community Council: No response. 

Education and Lifelong Learning: No response. 

Scottish Water: No objections.  There is currently sufficient capacity in the Howden Water Treatment 
Works to service the development.  Further investigations may be required to be carried out once a 
formal application has been submitted to Scottish Water.  

For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer flooding, 
Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined sewer system. 

Roads Planning Service: Object.  Whilst I have no objections to the principle of a dwelling in the 
garden ground of this property, I have concerns regarding the layout proposed.  It is our policy to look 
for two parking spaces to be provided for new build dwellings such as this and whilst the layout 
indicates two, I am not satisfied these will operate satisfactorily due to the constrained nature of the 
layout and site.  The bay immediately adjacent to the access has no room for vehicular 
manoeuvrability due to the adjacent hedging and PU apparatus.  The bay in front of the house is in 

Page 49



such a location it is unlikely a car will get into it as shown, the result being it will not allow a second 
vehicle into the area in front of the access. 

Until it can be demonstrated that parking for two vehicles can be accommodated, I will not be able to 
support the proposal.  To provide these bays may require the dwelling to be moved back further into 
the plot, thus allowing more room at the front to accommodate the parking. 

The development proposed does not comply with Policies PMD2 and IS7 with regards access safety 
and parking. 

Heritage and Design Officer:  Objects.  The site is located in Redpath Conservation Area.  Redpath 
Village Hall is set relatively close to the application site, and is the only Listed Building in the 
Conservation Area.  

The density of development within Redpath Conservation Area varies, although overall it retains a 
spacious, rural character.  High density sections tend to be comprised of row houses/attached 
properties rather than detached properties.  The area is generally characterised by houses set parallel 
to the street; the few gables fronting the road are garages/ancillary buildings rather than dwellings.  

The proposed property is detached and set very close to another detached property in the 
Conservation Area.  It is set at right angles to the road and extends significantly into the plot.  The 
density, layout, form and design of development that would be created would therefore not be 
characteristic of the Conservation Area.  

The area to the front of the property is characterised by high levels of vegetation which give a sylvan 
and rural character to the Conservation Area.  The space available for parking and access to the 
proposed property would significantly impact this.  

A path runs to the side of the property.  This path/track is shown on historic maps from at least the first 
OS map (1843-1882).  The width of the track would be reduced by the proposal.  The proposed fence 
and the depth of the property would be apparent in the public realm.  

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

National Planning Framework 4 

Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 4: Natural Places 
Policy 6: Forestry, Woodland and Trees 
Policy 7: Historic Assets and Places 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 

Local Development Plan 2016  

PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
PMD5: Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP4: National Scenic Area  
EP7: Listed Buildings 
EP9: Conservation Areas 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS3: Developer Contributions Related to the Borders Railway 
IS7: Parking Provisions and Standards 
IS9:  Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 

Supplementary Planning Guidance  

Page 50



Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems August 2020 
Development Contributions 2023 
Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight Guide) 2006 
Placemaking and Design 2010 

Recommendation by  - Julie Hayward  (Lead Planning Officer) on 15th September 2023 

Site and Proposal 

The site is an area of garden ground associated with Glenbield, a bungalow with rendered walls and tiled 
roof, situated on the southern side of the main street through Redpath, within the Conservation Area and 
National Scenic Area.  There is a substation in the north eastern corner of the site, a mature hedge along 
the road frontage and a close boarded fence and a footpath along the eastern boundary within the site. 

The proposal is to erect a dwellinghouse on the site.  This would be one-and-a-half storey with three 
bedrooms.  The gable end would face the public road and the dwellinghouse would have render and vertical 
timber boarding for the walls with UPVC windows and doors and a slate roof. 

A new access would be formed onto the public road and 2 on-site parking spaces are proposed within the 
site.  One tree would be felled, the banking along the eastern boundary would be partially removed, the 
ground regraded and the boundary fence would be repositioned further to the east, allowing a 1.8m gap for 
the route of the public footpath. 

Recent Planning History 

16/01096/TCA: Works to trees.  Approved 12th October 2016. 

18/00460/FUL: Alterations to dwellinghouse, replace fencing and erection of garden shed.  Approved 5th 
June 2018. 

23/00407/FUL: Alterations and extension to dwellinghouse.  Approved 2nd August 2023. 

Assessment  

Policy Principle  

Policy 16 of National Planning Framework 4 encourages the delivery of high quality, affordable and 
sustainable homes in the right locations.   

The application site lies within the Development Boundary of Redpath.  In order to establish the principle of 
development, the proposal must be assessed against Policy PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 2016.  

Policy PMD5 states that within development boundaries development on non-allocated, infill or windfall sites 
will be approved if certain criteria are met.   

One criterion is that the development should not conflict with the established land use of the area.   

The application site is located within a residential area and so the proposal would be in keeping with the 
established use and character of the area.  

Layout, Siting and Design and Impact on the Conservation Area  

Policy 4 of National Planning Framework 4 states that development proposals, which by virtue of type, 
location or scale will have an unacceptable impact on the natural environment will not be supported.  The 
objectives of designation and the overall integrity of National Scenic Areas will not be compromised. 

Policy 7 states that proposals affecting Conservation Areas will only be supported where the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area and its setting are preserved or enhanced.  Relevant considerations 

Page 51



are the architectural historic character of the area and existing density, built form, layout, context, siting, 
quality of design and suitable materials. 

Policy 14 of NPF4 requires development proposals to be designed to improve the quality of an area, 
whether urban or rural locations and regardless of scale.  The policy encourages, promotes and facilitates 
well designed development that makes successful places by a design-led approach.  Proposals will be 
supported where they are consistent with the 6 qualities of successful places: healthy, pleasant, connected, 
distinctive, sustainable and adaptable.  Development proposals that are poorly designed, detrimental to the 
amenity of the surrounding area or inconsistent with the six qualities of successful places will not be 
supported. 

Policy PMD2 requires all development to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability principles, 
designed to fit in with Borders townscapes and to integrate with its landscape surroundings.  The policy 
contains a number of standards that would apply to all development.   

Policy PMD5 requires that the development respects the scale, form, design, materials and density of its 
surroundings; the individual and cumulative effects of the development should not lead to over-development 
or town cramming; the proposal should not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area. 

Policy EP4 seeks to protect the special qualities of the National Scenic Area. 

Policy EP9 states that the Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to Conservation 
Areas which are located and designed to preserve and enhance the special architectural or historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area, respecting the scale, proportions, alignment, density, 
materials and boundary treatments of nearby buildings and open spaces. 

The Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 emphasises that new 
development must integrate well with the existing pattern of development, build upon the established 
character of an area and contribute positively to a sense of place. 

The Settlement Profile for Redpath within the Local Development Plan states that the character of Redpath 
is established by its linear layout and countryside setting.  The quality of the surrounding countryside is 
recognised by its inclusion in the National Scenic Area.  The Conservation Area incorporates most of the 
village and part of its surroundings.  The village developed in a linear form between 2 farms at the east and 
west ends of the village and is characterised by rows of traditional cottages and more recent housing 
development on larger plots.  The village hall is a category C Listed Building.   

The density of development within Redpath varies, from traditional cottages to more modern housing.  The 
houses are single, one-and-a-half and two storey of traditional materials of whin and sandstone, harl and 
slate with timber, sash and case windows in the traditional properties.   

The village retains a spacious, rural character.  High density sections tend to be comprised of row 
houses/attached properties rather than detached properties.  The village is generally characterised by 
houses set parallel to the street; the few gables fronting the road are garages/ancillary buildings rather than 
dwellings.  

The proposal is to erect a detached dwellinghouse to the east of the existing house.  This would have the 
gable end to the public road with a similar building line to Glenbield and extending significantly back into the 
narrow plot.      

The proposed house would be sited 2m from the side elevation of Glenbield and between 2.5m and 3m from 
the fence on the eastern/side boundary.  The sub-station and footpath take up a significant portion of the 
front and side of the plot. 

This is considered to be a small and narrow plot (757 square metres), when compared to house and plot 
ratios elsewhere in the village, out of keeping with the character of the Conservation Area.  The size of the 
site means that the proposed dwellinghouse would be positioned close to the boundary with the existing 
house to the west.  This would result in an uncomfortable relationship with the existing house.   

Page 52



It is considered that, due to the size of the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute 
overdevelopment that does not respect the character of the area or existing density and pattern of 
development in Redpath.  In addition, the orientation and layout of the proposal, with the gable fronting the 
road, would be out of keeping with the established character and pattern of the street scene. 

In respect of the design of the proposed dwellinghouse, this is lacking in architectural merit and interest and 
is not the high quality of design required by policies 14, PMD2 and EP9 and the Supplementary Planning 
Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010.  In particular, the timber clad gable that would front the road would 
be not respect the character of the Conservation Area, as the few gables fronting the road are 
garages/ancillary buildings rather than dwellinghouses.  The proposal would not enhance the character or 
appearance of the Conservation Area.  However, as the principle of residential development on this site 
cannot be accepted, discussions have not taken place with the agent to secure an improved design and 
orientation; the narrow nature of the plot may be a challenge in this respect. 

Policy 7 of NPF 4 states that development proposals in Conservation Areas should ensure that existing 
natural and built features that contribute to the character of the Conservation Area and its setting, including 
boundary walls, trees and hedges are retained.  The area to the front of the property is characterised by high 
levels of vegetation, which give a sylvan and rural character to the Conservation Area.  The space required 
for parking and the vehicular access to the proposed property would significantly impact this.  

A path runs to the side of the property.  This path/track is shown on historic maps from at least the first OS 
map (1843-1882).  The width of the track would be reduced by the proposal.  The proposed fence and the 
depth of the property would be apparent in the public realm.  

The proposal therefore fails to comply with policies 7 and 14 of National Planning Framework 4 and PMD2, 
PMD5 and EP9 and Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010. 

Impact on Residential amenity  

Policy HD3 states that development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of residential 
areas will not be permitted.     

The Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance: Guidance on Householder Developments July 2006 
contains guidance on privacy, overlooking and access to light that can be applied when considering planning 
applications for new household developments to ensure that proposals do not adversely affect the 
residential amenities of occupants of neighbouring properties. 

The proposed dwelling would be 2m from the side elevation of the existing house, which would result in an 
uncomfortable relationship between the two properties.  The windows proposed for the side elevation would 
be to a shower room and utility room, so not habitable rooms; it is accepted that there would be no 
overlooking or loss of privacy to Glenbield.   

There are no windows in the side elevation of Glenbield but bedroom windows in the rear elevation.  In 
applying the 45 degree rule, the new dwellinghouse would encroach beyond the horizontal 45 degree line, 
suggesting a loss of daylight to the closest bedroom window.  However, it is accepted that the owner of 
Glenbield is the applicant and so this would not constitute a reason for refusal. 

There would be no loss of privacy or light to Braeside to the east. 

Trees 

Policy 6 of NPF 4 supports proposals that enhance, expand and improve woodland and tree cover.  
Development will not be supported where they will result in adverse impacts on native woodlands, 
hedgerows and individual trees of high diversity value or identified for protection in the Forestry and 
Woodland Strategy. 

EP13 seeks to protect trees from development. 

Page 53



The trees within the site are protected by the Conservation Area status.  One tree would be felled to 
accommodate the development.  No details of the tree, its species or health have been provided to assess 
its contribution to the character of the Conservation Area. 

Access, Parking and Road Safety 

Policy PMD2 aims to ensure that there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the 
site access.  In addition, Policy IS7 states that development proposals should provide car parking in 
accordance with the approved standards.  

Vehicular access to the site would be taken from the public road to the north. Two on-site parking spaces 
are proposed.  

The Roads Planning Service has concerns regarding the layout and car parking proposed as the parking 
would not operate satisfactorily due to the constrained nature of the layout and site.  The bay immediately 
adjacent to the access has no room for vehicular manoeuvrability due to the adjacent hedging and sub-
station; the bay in front of the dwellinghouse is in such a location it is unlikely a car will get into it as shown, 
the result being it will not allow a second vehicle into the area in front of the access. 

The Roads Planning Service therefore cannot support the proposal.  The parking layout as proposed 
emphasises the cramped nature and overdevelopment of the site. 

The development proposed does not comply with policies PMD2 and IS7 with regards access safety and 
parking. 

Services  

Policy IS9 states that the preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new developments 
would be the direct connection to the public sewerage system and for development in the countryside the 
use of private sewerage may be acceptable provided that it can be provided without negative impacts to 
public health, the environment, watercourses or ground water.  A SUDS is required for surface water 
drainage.   

The proposed dwellinghouse would be connected to the public water supply network and public drainage 
network.  No details of the surface water drainage have been provided. 

The proposed servicing for the development would be acceptable in principle and the precise details for 
drainage would be agreed at the Building Warrant stage.  Conditions would be required to ensure that the 
proposed development is serviced as specified and to secure details of surface water drainage, which 
should be to a SUDS.  

There would be space within the application site to store refuse bins.  

Developer Contributions  

Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to deficiencies in 
infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated as 
a result of the development, the Council will require developers to make a full or partial contribution towards 
the cost of addressing such deficiencies.  This is set out in policy IS2. 

Developer contributions are required towards the Borders railway (£2,587) education (Earlston Primary 
School: £3,349 and Earlston High School: £4,709) and would be secured by way of a legal agreement, 
should the application be approved. 

Conclusion 

It is considered that, due to the size of the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute 
overdevelopment that does not respect the character of the area or existing pattern of development in 
Redpath.  In addition, the orientation, layout and density of the proposal would be out of keeping with the 
established character and pattern of the street scene.  

Page 54



The proposed dwellinghouse is poorly designed and is not the high quality of design and materials required 
by policies 7 and 14 of National Planning Framework 4 and policies PMD2 and EP9 of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010.  The 
proposal would be detrimental to the surrounding area, adversely affecting the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. 

The development proposed would not comply with policies PMD2 and IS7 with regards access safety and 
parking as the layout and car parking proposed would not operate adequately due to the constrained nature 
of the layout and site.   

There are no material planning considerations which suggest that housing development in this location 
would be acceptable and there are no known extenuating circumstances of other material considerations 
which indicate that the application should be supported as an acceptable departure from the Scottish 
Borders Local Development Plan 2016. 

REASON FOR DECISION : 

It is considered that, due to the size of the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute 
overdevelopment that does not respect the character of the area or existing pattern of development in 
Redpath.  In addition, the orientation, layout and density of the proposal would be out of keeping with the 
established character and pattern of the street scene.  

The proposed dwellinghouse is poorly designed and is not the high quality of design and materials required 
by policies 7 and 14 of National Planning Framework 4 and policies PMD2 and EP9 of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 and the Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010.  The 
proposal would be detrimental to the surrounding area, adversely affecting the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. 

The development proposed would not comply with policies PMD2 and IS7 with regards access safety and 
parking as the layout and car parking proposed would not operate adequately due to the constrained nature 
of the layout and site.   

Recommendation:  Refused

 1 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policy 14 of National Planning Framework 4 
and Policies PMD2 and PMD5 of Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 and the Council's 
Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 in that, due to the small size of 
the site and its narrow nature, the proposal would constitute overdevelopment that would not 
respect the character of the area or existing pattern of development in Redpath. 

 2 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policies 7 and 14 of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policies PMD2, PMD5 and EP9 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and the 
Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 in that the orientation, 
layout and density of the proposal would be out of keeping with the established character and 
pattern of the street scene resulting in adverse impacts on the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area. 

 3 The proposed development would fail to comply with Policies 7 and 14 of National Planning 
Framework 4 and Policies PMD2, PMD5 and  EP9 of Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 
2016 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Placemaking and Design 2010 in that the 
proposed dwellinghouse is poorly designed, detrimental to the surrounding area, adversely affecting 
the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

Page 55



 4 The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2 and IS7 of the Scottish Borders 
Local Development Plan 2016 in that the layout and car parking proposed would not operate 
adequately due to the constrained nature of the layout and site resulting in vehicular access and 
parking to the detriment of road safety.  

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 

Page 56



P
age 57

A
genda Item

 4b



P
age 58



Mr Keith  Robertson
per Stuart Davidson Architecture 
Design Studio 
32 High Street 
Selkirk 
Scottish Borders 
TD7 4DD 

Please ask for: 


Julie Hayward 
01835 825585 

Our Ref: 23/00407/FUL
Your Ref: 

E-Mail: jhayward2@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 3rd August 2023

Dear Sir/Madam 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Glenbield Redpath Earlston Scottish Borders TD4 6AD  

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Alterations and extension to dwellinghouse 

APPLICANT:  Mr Keith  Robertson

Please find attached the decision notice for the above application. 

Please read the schedule of conditions and any informative notes carefully.  

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/ .  Please see the requirement for 
notification of initiation and completion of development as well as for Street naming and numbering 
as appropriate. 

It should be noted that before works commence, where applicable, all necessary consents should 
be obtained under the Building (Scotland) Act 2003.  If you require any further information in this 
respect, please contact the relevant Building Standards Surveyor. 

Yours faithfully 

John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 59

Agenda Item 4c



Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 23/00407/FUL 

To :     Mr Keith  Robertson per Stuart Davidson Architecture Design Studio 32 High Street Selkirk 
Scottish Borders TD7 4DD 

With reference to your application validated on 16th March 2023 for planning permission under the 
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 

Proposal :   Alterations and extension to dwellinghouse 

at :   Glenbield Redpath Earlston  Scottish Borders TD4 6AD 

Scottish Borders Council hereby grant planning permission in accordance with the approved 
plan(s) and the particulars given in the application and in accordance with Section 58 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), subject to the conditions attached to the 
following schedule for the reasons stated. 

Dated 2nd August 2023 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 60



Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  23/00407/FUL 

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 

Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

P818-PL-LOC  Location Plan  Approved
P818-PL-003  Existing Plans  Approved
P818-PL-001 D Proposed Plans Approved

REASON FOR DECISION 

Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the 
relevant provisions of the Statutory Development Plan and there are no material considerations 
that would justify a departure from these provisions. 

 SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 

 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from 
the date of this permission. 
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 
1997, as amended. 

 2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete 
accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved 
details. 

 3 Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development shall be 
commenced until precise details of the materials to be used in the construction of the 
external walls, windows, doors and roof of the extension and materials for the walls and 
roof for the existing dwellinghouse have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority, and thereafter no development shall take place except in strict 
accordance with those details. 
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 

N.B: This permission does not include any consent, approval or licence necessary for the 
proposed development under the building regulations or any other statutory enactment and the 
development should not be commenced until all consents are obtained. 

Under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Council recommends the following hours for noisy 
construction-related work: 
Monday-Friday   0700-1900 
Saturday            0800-1300 
Sunday and Public Holidays   -   no permitted work (except by prior agreement with the Council) 

Page 61



Regulatory Services

Contractors will be expected to adhere to the measures contained in BS 5228:2009 “Code of 
Practice for Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites”. 

For more information or to make a request to carry out works outside the above hours, please 
contact an Environmental Health Officer at the Council. 

Notice of Initiation of Development 

Section 27 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that any 
person who has been granted planning permission (including planning permission in principle) and 
intends to start development must, once they have decided the date they will start work on the 
development, inform the planning authority of that date as soon as is practicable.  A form is 
available on the Council’s website for this purpose. 

Notice of Completion of Development 

Section 27B of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) requires that 
any person who completes a development for which planning permission (including planning 
permission in principle) has been given must, as soon as practicable after doing so, give notice of 
completion to the planning authority. 

When planning permission is granted for phased development then under section 27B(2) the 
permission is to be granted subject to a condition  that as soon as practicable after each phase, 
other than the last, is completed, the person carrying out the development is to give notice of that 
completion to the planning authority.   

In advance of carrying out any works it is recommended that you contact Utility Bodies whose 
equipment or apparatus may be affected by any works you undertake.  Contacts include: 

Transco, Susiephone Department, 95 Kilbirnie Street, Glasgow, G5 8JD 
Scottish Power, Riccarton Mains Road, Currie, Edinburgh, EH14 5AA 
Scottish Water, Developer Services, 419 Balmore Road, Possilpark, Glasgow G22 6NU 
British Telecom, National Notice Handling Centre, PP404B Telecom House, Trinity Street, Stoke 
on Trent, ST1 5ND 
Scottish Borders Council, Street Lighting Section, Council HQ, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, 
TD6 0SA 
Cable & Wireless, 1 Dove Wynd, Strathclyde Business Park, Bellshill, ML4 3AL 
BP Chemicals Ltd, PO Box 21, Bo’ness Road, Grangemouth, FK2 9XH 
THUS, Susiephone Department, 4th Floor, 75 Waterloo Street, Glasgow, G2 7BD 
Susiephone System – 0800 800 333 

There are a number of risks created by built over gas mains and services; these are: 

 Pipework loading – pipes are at risk from loads applied by the new structure and are more 
susceptible to interference damage.

 Gas entry into buildings – pipework proximity increases risk of gas entry in buildings. Leaks 
arising from previous external pipework able to track directly into main building from 
unsealed entry.

 Occupier safety – lack or no fire resistance of pipework, fittings, or meter installation. 
Means of escape could be impeded by an enclosed meter.

Please note therefore, if you plan to dig, or carry out building work to a property, site, or 
public highway within our gas network, you must: 

Page 62



Regulatory Services

1. Check your proposals against the information held at 
https://www.linesearchbeforeudig.co.uk/ to assess any risk associated with your 
development and

2. Contact our Plant Protection team to let them know. Plant location enquiries must be made 
via email, but you can phone us with general plant protection queries. See our contact 
details below: 

Phone 0800 912 1722 / Email plantlocation@sgn.co.uk

In the event of an overbuild on our gas network, the pipework must be altered, you may be 
temporarily disconnected, and your insurance may be invalidated. 

Further information on safe digging practices can be found here: 

 Our free Damage Prevention e-Learning only takes 10-15 minutes to complete and highlights 
the importance of working safely near gas pipelines, giving clear guidance on what to do and 
who to contact before starting any work https://www.sgn.co.uk/damage-prevention

Further information can also be found here https://www.sgn.co.uk/help-and-advice/digging-safely

If you are in a Coal Authority Area (Carlops or Newcastleton), please contact the Coal Authority at 
the following address: The Coal Authority 200 Lichfield Lane, Berry Hill, Mansfield, 
Nottinghamshire NG18 4RG. 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice.  To seek a review of the decision, 
please complete a request for local review form and return it to the Clerk of the Local Review 
Body, Democratic Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA. 

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

REF :   23/00407/FUL 

APPLICANT :   Mr Keith  Robertson 

AGENT : Stuart Davidson Architecture 

DEVELOPMENT : Alterations and extension to dwellinghouse 

LOCATION:  Glenbield 
Redpath 
Earlston 
Scottish Borders 
TD4 6AD 

TYPE :  FUL Application 

REASON FOR DELAY:  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAWING NUMBERS: 

Plan Ref      Plan Type Plan Status 

P818-PL-LOC  Location Plan Approved
P818-PL-003  Existing Plans Approved
P818-PL-001 D  Proposed Plans Approved 

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 

No representations have been received. 

CONSULTATIONS: 

Berwickshire Civic Society: No view on the alterations described in this application to renovate a 
dwelling of little or no architectural or historic merit.  

Community Council: No response. 

Roads Planning Service: Whilst I have no problem with the alterations to the existing dwelling, I have 
some concerns regarding the annex element of the proposal.  If the annex element is to be utilised for 
accommodation purposes not related to the family/owner of the main dwelling, I would require details 
of how the applicant proposes to accommodate parking for both properties.  The street outside is 
restricted in width and there is limited opportunity for parking outwith property curtilages along the 
street.  A condition is recommended that the annex must be tied to the existing dwelling and its use 
limited to that of ancillary to the main dwelling, not as a separate dwelling or holiday let. 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

National Planning Framework 4 

Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 

Page 65



Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 4: Natural Places 
Policy 7: Historic Assets and Places 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 

Local Development Plan 2016  

PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP4: National Scenic Areas 
EP9: Conservation Areas 

Supplementary Planning Guidance:  

Placemaking and Design 2010 
Householder Development (Privacy and Sunlight) 2006 

Recommendation by  - Julie Hayward  (Lead Planning Officer) on 1st August 2023 

Site and Proposal 

The application relates to a modern, detached, single storey dwellinghouse situated within the Conservation 
Area and National Scenic Area.  There is an electricity sub-station in the north eastern corner of the property 
and a footpath runs adjacent to the north eastern boundary. 

The proposal is to remove the roof of the existing house and form a replacement roof with a higher ridgeline, 
roof lights and replacement chimney to provide first floor accommodation (3 bedrooms, en-suite and 
shower).  The roof would be slate. 

An extension would be erected on the rear elevation (4.2m by 4.2m) to provide a lounge.  This would have 
vertical timber clad walls and a fibreglass flat roof. 

A separate, one-and-a-half storey building would be erected to the east of the house to provide ancillary 
accommodation including a kitchen, lounge, two bedrooms, a utility room and shower at ground floor level 
and a bedroom and bathroom at first floor level.  The ground would be re-graded to provide a level surface 
and one tree would be felled.  The walls would be rendered and clad in vertical timber boarding. 

 Assessment 

There are no issues with the raising of the roof or proposed extension to the existing house.  The property is 
a bungalow of little architectural merit.  The extension would be sited to the rear and the scale, design and 
materials are considered to be acceptable.  The proposals would not harm the character of the Conservation 
Area or special qualities of the National Scenic Area.  There are no concerns regarding impacts on the light 
or privacy of neighbouring properties. 

The proposed annex would have a large footprint (7.5m by 14m), which would be only slightly smaller than 
the existing house (7.5m by 15m).  The accommodation would be on 2 floors and the ridge height would be 
1m higher than the existing house and 250mm lower than the proposed ridge height.  This would not read as 
ancillary accommodation, subservient in scale; the development would be of a scale that could be used as a 
separate dwellinghouse or holiday accommodation. 

The agent was advised of these concerns and a revised drawing has been submitted that omits the annex 
accommodation.  The application can now be supported. 

The proposal would not result in a loss of on-site parking.  No trees would be felled. 

Page 66



REASON FOR DECISION : 

Subject to compliance with the schedule of conditions, the development will accord with the relevant 
provisions of the Statutory Development Plan and there are no material considerations that would justify a 
departure from these provisions. 

Recommendation:  Approved subject to conditions

 1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 
of this permission. 
Reason: To comply with Section 58 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, as 
amended. 

 2 The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in complete accordance 
with the plans and specifications approved by the Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

 3 Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development shall be 
commenced until precise details of the materials to be used in the construction of the external walls, 
windows, doors and roof of the extension and materials for the walls and roof for the existing 
dwellinghouse have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, and 
thereafter no development shall take place except in strict accordance with those details. 
Reason: To safeguard the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services 0300 100 180 www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

 
Ian Aikman 

Chief Planning Officer 
 

 
 
 
 

Please ask for:                                    Simon Wilkinson 
Our Ref: PF3 1.1 
Your Ref:  
E-Mail:             swilkinson@scotborders.gov.uk  

Mr W. Kerr 
Millmount 
Melrose 
TD6 9BZ 

Date: 12 October 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
Dear Mr Kerr, 
 

Trees in Conservation Area, Glenbield, Redpath 
 
I can confirm I have no objections to the proposed tree works including removal of Cypress and 
Spruce. While an overdue operation improved light levels will suit the ground and allow proactive 
management. 
 
All works to BS3998:2010, if you have any queries I can be contacted at Council HQ. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Simon Wilkinson 
 
 

Page 73

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Friday, 21 July 2023 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

Garden Ground Of Glenbield, Redpath, Earlston, TD4 6AD 

Planning Ref: 23/01014/FUL  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0090961-GYG 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 There is currently sufficient capacity in the Howden Water Treatment Works to 
service your development. However, please note that further investigations may be 
required to be carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us. 

 

 
Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 4d

mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

 

Page 76

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 5kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

Page 77

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Angela Allison 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 78

http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk


CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided by SR 
Heritage & Design Officer 
 

 

   

Date of reply 03/08/23 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01014/FUL Case Officer: JH 
 

Proposed Development Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Garden Ground of Glenbield, Redpath 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application as they 
relate to the area of expertise of that consultee and on the basis of the information provided. A decision on the 
application can only be made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material 
considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The site is located in Redpath Conservation Area. Redpath Village Hall is set 
relatively close to the application site, and is the only listed building in the 
conservation area. 
 

Principal Issues 
(not exhaustive) 

The principal legislative and policy considerations from a heritage perspective in 
this case are; 
 

• Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
(Scotland) Act 1997 requires that local planning authorities ensure that, 
“special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 
enhancing the character or appearance” of any buildings or other land in 
a conservation area in fulfilling its planning functions. 

• Scotland’s rich heritage, culture and outstanding environment are 
national assets which support our economy, identity, health and 
wellbeing (NPF4). 

• Policy 7 of the NPF4 seeks to protect and enhance historic environment 
assets and places, and to enable positive change as a catalyst for the 
regeneration of places. It recognises the social, environmental and 
economic value of the historic environment, to our economy and cultural 
identity. 

• Policy 7 (a) indicates that proposals should be informed by national policy 

and guidance on managing change in the historic environment. The 

Managing Change documents are available from Historic Environment 

Scotland’s website. 

• Part (d) indicates that proposals in or affecting conservation areas will 
only be supported where the character of appearance of the conservation 
area and its setting is preserved or enhanced. Relevant considerations 
include the: architectural and historic character of the area; existing 
density, built form and layout; and context and siting, quality of design 
and suitable materials. 

• Historic Environment Policy for Scotland sets out a series of principles and 
policies for the recognition, care and sustainable management of the 
historic environment. Relevant policies include: 

o HEP4: Changes to specific assets and their context should be 
managed in a way that protects the historic environment. 
Opportunities for enhancement should be identified where 

Page 79

https://www.historicenvironment.scot/archives-and-research/publications/?searchPubText=managing+change
https://www.historicenvironment.scot/archives-and-research/publications/?searchPubText=managing+change


appropriate. If detrimental impact on the historic environment is 
unavoidable, it should be minimised. Steps should be taken to 
demonstrate that alternatives have been explored, and mitigation 
measures should be put in place. 

• The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a 
Conservation Area which are located and designed to preserve or 
enhance the special architectural or historic character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale, proportions, 
alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby 
buildings, open spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes (Policy EP9). 

• Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, 
extensions, or for demolition and replacement which should explain and 
illustrate the design principles and design concepts of the proposals 
(Policy EP9). 

 
Therefore, the principal consideration(s) from a heritage perspective from this 
case are; 
 

• Whether the proposed works would preserve or enhance the historic 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area  
 

Assessment The density of development within Redpath conservation area varies, although 
overall it retains a spacious, rural character. High density sections tend to be 
comprised of row houses / attached properties rather than detached properties. 
The area is generally characterised by houses set parallel to the street; the few 
gables fronting the road are garages/ancillary buildings rather than dwellings. 
 
The proposed property is detached and set very close to another detached 
property in the conservation area. It is set at right angles to the road and extends 
significantly into the plot. The density, layout, form and design of development 
that would be created would therefore not be characteristic of the conservation 
area.  
 
The area to the front of the property is characterised by high levels of vegetation 
which give a sylvan and rural character to the conservation area. The space 
available for parking and necessary access to the proposed property would 
significantly impact this. 
 
A path runs to the side of the property. This path/track is shown on historic maps 
from at least the first OS map (1843-1882). The width of the track would be 
reduced by the proposal. The proposed fence and the depth of the property 
would be apparent in the public realm. 
   

Recommendation ☒ Object ☐Do not object ☐Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

☐Further information 
required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Page 80



Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

Page 81



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

23/01014/FUL Page 1 of 1 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Alan Scott 
Senior Roads Planning Officer

ascott@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 826640 

Date of reply 24th August 2023 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01014/FUL Case Officer:      Julie Hayward 

Applicant Mr K Robertson 

Agent Stuart Davidson Architectucre 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwelling 

Site Location Glenbield, Redpath 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

Assessment Whilst I have no objections o the principle of a dwelling in the garden ground of this 
property, I have concerns regarding the layout proposed. It is our policy to look for 
two parking spaces to be provided for new build dwellings such as this and whilst 
the layout indicates two, I am not satisfied these will operate satisfactorily due to 
the constrained nature of the layout and site. The bay immediately adjacent to the 
access has no room for vehicular manoeuvrability due to the adjacent hedging and 
PU apparatus. The bay in front of the house is in such a location it is unlikely a car 
will get into it as shown, the result being it will not allow a second vehicle into the 
area in front of the access. 

Until it can be demonstrated that parking for two vehicles can be accommodated, I 
will not be able to support the proposal. To provide these bays may require the 
dwelling to be moved back further into the plot, thus allowing more room at the front 
to accommodate the parking. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

Further 
information required

Reason for refusal The development proposed does not comply with Policies PMD2 and IS7 with 
regards access safety and parking. 

Signed: DJI 

Page 82

mailto:ascott@scotborders.gov.uk


 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
18th December 2023 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00046/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 23/01014/FUL 
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Garden Ground of Glenbield, Redpath 
Applicant: Mr Keith Robertson 
 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) 
 
Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 4: Natural Places 
Policy 6: Forestry, Woodland and Trees 
Policy 7: Historic Assets and Places 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP) 
 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
PMD5: Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP4: National Scenic Area 
EP7: Listed Buildings 
EP9: Conservation Areas 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS3: Developer Contributions Related to the Borders Railway 
IS7: Parking Provisions and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Other Material Considerations  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on:  

• Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems August 2020 
• Development Contributions 2023 
• Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight Guide) 2006 
• Placemaking and Design 2010 
• Trees and Development 2008 
• Waste Management 2015 

 
 

Page 83

Agenda Item 4e



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 23/00844/FUL

APPLICANT : Mr Francis Gilhooley

AGENT : James Moir

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse

TYPE : FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

01 Proposed Plans, Sections & Elevations Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

One representation received.  That was an objection and the material grounds can be summarised as
follows:  impact on infrastructure; parking; visual impact; privacy.  Consultation responses received
from:  Roads - further information required; Scottish Water - no objection.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

In determining the application, the following policies and guidance were taken into consideration:

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
PMD2 - Quality standards
PMD5 - Infill developments
HD3 - Protection of residential amenity
EP13 - Trees, woodlands and hedgerows
IS2 - Developer contributions
IS7 - Parking provision and standards
IS9 - Waste water treatment standards and sustainable urban drainage

NPF4
Policy 3 - Biodiversity
Policy 6 - Forestry, woodland and trees
Policy 9 - Brownfield, vacant and derelict land and empty buildings
Policy 14 - Design, quality and place
Policy 16 - Quality homes
Policy 18 - Infrastructure first
Policy 22 - Flood risk and water management

Supplementary Planning Guidance:

LOCATION: Land South Of
1 Old Edinburgh Road
Eddleston
Scottish Borders

Page 85

Agenda Item 5a



Development contributions;
Placemaking and design;
Privacy and sunlight guide;
Sustainable urban drainage systems;
Trees and development;
Waste management.

Recommendation by - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 8th August 2023

Site and proposal
The site site lies immediately to the east of Old Edinburgh Road in Eddleston and there is currently a stone
dyke, approximately 900mm high between the site and the road surface, although vegetation and detritus
has led to an apparent reduction in that height.  It is approximately 8m wide at its narrowest, broadening out
to a maximum of about 8.8m.  From front to back the site measures 21.5m and in total, the area is a little
over 180sqm.   A mature tree, which is one of a number lining Old Edinburgh Road, appears to lie adjacent
to the common boundary with the garden of the property to the south (numbers 15 and 19 Bellfield Road).
To the north lies the garden of 1 Old Edinburgh Road, with that house being approximately 26.5m from the
boundary.
The site slopes upwards approx 2.8m from front to rear, and has approx 5 very large mature conifers
conifers directly behind the site on the East, rising to a height approx 11m higher than the entry
point to the site.

In determining the application, the following factors were considered:

Planning history
There is no specific planning history associated with the site but it appears to have been part of 21 Bellfield
Road.  A permission was granted in January 2007 for alterations to that property (reference 06/01451/FUL).
A pre-application enquiry (reference 20/00777/PREAPP) was made for the development of the site under
consideration.  Far from being "supportive" as stated in the current application form, the pre-application
response concluded that "Whilst it may be physically possible to fit a house onto the site, I have concerns…
about the quality of development that would result in terms of amenity, privacy, cramming and I also have
severe reservations about being able to develop a house on this site without serious damage to or loss of
the tree at the roadside".
To take a single comment from the pre-application in this manor gives a slanted view of the
evaluation given in the pre-application as a whole.
Also, there are very clear criteria set out in the pre-application which our design and objective
clearly and confidently ticks every box.
Here are the criteria…
A) it does not conflict with the established land use of the area;
B) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area;
C) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and
economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or town and village cramming;
D) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings;
E) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and drainage
and schools capacity;
F) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining properties as
a result of overshadowing or overlooking.
Our proposal complies with every one of these policy items.

Policy
The key LDP policies against which this proposal is assessed are PMD2, quality standards and PMD5, infill
developments.  In terms of NPF4, key is policy 14, design, quality and place.  As set out below, the proposal
does not comply fully with the terms of these key policies.
This is misleading and very unfair. Ranald is completely mis-representing the specific reason for the
policy. The general drive of NPF4 Policy 14 is clear, and is specifically to try and improve the locality,
with a drive to achieve more sustainable, local user friendly, community based developments. By
filling in this gap plot on the Old Edinburgh Road with our proposed sustainable, solar powered
development we will:
1. Take full advantage of the annual 1650 hours of usable local solar in this area.
2. Charge our 2 electric vehicles using 100% solar power with the south facing apex covered in

solar panels.
3. Provide substantial garden vegetable growing areas to maximise food sustainability.

Page 86



4. Ensure our children can hop on the local school bus some 200 yards from our door.
5. Ensure with the new local fibre optic cable recently installed, Mrs Gilhooley can work from

home, maximising sustainable use of the property.
6. Mr Gilhooley can teach clients from home, instead of having to rent space elsewhere to

teach. This again maximises the sustainable use of the property compared to travel and
other property rent.

7. In addition, using from a rural location, we will be able to regularly support the local
restaurants The Horse Shoe and The Scots Pine and The Barony Castle, as well using the
local membership Gym at The Barony Castle Hotel, all part of the drive for localising living in
Policy 14.

8. The vast improvement the proposed development would provide in comparison to the
current form of this somewhat abandoned land

9. As a family of cyclists, from this development we can also use the new cycle path from
Eddleston to Peebles, frequenting The Cringletie Hotel & Restaurant, and all of the services
in Peebles and beyond to Innerleithen by cycling. This is taking full advantage of the joined
up community thinking and cycle path developments in the locality.

10. As a family who have lived in the area for over 20 years, we would be moving in from some
distance in the nearby hills, completely changing our lives in a positive way, contributing to
the local community, whilst also enhancing the local community, and living a vastly more
sustainable lifestyle.

Here is the actual POLICY INTENT. You will see our proposal absolutely complies with policy 14
intent.

Policy 14 Intent:

To encourage, promote and facilitate the application of the Place Principle and create connected and
compact neighbourhoods where people can meet the majority of their daily needs within a
reasonable distance of their home, preferably by walking, wheeling or cycling or using sustainable
transport options.

Policy Outcomes:

• Places are planned to improve local living in a way that reflects local circumstances.

• A network of high-quality, accessible, mixed-use neighbourhoods which support health and
wellbeing, reduce inequalities and are resilient to the effects of climate change.

• New and existing communities are planned together with homes and the key local
infrastructure including schools, community centres, local shops, green-spaces, health and
social care, digital and sustainable transport links.

•
Local Development Plans:

LDPs should support local living, including 20 minute neighbourhoods within settlements, through
the spatial strategy, associated site briefs and masterplans. The approach should take into account
the local context, consider the varying settlement patterns and reflect the particular characteristics
and challenges faced by each place. Communities and businesses will have an important role to
play in informing this, helping to strengthen local living through their engagement with the planning
system.

—————————

In conclusion of this section, for your planner Ranald Dods to attempt to convey that this
development is at odds with Policy 14 is gravely concerning. What is the reason for a planner for
Borders council to actively warp the very purpose of a policy, and create a barrier when there is
none?

Page 87



The placemaking and design criteria set out in policy PMD2, amongst other things, require that a proposal:
creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the context, designed in
sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles, whilst not excluding appropriate contemporary and/or
innovative design; is of a scale, massing and height appropriate to its surroundings; is finished externally in
materials, the colours and textures of which complement the highest quality of architecture in the locality; is
compatible with and respects the character of the surrounding area and neighbouring built form.
There are 6 drastically different house designs within 50 metres of this plot.
Here they are… every one of them completely different designs, completely different windows,
completely different roofs, completely cladding, completely different paving.

This is why we have chosen a design that should use the best aspects of all, but with a minimalistic
approach.

Page 88



Our application tries to fit in with the general feel of the area, and aims to neatly nestle in to the
surrounding area offering privacy and sustainability, with no aggressive feature designs to invoke
negative neighbour responses. The drawing were sent personally by Mr Gilhooley to the closest 8
properties before submitting the plans, asking that any objections would be welcomed personally,
so Mr Gilhooley could have opportunity to re-design in early course, to attempt to satisfy all
neighbours. No Neighbours responded negatively to this effort.

Policy PMD5 sets out the criteria against which development on non-allocated, infill or windfall sites will be
assessed.  Amongst those is a requirement that a development does not detract from the character and
amenity of the surrounding area, respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its
surroundings; that adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and
drainage; it does not result in a significant loss of privacy to adjoining properties and; can be satisfactorily
accommodated within the site.

We believe we comply with each of the requirements of PMD5.
This is PMD5 below…

POLICY PMD5: INFILL DEVELOPMENT
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within
Development Boundaries as shown on settlement maps will be approved where the following criteria
are satisfied:
1. where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area.
2. it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area.
3. the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and

economic infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or town and village
cramming.
4. it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings.
5. adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and

drainage and schools capacity.
6. it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining

properties as a result of overshadowing or overlooking.
7 All applications will be considered against the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on

Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide Design Statements as
appropriate

Our development does not conflict with the localised land usage.
Our development has been designed to mimic aspects of the character of the local buildings, all of
which are completely different.
The building can in no way be deemed as to be unsustainable by the local infrastructure, and with
two more similar areas adjacent cannot be deemed as cramming. We are building on less than 45%
of the plot size. This cannot be deemed cramming.
The design shape is similar to the house immediately to the South. The materials used are in
sympathy to the other houses within sight to the north.
Adequate access, in particular consideration of water and drainage and schooling is fine.
There is no sunlight diminish caused by over shadowing.
There is no diminished privacy by Overlooking, as we do not overlook any properties.
The mature sized conifers on our East boundary offer considerable privacy to our development from
the houses above, making our property more private than the adjacent low lying neighbours houses
as per the photo below… See the large conifers offering privacy to our property.

Page 89



NPF4 policy 14 requires, amongst other things, that development proposals be designed to improve the
quality of an area, whether in urban or rural locations and regardless of scale.  Development proposals that
are poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area or inconsistent with the six qualities
of successful places, as set out in NPF4, will not be supported.
This item has been addressed in Policy 14 earlier. We are compliant at every point and should be
approved.

Assessment
Policy PMD2 aims to ensure all new development is of the highest quality and respects the environment in
which it is contained.  That policy aim does not restrict good quality modern or innovative design.  What is at
question here is whether the proposal is good quality or innovative design; whether it would be in keeping
with the scale, extent, form and architectural character of the existing buildings and; whether or not the
proposed dwelling would make a positive contribution to the character of the area.

The character of the area is single houses of varying styles, set within generous grounds, with mature trees
creating an avenue along Old Edinburgh Road.
This is simply not true. The majority of the properties in the immediate surrounding area are made
up of the council housing immediately East of our plot. There are in total 8 council properties within
yards of our plot. None of these are single houses, they are all flats and semi detached, and the only
mature trees are the conifers directly behind our plot. The properties of which Ranald refers to are
much further along the street, the same distance away as more council blocks. None of these
Council houses are surrounded by generous grounds, though they do have some low lying garden
plots down the hill from these properties.

The nearest property to the south is known as Kilrubie.  There is then a distinct break in development of
some 80m before the next house at 1 Old Edinburgh Road, to the north of the application site. Other than a
small telephone exchange building, the intervening land comprises the rear garden ground of 11-21 Bellfield
Road and the southern part of the garden of number 1 Old Edinburgh Road.  There is, as noted above,
variety in styles of the buildings in the area but the closest properties, those noted above, are set back from
the road and have generous gardens surrounding them.
Again, this is false and extremely important and in our opinion misleading.
The closest properties by far are the Council houses and flats which sit above the proposed
development. These are 2 councils houses and 4 flats which are all attached in one large building
approximately 40 metres long. To try and project this as an area of idilic large gardens is more than a
little misleading. The gardens are all lawn and other than 5 mature conifers bordering the proposed
development, there are no mature trees. This point needs to be made very clear, as there seems an
attempt to mislead the nature of the proposed build compared to the exiting builds.

By contrast, the proposed house would be built hard up to the northern boundary.  Being on the boundary,
there would be no fenestration on the north elevation which would present an unattractive blank elevation on
the approach to the village from the north.
This is an absolutely disgusting attempt to warp the look of the proposed property. I attach a few
photos below which will precisely address the deliberate false skewing of the vision of this
development by Ranald Dods.
Below there are two photos that clearly show how false and misleading Ranald assertion of the view
of the development is. It’s an utterly ridiculous indefensible comment and stance.

Page 90



Closer view of the side of the building Ranald states would be an unattractive blank elevation on the
approach to the village. It’s almost completely sheltered and hidden behind the trees.

Viewed from the road, the house would have an area of underbuild, approximately 1m and the fenestration
would give the property a symmetrical appearance.  The entrance would be to the south and, as with the
northern elevation, the elevational treatment would be unattractive, with only one window lighting a
bathroom.  The building, being located some height above the road level, would be unduly prominent when
entering or leaving the village.
Please see my photos and comments above. This is simply an untrue deeply negative fabrication
quite frankly.

Despite the variety of building styles in the village, this proposal would not relate well to its surroundings.
There appears to be a lack of contextual understanding, leading to an ill-fitting development with the
immediate area.  This incongruity is exacerbated by the orientation and elevated position of the house and
the lack of development on either side of the site.
I would have thought that Ranald would know that the orientation of the house has been chosen
specifically to maximise the solar power production from the roof by means of the perfect southerly
aspect the plot enjoys. Ranald must move into this century given the entire climate crisis, and start
actively looking at the benefits of design with a view of the climate technology needed these days.
Failure to take this into consideration is bad enough. But to actively condemn the orientation of the
proposed build is nothing short of ignorance at the expense of the environment.
In addition, we have used the relative height and frontage shape as the house to the South, whilst
incorporating the general brick/render mix as the house to the North. If this is not planning with
great consideration to the local area, then I do not know what is. Having asked Ranald for guidance
at the very beginning so we could comply with the area, he was not forthcoming with any
assistance. Considering the sheer variance of existing house designs in the area, we thought
complimenting several aspects of immediate properties would ensure we are planning with
consideration of the surrounding area, yet this seems to have been completely overlooked by
Ranald.

In terms of PMD5, whilst the applicant has demonstrated that a house could physically be fitted onto the site,
the fact is that the house would be over-development or cramming of the site.  The submitted plan shows
that the site area is in the order of 180sqm and the house would be approximately 79sqm.  In other words,
the house would occupy 56% of the entire site.
We specifically designed the build to ensure the house would only occupy 44% of the property. We
want a large vegetable garden and greenery to surround our house where possible. The figures you
have calculated are completely back to front. We have 44% house build, and 56% Garden, so your
assertion above is completely false and completely misleading.

In addition to this, I addressed all of the points you are raising about potential over-development
(and addressing a neighbour comment) etc in an email I sent you on 17 July 2023, which clearly and
in great detail conveys our willingness to adjust the property, and even flip the property round if
required. I shall attached that email which you chose not to reply to, at the end of this appeal
statement.

Page 91



The house would be built directly onto the northern boundary, be between 1m and 1.4m from the southern
boundary and 4.9m from the eastern boundary with only 35sqm (excluding the retaining gabion baskets)
available as garden ground. The appearance would be one of a house crammed onto the site, which would
be very much at odds with the pattern of development in the area.
Our intention is to form terraced timber framed vegetable plots integrated into the garden space to
maximise vegetable production from all areas of the garden. This leaves adequate garden area of
over 60 sq m, over and above gabions and pathways. It also is a greater than the garden we had in
the street above this plot when we lived there on Bellfield Road. It is also very similar to the split of
land/garden percentage in the house to the south of the plot. This proposal has enough garden front
and rear to have a patio and social area, and lots of planting beds for home grown veg & fruit trees.
The world is changing Ranald, and scaled down sustainable living is a must for the environment,
and I shouldn’t have to argue with planners on this kind of matter.

The submitted plan shows the front of the house to be only 5.5m from the boundary and that area (about
48sqm) would be given over to car parking and surface water drainage.  The proposed "surface water sump"
would not appear to be complaint with building regulations.  Having discussed the proposal with Building
Standards, that would have to be 5m from the house and the boundaries.  Clearly that would be a matter for
that department to consider under the relevant legislation but it does indicate that drainage from the site
would be an issue and therefore, compliance with PMD5, as well as IS9 and policy 22, would have to be
called into question.
Our intention is to excavate and create a very large sump under much of the parking. All pathways
should be of the type “Ceda Gravel” allowing natural ground drainage at all points where possible.
We believe we can make a sump large enough at the front of the property to adequately cope with all
of this sites surface water needs.

In relation to policy 14 of NPF4, the matters set out above lead me to believe that the proposed house would
not improve the quality of the area.  The development is poorly designed and would be detrimental to the
visual amenity of the area.  The development would be crammed onto the site and would not enhance the
pleasant entrance to the village and therefore the built space.
This is simply not true. The flaws, mis-calculations and lack of understanding of the Policy is
beyond negligent. These are fundamental flaws. This will be the most environmentally friendly, well
designed house in the area, with a productive insect, bee and butterfly friendly garden with 100% of
surface water being cycled straight into the water table.

On the basis of the above, I conclude that the proposed development cannot be said to demonstrates a
clear understanding of the context and would not be appropriate in siting and design terms.  As it would not
be designed in sympathy with its surroundings, it would not be sympathetic to the character of the immediate
area and the village as a whole nor would it improve the quality of the area.  Taking all of the above factors
into consideration, the proposal does not comply with the terms of LDP policies PMD2, PMD5, HD2 and
NPF4 policy 14.

Amenity
Policy HD3 aims to protect the amenity.  It states that development that is judged to have an adverse impact
on the amenity of existing or proposed residential areas will not be permitted.

There is zero impact on the amenity of the residential area in this location. We propose to take an
overgrown derelict plot and make it something attractive and absolutely worthwhile in line with the
ethics of NPF4 Policy 14 and local development. There’s is no impact on the traffic, the drainage, the
water or electricity supply. The visual amenity will be dramatically improved. See below, a photo of
the current site.

Page 92



As set out above, the form of the development would not fit within the existing pattern of the area and the
design would have a undue visual impact on the village and, in particular, the existing property to the north
where the appearance of the north elevation would be particularly prominent and overbearing.
I specifically addressed this in my email on 17 July to Ranald which was completely ignored. In
addition to this, I have above shown clearly  with photographic evidence that the visual impact on
entry to the village is zero. This is a completely and alarmingly false claim. I have taken the time to
provide photos to prove this is absolutely false.

Whilst the proposal would not result in overshadowing or loss of light, I have reservations about privacy
issues.  The submitted plans do not show the relationship with the properties to the east in any detail.  An
estimate has had to be made of the distance to the properties on Bellfield Road and that is approximately
17m.  Had the land been flat, then it may have been possible to allow for some flexibility in terms of the
window to window privacy distance, accounting for any mitigation that could have been provided.  In this
case, however, the properties on Bellfield Road are approximately 5m higher than Old Edinburgh Road.
Assuming the rear of the proposed house to be half way between Old Edinburgh Road and Bellfield Road,
that would mean a level difference in the order of 2m to the existing houses.  As set out in the council's
Privacy and Sunlight Guide, for every metre difference in height (or part thereof), the distance in the
standard is increased by approximately 2 metres.  In order to safeguard the privacy of the proposed house,
the privacy distance would need to be increased from 18m to 22m.  As a result of those factors, the proposal
would be contrary to policy HD3.
The distance from property to property is 22.3m which is over your required minimum distance. In
addition to this, if you look at the above photo of the site taken from the front entry, you will see 5
large mature conifers right on the rear/upper boundary that almost completely remove any concerns
of privacy. But the fact the distance is 22.3m from building to building, this means the distance
complies with HD3 regardless.

Trees
The site has a mature tree within it and that forms part of an avenue of trees lining Old Edinburgh Road.
Although those are not protected, they are of high amenity value to the area and form an attractive entrance
to the village when travelling south on the A703.  The applicant was advised at pre-application stage that an
arboricultural impact assessment and tree survey would be required.  No such reports were submitted with
this application.  Since the tree is not shown with any degree of accuracy, I estimate that the house would be
positioned no more than 4.5m from the centre of the trunk.  Given the size of the tree, that is likely to be well
within the root protection area.  In addition, the proposal to use that area as car parking and for surface
water drainage is likely to increase pressure on the root structure and, in combination, lead to the loss of the
tree.  However, the tree is worthy of protection and the application takes no account of it, despite the
probability of the development proposal having a negative impact on it.  As a result, the proposal has to be
found contrary to policy EP13.
I have made it absolutely clear both in the pre-application and all throughout that I want to keep this
beautiful old tree. I’m aware that 2 of the avenue of trees have fallen over in the wind in the last few
years, and another removed for safety concerns, but I believe the tree is a great old character and we
would like to do anything to make sure we can keep it. I conveyed this clearly to you in anther email
you ignored on July 19th, and I quote… “We believe that the house at the next stage of planning
would be would be on a concrete stilt in that corner, hand dug to avoid damaging any roots”.
This is pretty damning that you just straight forward refuse to discuss this. We have always made it
clear we will retain this lovely tree.

Developer contributions
Were the proposal to be acceptable, developer contributions would be payable towards education provision.
Those would require to be secured by a legal agreement.
This is all as expected.

Roads issues
I have discussed the case with the Roads Planning Service in light of their consultation response.  An
assumption had been made in error that the site would be accessed from Bellfield Road.  Accepting that the
access would be from Old Edinburgh Road, Roads state that the their preference would be for 2 in-curtilage

Page 93



parking spaces.  The distance from the front wall of the house to the edge of the site would be 5.5m.  This
would mean that any car parked in the site would be likely to overhang the public road.  In addition, no
account has been taken of the slope of the site nor of the presence of the tree, both of which are likely to
further cause issues for parking within the site.  Whilst the staring position is for in-curtilage, Roads
acknowledges that there would be on-street parking available.
We would like to park two vehicles on the drive for the purpose of electrical charging, however we
were not particularly overly concerned about the parking as you have stated in your pre-application
that “Two off street parking spaces would normally be required for a house. Given the road in front
of the site is no longer a through road for motor vehicles and the site is towards the end of the
stretch where vehicles could access, it may be possible for that requirement to be relaxed. That
comment is made on the basis that I have not consulted my colleagues in Roads”.
We believe that we can fit two car parking inside, whilst looking after the tree root system if we
excavate sensitively. There is also an option to bring a second charger to the front of the property if
we remove the abandoned overgrowth, and park a vehicle against the front of the property. Please
see photo below.

Services
The application form states that a connection would be made to the public water supply and foul drainage
networks.  Those matters would be acceptable, subject to condition.  Surface water would be by means of a
soakaway located to the front of the house.  As noted above, the proposed soakaway is unlikely to be
acceptable in terms of building regulations, albeit that is a separate regulatory regime, since that would have
to be a minimum of 5m from the house and boundary of the site.
As someone who has worked in drainage for most of his life, I am absolutely sure that after
discussion with an engineer, we can create a functioning drainage sump to handle the roof surface
water from this site.

Finally, although there would appear to be sufficient space within the site to site waste and recycling
containers to the rear of the property, the plans show the difference in level between the front of the house
and the main entrance (roughly 1m) to be taken up by steps.  In practical terms therefore, it is likely that the
bins would be located to the front of the property, further adding to the unacceptable impact on the amenity
of the area.

Page 94



We will create a suitable bin store and sloping paths to ensure no bins are in the front of the
property. This omission was an oversight between myself and my architect believing this was a
building control matter for future drawings. There is clearly no negative issue here which adds to
any negative potential with regards to the site amenity. The stance of negativity Ranald has taken
from start to finish regarding this application. Ranald ensures a problem in every solution. This is an
unacceptably negative starting point to work with.

Other matters
As noted already, there would be issues in terms of  building regulations relating to the provision of a
soakaway.
I have addressed this above. I don’t see a problem.

The internal layout of the house is also likely to raise issues for Building Standards and revisions to make
the development acceptable for that regulatory regime may then have a bearing on the exterior of the
property and its impact on amenity and privacy.  Were the proposal to be otherwise acceptable, in order to
prevent privacy issues arising as a result of internal alterations, a condition would be recommended in order
to remove permitted development rights for the creation of windows or openings in the north and south
elevations.
I assume this is regarding future alterations… I agree.

Conclusion

The design of the proposed house is unsympathetic to the surrounding context in terms of siting, design,
height and massing and it would have an overbearing appearance and unacceptable adverse impact on the
existing property to the north.
The property to the North is approx 26.5 m away. There would normally be a 6ft boundary fence
between properties. So the verdict of the “overbearing appearance” is literally the couple of feet of
extra height to the roof. This is unduly negative considering the house is 26.5 m away from the
boundary. In my email of both the 17th & 19th July which Ranald ignored both, I expressly stated
“We would also happily flip the house so our front door faces his side, so we don’t require access to
his property for anything. We would erect a fence between us along the boundary to offer privacy to
the bottom of his garden. His house is however a considerable distance from the boundary”.

When the girls in reception tell us there is no point in them putting us through to planners by phone
because they wont take the calls, and the emails we send are completely ignored, I wonder what we
are paying our fee for.

There would be insufficient distance between the proposed house and the existing properties to the east to
provide sufficient privacy distance, due to the difference in levels present in the area.
This has been dealt with in my comments above. There is sufficient distance to comply, and plenty
of tree coverage over and above, so this comment should be removed.

The proposal has taken no account of the tree within the site.
We made clear in our pre-application that the tree will stay. I have stated this to you personally, and
intimated it to you by email. I covered this point thoroughly above, and offered adequate coverage to
ensure the tree’s well being. We love this old tree.

The proposed means of surface water drainage is unlikely to be acceptable.
I reiterate, this is a complete false assumption. We will make the roof surface water drainage system and
sump comply.

The proposal is therefore contrary to LDP policies PMD2, PMD5, HD3, EP13 and IS9 together with NPF4
policies 6, 14, 16 and 22.  The principle of a house on the site is therefore not accepted.
Having addressed all of these points above in several ways, I believe the conclusions herein are
completely wrong and an unacceptable conclusion to come to with this proposal.

Page 95



REASON FOR DECISION :

The development would be contrary to policies PMD2, PMD5 and HD3 of the Local Development Plan 2016
and NPF4 policies 14 and 16 together with Placemaking and Design and; Privacy and Sunlight guidance in
that the scale and form of the development would not fit within the existing pattern of development in the
area, the proposal would be over-development of the site and the design would have a undue visual impact
on the area, the existing property to the north and on the approach to and exit from the village.  In addition,
the fenestration layout, siting of the house and its orientation in relation to the properties to the east would
lead to an unacceptable adverse impact on the privacy of the proposed house through overlooking.  No
overriding case for the development as proposed has been substantiated.  This conflict with the
development plan is not overridden by other material considerations.
This is an exact repetition of the items above which I have made clear the issues, flaws and errors
with above several times. I also emailed several of these points twice, on 17th & 19th July and my
emails were ignored.

The development would be contrary to policy EP13 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and NPF4 policy 6
together with Trees and Development guidance in that no account has been taken of the tree within the site.
No overriding case for the development as proposed has been substantiated.  This conflict with the
development plan is not overridden by other material considerations.
I emailed my proposal to keep the tree along with my solution on 19th July and my email was
ignored. These are clearly important points for the council and for ourselves, and as such to have
my emails completely ignored is puzzling and extremely frustrating. This point cannot be ignored as
I have my emails clearly time-stamped and I shall include/attach below.

The development would be contrary to policies PMD2 and IS9 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and
NPF4 policy 22 together with Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems and Waste Management guidance in
that the proposed surface water drainage is unlikely to be able to be provided within the site
I have made this point clear in my email of 19th July which was ignored. You have simply assumed
non compliance with no back up or calculations to confirm your appraisal. I have made clear in my
email our intention to design a large sump to take care of this.

…and there is not adequate provision for waste and recycling containers away from the elevation of the
building which faces the public road.  No overriding case for the development as proposed has been
substantiated.  This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by other material considerations.
I have explained the simplicity of a bin store construction to the rear of the property, and this simple
oversight on my part. It is simply ridiculous, unfair and negatively biased against any construction
to use this as a point to refuse this application. I have made clear the issues I have with Ranald’s
extremely negative views on several aspects of this application.

Recommendation: Refused

1 The development would be contrary to policies PMD2, PMD5 and HD3 of the Local Development
Plan 2016 and NPF4 policies 14 and 16 together with Placemaking and Design and; Privacy and
Sunlight guidance in that the scale and form of the development would not fit within the existing
pattern of development in the area, the proposal would be over-development of the site and the
design would have a undue visual impact on the area, the existing property to the north and on the
approach to and exit from the village.  In addition, the fenestration layout, siting of the house and its
orientation in relation to the properties to the east would lead to an unacceptable adverse impact on
the privacy of the proposed house through overlooking.  No overriding case for the development as
proposed has been substantiated.  This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by other
material considerations.
I am confident Ranald is completely wrong with this assertion, in particular NPF4 policy 14
where it seems he has completely mis understood the motives behind the policy.

2 The development would be contrary to policy EP13 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and NPF4
policy 6 together with Trees and Development guidance in that no account has been taken of the

Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



P
age 99

A
genda Item

 5b



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 101

Agenda Item 5c



Page 102



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Tuesday, 06 June 2023 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

South Of 1 Old Edinburgh Road, Eddleston, EH45 8QB 

Planning Ref: 23/00844/FUL  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0088077-6G5 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 This proposed development will be fed from Bonnycraig Water Treatment Works. 
Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to allow us to 
fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a Pre-
Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via our 
Customer Portal or contact Development Operations.  
 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 This proposed development will be serviced by Eddleston Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to 
allow us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a 
Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via 
our Customer Portal or contact Development Operations. 

 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 5d

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

Asset Impact Assessment  
 
Scottish Water records indicate that there is live infrastructure in the proximity of your 

development area that may impact on existing Scottish Water assets.  

 
 150mm combined sewer within the site boundary 

 
 

The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water assets and contact our 
Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal for an appraisal of the proposals.  
 
The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified will be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction. Please note the disclaimer at the end of this 
response.  
 
Written permission must be obtained before any works are started within the area of our 
apparatus  
 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 

Page 104

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 www.sisplan.co.uk 
 

 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 
10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 

Page 105

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 5kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Angela Allison 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 106

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/
http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 107



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

23/00844/FUL   Page 1 of 1 

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service 

 

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Craig Johnston 
Roads Planning Officer 

craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk 
01835 826856 

Date of reply 23/06/2023 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/00844/FUL Case Officer:      Ranald Dods      

Applicant Mr Francis Gilhooley  

Agent James Moir 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Land South Of 1 Old Edinburgh Road Eddleston Scottish Borders   
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The site is subject to pre-application 20/00777/PREAPP, however the Roads 
Planning Service were not consulted on this.  
 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 

Assessment In order for me to support the erection of a new dwelling, I would generally look to 
ensure that parking for two vehicles can be achieved within the curtilage of the site.  
 
The submitted documents show a single car being parked within the plot, yet the 
application form states that two parking spaces will be provided. Furthermore, 
assuming the site access is to come from Bellfield Road, having a plot with parking 
but no turning would result in vehicles having to reverse a long distance in order to 
enter/exit the plot.  
 
In order for me to fully assess this application, I shall require a drawing showing the 
detailed parking and access arrangement which is being proposed. The detail 
should show that parking, and ideally turning, is available for two vehicles within the 
curtilage of the site.  
 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions 

 Further 

information required 

Recommended 
Conditions 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

 

 

Signed: AJS 

Page 108

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk


Comments for Planning Application 23/00844/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 23/00844/FUL

Address: Land South Of 1 Old Edinburgh Road Eddleston Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Ranald Dods

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr Colin MacDonald

Address: 1 Old Edinburgh Road, Eddleston, Peebles, Scottish Borders EH45 8QB

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Density of site

  - Inadequate Boundary/Fencing

  - Inadequate screening

  - No sufficient parking space

Comment:Application Number 23/00844/FUL

 

 

The North side of the proposed new house is shown to be hard to the boundary with the garden

old No 1 Old Edinburgh Road. Should it not be a sufficient distance distance from the boundary to

allow construction and maintenance from within the site? Additionally, there is a live water main

runs up the edge of the boundary in the garden of No1. A local resident who previously worked for

Scottish water has previously cautioned me about the fragility of said water pipe.

 

The plan shows Gabion baskets set to 12mm. If my interpretation is correct, the intention would be

to lower the finished ground level to the rear of the site. If so, 1. how would this effect the main

sewer pipe that runs across that area of the site? 2. There is no detail of how the soil would be

held back on the North side of the site? Additionally, would this impact the frost protection of the

live water main running near?

 

The application mentions the provision of 2 parking spaces within the site but as the drawing

illustrates, it would be tight to park one car.

 

The drawings do not show any details of planting and or any other measures to be employed to

minimise the visual impact and privacy loss to No 1 Old Edinburgh road

 
Page 109

Agenda Item 5e



It was my understanding that in previous planning applications the council had made it a condition

that the front of the house had to in line with the front of No1 Old Edinburgh road

Page 110



 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
18th December 2023 
 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00047/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 23/00844/FUL 
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Land South of 1 Old Edinburgh Road, Eddleston 
Applicant: Mr Francis Gilhooley 
 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) 
 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 6: Forestry, woodland and trees 
Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land and empty buildings 
Policy 14: Design, quality and place 
Policy 16 Quality homes 
Policy 18: Infrastructure first 
Policy 22: Flood risk and water management 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 
 
PMD2: Quality standards 
PMD5: Infill developments 
HD3: Protection of residential amenity 
EP13: Trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
IS2: Developer contributions 
IS7: Parking provision and standards 
IS9: Waste water treatment standards and sustainable urban drainage 
 
Other Material Considerations  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on:  

• Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems August 2020 
• Development Contributions 2023 
• Householder Development (incorporating Privacy and Sunlight Guide) 2006 
• Placemaking and Design 2010 
• Trees and Development 2008 
• Waste Management 2015 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 5f



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100652177-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Ferguson Planning

Lisa

Miller

Thistle Street

38

01313858744

EH2 1EN

United Kingdom

Edinburgh

1st Floor

lisa@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 113

Agenda Item 6a



Page 2 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Mr

Mark

Scottish Borders Council

Graham Thistle Street

38

1st Floor

EH2 1EN

Edinburgh

630750

Edinburgh

371264

lisa@fergusonplanning.co.uk

c/o Ferguson Planning

Page 114



Page 3 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the 
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

  Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application.

  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

  Refusal Notice.

 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

  No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement 
must set out all matters you consider require  to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a 
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: *  (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce 
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at 
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that 
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer  at the time the  Yes   No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before 
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Erection of a new dwellinghouse, associated landscaping and infrastructure.

See attached Statement of Appeal

Page 115



Page 4 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend 
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review 
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be 
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or 
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other 
parties only,  without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *
 Yes   No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *  Yes   No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *  Yes    No

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure  you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure 
to submit all this  information may result in your appeal  being deemed invalid. 

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?.  *  Yes   No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this  Yes   No
review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name   Yes   No   N/A
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the 
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what  Yes   No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider 
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review 
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely 
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on  Yes   No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a 
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the 
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.
 

• Appeal Statement • 23/01065/FUL: o Application Form o Transport Statement o Design & Access Statement 
o Planning Drawings o Roads Authority Consultation Response 07/08/2023 o Community Council 
Consultation Response 12/08/2023 o Further Representations (Neighbours) 27/08/2023 o Report of Handling o

Decision Notice • Planning Committee Report 04/01984/OUT 

23/01065/FUL

20/09/2023

23/05/2023

Page 116



Page 5 of 5

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Ms Lisa Miller

Declaration Date: 21/11/2023
 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal Details
Proposal Name 100652177
Proposal Description Erection of dwellinghouse
Address  
Local Authority Scottish Borders Council
Application Online Reference 100652177-001

Application Status
Form complete
Main Details complete
Checklist complete
Declaration complete
Supporting Documentation complete
Email Notification complete

Attachment Details
Notice of Review System A4
Application Form 2301065FUL Attached A4
Transport Statement Attached A4
Design and Access Statement Attached A4
Site Plan as Existing and Demolition Attached A1
Proposed Site Layout Plan Attached A1
Block Plan Attached A1
Proposed Floor Layout and North 
Elevation Plan

Attached A1

Proposed South East and West 
Elevations Plan

Attached A1

Site Section Attached A1
CGI North West Attached Not Applicable
CGI South West Attached Not Applicable
Historical Map Attached Not Applicable
Roads Authority Consultation 
Response

Attached A4

Heiton and Roxburgh Community 
Council Consultation Response

Attached A4

Neighbour Representation Attached A4
Report of Handling Attached A4
Decision Notice Attached A4
Planning Committee Report 
0401984OUT

Attached A4

Appeal Statement Attached A4

Page 119



Notice_of_Review-2.pdf Attached A0
Application_Summary.pdf Attached A0
Notice of Review-001.xml Attached A0

Page 120



 

 
 
  

1 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,  
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

 
M A R K  G R A H A M  

N O V E M B E R  2 0 2 3  

P
age 121



 

 
 
  

2 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

C O N T E N T S  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................. 3 

INTRODUCTION............................................. 5 

REASONS FOR REFUSAL AND PLANNING 
POLICY CONTEXT ....................................... 11 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR 
APPELLANT ................................................... 14 

CONCLUSION .............................................. 23 

 
 

 

P
age 122



 

 
 
  

3 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O   
C A R N L E A ,  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

E X E C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y   

P
age 123



 

 
 
  

4 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

                          EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 

1 Introduction 
This Statement is submitted on behalf of Mr Mark Graham (the 
Appellant/Applicant) against the decision by Scottish Borders 
Council to refuse planning permission for the erection of a 
dwellinghouse on land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton on 
20th September 2023 (reference 23/01065/FUL).  

 
Despite an established history of residential use at the application 
site, the planning application was refused due to concerns over 
road safety as detailed below .   

 
“The proposed development would not comply with National 
Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 in that vehicular access to the site 
is poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding 
area and inconsistent with the six qualities of successful places. In 
addition, the proposal is contrary to Policies PMD2: Quality 
Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development 
Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional 
vehicular traffic on a substandard private access to the detriment of 
road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and the proposed 
upgrade of the junction with the A698 is not supported as it would 
appear incongruous with the linear streetscape and any scheme in 
isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety.” 
 
The refusal on road safety grounds did not take into account that 
five residential dwellings have already used the access previously, 
without any reported issues, and that the Applicant is committed to 
provide traffic calming measures  in the form of road markings 
and/or build out. 

 

 
The Appellant would like to draw members of the Local Review 
Board attention to the following information that forms the grounds 
of this appeal: 
 

 There has been a residential dwelling on this site 
previously for a number of years, resulting in a total of 
five dwellings using the private access road and 
junction, with no known recorded road safety issues. 

 Main Street along the A968 at Heiton has a permanent 
20mph speed limit and there is no record or evidence 
of any accidents at this location. 

 The site is located in a sustainable location and meets 
all other key policy requirements. 

 Refusal of planning permission ensures the land will 
remain vacant and continue to negatively impact the 
character and vitality of the neighbourhood. 

 There are no other objections to the proposed 
development from other consultees or the Community 
Council. 

 The proposed development would actually improve 
the current access arrangements on the private access 
road through a dedicated turning space and road 
markings at the junction. 

 
Having considered the detail contained within this appeal 
statement and associated documentary evidence, members of the 
Local Review Body are respectfully requested to allow the Notice of 
Review and grant planning permission.  
 

P
age 124



 

 
 
  

5 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

1.1.Engagement.  Housing.  Retail / Town Centre Regenration. 

I N T R O D U C T I O N   

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  
C A R N L E A ,  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

P
age 125



 

 
 
  

6 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

INTRODUCTION 
 

 
1.1 This Statement supports a Notice of Review of the delegated 

decision of Scottish Borders  Council to refuse to grant Planning 
Permission (23/01065/FUL) for the erection of a dwellinghouse, 
associated landscaping and infrastructure on land  adjacent to 
Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. 
 

1.2 The site is located within the centre of the village of Heiton, which 
is located 2.5miles to the south of Kelso (Fig.1). It is a linear 
settlement which has developed on either side of the A698 which 
runs south from Kelso to Hawick, where there is a mix of house 
types evident. According to the 2011 census, the population of 
Heiton is 204, an increase from the 2001 census of 71 people. 

 
1.3 The site has been previously developed and is considered to be 

brownfield land and is presently covered in grass and occupied by 
a garage; several trees are located around the site boundary. 

 
1.4 A private road links the site to Main Street on the A698 and the 

nearest bus stop is approximately 160m to the south on Main Street 
where services run to Kelso and Morebattle. 

 
1.5 The surrounding area is characterised by a several late 20th century 

residential properties, the majority of which are bungalows or 1.5 
storeys (Fig.2). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Figure 1: Location Plan 

Figure 2: Aerial image of the proposed development site (outlined in red) 

P
age 126



 

 
 
  

7 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

1.6 Historically , the site was occupied by a residential dwelling known 
as ‘Khansbur’ (Fig.3), visible alongside the property ‘Craimar’ on 
historic mapping of the locality in 1965.  A further three 
neighbouring houses were built in the 1970’s while the property at  
Khansbar was removed.  At present, there are four properties that 
comprise the existing building group in which the site is located: 
Craimar, Tandarra, Hillcrest and Carnlea. 

 
1.7 The site has a long planning history going back to 1994 (R127/94), 

when permission was granted for a replacement dwelling, but 
subsequently lapsed in 1999.  A further grant of permission was 
made for a replacement dwelling in 2004 (04/01984/OUT) and 
2005 (05/00012/REM); the applicant maintains that these 
permissions were implemented however this is disputed by the 
Planning Authority.   
 

1.8 A further planning application for a replacement dwelling was 
made in 2020 (20/01327/FUL) and was refused on the basis of 
vehicular traffic access; this decision was appealed, and the Local 
Review Body upheld the decision (21/00019/RREF).  In 2022, the 
Planning Authority declined to determine a further application on 
the basis that there was no change from the previous application in 
2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Figure 3: Historical Map (1965). Site is occupied by a property called ‘Khansbur’ 

P
age 127



 

 
 
  

8 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

1.9 The current proposed development seeks to create a three-
bedroom bungalow with additional patio and garden space to the 
rear; the existing garage on the plot will be removed to achieve 
this. A new driveway to accommodate two cars, and turning space 
will be created to the north of the site (Fig.4).  

 
1.10 The current proposals take cognisance of the comments made by 

the Planning Authority on previous applications, specifically with 
regards to: 

 the scale of the dwelling footprint  has been reduced from 
134m2 to 128m2 along with a reduction of the roof ridge 
height by 0.5m. 

 An additional turning area to the west of the proposed 
driveway, has been created and can be used by other 
residents in the private lane, which is now larger in size than 
the previous turning area proposed to allow for cars to 
manoeuvre in and out without encroaching on neighbour’s 
land. This improves the existing situation on the lane for all 
residents by formalising the provision of a turning circle, 
allowing cars to enter and exit the lane in a forward gear. 

 The floor plan has been reconfigured so that no 
accommodation overlooks the west boundary to Hillcrest. 
Only a small bathroom window remains, which will be 
installed with privacy glass. 

 A new 1.8m high privacy hedge is now proposed to 
surround the property, ensuring the privacy of the 
proposed dwelling and neighbouring residences. 
Previously this hedge only encompassed the western 
boundary. 

 Traffic calming measures are proposed in the formal of a 
small build out or paint markings, north and south of the 
junction of the access lane with the A698. An indicative 
layout for this is provided in Appendix 1 of the Transport 
Supporting Statement. Since the previous application, the 
20mph zone is  now  formally established on the A698. 

1.11 The proposal utilises a design based upon the surrounding 
dwellings, with similarity in materials and architectural style. 
Materials have been specifically selected to be sensitive to the site 
context and are outlined in the supporting Design and Access 
Statement and shown in the CGI images (Fig.5).  
 

1.12 Services such as electricity and mains water will be extended to 
accommodate the ad-additional dwelling. Surface water and foul 
water drainage will be achieved by connection to the public sewer. 
Much of the drainage has already been prepared for development 
in advance of the previously approved application in 2005. 

 
1.13 Despite the site being used historically and granted planning 

permission for residential use,  the current application was refused 
by the Planning Authority on the grounds of road safety issues 
related to the existing junction from the private track to Main Street 
on the A698 road.  Therefore, the remainder of this statement will 
set out the case for why the Local Review Body should allow the 
appeal as it is considered to be in accordance with the Statutory 
Development Plan which comprises National Planning Framework 
4 and the adopted Local Development Plan (2016) and also any 
other material considerations such as  the proposed Local 
Development Plan (2023) which has been approved but not yet 
formally adopted. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
  

P
age 128



 

 
 
  

9 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

  

Figure 4: Proposed Site Layout 

P
age 129



 

 
 
  

10 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
 

 
 

 

Figure 5:  CGI of Proposed Development 

P
age 130



 

 
 
  

11 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O   
C A R N L E A ,  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

 
R E A S O N S  F O R  R E F U S A L  A N D   
P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y  C O N T E X T  

P
age 131



 

 
 
  

12 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

REASONS FOR REFUSAL AND PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
      

 
2.1 Planning Application 23/01065/FUL was refused on 20th 

September 2023.  The Decision Notice cited one reason for refusal, 
as set out below:  
 
“The proposed development would not comply with National 
Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 in that vehicular access to the 
site is poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the 
surrounding area and inconsistent with the six qualities of 
successful places. In addition, the proposal is contrary to 
Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill 
Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the 
development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a 
substandard private access to the detriment of road safety, 
both vehicular and pedestrian, and the proposed upgrade of 
the junction with the A698 is not supported as it would appear 
incongruous with the linear streetscape and any scheme in 
isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety.” 
 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (ADOPTED 
2016) 
 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

2.2 This policy sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and 
design, accessibility and open space / biodiversity requirements, 
whereby the proposal must: 

• Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use of 
energy and resources, in terms of layout, orientation, 
construction and energy supply. 

• Make provision for sustainable drainage. 
• Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of 

waste and recycling. 

 
• Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration with 

the surroundings. 
• Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of 

context. 
• Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the 

surroundings. 
• Be finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of 

which complement the highest quality of architecture in the 
locality. 

• Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the 
surrounding area, neighbouring uses & neighbouring built 
form. 

• Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site. 
• Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure 

attractive edges, and to help integration with the 
surroundings. 

• Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties. 
• Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the site 

access. 
• Incorporate adequate access and turning space for vehicles 

including those used for waste collection purposes. 
 
Policy PMD5: Infill Development 

2.3 This policy seeks to be generally supportive of infill development 
of all types, subject to proposals meeting the following criteria:  

• Where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land 
use of the area; and 

• It does not detract from the character and amenity of the 
surrounding area; and 

• The individual and cumulative effects of the development can 
be sustained by the social and economic infrastructure, and 

P
age 132



 

 
 
  

13 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

it does not lead to over-development or ‘town and village 
cramming’; and 

• It respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in 
context of its surroundings; and 

• Adequate access and servicing can be achieved particularly 
taking account of water, drainage and schools capacity; and 

• It does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or 
privacy to adjoining properties as a result of overshadowing. 

 
               NATIONAL PLANNING FRAMEWORK 4 (2023) 

2.4 NPF4 was adopted in February 2023 and is part of the statutory 
development plan in the Scottish Borders for the purpose of 
sections 25 and 37 of the Act.  The document provides and 
overarching national planning policy framework and outlines the 
Scottish Government’s approach to achieving a net zero, 
sustainable Scotland by 2045. 
 

2.5 NPF4 establishes “six overarching spatial principles”, one of which 
is Rural Revitalisation,  the principle which is most pertinent to the 
proposed development.  Rural Revitalisation is defined as 
encouragement of “sustainable development in rural areas, 
recognising the need to grow and support urban and rural 
communities”.  Furthermore,  NPF4 confirms that the associated  
strategy and policies “support development that helps to retain and 
increase the population of rural areas of Scotland.” 

 
Policy 14: Quality, design and place 

2.6 This policy is relevant for all  new development and seeks to 
“encourage, promote and facilitate well designed development 
that makes successful places by taking a design-led approach and 
applying the Place Principle”; good design should improve the 
quality of a place regardless of location or scale.   Development 

proposals will be supported where they are consistent with the six 
qualities of successful places: healthy, pleasant, connected, 
distinctive, sustainable, and adaptable. 

 
                OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS 

2.7 It is pertinent to note that the Report of Handling assessed the 
planning application on several other planning policies  from the 
statutory development plan, and found that the proposed 
development to be in accordance with the following: 

• HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
• IS7:  Parking Provision & Standards 
• IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable 

Urban Drainage 
• Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
• Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
• Policy 16:  Quality Homes 

 
 

This demonstrates that there are no other constraints to the 
proposed development over and above those contained in the 
single reason for refusal regarding road safety. 

P
age 133



 

 
 
  

14 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O   
C A R N L E A ,  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

 
G R O U N D S  O F  A P P E A L   

P
age 134



 

 
 
  

15 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

GROUNDS OF APPEAL 
 

3.1 The decision of the Planning Authority to refuse the Application is 
challenged on the basis of the grounds of appeal set out below. It 
is the submission of the Appellant that the proposal accords with 
the relevant adopted policy of the statutory development plan that 
comprises National Planning Framework 4, the Local Development 
Plan and that there are no other material considerations which 
justify the refusal of the application.  
 

3.2 The determining issue of this application is regarding access to the 
site, in particular the junction where the private access road meets 
the adopted road at Main Street on the A698; the report of 
handling states that “The Roads Planning Service objections 
remains the key consideration”.  The recommendation for refusal is 
centred around an objection on road safety grounds by the Roads 
Authority who state in their consultation response that  “access 
from the private road is still unsuitable for this level of development” 
and referring to the road calming measures  put forward by the 
applicant road (markings and/or build out)  that they “would not 
support any scheme to narrow the carriageway along the A698 as 
this is incongruous with the road through Heiton and any scheme in 
isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety”. 

 
3.3 Based on the assessment of the application by the Planning 

Authority in the report of handling along with the objection from 
the Roads Authority, the Applicant believes that there are six 
relevant grounds of appeal to consider as detailed below: 

 
 There has been a residential dwelling on this site 

previously for a number of years, resulting in a total of five 
dwellings using the private access road and junction, with 
no known recorded road safety issues. 
 
 

 
 Main Street along the A968 at Heiton has a permanent 

20mph speed limit and there is no record or evidence of 
any accidents at this location. 

 The site is located in a sustainable location and meets all 
other key policy requirements. 

 Refusal of planning permission ensures the land will 
remain vacant and continue to negatively impact the 
character and vitality of the neighbourhood. 

 There are no other objections to the proposed 
development from other consultees or the Community 
Council 

 The proposed development would actually improve the 
current access arrangements on the private access road 
through  dedicated turning space and road markings at 
the junction. 

 
Each ground for appeal will be discussed in further detail below to 
demonstrate that, on balance, the proposed development is 
acceptable and should therefore be approved on appeal by the 
Local Review Body.  
 
Ground 1 – Established Site History of Residential Use 

3.4 As shown in the historical map (Fig.3), there has been a long-
established history of a residential property at this location.  Like 
many rural residential sites in the Borders, the private track and 
junction to the main road are typical in small rural settlements in 
the Borders and across Scotland, where the plot edges to the road 
are bound by the original stone boundary walls.  This arrangement  
should not be used as a means to preclude development in 
sustainable locations where all other criteria can be met.   
 

 

P
age 135



 

 
 
  

16 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

3.5 The private access road has been used by five residential dwellings 
in the past, with no known road safety accidents or complaints.  This 
fact was openly acknowledged by the Director of Planning during 
the determination of the application (04/01984/OUT) at Planning 
Committee in 2004, who stated that “this application is not 
creating a worse situation to that which existed when the 
original chalet (house) was in use therefore I do not believe that 
there are sufficient grounds upon which to justify refusal of the 
application.”     
 
This clearly demonstrates that the private access road can and has 
supported this level of development, without any impact on road 
safety or residential amenity, and is not a form of overdevelopment 
and thus complies with Policy PMD5: Infill Development. 
 
Ground 2 – A698 Heiton 20mph Speed Restrictions & No 
record of Accidents at this location 

3.6 Heiton is a small, rural settlement that has developed in a linear 
pattern along the main road of the A968.  This reflects historical 
patterns of settlement in rural communities along the main access 
routes to nearby towns and employers.  These roads have often 
evolved into busy trunk roads, such as Main Street at Heiton that 
connects Kelso with Jedburgh, with a speed limit that has 
historically been 30mph. 
 

3.7 In January 2023, the speed limit of  part of the A698 through Heiton 
was permanently reduced to 20mph.  The section  of road now 
benefits from several new elements of traffic calming and road 
safety measures in the form of road markings, speed limit warning 
signs and a vehicle activated speed sign.  Current data from the 
Department of Transport confirms  the low risk at this location as 
over a period of 24 years, there were no records of any accidents 
at the junction between the private access road and Main Street on 
the A698.   

3.8 The current situation with regards to road safety at this location, is 
clearly that of a permanent, low speed environment, with several 
existing traffic calming and road safety measures in place, as well 
as no history or evidence of accidents.  These measures all 
contribute to a significant reduction in the risk of road safety issues 
and that of potential accidents in what was already a low-risk 
environment.  Moreover, due to the nature and scale of the 
proposals (residential), trips generated would be low and not 
significant enough to fundamentally increase the risk of adverse 
impacts on road safety at this location.  

 
3.9 The Applicant has committed to providing measures in the form of 

road markings and/or build out, both of which are accepted, 
common means of traffic calming and road safety measures.  
Examples of road marking measures can be seen in Fig.6 at Scott 
Street in Galashiels and also in Fig.7 at Cairneyhill, Fife and are 
similar to what could be achieved at the application site.  Heiton & 
Roxburgh Community Council also noted in their consultation 
response that ‘It is noted that visibility splay is a key concern. If it is 
necessary, despite it not being an issue for the current dwellings, 
the suggestion of painted markings is reasonable’. 

 
3.10 These reasonable measures have been rejected outright by the 

Roads Authority in their consultation response as they “may have a 
detrimental effect on road safety”; no further explanation has been 
provided to substantiate this view.  Despite the historical use of the 
private track and junction being used by five residential properties, 
the low-speed restrictions in place and data confirming no records 
of accidents, none of this important, factual context has factored 
into the response from the Roads Authority or indeed the report of 
handling.   This has resulted in the application for the proposed 
development being refused on unreasonable and 
disproportionate grounds; it should therefore be supported as we 
respectfully consider it to meet the criteria of policy PMD2 and 
PMD5  with regards to access. 

P
age 136



 

 
 
  

17 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
 
 

  

Figure 6: Road markings at junction to assist with visibility - Galashiels 

P
age 137



 

 
 
  

18 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
  

Figure 7: Road markings at junction to assist with visibility - Cairneyhill 

P
age 138



 

 
 
  

19 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

Ground 3 – Sustainable Location for Residential Development 
3.11 Based on the objection from the Roads Authority, the report of 

handling concludes that “the means of access to the public road 
network is not adequate” and that a “fifth dwelling served off this 
private road is best termed over-development” and therefore the 
proposed development does not meet all of the criteria of Policy 
PMD5: Infill Development, specifically regarding access and 
overdevelopment.  No further assessment has been made that 
takes into account the context and established site history of 
residential development, which is essential in order to reach a 
balanced, reasonable conclusion. 
 

3.12 The application site, including its access and junction, has already 
been used for a fifth residential dwelling without any issue, is within 
the established settlement boundary at Heiton and is a readily 
definable infill site.  Furthermore, the Planning Authority recognise 
in the report of handling that “the scale, form, design, materials and 
density remain acceptable” and  that the proposed development is 
“a suitable addition to the neighbouring built form”.  The proposed 
Local Development Plan, while not formally adopted but approved 
and as such is a material consideration in the determination of 
planning applications, further strengthens the argument against 
the definition of the proposals as overdevelopment as Policy IS6: 
Road Adoption Standards, now allows for a maximum of five 
developments to be accessed via a private access.   

 
3.13 The refusal of the proposed development is therefore 

unsustainable and goes against the overarching principles of 
NPF4, and the South of Scotland Regional Economic Strategy 
which states that In order to sustain rural villages support should be 
given the development of low impact housing ‘to better integrate 
generations, attract new people to the area and ensure those 
farthest from the labour market have a stable platform from which 
to progress and prosper and development.  ‘ 

 

 
3.14 The Planning Authority should therefore be taking tangible steps 

to encourage sustainable development in rural areas; criteria that 
the proposed development can demonstrably fulfil. 

 
3.15 Taken together, all these factors clearly demonstrate that the 

proposed development is sustainable in terms of its location, for its 
proposed use and therefore cannot reasonably be considered as 
overdevelopment.  We consider that on this basis, the proposed 
development would meet the criteria of NPF4 Policy 14: Design, 
quality and place and PMD5: Infill Development in this instance. 

 
  Ground 4 – Negative Impact of Vacant Land 

3.16 As can be seen by the planning history of the application site, it can 
be reasonably classed as a brownfield site on account of it being 
land that has previously been developed.  The site has now lain 
vacant for a considerable amount of time and this latest refusal by 
the Planning Authority, merely facilitates the continuation of a 
vacant plot of brownfield land lying empty for the foreseeable 
future.   The impact of this decision results in  continued blight on 
the character and vitality of the surrounding neighbourhood, while 
the negative effects of living next to vacant land are well publicised 
through the recent excellent work of the Scottish Land 
Commission. 

 
3.17 Furthermore, it is noted that Scottish Borders Council declared a 

climate emergency in 2020 and published a “Climate Change 
Route Map” in 2021 to work towards the goal of net-zero by 2045.  
The proposed Local Development Plan also contributes to the net 
-zero journey, with a stated aim of promoting the development of 
brownfield sites in order to address and be resilient to the effects 
of climate change.  The proposed development meets this aim and 
should therefore be assessed with the climate emergency and 
stated aims of the Council in mind. 

 

P
age 139



 

 
 
  

20 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

Ground 5 – No objections from other Consultees  
3.18 As part of the application process, a total of three consultees were 

consulted including the Roads Authority, Heiton & Roxburghe 
Community Council and Scottish Water.  The only consultee to 
object were the Roads Authority, the grounds of which have 
already been discussed.  Of note is the response submitted by the 
Community Council who state that “the suggestion of painted 
markings is reasonable” in order to address concerns regarding 
visibility at the junction from the private access road to the A698.  
As stated previously, this mitigation has already been put forward 
by the Applicant and is still being offered,  should the Local Review 
Body be minded to allow the appeal, as it represents a reasonable 
and effective means of traffic calming in terms of road safety. 
 
Ground 6 – Improvements from provision of a dedicated 
turning space 

3.19 Based on feedback from the Planning and Roads Authority, the 
Applicant has included as part of the proposed development, a 
specific turning area within their property curtilage (Fig.8 and 
Fig.9) that can be used by all to ensure there is no need for vehicles 
to ever reverse onto the A698.  This has been accepted by both the 
Planning & Roads Authority. 
 

3.20 Until fairly recently, the application site, in full ownership of the 
Applicant, has been used unofficially as a turning area for vehicles 
primarily by neighbours and delivery drivers.  It is  noted that the 
three closest neighbours all objected to the proposed 
development siting road safety issues. 

 
3.21 In a subsequent letter to the Planning Authority on the 27/08/2023, 

that was not included in the report of handling despite containing 
material considerations, the neighbours advised that  the Applicant 
had erected a barrier on his land, which he is legally entitled to do, 
so they or other visitors were no longer able to use the site as an 
unofficial turning area.   

 
3.22 The neighbours advised that “As a result, vehicles are regularly 

having, if clear, to use our driveways to turn around but more 
importantly on several occasions large vehicles have had to reverse 
out onto the A698 which is clearly dangerous”.   

 
3.23 The neighbours therefore recognise that the proposed 

development, with its inclusion of a dedicated, official  turning area 
would in fact significantly improve the current situation with 
regards to road safety.  They request that the provision of the 
turning area be subject to planning condition to ensure its proper 
use.  The Applicant is still committed to the provision of a 
communal turning space on his land, for all to use when necessary. 

 
 

  

P
age 140



 

 
 
  

21 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
  

Figure 9: Proposed Site Layout Figure 9: Proposed Site Layout Figure 8: Proposed Site Layout – Turning Area 

TURNING SPACE 

P
age 141



 

 
 
  

22 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
 

Figure 9: Swept Path Analysis – Turning Space 

P
age 142



 

 
 
  

23 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 

C O N C L U S I O N  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O   
C A R N L E A ,  M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N   

 

P
age 143



 

 
 
  

24 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

                        CONCLUSION 
 

 
4.1 The Notice of Review, supported by this Statement, respectfully 

requests that the Council overturns the decision to refuse Planning 
Permission in for Application 23/01065/FUL and grant permission 
for the erection of a new dwelling at land adjacent to Carnlea, Main 
Street, Heiton.  

 
4.2 The proposed development is for the erection of a replacement 

dwelling on a site that has lain vacant for a considerable amount of 
time and has previously been used for residential purposes.  The 
proposed dwelling reflects the existing pattern of development, is 
well related to and within the existing housing group without any 
residential amenity issues, respects the local character of the area, 
represents a sustainable use of vacant, brownfield land and will 
contribute positively to the ongoing vitality and revitalisation of 
Heiton. 
 

4.3 The proposals include a dedicated turning area for all vehicles to 
use,  which would significantly improve the current situation for 
vehicles using the private access road.  New road markings at the 
junction of the private access track and Main Street would also be 
installed to address comments by the Roads Authority regarding 
potential road safety issues; these measures are an accepted, 
proportionate and reasonable form of traffic calming for road 
safety in a location that has a permanent low speed limit of 20mph 
and with no recorded traffic accidents.   
 

4.4 Given the site history of having five residential properties using the 
private access road and the existing junction arrangements without 
any issues, the proposed development would therefore not 
result in a worse situation to that which existed when the 
original dwelling (Khansbar) was in use.   

 

 
4.5 Based  on the evidence and arguments outlined in this statement 

that addresses and counter the recommendation for refusal by the 
Planning Authority, we submit to the Local Review Body that the 
proposed development  is therefore compliant with the relevant 
planning policy of the statutory development plan comprising:  
National Planning Framework 4, Policy 14;  adopted Scottish 
Borders Local Development Plan, Policy PMD2 and PMD5 and the 
approved Scottish Borders Development Plan Policy IS6.   
 

4.6 Members of the Local Review Body are therefore respectfully 
requested to allow the appeal and grant planning permission for 
the proposed development of a new dwellinghouse adjacent to 
Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. 

 
  

P
age 144



 

 
 
  

25 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

   APPENDIX - CORE DOCUMENTS 
 

 
The following drawings, documents, and plans have been submitted to 
support the Notice of Review: 

 
 Appeal Statement 
 23/01065/FUL: 

o Application Form 
o Transport Statement 
o Design & Access Statement 
o Planning Drawings 
o Roads Authority Consultation Response 07/08/2023 
o Community Council Consultation Response 12/08/2023 
o Further Representations (Neighbours) 27/08/2023 
o Report of Handling 
o Decision Notice 

 Planning Committee Report 04/01984/OUT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

P
age 145



 

 
 
  

26 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  O N  L A N D  A D J A C E N T  T O  C A R N L E A ,   
M A I N  S T R E E T ,  H E I T O N  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

E:  t im@fergu sonpl anning.co.uk  

W W W . F E R G U S O N P L A N N I N G . C O . U K  

G A L A S H I E L S   
 
Shiel house 
54 Island Steet 
Galashiels  
TD1 1NU 
 
T:  01896 668 744 
M: 07960 003 357 

E D I N B U R G H   
 
1st Floor, 38 Thistle Street 
Edinburgh 
EH2 1EN 
 
 
T:  0131 385 8801 
M: 07960 003 358 

N O R T H E R N  I R E L A N D  
 
61 Moyle Road 
Ballycastle, Co. Antrim 
Northern Ireland 
BT54 6LG 
 
 
M: 07960 003 358 

 

P
age 146



Page 1 of 7

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100626378-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Erection of a new dwellinghouse, associated landscaping and infrastructure. 

Page 147



Page 2 of 7

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Ferguson Planning Ltd

Mr

Sam

Mark

Edwards

Graham

Island Street

54 Island Street

54

54

07854009657

TD1 1NU

TD1 1NU

Midlothian

United Kingdom

Galashiels

Galashiels

07854009657

sam@fergusonplanning.co.uk

sam@fergusonplanning.co.uk

c/o Ferguson Planning Ltd

Page 148



Page 3 of 7

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

0.05

Previously developed land with garage to the southwest, between residential dwellings

Scottish Borders Council

630749 371263

Page 149



Page 4 of 7

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently exist on the application
Site?

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) do you propose on the site (i.e. the
Total of existing and any new spaces or a reduced number of spaces)? *

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the use of particular 
types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, cycles spaces).

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

Waste Storage and Collection
Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection of waste (including recycling)? *  Yes   No

0

2

Page 150



Page 5 of 7

If Yes or No, please provide further details: * (Max 500 characters)

Residential Units Including Conversion
Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? *  Yes   No

How many units do you propose in total? *

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plans. Additional information may be provided in a supporting 
statement.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Bin storage provided within proposed development.

1

Page 151



Page 6 of 7

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

I hereby certify that –

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the 
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at 
the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Sam Edwards

On behalf of: Mr Mark Graham

Date: 13/07/2023

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Page 152



Page 7 of 7

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: Mr Ferguson Planning

Declaration Date: 23/05/2023
 

Planning Statement

Page 153



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Design and Access Statement 
 
In Support of a  
 
Planning Application 
 
Proposed Bungalow 
 
 
 
Land Adjacent  
27, Main Street, 
HEITON, 
Kelso 
TD5 7UG 
 
APPLICANT 
Mr Mark Graham 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Patterson architecture 
16, Riverside View, 
KELSO, 
Scottish Borders, 
TD5 7UG. 
T: 01573 226553. 
M: 07850 327677. 
E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk. 
 

Page 155



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

CONTENTS 
 
 
1.0 Introduction  
 
 
2.0 Site 
 
 
3.0 Roads 
 
 
4.0 Planning Policies 
 
 
5.0 Scale 
 
6.0 Design Principals. 
 
 
7.0 Access and Parking 
 
 
8.0 Relevant Plans + Documents 
 
 
9.0 Building Regulations 
 
 
10.0 Sustainability 
 
11.0 Bio Diversity 
 
12.0 Heritage Statement 
 
13.0 Conclusion 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 156



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

1.    INTRODUCTION 

This statement is written to accompany an application for planning 
application under the Town and Country Planning ( Scotland ) ACT 
1997. Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013. 

2.    SITE LOCATION 

The application site, is situated in the vil lage of Heiton, to the West 
of the Main Street ( A698 Jedburgh Kelso road), behind the dwelling 
named Carnlee. 

 
2.1 To the North of the site is an existing shared vehicular access road, 

giving vehicular access to the site. This access road joins the main 
A698. 

 
2.2 The western side of the site adjoins the dwelling known as Hillcrest. 
 
2.3 The Southern side of the site adjoins, dwelling houses and a private 

garage 
  

3.    ROADS 
 

Access to the site is gained off an existing shared access road, 
leading from Main Street (A698), the A698 supports two-way traffic, 
also subject to a 20 mile per hour speed limit 

 
 
4.     PLANNING POLICIES 
 

The development is currently not within a conservation area. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 157



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

5. SCALE 
 
5.1 The proposed development carefully considers the requirements of   

national and local planning policies to provide high quality design 
principles, to provide good quality residential unit and to util ise the 
land available. 

 
5.2 The proposed development carefully considers the relationship, 

between the existing dwellings, with regard to amenity, privacy and 
overlooking. All as recommended by Scottish Borders Council. 

 
6. DESIGN PRINCIPALS 
 
6.1 The submitted plans are to construct a dwelling house, to replace a 

house known as Khansbur, clearly indicated on the 1965 edition of 
the Ordnance Survey map.  

 
6.2 The design of the new bungalow is such, the proposed bungalow 

has been designed, with a minimum ridge height as practically 
possible, given the slate roof covering material. 

 
6.3 By util ising the topography of the site which slopes gently from West 

to East, To help keep the roof line, as low as possible, the site over 
the area of the build, will be set down, taking the lowest point from 
the East. 

 
6.4 With regard windows, no window openings will be sited in the West 

elevation, taking into account privacy and overlooking, A 1800mm 
high hedge to be planted along the West, East and South 
boundaries, species to be agreed with the LPA. 

 
6.5 The external materials, chosen in the design reflects the dwellings in 

the area, Facing brick basecoarse, Rendered walls and a Slate 
finished roof 

 
6.6 The bungalow has also been designed in such a way as to reflect 

the character of the area, whilst providing and incorporating 
modern house design, with good arrangements. 

Page 158



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

 
6.8 It is considered that the design and layout of the bungalow, Is 

suitable for the needs of young people, established families, also 
senior l iving. 

 
7 ACCESS 
 
7.1 Vehicular and pedestrian traffic access is gained, off the existing 

access Road leading from Main Street, to the North of the site. 
Util ising the existing vehicular access, which at present allows 
vehicular access to the existing garage position near the South 
boundary of the site. Within the existing site boundaries. 

 
7.2 The established residential muse of the site, retains the established 

access, via a shared access road, off Main Street. The retained 
vehicular access from the Main Street, this includes to the site and 
the existing on site Garage. 
 

7.3 On-site parking is to be provided, also a turning space, enabling 
forward moving access/ egress to the site. All to comply with 
Scottish Borders Council guidelines.  

 
7.4 The existing access/egress to the site remains extant and 

established. This is apparent on the site, access to the site and 
garage, in the title deeds for the property. Furthermore, the site 
retains the legal right of vehicular access, via the land registry title 
deeds, this also requires the landowners to contribute towards the 
upkeep of this access/ egress route.  Mr and Mrs Graham did not 
apply for planning permission to form a new access, this remains 
well-established for the existing site. 

 
7.5 A proposed turning space is proposed for the benefit, of the 

adjoining properties. To enable cars and service vans, to access the 
properties, also enter onto Main Street (A698 )  in a forward 
movement.  

 Mr and Mrs Graham are loosing garden and amenity space to 
provide this facility.  

 

Page 159



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

7.6 The use of ramps and steps, leading to the front entrance door, 
allows easy access for both disabled persons and those with young 
families. 

 
7.7 Driveway, parking, turning space, ramp and footpath to be of 

permeable construction, for details see drawings. 
 
 
8 RELEVANT PLANS + DOCUMENTS 
 
8.1 PLANS 

• PDK-23-169-000 Location Plan 
• PDK-23-169-001 Ground Floor Plan + North Elevation. 
• PDK-23-169-002 East, West + South Elevations. 
• PDK-23-169-003 Site Layout Plan 
• PDK-23-169-004 Block Plan 
• PDK-18-118-005 Section Through Site 
• PDK-18-118-006 Existing Site + Demolition Plan 
• CGI’s  

8.2 DOCUMENTS 

• Design + Access Statement. 
• Planning Statement: Prepared by Ferguson Planning, Galashiels. 
• Transport Supporting Statement: Prepared by Sweco UK Limited. 

9 BUILDING REGULATIONS 

All current Building Regulations and Standards to be complied 
with. 

• Flood Risk Area No 
• Listed Building No 
• Conservation Area No 
• Tree Preservation No 

 

Page 160



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

10      SUSTAINABILITY 

 
10.1 The application site is sustainably located within Heiton, a well-

established settlement. Also at a site with extant Planning 
Permission for a single dwelling. 

 
10.2 The proposal considers the connectivity of the site for people 

including the movement of motor vehicles, by prioritising 
sustainable mand active travel choices, such as walking, cycling 
and public transport.  

 
10.3 The proposed new building will fully comply with the newly 

updated and increased requirements of the Building Standards 
Scotland, as such, will as a minimum far exceed the sustainability 
credentials. 

 
10.4 The proposal will maximise the efficient use of resources. This can 

be achieved by re-using or sharing existing remorse’s and by 
minimising there future depletion. This includes consideration of 
technological and natural means, such as drainage systems, solar 
gain, renewable energy, in the form of solar panels and Air Source 
Heat Pumps. 

 
10.5  The KEY RESOURSE, efficiency is for the redevelopment of the site, 

util ising an extant Planning permission and a Brownfield site that is 
both vacant and derelict. The site is located within Heiton directly 
accessible to services, facilities and modes of sustainable 
transport. 

 
10.6 As the Government aim to prioritise the reuse and redevelopment 

of Brownfield land, this proposal achieves and accords with this 
aim and delivers the development of an extant site and Brownfield 
site. 

 
 
 

Page 161



                                                                    16, Riverside View, Kelso, Scottish Borders, TD5 7UG 
01573 226557 
17850 327677 

E: john@patterson-architecture.co.uk 

10.7 As our population gets older, government policy seems to be 
leaning more to care at home for Senior Citizens. This dwelling is 
design to comply with access to the property, also the spacial 
requirements required to meet such demands. All to comply with 
the Building Standards Scotland. 

 
 
11 BIO DIVERSITY  
 

The proposed design has in our opinion no adverse effects on bio-
diversity. With landscaping and hedge planting to be undertaken. 

  
 
12 HERITAGE STATEMENT 
 
 
13 CONCLUSION 

 
The Local Planning Authority is therefore urged to back this 
proposal for what it is, to all intents and purposes, a well-designed 
development which respects its surroundings, making the most 
efficient use of the site in a sustainable location. Furthermore, the 
development will be built to the highest standards in place, with 
regard to the sustainable construction. Thus, securing another 
significant planning benefit. 
 
 
 
 

 
  
  
 
 
 John Patterson 

Patterson architecture 
 
May 2023. 

Page 162



Existing	Access	Road

Boundary

Bo
un
da
ry

Boun
dary

Bo
un
da
ry

Boundary

Boundary
Bo
un
da
ry

Bo
un
da
ry

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	W
all
	to
	B
ou
nd
ar
y

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	W
all
	to
	B
ou
nd
ar
y

GarageEx
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	W
all
	to
	B
ou
nd
ar
y

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	W
all
	to
	B
ou
nd
ar
y

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence

Approx	line	of	existing	Foul	Water	Drain

Existing
manhole

Approx	line	of	existing	Foul	Water	Drain

Demolish	existing	Garage.

Existing	Conifer	Tree

Existing Site + Demolition Plan.
Scale	:	1	:	100.

Garage

Carnlea

Hillcrest

Demolish	existing	Garage	complete,Remove	from	site.

Approx	line	of	Existing
Gravel	Drive.

Existing	vehicular
access	to	site.

Approx	line	of	Existing
Gravel	Drive.

DEMOLITIONS:
SURVEY:	Before	starting	work,	carry	out	a	survey	and	submit	a	report	and	method	statement
covering	all	matters	listed	below	and	in	Health	and	Safety	Executive	Guidance	Note	GS29/1
paragraph	32.

Condition	and	demolition	methods	of	structure.
Removal	methods	of	any	hazardous	material.
Type	and	location	of	adjoining	or	surrounding	premises	which	may	be	adversely	affected

by	 the	works.
Identification	and	location	of	services.

DISCONNECTION	OF	DRAINS:	Locate	and	disconnect	all	disused	drain	connections	seal	within
the	site	to	approval.
DRAINS	IN	USE:	Protect	drains	fittings	still	in	use	and	keep	free	of	debris	at	all	times.	Make
good	any	damage	arising	from	demolition	work	and	leave	clean	and	in	working	order.
WORKMANSHIP	GENERALLY:	Demolish	stucture(s)	in	accordance	with	B.S.	6187	and	Health
and	Safety	Executive	Guidance	Notes	GS29/1,3and	4.
Operatives	must	be	appropriately	skilled	and	experienced	for	the	type	of	work	and	hold	or	be
training	to	obtain	relevant	CITB	Certificates	of	Competence.
Site	staff	responsible	for	supervision	and	control	of	the	work	are	to	be	experienced	in	the
assessment	of	the	risks	involved	and	in	the	methods	of	demolition	to	be	used.
STRUCTURES	TO	BE	RETAINED:	Adequately	protect	parts	of	existing	structure(s)	which	are
to	be	kept	in	place.	Cut	out	and	strip	out	the	minimum	necessary.	Prevent	debris	from
overloading	any	part	of	the	structure	which	is	not	to	be	demolished.
COMPLETION:	Clear	away	all	debris	and	leave	the	site	tidy	on	completion.	Grade	the	site	to
follow	the	levels	of	adjacent	areas.

NOTE:

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

006
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:100	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

Planning:
Site	Pan	as	Existing	+	Demolition	Plan

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

This	drawing	is	for	PLANNING	PERMISSION
PURPOSES	only	and	is	not	a	Construction	drawing.

P
age 163



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Hillcrest

Existing	Access	Road

SITE	AREA	=	Approx	553m²
																						Approx	0.055ha

Up
	2

Ramp	1:15

Drive

2No	Parking	Spaces
each	5000	x	2500

Turning	Space

Path

Pa
th

Path Patio

Boundary

Bo
un
da
ry

Bo
un
da
ry

Boundary

Bo
un
da
ry

Bo
un
da
ry

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Garage

Garage

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence	to	be	Retained

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence	to	be	Retained

Garden

2	No	Recycle	Bins

Garden

Temporary	Datum	on	existing
BT	Inspection	Cover:
=100.00m

FFL	-	99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Improve	existing	vehicular
access	to	site.

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Rotary	Clothes	Dryer

Demolish	existing	Garage.

Bo
un
da
ry

Existing
manhole

Existing	Deciduous	Tree
To	be	felled	and	tree	stumps
removed	complete.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

Ne
w
	H
ed
ge
	1
80
0	
hig
h

Ne
w
	H
ed
ge
	1
80
0	
hig
h

Existing	Conifer	Tree
To	be	felled	and	tree	stumps
removed	complete.

Boun
dary

Grass

Approx	line	of	existing	Foul	Water	Drain

New
	Hed

ge	1
800

	high

Re
ta
ini
ng
	W
all

Timber	Panel	+	Post	Privacy
Fence	to	Turning	Area

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Pa
th

Path

Turning	Space

3500

55
00

45°

Parking

Re
ta
ini
ng
	W
all

Path

Pa
th

Grass

Pa
th

Landing
1500x1500

Landing
1500x1500

Landing
1500x1500

Ramp
1:15

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy
screening	to	be	planted	along	the
Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy
screening	to	be	planted	along	the
Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.

N.

wc

838

Master
Bedroom

En-suite
Shower
1500
x	800

hwc

whb whb

838

838
838

838
Sliding	Doors

Work
Station

600	tw

Bed	1400	x	2000

762
762

Sliding	Doors

Bed 3

838

838
838

Sliding	Doors

Porch

C
oats

W
ardrobe

W
ardrobe

Linen

wc

whb whb

838

762
762

838

W
ardrobe

Family Bath

1700	Bath

900

Sliding	Doors

838

838
600	tw

wc

838

whb

Fridge

Cooker

Freezer

Bed	1400	x	2000

Bed 2

Kitchen

Dining

Utilitywc

Island Unit
Hob

sink

sink

So
lid
	F
ue
l	B
ur
ne
r

Tim
ber	Glazed	Screen

Timber	Glazed	Screen

boiler

Work	Station

838
838

Sliding	Doors 838WM
under

Wall	units	over

W
all	units	over

Living Room

Hall

600	tw

Patio	Doors

Shower
1000	x	800

Work
Station

Bed	1500	x	2000

838

Sliding	Pocket	Door600	tw

Wall	units Wall	units

wc

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

003
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

PLANNING:
SITE	Layout	Plan

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

This	drawing	is	for	PLANNING	PERMISSION
PURPOSES	only	and	is	not	a	Construction	drawing.

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank



2
23

108.2m

8

Recreation

27

Ground

37
12
50

37
13
00

2929a

27 23

Hillcrest

Tandarra

Existing	Access	Road

M
ain
	K
els
o	
-	
Je
db
ur
gh
	R
oa
d	
A6

98

SITE	AREA	=	Approx	553m²
																						Approx	0.055ha

Up
	2

Ramp	1:15

Drive

2No	Parking	Spaces
each	5000	x	2500

Turning	Space

Path

Pa
th

Path Patio

Boundary

Bo
un
da
ry

Bo
un
da
ry

Boundary

Bo
un
da
ry

Bo
un
da
ry

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Garage Carnlea

Garage

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence	to	be	Retained

Existing	Timber	Panel	and	Post	Fence	to	be	Retained

Garden

2	No	Recycle	Bins

23

Garden

01. 01.

To	A698	Main	Kelso	-	Jedburgh	Road.

Temporary	Datum	on	existing
BT	Inspection	Cover:
=100.00m

FFL	-	99.55

99.55

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.25

99.15

Grass

Improve	existing	vehicular
access	to	site.

Ex
ist
ing
	S
to
ne
	B
ou
nd
ar
y	
to
	b
e	
re
ta
ine
d

Rotary	Clothes	Dryer

Demolish	existing	Garage.

Bo
un
da
ry

Existing
manhole

Existing	Deciduous	Tree
To	be	felled	and	tree	stumps
removed	complete.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

Ne
w
	H
ed
ge
	1
80
0	
hig
h

Ne
w
	H
ed
ge
	1
80
0	
hig
h

Existing	Conifer	Tree
To	be	felled	and	tree	stumps
removed	complete.

Boun
dary

Grass

Approx	line	of	existing	Foul	Water	Drain

New
	Hed

ge	1
800

	high

Re
ta
ini
ng
	W
all

Timber	Panel	+	Post	Privacy
Fence	to	Turning	Area

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Pa
th

Path

Turning	Space

3500

55
00

45°

Parking

Re
ta
ini
ng
	W
all

Path

Pa
th

Grass

Pa
th

Landing
1500x1500

Landing
1500x1500

Landing
1500x1500

Ramp
1:15

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy	screening	to	be
planted	along	the	Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the
drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy
screening	to	be	planted	along	the
Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.

New	1800	high	HEDGE	as	privacy
screening	to	be	planted	along	the
Boundaries	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.

N.

wc

838

Master
Bedroom

En-suite
Shower
1500
x	800

hwc

whb whb

838

838
838

838
Sliding	Doors

Work
Station

600	tw

Bed	1400	x	2000

762
762

Sliding	Doors

Bed 3

838

838
838

Sliding	Doors

Porch

C
oats

W
ardrobe

W
ardrobe

Linen

wc

whb whb

838

762
762

838

W
ardrobe

Family Bath

1700	Bath

900

Sliding	Doors

838

838
600	tw

wc

838

whb

Fridge

Cooker

Freezer

Bed	1400	x	2000

Bed 2

Kitchen

Dining

Utilitywc

Island Unit
Hob

sink

sink

So
lid
	F
ue
l	B
ur
ne
r

Tim
ber	Glazed	Screen

Timber	Glazed	Screen

boiler

Work	Station

838
838

Sliding	Doors 838WM
under

Wall	units	over

W
all	units	over

Living Room

Hall

600	tw

Patio	Doors

Shower
1000	x	800

Work
Station

Bed	1500	x	2000

838

Sliding	Pocket	Door600	tw

Wall	units Wall	units

wc

SITE WORKS:

PERMEABLE	Areas	to	perimeters	of	HOUSE	and	PATHS:
Minimum	200mm	wide,	positioned	as	indicated	on	site	layout
Formed	with	minimum	300mm	thick	recycled	crushed	stone	to	dust,	on	imported	graded	40mm	to	dust	and
finished	with	50mm	thick	gravel,	to	drive	as	indicated,	colour	to	be	agreed.

HARD	LANDSCAPING

DRIVEWAY,	PARKING,	TURNING	SPACE,	RAMP	and	FOOTPATHS
PERMEABLE	CONSTRUCTION

ss.Excavations:
Excavate		for	Drive,	Parking,	Turning	Space	and	footpaths	as	shown	on	drawings.
Supply	and	install	precast	concrete	edgings	to	BS	EN	1340	size	150	x	50	x	915mm	to	Drive,	Parking	and	Turning
Space,	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.
Bedding	and	backing	of	units,	either	of	the	following:
Bedded	on	mortar	laid	on	hardened	concrete	base.	Bedding	mortar	allowed	to	set	and	units	secured	with	a
continuous	haunching	of	concrete.

Bedded	on	fresh	concrete	races	to	BS	7533-6,	secured	with	backing	concrete	cast
monolithically	with	concrete	race.

Concrete	for	foundations	and	haunching.
Standard	to	BS	8500-2.
Designated	mix:	Not	less	than	GEN10	or	standard	ST1	or	better,	low	workability.

Motar	bedding	1:3	cement	sand	as	section	Z21.
Bed	thickness	12	-	40mm.

GRAVEL	DRIVE,	PARKING	+	TURNING	SPACE:-
From	gravel	drive	with	concrete	edges	as	indicated	on	the	plans.
Excavate	to	vehicular	access	road	and	footpaths	as	shown	on	drawings,	to	depths	required	for	sub-base	thickness
as	below:-
Sub-base	to	Drive,	Parking	and	Turning	areas	be	minimum	150mm	thick	granular	sub-base.
Sub-base	to	footpaths	to	be	minimum	100mm	thick	granular	sub-base.
Granular	material:
Crushed	rock	[	other	than	argillaceous	rock	]	or	quarry	waste	with	not	more	binding	material	than	is	required	to	help
hold	the	stone	together.

Natural	gravel.
Natural	sand.

No	frost	susceptible	material.
Execution:-
Preparation/	compacting	of	subgrades:
Soft	or	damaged	areas:	Excavate	and	replace	with	sub-base	material,	compacted	in	layers	300mm	thick	[
maximum	].
Compaction:	Thoroughly,	by	roller	or	other	suitable	means,	adequate	to	resist	subsidence	or	deformation	of	the
subgrade	during	construction	and	of	the	completed	pavings	when	in	use.	Take	particular	care	to	compact	fully	at
intrusions,	perimeters	and	where	local	excavation	and	backfilling	has	taken	place.
Compaction	of	sub-base:
Preparation:	Remove	loose	soil,	rubbish	and	standing	water.
Laying:	Spread	and	level	in	layers.	As	soon	as	possible	thereafter	thoroughly	compact	each	layer.
After	compaction	and	immediately	before	overlaying,	the	sub-base	must	be	uniformly	well	closed	and	free	from
loose	material,	cracks,	ruts	or	hollows.
Blinding:-
Finish:	Vibrate	to	provide	a	close,	smooth	surface.
Protection:-
Sub-bases:	As	soon	as	practicable,	cover	with	subsequent	layers,	specified	elsewhere.
Prevent	degradation	by	construction	traffic,	construction	operations	and	inclement	weather.
Geotextile	sheet:
Lay	geotextile	sheet	overlay,	over	blinding	coarse,	fit	neatly	at	edge	restraints	and	other	features.	e.g.	drainage
fittings,	channels,	manholes	and	kerbs.
Width:	1000mm	[	minimum	].
FINISHES:-
DRIVE
Bonded	chippings:	Standard:	to	BS	EN	13043.
General:	Loose	laid	and	racked	to	a	uniform	50mm	thickness
PARKING,	TURNING	AREAS	and	RAMP:-
Parking	+	Turning	Areas	+	Ramp
To	be	finished	with	Permeable	finish,	MARSHALLS	Driveline	Priora	(	colour	Charcol	)	size	200	x	100	x	60mm	thick
sets	laid	in	a	regular	pattern,	or	similar	approved.	Laid	on	a	50mm	thick	laying	coarse	6-2mm	open	graded	crushed
rock.
Copaction:
Compaction	should	be	undertaken	with	a	plate	vibrator.	Prior	to	final	compaction	of	the	surface	,	joints	should	be
filled	with	the	same	grading	of	materials	as	that	used	for	the	laying	course.

PAVING:
Including	FOOTPATHS	and	PATIO	AREAS
Form	concrete	flag	paving	with	concrete	edges	as	indicated	on	the	plans.
Standards:	Concrete	flags	600x600x38mm	to	BS	EN	1338.
Laying	course	sand	or	sand	bedded	concrete	flags	to	BS	7533-4	maintained	at	even	moisture	content	that	will
give	maximum	compaction.
Execution:-
Sub-base:	100mm	thick	all	as	specified	above,
Blinding:	all	as	above.
Geotextile	sheet:	all	as	above.
Laying	pavings	general:	Appearance,	smooth	and	even	with	regular	joints	and	accurate	to	line,	level	and	profile.
Falls:	To	prevent	ponding.
Bedding	of	paving	units:	Firm	so	that	no	rocking	or	subsidence	does	not	occur	or	develop.
Bedding/	Laying	course:	Consistently	and	accurately	graded,	spread	and	compacted	to	produce	uniform	thickness
and	support	for	paving	units.
Slopes:	Lay	paving	units	upwards	from	bottom	of	slopes.
Paving	units:	Free	of	mortar	and	sand	stains.
Cutting:	Cut	units	cleanly	and	accurately,	without	spalling,	to	give	neat	junctions	with	edgings	and	adjoining	finishes.
PROTECTION:-
Cleanliness:	Keep	paving	clean	and	free	from	mortar	droppings,	oil	and	other	materials	likely	to	cause	damage.
Materials	storage:	Do	not	overload	pavings	with	stacks	of	materials.
Handling:	Do	not	damage	paving	unit	corners,	arrises	or	previously	laid	paving.
Access:	Restrict	access	to	paved	areas	to	prevent	damage	from	site	traffic	and	plant.
SOFT	LANDSCAPING
GRASSED	AREAS:
The	Ground	Areas	around	the	new	dwelling	house	that	is	not	detailed	under	hard	landscaping	above.
Reuse	existing	top	soil	removed	from	excavations	to	house	and	drive.	Should	top	soil	have	to	be	imported,	this	shall
be	to	BS	3882	with	classification	of	slightly	stony,	or	less.	No	stone	greater	than	50mm	in	any	dimension	shall	be
acceptable.	Cover	areas	as	required	round	house	and	to	edges	of	new	drive	and	finish	with	turf.
Topsoil	shall	be	spread	and	lightly	rolled	to	a	finished	compacted	thickness	of	150mm	for	seeding	and	100mm	for
turfing,	all	grassed	areas	to	be	initially	set	to	a	level	40mm	above	adjacent	kerbs/edgings	to	allow	for	compaction.
Areas	to	be	turfed,	turves	shall	comply	with	BS	3969.	They	shall	be	laid	to	bond	and	tamped	into	topsoil	bed.	The
contractor	shall	ensure	that	the	grass	is	properly	and	regularly	watered	and	cut,	and	cleared	of	grass	cuttings	to
ensure	proper	growth.
PRIVACY	SCREENING:
1800mm	high	new	HEDGE	privacy	screen,	to	be	planted	along	the	East	and	North	boundaries,	as	indicated	on	the
plans.

FLOOR	AREA:
All	floor	areas	are	measured	net	internal	in	Square	Meters.
FLOOR	AREA	-		127	m²

FLOOR	LEVELS:
Provisional	Floor	Levels	as	follows,	subject	to	on	site	check.
DATUM	existing	inspection	cover	as	indicated	on	Site	Layout	Plan.
DATUM	-		100.000m
FLOOR	LEVEL	-	99.550m
GROUND	LEVEL	at	House	perimeter-	99.250m

BIN	STORAGE	AREA:-
Form	Bin	Storage	Area		as	follows:-
Form	hard	standing	with	paving,	all	as	specified	above	under	PAVING.
Erect	new	treated	timber	post	and	timber	panel	fence	1800mm	high,	to	3	sides	of	the	Bin	Storage	area,	as
indicated	on	the	plans.

SITE	AREA:
Approximately	-		553	m²
																											-		0.055	ha
																											-		0.136	Acre

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

004
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

PLANNING:
BLOCK	Plan

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

N. A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

BLOCK PLAN
Reproduced	from	Superplan	Data	by	permission	of
Ordnance	Survey®	on	behalf	of	the	Controller	of	Her
Majest's	Stationery	Office.	All	rights	reserved.
Licence	No:	100022432.

Scale: 1 : 200 @ A1

4000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:200.

8000mm 12000mm 16000mm 20000mm 24000mm

This	drawing	is	for	PLANNING	PERMISSION
PURPOSES	only	and	is	not	a	Construction	drawing.

P
age 167



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

NORTH Elevation FRONT
Scale	:	1	:	50.

1 1 1

2

2

23 3 3
3 3

4 4
4 4 4

5

5

5

6 6

6 6

777

8

8

8

9 9 9 9 9

13

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural	Stone	basecoarse	as	indicated	on	Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External	walls	to	be	covered	with	Derbyshire	Spar	Render.
3. Reinforced	Pre-cast	concrete	cill:	Colour	-	Portland.
4. 200mm	wide	Plain	Cement	bands	and	100mm	wide	ingoes	+	feature	panels:	Colour	-	Portland.
5.
6.

Roof	Finish:	CEDRAL	Trutone	Textured	Fibre	cement	slates:	Colour	-	Blue-Black.
Fascias,	Soffits	+	Barge	Boards:	MARLEY	Eternet	plain	fibre	cement	cladding	:	colour	-	Grey	Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double	Glazed	Powder	coated	aluminium	Windows	:	Colour	-	Dark	Grey	RAL	7015

11. VELUX	Double	Glazed	Top	Hung	Roof	Window,	size	780w	x	1398h	each
12.

LINDAB	Metal	Rianwater	Goods:
125mm	half	round	gutters	+	75mm	Ø	downpipes:	Colour	Dark	Grey

9.
Lead	Flashings,	Valley	Gutters	etc	minimum	Code	5:	Colour	-	Natural.

Double	Glazed	Hardwood	External	doors	+	Glazed	Screens.

FLUE	from	Log	Burner:	Twin	Wall	Stainless	Steel	metal	flue:	Natural.
13.
14.

13-14	VELUX	Double	Glazed		Combination	Windows,	Coprising	1	No	VELUX	Double	Glazed	centre	pivot
Roof	Window,	size	942w	x	1178h	+	1	No	VELUX	Double	Glazed	top	hung	Vertical	window	element,	size
942w	x	942h,

15. Obscure	Gazing

wc

83
8

5900

Master
Bedroom

En-suite
Shower
1500
x	800

hwc

whb whb

83
8

83
8

83
8

83
8

Sl
idi
ng
	D
oo
rs

Work
Station

600	tw

Bed	1400	x	2000

76
2

76
2

Sl
idi
ng
	D
oo
rs

Bed 3

83
8

83
8

83
8

Sl
idi
ng
	D
oo
rs

Porch

C
oa

ts

W
ar

dr
ob

e

W
ar

dr
ob

e

Linen

wc

whb whb838

76
2

76
2

83
8

W
ar

dr
ob

e

Family Bath

1700	Bath

900

Sl
idi
ng
	D
oo
rs

838 838

600	tw

wc

838

whb

Fridge

Cooker

Freezer

Bed	1400	x	2000

Bed 2

Kitchen

Dining

Utility wc

Island Unit
Hob

sink

sink

Solid	Fuel	Burner

Ti
m
be
r	G

laz
ed
	S
cr
ee
n

Timber	Glazed	Screen

boiler

Work	Station

83
8

83
8

Sl
idi
ng
	D
oo
rs838

WM
under

Wall	units	over

W
all
	u
nit
s	
ov
er

Living Room

Hall

65
0065

00

5900

41
00

32
00

3200 15003100

32
00

2500

25
00

3800

16
00

1500

13700

13700

13
80
0

13
80
0

600	tw

Patio	Doors

Shower
1000	x	800

FLOOR Plan.
Scale	:	1	:	50.

N.

Work
Station

Level
Landing
1500x1500

Ramp Up 1:15

Ramp Up

Level
Landing
1500x1500

Level
Landing
1500x1500

Patio

Bed	1500	x	2000

12
00

Up
	2

1 2

838

Sliding	Pocket	Door 600	tw

Wall	units Wall	units

Parking
2No	Parking	Spaces
each	5000	x	2500

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

001
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

PLANNING:
FLOOR	Plan	NORTH	Elevation

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

This	drawing	is	for	PLANNING	PERMISSION
PURPOSES	only	and	is	not	a	Construction	drawing.

P
age 169



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EAST Elevation SIDE
Scale	:	1	:	50.

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

SOUTH Elevation REAR
Scale	:	1	:	50.

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

WEST Elevation SIDE
Scale	:	1	:	50.

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

Floor Level: 0000

Ceiling Level: 2400

1 1

1 1 11

1 1

2

2
2

2

2

2

2

2

3

3 3 3

3 3 3 3

4

4
4

4

4 4 4 4
4

5
5

5

5 5

5

5
5

5

6

6 6

6

6
6

6 6 6

6 66

7

7

7

7

7

7

77

8 8

8

88 8

8

8

8
8

8

9

9
9 9 9

9 9 9 9 9
9

10

11

12

13

13

13

1.

DESCRIPTION:REF:
No:

Natural	Stone	basecoarse	as	indicated	on	Elevations.

MATERIALS PALLET:

2. External	walls	to	be	covered	with	Derbyshire	Spar	Render.
3. Reinforced	Pre-cast	concrete	cill:	Colour	-	Portland.
4. 200mm	wide	Plain	Cement	bands	and	100mm	wide	ingoes	+	feature	panels:	Colour	-	Portland.
5.
6.

Roof	Finish:	CEDRAL	Trutone	Textured	Fibre	cement	slates:	Colour	-	Blue-Black.
Fascias,	Soffits	+	Barge	Boards:	MARLEY	Eternet	plain	fibre	cement	cladding	:	colour	-	Grey	Slate.

7.

8.

10.
Double	Glazed	Powder	coated	aluminium	Windows	:	Colour	-	Dark	Grey	RAL	7015

11. VELUX	Double	Glazed	Top	Hung	Roof	Window,	size	780w	x	1398h	each
12.

LINDAB	Metal	Rianwater	Goods:
125mm	half	round	gutters	+	75mm	Ø	downpipes:	Colour	Dark	Grey

9.
Lead	Flashings,	Valley	Gutters	etc	minimum	Code	5:	Colour	-	Natural.

Double	Glazed	Hardwood	External	doors	+	Glazed	Screens.

FLUE	from	Log	Burner:	Twin	Wall	Stainless	Steel	metal	flue:	Natural.
13.
14.

13-14	VELUX	Double	Glazed		Combination	Windows,	Coprising	1	No	VELUX	Double	Glazed	centre	pivot
Roof	Window,	size	942w	x	1178h	+	1	No	VELUX	Double	Glazed	top	hung	Vertical	window	element,	size
942w	x	942h,

15. Obscure	Gazing

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

002
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:50	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

PLANNING:
SOUTH,	EAST	+	WEST	Elevations

1000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:50 Printed at A1.

2000mm 3000mm 4000mm 5000mm 6000mm

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

This	drawing	is	for	PLANNING	PERMISSION
PURPOSES	only	and	is	not	a	Construction	drawing.

P
age 171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SECTION 01 - 01
Scale	:	1	:	100.

Carnlea

Hillcrest

FFL: 99.550
GL  : 99.250

18
00

New	1800	high	Hedge	privacy	screening
to	be	planted	along	West,	East	+	South
Boundary	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.
To	be	agreed	with	the	Local	Planning
Authority,

18
00

New	1800	high	Hedge	privacy	screening
to	be	planted	along	West,	East	+	South
Boundary	as	indicated	on	the	drawings.
To	be	agreed	with	the	Local	Planning
Authority,

Suffix:

14th	May
2023

Date: Scale:

005
Drawing	Number:

John	H	Patterson.

Drawn	By:

PDK-23-169

Project	Ref	Number:

All	dimensions	to	be	checked	on	site

All	dimensions	are	in	millimeters

Drawing	Title:

Project	Address:

Client	Name:

for	Mr + Mrs Graham

1:100	@	A1

Proposed	Bungalow	at:
27, Main Street,
HEITON,
Kelso,	Scottish	Borders,
TD5	8JR.

This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	and	must	not	be	reproduced	in	part	or	whole	without	written	consent.	Any	unauthorised	copying	could	result	in	legal	action	being	taken.

PLANNING:
SECTION	Through	SITE

Rev: Date: Int: Amendment:

16,	Riverside	View,	KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,	TD5	7UG.
T:		01573	226553.
M:	07850	327677.

E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk

www.patterson-architecture.co.uk

NOTES	:
DO	NOT	SCALE	from	this	drawing.
Contractors	must	verify	all	dimensions	on	site	before	setting
out,commencing	work,	ordering	materials	or	making	any	shop
drawings.

COPYRIGHT	:-
This	drawing	is	the	copyright	of	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	and	must
not	be	copied,	re-issued	or	loaned	without	prior	written	consent	of
Patterson	ARCHITECTURE.
Any	discrepancies	and	or	conflicting	information	or	specified	is	to	be
notified	to	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE,	prior	to	construction	on	site.
Construction	should	only	proceed	from	drawings	issued	for	construction
purposes	unless	prior	written	consent	is	obtained.
Should	any	site	personnel,	or	those	employed	to	carry	out	the	works	on
their	behalf	choose	alternative	materials,	or	components	to	those
specified	on	Patterson	ARCHITECTURE	drawings,	without	prior	written
agreement	then	they	do	so	at	their	own	risk.

This	drawing	and	design	is	for	use	solely	in	connection	with	the	project
described	below.

The	information	contained	in	this	drawing	is	representational	and	has
been	compiled,	from	a	dimensional	survey	only	and	does	not	warrant
nor	certify	the	structure	of	the	buildings	or	neighbouring	structures	at
the	time	of	contraction.
The	contractor	is	to	visit	the	site	to	make	himself	acquainted	with	the
building's	and	surroundings	and	undertake	any	investigation	work	or
make	all	allowances	to	ensure	that	a	full	and	final	quotation	for	the
works	will	be	submitted,	taking	into	account	all	eventualities.
Failure	to	do	so	will	be	at	the	contractors	own	risk	and	no	additional
payments	shall	be	countenanced	for	any	amendments	to	the	work.
The	contractor	is	to	carry	out	all	works	in	full	compliance	with	the
Health	and	Safety	Commission's	Approved	Code	of	Practice	"Managing
Construction	for	Health	and	Safety"	and	Construction	(	Design	and
Management)	Regulations	1994.
All	work	and	working	practices	on	the	site	shall	be	carried	out	in
accordance	with	the	above	and	to	ensure	that	there	is	no	risk	to	the	site
operatives,	visitors	or	public.
The	contractor	is	to	include	all	preliminary	allowances	to	cover	the
prevention	of	accidents	and	injury.
All	works	are	to	be	carried	out	to	comply	with	manufacturers,	suppliers
and	industry	guidelines,	local	authority	regulations,	good	standards,	fire
safety	recommendations,	specialist	subcontract	recommendations	and
services	supply	and	installation	regulations.	All	manufacturers	literature
is	to	be	kept	on	site.	Provide	all	relevant	guarantees	in	duplicate	for
presentation	to	the	client.
Allow	all	necessary	attendance	and	liaison	with	CA's	(	and	CA
personnel	)	specialist	subcontractor	trades.	Ensure	all	notifications	are
submitted	to	the	Local	Authority.
Building	Control	and	submit	materials	as	required	to	the	local	Authority
Planning	Department.
Carefully	examine	the	drawings	and	notify	any	discrepancies	to	the	CA
for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.
Check	all	dimensions	on	site	prior	to	ordering	materials	and	notify	any
discrepancies	to	the	CA	for	instruction	prior	to	proceeding.

2000mm0mm

True Scale at 1:100 Printed at A1.

4000mm 6000mm 8000mm 10000mm 12000mm

A1

No	Responsibility	For	Any	Error	Or	Omission	In	This	Specification	Will	Be
Recognised	Unless	Brought	To	The	Attention	Of	The	Client	Or	His
Agent	Prior	To	Signing	The	Contracts.

P
age 173



T
his page is intentionally left blank



27
	M
ain
	S
tre
et
-	
HE
IT
ON

-	
Ke
lso
-	
TD
5	
8J
R.

16,	Riverside	View,
KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,
TD5	7UG.
T:			01573	226553
M:	07850	327677
E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk
www.patterson-architecture.co.uk
Dwg	No:	PDK-23-169-	CG1.

CGI Image Looking North West REAR

    Date: 17th May  2023.

P
age 175



T
his page is intentionally left blank



27
	M
ain
	S
tre
et
-	
HE
IT
ON

-	
Ke
lso
-	
TD
5	
8J
R.

16,	Riverside	View,
KELSO,
Scottish	Borders,
TD5	7UG.
T:			01573	226553
M:	07850	327677
E:	info@patterson-architecture.co.uk
www.patterson-architecture.co.uk
Dwg	No:	PDK-23-169-	CG1.

CGI Image Looking South West FRONT

Date: 17th May  2023.

P
age 177



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Landmark Historical Map
County:
Published Date(s): 1965
Originally plotted at: 1:2,500

P
age 179

John Patterson



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

23/01065/FUL Page 1 of 2 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Mark Payne 
Roads Planning Officer

mark.payne@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 825018 

Date of reply 7th August 2023 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01065/FUL 
Case Officer: 

Applicant Mr Mark Graham 

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

There is a history of recent applications at this site which Roads Planning have 
objected to on road safety concerns. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Access 
 Visibility 

Assessment There are two changes since the previous application which relate to Roads 
Planning: 

1) The proposed Local Development Plan allowing a maximum of 5 dwelling 
units to be served from a private access road. 

2) A proposed build out from the private access on to the A698 to create better 
visibility. 

Regarding point 1 above, it is my view that although the private access road would 
not have to conform to an adoptable standard, the access from the private road is 
still unsuitable for this level of development. 
Regarding point 2, I would not support any scheme to narrow the carriageway 
along the A698 as this is incongruous with the road through Heiton and any 
scheme in isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety. 

Although I appreciate that the applicant has proposed a turning head to alleviate 
some problems at the site, there remains the issue of the junction with the public 
road. It is exceptionally constrained in terms of geometry and visibility and is only 
wide enough for one vehicle. Visibility in both directions is effectively zero, with a 
vehicle having to encroach significantly into the running carriageway before any 
visibility is afforded. Furthermore, since the land surrounding the access is outwith 
the applicant’s control, there is no scope for suitable improvements. 

As such, I must object to this proposal. 

Page 181

mailto:mark.payne@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

23/01065/FUL Page 2 of 2 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object Do not object, 
subject to conditions

Further 
information required

Reason of Objection The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that it would be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to 
the detriment of road safety.   

Signed: DJI 

Page 182



Your Ref: 23/01065/FUL

12 Aug 2023

Scottish Borders Council,
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose
Scottish Borders
TD6 0SA

Dear Sirs

Re: 23/01065/FUL|Erection of dwelling house|Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main
Street, Heiton

One of the South of Scotland Regional Economic Strategy six themes is ‘thriving and distinct
communities’ and a key priority in this theme is housing. In order to sustain rural villages
support should be given the development of low impact housing ‘to better integrate
generations, attract new people to the area and ensure those farthest from the labour
market have a stable platform from which to progress and prosper’

SBC’s Local Development Plan outlines that the Housing Needs and Demand Assessment
identified a continued need for some 100 houses per annum over the next 5 years and that
the plan will ‘seek to encourage the delivery of affordable housing opportunities to meet
local need’

It is understood that this site had previously been granted planning permission, but this
lapsed before construction could start. The subsequent application and appeal were
unsuccessful, and this new application has taken on board design considerations that lead to
the refusal – repositioning of windows to avoid overlooking, reduction in the height of the
dwelling and the inclusion of a turning circle. The applicant appears to have taken all
reasonable steps within their control to make changes to the plan.

We understand from the application that there are currently four properties on this private
road and there has been for at least a decade. Each dwelling has at least one vehicle and
according to the SWECO transport report the existing access has no history of road safety
issues.

It is noted that visibility splay is a key concern. If it is necessary, despite it not being an
issue for the current dwellings, the suggestion of painted markings is reasonable. However,
the creation of a small build out to increase visibility splay has the potential to cause
disruption to the flow of traffic and parking issues for neighbouring properties and therefore
poses some concern.

This application appears to align with the local development plan regeneration policy (ED5)
which aims to encourage redevelopment of land, supporting bringing land back into

Heiton and Roxburgh Community Council

Page 183



productive use, and the infill development policy (PMD5). Both policies state that
development on sites will be approved in all cases where the following criteria is satisfied:

a) Does not conflict with established land use of area.
b) Does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area.
c) The individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the

social and economic infrastructure.
d) It respects the scale, form, design and materials and density in context of its

surroundings.
e) Adequate access and servicing can be achieved.
f) It does not result in any significant to loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy as a result

of overshadowing or overlooking.

There is no known reason this criterion is not satisfied.

This application also appears to support the LDP Policy HD2: Housing in the countryside,
which states ‘the council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development in village
locations’.

Yours sincerely

Chloe Brown (Mrs)

On behalf of Heiton and Roxburgh Community Council

Page 184



 

 

 

PLANNING STATEMENT 

 

ERECTION OF A NEW DWELLINGHOUSE, ASSOCIATED 

LANDSCAPING AND INFRASTRUCTURE  

 

LAND ADJACENT CARNLEA, MAIN STREET, HEITON 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JULY 2023 

Page 185



 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 This Planning Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning, is submitted to the Scottish 

Borders Council (or “the Council”) on behalf of Mr. Mark Graham (referred to hereafter 

as “the applicant”). This statement supports an application for planning permission for 

the “erection of a new dwellinghouse, associated landscaping and infrastructure” on 

land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. 

1.2 The application has been submitted electronically via E-Planning (100626378) along 

with the following supporting information. 

Submission Documents Consultant 

E-Planning Forms and Certificates  Ferguson Planning Ltd 

Planning Statement Ferguson Planning Ltd 

Architectural Drawings Patterson Architecture 

Design and Access Statement Patterson Architecture 

CGIs x 2 Patterson Architecture 

Transport Statement SWECO 

 

1.3 This report is set out in the following order: 

▪ Section 2 describes the site, site context and relevant planning history 

▪ Section 3 details the application proposals 

▪ Section 4 provides a summary of the relevant planning policy context  

▪ Section 5 sets out our assessment of the proposal against relevant material 

considerations; and 

▪ Section 6 provides a summary and conclusions.  

1.4 The information included within this planning statement should be read in the context 

of all supporting drawings and documents submitted with this application listed above. 

 

 

 

 

Page 186



 

 

2. SITE CONTEXT AND PLANNING HISTORY 

2.1 The site is located within the centre of the village of Heiton, which is located 2.5miles 

to the south of Kelso. It is a linear settlement which has developed on either side of the 

A698 which runs south from Kelso to Hawick, where there is a mix of house types 

evident. According to the 2011 census, the population of Heiton is 204, an increase 

from the 2001 census of 71 people.  

2.2 The site is accessed from a private road linked to the A698. The site currently consists 

of brownfield land between existing residential dwellings (Carnlea to the east and 

Hillcrest to the west), as shown in Figure 1. The nearest bus stop to the site is 

approximately 160m to the south, on the A698, with buses running to and from Kelso 

and Morebattle.  

2.3 The site is currently covered in grass and occupied by a garage. There are several trees 

around the perimeter of the site, as shown in Figure 2 and the photographs in Figures 

3 to 5. 

2.4 The surrounding area is characterised by a series of modern 1.5 storey houses and 

single storey bungalows of a variety of styles.  

 

Figure 1: Location Plan (Source: Patterson Architecture) 

Page 187



 

 

 
Figure 2: Aerial image of the proposed development site (outlined in red) 

 
Figure 3: Photograph of site looking east towards Hillcrest. Existing garage is visible to the rear of the site. 

Page 188



 

 

 
Figure 4: Photograph from within the site looking north. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 5: Access to the site from A698 

Page 189



 

 

Site and Planning History 

2.5 The site was previously developed and occupied by a property referred to as 

‘Khansbur’, which can be clearly seen on the historic map in Figure 6 below, located 

opposite the dwelling known as ‘Craimar’, which still exists today. The site has been 

subsequently cleared, but the garage which formed part of the original dwelling, 

remains, as shown in Figure 3 above. 

 
Figure 6: Historical Map (1965). Site is occupied by a property called ‘Khansbur. 

2.6 Subsequently, initial outline permission was sought in October of 2004 for the erection 

of a dwellinghouse and garage, which was approved in March 2005 (04/01984/OUT). 

2.7 The site was subsequently prepared for development after permissions 

(05/00012/REM) were approved. The shed that was previously on the site was removed, 

vegetation and topsoil stripped, and excavations were carried out to assess the 

drainage potential during this preparation. The applicant considers this amounted to 

implementation of the previous consent, but this is currently disputed by the Council 

and therefore a new application is required. 

2.8 In the officer’s report of handling, they supported the original application for the 

following reasons: 

Page 190



 

 

▪ The site was of sufficient size to accommodate a house, having previously 

accommodated a dwellinghouse and that the land is within a residential area. 

▪ The officer overruled the objection from SBC Roads, noting that road 

widening, and improved visibility were all dependent on third party land who 

would incur loss of garden area and the need to move a boundary retaining 

wall. 

▪ The mitigating circumstances were stipulated as “traffic calming measures for 

the village are in prospect” and that there “was history of the site in residential 

use”.  

2.9 In November of 2020 a further application was made for the erection of a 

dwellinghouse on the same site (20/01327/FUL), which was refused by the Council in 

May of 2021 and subsequently refused on appeal (21/00019/RREF) by the Local Review 

Body in December 2021.  

2.10 In August 2022, the council declined to determine a further application for a dwelling-

house (22/01105) on the basis that there had not been any significant change in either 

the development plan or any other material consideration since the most recent of the 

refusals in 2021. Table 1 summarises the planning history of the site to date. 

 

 

 

Reference Description Date and Outcome 

04/01984/OUT Outline permission for the erection 
of a dwellinghouse and garage. 

Application Approved 
Subject to Conditions 
05/10/2004 

05/00012/REM Application for the approval of 
Reserve Matters, relating to the 
Erection of a dwellinghouse. 

Application Approved 
7/01/2005 
 

20/01327/FUL Application for full planning 
permission, regarding the erection 
of a dwellinghouse. 

Application Refused 
28/5/2021, on the basis 
of vehicular traffic access. 

21/00019/RREF Appeal against decision 
20/01327/FUL. 

Appeal Refused by Local 
Review Body 13/12/2021 

22/01105/FUL Application for full planning 
permission, regarding the erection 
of a dwellinghouse. 

Planning Authority 
declined to determine, 
on basis of similarity to 
previous application. 
26/08/2022 

Page 191



 

 

2.11 The reasons for refusal of application 20/01327/FUL and the appeal 21/00019/RREF, 

are outlined below, and we have highlighted how we have addressed those issues 

through this revised application: 

 

Officer Comment New Application - Response 

The proposed development would not 

comply with Policies PMD2: Quality 

Standards and PMD5: Infill Development 

of the Local Development Plan 2016 in 

that the development would result in ad-

ditional vehicular traffic on a substandard 

access to the detriment of road safety, 

both vehicular and pedestrian, and it has 

not been demonstrated that the im-

provements required to upgrade the ac-

cess, as specified, can be carried out. 

Please refer to Section 5 of this report 

and the submitted Transport Supporting 

Statement which fully addresses the pre-

vious concerns of SBC Roads and should 

allow for the proposals to therefore be 

considered compliant with Policy PMD2 

and Policy PMD5.  

 

Page 192



 

 

3. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

3.1 Following resolution of key planning issues, this statement seeks support for a revised 

application for permission for the “erection of a dwellinghouse, associated landscaping 

and infrastructure”, within the vacant plot located on the land adjacent to Carnlea, Main 

Street, Heiton. 

 

3.2 The proposed development seeks to create a three-bedroom bungalow with additional 

patio and garden space to the rear. The existing garage on the plot will be removed to 

achieve this. A new driveway to accommodate two cars, and turning space will be cre-

ated to the north of the site, as shown in Figure 7.  

 

 
Figure 7: Proposed site layout 

3.3 The proposal utilises a design based upon the surrounding dwellings, with similarity in 

materials and architectural style. Materials have been specifically selected to be sensi-

tive to the site context and are outlined in the supporting Design and Access Statement 

and shown in the CGI images in Figure 8. 

 

3.4 Services such as electricity and mains water will be extended to accommodate the ad-

ditional dwelling. Surface water and foul water drainage will be achieved by connection 

Page 193



 

 

to the public sewer. Much of the drainage has already been prepared for development 

in advance of the previously approved application in 2005. 

 

3.5 Two conifer trees will be removed from the footprint of the bungalow and additional 

grass will be planted to create a garden area. 

 

 

Figure 8: CGI of proposed development 

 

3.6 Following on from the feedback provided by the council in the refusal of application 

20/01327/FUL and the more recent proposal, which was not determined, several key 

revisions have been made to the design: 

 

▪ The floor area of the property has been reduced from 134sqm to 128sqm. 

Submitted Drawing 003 ‘Site Layout Plan’ indicates the external wall 

perimeter of the dwelling previously applied for (red dashed line).  

▪ An additional turning area to the west of the proposed driveway, has been 

created and can be used by other residents in the private lane, which is now 

larger in size than the previous turning area proposed to allow for cars to 

manoeuvre in and out without encroaching on neighbour’s land. This 

Page 194



 

 

improves the existing situation on the lane for all residents by formalising the 

provision of a turning circle, allowing cars to enter and exit the lane in a 

forward gear.  

▪ The main ridge height of the property has been lowered by 500mm and the 

velux window has been removed from the roof.   

▪ The floor plan has been reconfigured so that no accommodation overlooks 

the west boundary to Hillcrest. Only a small bathroom window remains, which 

will be installed with privacy glass.  

▪ A new 1.8m high privacy hedge is now proposed to surround the property, 

ensuring the privacy of the proposed dwelling and neighbouring residences. 

Previously this hedge only encompassed the western boundary. 

▪ Traffic calming measures are proposed in the formal of a small build out or 

paint markings, north and south of the junction of the access lane with the 

A698. An indicative layout for this is provided in Appendix 1 of the Transport 

Supporting Statement.  Since the previous application, the 20mph zone has 

also now been formally established on the A698. 

3.7 We consider that the proposed revisions represent a significant enough change to the 

proposals to warrant validation of the application.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



 

 

4. POLICY CONTEXT  

4.1 Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states: ‘Where in 

making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the 

development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless 

material considerations indicate otherwise.’ 

4.2 Within this context, the Development Plan covering the properties comprises the: 

▪ Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

▪ National Planning Framework 4 (February 2023) 

Site Specific Allocations and Designations 

4.3 The proposed site is within the defined settlement boundary of Heiton. This is illustrated 

in Figure 9 below. The site is ‘white land’ and has no formal allocation or designation. 

4.4 The site is not within a Conservation Area, and there are no Listed Buildings nearby. 

The SEPA flood maps do not indicate any risk of surface water or river flooding.  

 

Figure 9: Extract of SBC Local Development Plan Proposals Map (site outlined in red) 

   

Page 196



 

 

Relevant Development Plan Policy – Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

4.4 Local planning policy relevant to the proposal is contained within the Scottish Borders 

Local Development Plan (2016). Key policies relevant to the proposal against which 

previous planning applications for the site have been assessed, are summarised be-

low: 

▪ Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

▪ Policy PMD5: Infill Development 

▪ Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

▪ Policy IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 

▪ Policy EP13: Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows 

 

4.5 Policy PMD2 (Quality Standards) requires that all new development is of high quality 

in accordance with sustainability principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders 

townscapes and to integrate with its landscape surroundings.  

4.6 Policy PMD5 (Infill Development) supports development on non-allocated, infill, or 

windfall sites, where the following criteria are satisfied: 

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; 

and 

b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; 

and 

c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by 

the social and economic infrastructure, and it does not lead to over-develop-

ment or ‘town and village cramming’; and 

d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials, and density in context of its sur-

roundings; and 

e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of 

water drainage, and schools’ capacity; and 

f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight, or privacy to ad-

joining properties because of overshadowing or overlooking. 

4.7 All applications will be considered against the Council’s Supplementary Planning 

Guidance on Placemaking and Design. Developers are required to provide design 

statements as appropriate. 

Page 197



 

 

4.8 Policy HD3 (Protection of Residential Amenity) states that development that is judged 

to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or proposed residential areas will 

not be permitted. 

4.9 Policy IS7 (Parking Provision and Standards) requires that development proposals 

should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with approved standards. 

4.10 Policy EP13 (Trees, Woodlands, and Hedgerows) states that the Council will refuse 

development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the woodland resource 

unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of landscape, 

ecological, recreational, historical or shelter value.  

Relevant Development Plan Policy – National Planning Framework 4 

4.11 NPF4 was published in February 2023. The most relevant policies are outlined below 

and described in the following section.  

▪ Policy 3: Biodiversity 

▪ Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land, and empty buildings 

▪ Policy 14: Design, quality, and place  

▪ Policy 16: Quality Homes 

▪ Policy 17: Rural Homes 

▪ Policy 18: Infrastructure First 

4.12 Policy 3 (Biodiversity) supports proposals that contribute to the enhancement of 

biodiversity, including where relevant restoring degraded habitats and building and 

strengthening nature networks and the connections between them.  

4.13 Policy 9 (Brownfield, Vacant and Derelict Land) supports the use of brownfield, vacant 

and derelict land for the purpose of development, to reduce the need for greenfield 

development. Any brownfield land must be assessed for its biodiversity value if that 

land has since naturalised, and any contamination of said land should be considered 

by proposed development. 

4.14 Policy 14 (Design, quality, and place) sets out six key design qualities which 

development should adhere to. The six principles are replicated below. 

▪ Healthy: Supporting the prioritisation of women’s safety and improving physical 

and mental health.  

▪ Pleasant: Supporting attractive natural and built spaces.  

Page 198



 

 

▪ Connected: Supporting well connected networks that make moving around 

easy and reduce car dependency  

▪ Distinctive: Supporting attention to detail of local architectural styles and natural 

landscapes to be interpreted, literally or creatively, into designs to reinforce 

identity.  

▪ Sustainable: Supporting the efficient use of resources that will allow people to 

live, play, work and stay in their area, ensuring climate resilience, and integrating 

nature positive, biodiversity solutions.  

▪ Adaptable: Supporting commitment to investing in the long-term value of 

buildings, streets, and spaces by allowing for flexibility so that they can be 

changed quickly to accommodate different uses as well as maintained over 

time. 

4.15 Policy 16 (Quality Homes) supports proposals which deliver a diverse range of housing 

options to a high standard. Section c) of the policy says, “c) Development proposals for 

new homes that improve affordability and choice by being adaptable to changing and 

diverse needs, and which address identified gaps in provision, will be supported. This 

could include (i) self-provided homes…and… (v) a range of size of homes such as those 

for larger families”. 

4.16 Policy 17 (Rural Homes) outlines the circumstances under which residential 

development will be supported in a rural location. Part a) says that development 

proposals for new homes in rural areas will be supported where the development is 

suitably scaled, sited, and designed to be in keeping with the character of the area and 

the development, and (ii) reuses brownfield land where a return to a natural state has 

not or will not happen without intervention, and (viii) reinstates a former dwelling 

house or is a one-for-one replacement of an existing permanent house.  

4.17 Part b) requires development proposals for new homes in rural areas to consider how 

the development will contribute towards local living and consider identified local 

housing needs (including affordable housing), economic considerations and the 

transport needs of the development as appropriate for the rural location.  

4.18 Policy 18 (Infrastructure First) relates to considerations which development proposals 

should have for the surrounding infrastructure. Relevant to this application, part (b) 

says that development proposals will only be supported where it can be demonstrated 

that provision is made to address the impacts on infrastructure.  

Page 199



 

 

5. PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

Principle of development 

5.1 The application site is situated within the settlement boundary of Heiton and utilises a 

formerly developed brownfield, infill plot between existing residential development.  

5.2 The proposed development is a single storey bungalow, and the overall ridge height 

has been reduced since previous applications. The existing dwellings which share the 

access lane are between 1-1.5 storeys in height. The proposed development, 

therefore, sits no higher than the adjacent properties, as can be seen in Drawing 005 

Section Through Site.  

5.3 The external materials of facing brick basecourse, rendered walls and slate roof have 

been chosen to tie in with neighbouring properties as can be seen in the photographs 

in Figures 3-5 above. 

5.4 Based on approximate measurements of surrounding plot densities of neighbouring 

properties, the range of densities is between 29.75% and 23.5%. The proposed 

development is approximately 26.75% and therefore well within the established range. 

5.5 We therefore consider that the attractive design is within the established scale, form, 

design, materials, and density in context of its surroundings. This is in accord with 

Policy PMD2 and PMD5 of the Local Development Plan and with Policy 9 and Policy 

14 of NPF4. 

5.6 Furthermore, the principle of residential development for the site is established by the 

historic granting of consent for residential development in June 1994 (R127/94) and 

October 2004 and January 2005 (04/01984/OUT and 05/00012/REM).  

5.7 Whilst the application was subsequently refused on transport grounds, which we 

address below, the officer does note in support of application 20/01327/FUL the 

following which is demonstrates the Council’s acceptance of the principle of 

development: 

▪ The proposal does not conflict with the established land use. The land is vacant, 

and it has previously been confirmed by the Council that the change to private 

residential use will not conflict with neighbouring use. 

▪ This is a tight site but the choice of design and rear location from the Main Street 

would avoid any adverse impacts to the character and amenity of Heiton. The 

site has previously been an acceptable infill development opportunity. 

Page 200



 

 

▪ In terms of design, the building presented would be a suitable addition to the 

neighbouring built form, both appearing modern but retaining similar form as 

the neighbouring bungalows. I am satisfied that development would appear 

contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours, specifically noting that 

Craimar opposite features 1.5 storey form. 

▪ A further residential dwelling would contribute to sustaining the social and 

economic infrastructure of Heiton. 

5.8 Policy 17 of the NPF4 further supports the erection of a dwellinghouse in this location, 

as it utilises brownfield land and reinstates a former dwelling house.  

5.9 The development further accords with Policy 16 of NPF4 in that it provides an 

accessible and adaptable home suitable for wheelchair users and elderly people, is a 

‘self-provided homes’ and is of a size which could accommodate a larger family. It is 

considered that there is no prospect of the proposed dwelling being delivered by a 

housebuilder or other corporate developer. Development of the style of new dwelling 

that the appellant is seeking to provide for their family, could only be delivered on self-

build basis.  

5.10 The proposed development seeks to connect to the mains water and public sewer, 

both of which have the capacity to accommodate the development. There is no 

identifiable flood risk or other constraints which would prevent development on this 

site. 

Neighbouring Amenity 

5.11 The proposed development incorporates measures to preserve the amenity of local 

residences and the privacy of the surrounding residences is a key priority.  

5.12 The overall size of the development has been reduced from 134sqm to 128sqm and 

constitutes a single storey premises set back to accommodate a new turning area, and 

sufficient parking area. Thus, ensuring that there will be no impact upon neighbouring 

properties from additional traffic created on the access lane or requirement to use 

third party land to accommodate turning manoeuvres.  

5.13 In contrast with previous proposals, no principal windows now face the neighbouring 

property at Hillcrest, located to the west of the site. Only a single obscured bathroom 

window will now face the property. Privacy issues at the neighbouring property at 

Carnlea are already significantly mitigated by the existing garage of that property, to 

the east of the development.  

Page 201



 

 

5.14 Furthermore, a new 1.8m high beech hedge will be established along all boundaries 

of the site. This will further mitigate against any potential overlooking or privacy issues 

regarding surrounding properties. 

5.15 This accords with design principles in Policy 14 of the NPF4, as well as Policy PMD2 

and HD3 of the Local Development Plan. 

Transport and Access 

5.16 The principal reason for previous refusals of planning permission on the subject site 

has been related to transport and access issues. 

5.17 In the determination of the previous application (20/01327/FUL), the Roads Planning 

Officer raised four concerns which they required to be addressed, to allow them to 

support development of this dwellinghouse:  

1. Improved access onto the public road which was considered to be substandard 

for a 5th dwelling and must be widened to 5.5m wide with 6m radii.  

2. Visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m must be provided in either direction on the 

shared access. 

3. The existing access should be surfaced with a bound surface.  

4. Provision of visitor turning and parking within the cul-de-sac.  

5.18 After consultation with SWECO, the points raised by the roads officer have been 

addressed in the submitted Transport Supporting Statement and incorporated into 

the design of the proposed development. We summarise their findings briefly below: 

5.19 (1) Access onto the Public Road: The land either side of the existing access road is out 

with the applicant’s control and therefore there is no scope to widen this or alter 

existing radii. This was previously accepted by planning officers at SBC, when 

approving the application for a new dwelling on the site in 2004. 

5.20 It is not believed a widened access is required. The existing access has no history of 

road safety issues and previously served the site when it had a dwelling on it. It has not 

been changed since the prior lapsed planning application for a single dwelling was 

approved.  

5.21 Space has now been allocated in the northwest corner of the site to provide a turning 

head for all residents of the lane and visitors to ensure there is no need for vehicles to 

ever reverse onto the A698. The swept path analysis for a 4x4 using the proposed 

turning area, in combination with an existing turning area at the top of the access lane 

Page 202



 

 

to the north, is shown below. The proposed development also allows for turning space 

within its own driveway.  

 

Figure 10: Swept path analysis that shows that turning space can be accommodated. 

5.22 In January 2023 the 20mph speed limit through Scottish Borders towns became 

permanent, further improving the safety of the access, as it now connects to a low-

speed environment within Heiton.  

5.23 (2) Visibility Splays: Since the previous application, the speed limit of the road has 

reduced to 20mph reducing the visibility requirements at the access, this has been 

confirmed with the Council that 2x25m is acceptable. There is potential to deliver 

either painted markings or a small build out to the south and north for the access road, 

which would act as both traffic calming and allow for a suitable visibility splay to be 

achieved.  

5.24 (3) Access Surface: The access is not within the full control of the applicant. However, 

the existing surface as shown in Figure 4 of the Transport Supporting Statement 

operates well and is considered fit for purpose for the proposed level of traffic.  

5.25 (4) Provision of Visitor Turning and Parking: The proposals provide parking for two 

vehicles in line with SBC standards, and two turning areas within the site for residents, 

visitors, and deliveries.  

Page 203



 

 

5.26 Notwithstanding the above, proposed changes to the Local Development Plan (LDP) 

in relation to ‘Private Accesses’ (Volume 1 - Appendix A) would allow for an increase in 

the number of dwellings access via a private access from four dwellings as per the 

current adopted plan, to five. The Report of Examination was published on 7 July 2023 

by the DPEA and does not recommend any modifications to this aspect of the Plan. 

The proposals, which would increase the number of dwellings to five, would therefore 

no longer require upgrading the access and junction to an adoptable standard under 

this revised allowance. 

5.27 Based on the above, the proposed development is in accordance with design 

principles outlined in PMD5 and IS7 of the LDP, and Policy 18 of NPF4 by providing 

more than adequate access and servicing as part of an infill plot development.  

Trees and Biodiversity 

5.28 The site has been cleared and currently comprise low level vegetation, grass, and a 

few perimeter trees.  Two trees on the western boundary, an existing conifer tree and 

another deciduous tree are proposed to be felled to accommodate development on 

the site. This will be undertaken at the appropriate time of year to avoid nesting season. 

5.29 However, a new 1.8m hedge is proposed around the entire perimeter of the site which 

is considered to mitigate for the loss of the trees that will be removed. The garden 

areas will also be re-seeded with grass and maintained.  

5.30 The proposals are therefore considered to be compliant with Policy EP13 of the Local 

Development Plan and enhance biodiversity on the site over the current situation, in 

compliance with NPF4 Policy 3. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 204



 

 

6. CONCLUSIONS 

6.1 Ferguson Planning has been appointed by Mr. Mark Graham to apply for planning 

permission for the “erection of a new dwellinghouse, associated landscaping and 

infrastructure” on land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. 

6.2 The revised proposals seek to address and overcome the officer’s concerns from the 

previous application. The key reasons why this application should be supported are: 

▪ There was a dwelling on the site historically, with access off the same road. The 

access remains and the applicant still makes trips to utilise the existing garage 

on-site for storage. The proposed development will result in the beneficial re-

use of a residential infill plot within the existing settlement boundary, amongst 

established residential development on previously developed brownfield land.  

▪ The proposed development is a high-quality design that reflects the local built 

form in terms of scale, massing, height, and materials.  

▪ Previous applications conclude that the amenity of the surrounding residences 

will not be significantly impacted by the proposed development and have 

established the principle for development. The additions of the 1.8m high 

boundary hedge and removal of principle windows on the west side of the 

property further reinforce the preservation of said amenity.  

▪ The development addresses all previous concerns regarding transport and 

access or provides suitable mitigation. With the provision of an additional 

turning circle for use by all residents on the lane, it also improves the existing 

situation, by formalising this provision.  

6.3 It is considered that the proposal is in accordance with relevant adopted policy of the 

Local Development Plan and National Planning Framework 4. It is respectfully 

requested that planning permission is granted. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 205



This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

REF :   23/01065/FUL 

APPLICANT :   Mr Mark Graham 

AGENT : Ferguson Planning 

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse 

LOCATION:  Land Adjacent Carnlea 
Main Street 
Heiton 
Scottish Borders 

TYPE :  FUL Application 

REASON FOR DELAY:  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAWING NUMBERS: 

Plan Ref      Plan Type Plan Status 

Transport statement  Report Refused
000  Location Plan Refused
001  Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused
002  Proposed Elevations   Refused
003  Proposed Site Plan   Refused
004  Proposed Block Plan   Refused
005  Proposed Site Plan   Refused
006  Proposed Plans Refused 

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 5  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 

Nine neighbours were notified. There were three objections and one comment of support received. 

The objections cite concerns for: 

o Road safety due to the access, the applicant does not own land either side of the access onto 
Main Street (A698) and speed of traffic through the village; 

o How effective either painting the road or any form of 'build out' would be. 

o Parking on Main Street, as the build out would narrow the carriageway; 

o Proposed changes to the Local Development Plan (LDP) in relation to 'Private Accesses' 
would allow an increase in the number of dwellings access via a private access from four dwellings as 
per the current adopted plan, to five but this has not been adopted.  

o The site plan is inaccurate as it includes land in different ownership; 

Page 207



o The proposed hedge will take a number of years to grow. 

The support comment highlights that the site is an eyesore and neglected and the proposal would be 
better. 

Consultations: 

Community Council: This new application has taken on board design considerations that lead to the 
refusal - repositioning of windows to avoid overlooking, reduction in the height of the dwelling and the 
inclusion of a turning circle. The applicant appears to have taken all reasonable steps within their 
control to make changes to the plan. No objections. 

Roads Planning: Two changes since the previous decision: LDP2 allows a maximum of 5 dwelling 
units to be served from a private access road and a build out is now proposed from the private access 
on to the A698 to create better visibility. Observation: the access from the private road is still 
unsuitable for this level of development.  Do not support any scheme to narrow the carriageway along 
the A698 as this is incongruous with the road through Heiton and any scheme in isolation may have a 
detrimental effect on road safety. The proposals would result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-
standard access to the detriment of road safety. 

Scottish Water: Water capacity is available.  Unable to confirm waste water capacity.  

Applicant's Supporting Information: 

Design and Access Statement 
Planning Statement 
Transport Statement 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

National Planning Framework 4  

Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 14 Design Quality and Place 
Policy 15 Quality Homes 

SBC Local Development Plan 2016  

PMD2 Quality Standards 
PMD5 Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 

Supplementary Planning Guidance: 

Developer Contributions, April 2023 
Guidance on Householder Developments, July 2006 
Placemaking and Design, 2010 
Landscape and Development, 2008 

Recommendation by  - Euan Calvert  (Assistant Planning Officer) on 15th September 2023 

This is a full planning application for the erection of a dwellinghouse on a vacant site in Heiton, Kelso.   

Site and Proposal 

Page 208



This is a vacant area of ground with a brick-built garage located towards the back of the site (south). There 
are four neighbouring houses all served off the one access road from the A698.  This site was once 
occupied by a chalet (Khansbur) however the site was cleared and has remained undeveloped since.  

The proposal is demolish the garage and to erect a detached, single storey dwellinghouse. This would have 
rendered walls and cement tiles for the roof. Two on- site parking spaces and a turning area would be 
provided within the site.  The site would be enclosed on 3 sides by hedging. 

Planning History 

R127/94 

In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the site was granted and subsequently lapsed in 1999.  
The Planning Committee approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and 
Transportation.  The Committee stated "the bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill site which has 
already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet."  

04/01984/OUT and 05/00012/REM 

These applications were also for the erection of one house on the site. The Director of Roads and 
Transportation maintained their objection.  Access to the main street was deemed an unsuitable standard to 
accommodate a fifth house and visibility onto the main A class road was inadequate (the access 
entrance/exit was required to be widened to allow two cars to pass at the junction and the visibility splays of 
2.5 x 100 metres were required in both directions).  

The Planning Officer's report noted the site was of sufficient size to accommodate a house, having 
previously accommodated a dwellinghouse and that the land is within a residential area. The Officer 
recommended approval to the Cheviot Area Committee, overruling The Director of Roads and 
Transportation, noting that road widening and improved visibility were all dependent on third party land who 
would incur loss of garden area and the need to move a boundary retaining wall.  The mitigating 
circumstances were stipulated as "traffic calming measures for the village are in prospect" and that there 
was "history of the site in residential use".  The applications were approved. 

20/01327/FUL: Application for full planning permission for the erection of a dwellinghouse. Refused 28th 
May 2021. 

21/00019/RREF: Appeal dismissed. The Local Review Body agreed with the Roads Officer that the access 
road was narrow with very limited junction visibility, inadequate junction radii and poor surface condition. 
They noted that several properties already used the access road/junction and that the addition of a further 
property would result in the need for road improvements which could not be achieved within the applicant's 
ownership. Although Members did acknowledge the benefits of the creation of a turning head for the access 
road and the possibility that the current trial 20mph speed limit on the A698 may be made permanent, they 
did not consider these benefits outweighed the inadequacies of the current access and junction. For reasons 
of road safety, they agreed with the Roads Officer and concluded that the proposal was not in compliance 
with Local Development Plan Policies PMD2 and PMD5. 

22/01105/FUL: Application for full planning permission for the erection of a dwellinghouse. 
The Planning Authority declined to determine as the application was identical to the previous the previous 
application. 

Planning Policy  

National Planning Framework 4 is now a material consideration.  Policy 14 Design, Quality and Place states 
that development will be designed to improve the quality of an area. Six qualities are defined in Appendix D. 
Policy 16 identifies support for "Quality Homes".  Criterion f) item iii identifies support for small scale 
opportunities within an existing settlement boundary. 

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards  

Page 209



Requires all development to be of high quality and be compatible with the character and neighbouring built 
form.  Boundary treatments are considered essential to ensure proper effective assimilation with the wider 
surroundings. Developments should ensure there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not 
limited to the site access. 

The Placemaking and Design 2010 SPG seeks for new development to contribute to the locally distinctive 
built character. 

Policy PMD5: Infill Development  

Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within Development 
Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following criteria are satisfied: 

a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and economic 
infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or 'town and village cramming'; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and drainage and 
schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining properties as a result of 
overshadowing or overlooking. 

All applications will be considered against the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking 
and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as appropriate. 

Policy IS7 

Requires development proposals to provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with approved 
standards. 

Policy HD3 

Siting, scale and location of development is considered with regard to protecting neighbouring residential 
amenity. 

ASSESSMENT 

Road Safety 

National Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 concerning Design, Quality and Place criterion c states 
development proposals that are poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area or 
inconsistent with the six qualities of successful places, will not be supported.  Policy PMD2 of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 requires that developments should ensure there is no adverse impact on road 
safety, including but not limited to the site access. 

The Roads Planning Service advises that the access from the private road is still unsuitable for this level of 
development.  Although the applicant has proposed a turning head to alleviate some problems at the site, 
there remains the issue of the junction with the public road. This is exceptionally constrained in terms of 
geometry and visibility and is only wide enough for one vehicle. Visibility in both directions is effectively zero, 
with a vehicle having to encroach significantly into the running carriageway before any visibility is afforded. 
Furthermore, since the land surrounding the access is outwith the applicant's control, there is no scope for 
suitable improvements.  The Roads Planning Service objects to the proposal. 

The Roads Planning Service objection remains the key consideration.  There are safely concerns as the 
throat width of the private access road is not presently able to accommodate passing of two vehicles.  The 
Roads Planning Service has considered the independent Transport Statement submitted with the 
application, which proposes a build out from the private access onto the A698.  This scheme, to narrow the 
A698, is not supported as it will appear incongruous with the linear streetscape and any scheme in isolation 
may have a detrimental effect on road safety.  

Page 210



On this basis the proposals must be considered contrary to policy 14 of National Planning Framework 4 and 
policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016. 

Infill Development 

The site and layout of this dwellinghouse is similar to the most recent proposal, which was refused.  The 
design is different, with a lower ridge height and significant changes to elevations, specifically introduction of 
a blank gable to the western elevation.   

The Local Development Plan 2016 identifies this site falling within the Development Boundary, but not 
allocated and it is therefore appropriate to consider Policy PMD5: Infill Development. 

These proposals satisfy four of the six criteria governing infill proposals: 

a) The proposal does not conflict with the established residential land use.  
b) This proposal remains acceptable in terms of being a suitable addition to the neighbouring built form, 
appearing contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours.  
c)  This development would contribute to sustaining the social and economic infrastructure of Heiton.  
Developer Contributions towards Kelso High School are a requirement of policy IS2.  
d) The scale, form, design, materials and density and remain acceptable. 
e) Adequate access is required.  As discussed above, the means of access to the public road network is not 
adequate. The submitted Transport Statement is not supported by the Roads Planning Service therefore a 
fifth dwelling served off this private road is best termed over-development, which is not supported by 
criterion c) of PMD5. Connection to the public mains water is proposed and waste water to the mains sewer. 
Both would be acceptable in this village location  
f) No significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to neighbouring properties (as a result of overshadowing 
or overlooking) is identified.   

The proposed external finishes would be quite appropriate to the location within the estate and in 
accordance with Placemaking and Design Supplementary Planning Guidance 2010. 

Landscaping 

A condition would be required in the event of approval to ensure the boundary treatments (the proposed 
hedge) are implemented in accordance with a full specification. 

Other Issues 

Amended plans have been submitted in response to the ownership error highlighted by an objector.  

Conclusion 

Although the proposal, in principle, would constitute an appropriate form of infill development, the road 
safety issues have not been overcome, which dictates refusal in this instance. 

REASON FOR DECISION : 

The proposed development would not comply with National Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 in that 
vehicular access to the site is poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding area and 
inconsistent with the six qualities of successful places.  In addition, the proposal is contrary to Policies 
PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the 
development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard private access to the detriment of 
road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and the proposed upgrade of the junction with the A698 is not 
supported as it would appear incongruous with the linear streetscape and any scheme in isolation may have 
a detrimental effect on road safety. 

Page 211



Recommendation:  Refused

 1 The proposed development would not comply with National Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 and 
Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to 
the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and the proposed upgrade of the 
junction with the A698 would appear incongruous with the linear streetscape and any scheme in 
isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety. 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 

Page 212



Mr Mark Graham
per Ferguson Planning 
54 Island Street 
Galashiels 
Scottish Borders 
TD1 1NU 

Please ask 
for: 


Euan Calvert 
01835 826513 

Our Ref: 23/01065/FUL

Your Ref: 

E-Mail: ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk

Date: 20th September 2023

Dear Sir/Madam 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Erection of dwellinghouse 

APPLICANT:  Mr Mark Graham

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 

Yours faithfully 

John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 213



Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 
2013 

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 23/01065/FUL 

To :     Mr Mark Graham per Ferguson Planning 54 Island Street Galashiels Scottish 
Borders TD1 1NU   

With reference to your application validated on 14th July 2023 for planning permission under the 
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 

Proposal :   Erection of dwellinghouse 

at :   Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton  Scottish Borders   

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the 
attached schedule. 

Dated 18th September 2023 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 214



Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  23/01065/FUL 

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 

Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

Transport statement  Report  Refused 
000  Location Plan  Refused 
001  Proposed Plans & Elevations  Refused 
002  Proposed Elevations  Refused 
003  Proposed Site Plan  Refused 
004  Proposed Block Plan  Refused 
005  Proposed Site Plan  Refused 
006  Proposed Plans Refused 

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

The proposed development would not comply with National Planning Framework 4 Policy 14 in 
that vehicular access to the site is poorly designed, detrimental to the amenity of the surrounding 
area and inconsistent with the six qualities of successful places.  In addition, the proposal is 
contrary to Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a 
substandard private access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and the 
proposed upgrade of the junction with the A698 is not supported as it would appear incongruous 
with the linear streetscape and any scheme in isolation may have a detrimental effect on road 
safety. 

SCHEDULE OF CONDITIONS 

 1 The proposed development would not comply with National Planning Framework 4 Policy 
14 and Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic 
on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, 
and the proposed upgrade of the junction with the A698 would appear incongruous with the 
linear streetscape and any scheme in isolation may have a detrimental effect on road 
safety. 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice.  To seek a review of the decision, 
please complete complete a request for local review form and return it to the Clerk of the Local 
Review Body, Democratic Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 
OSA. 

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 

Page 215



Regulatory Services

incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

Page 216



From: Calvert, Euan <ECalvert@scotborders.gov.uk>
Sent: 15 Sep 2023 11:11:22
To: idoxdmslive@scotborders.gov.uk
Cc: 
Subject: FW: 20/01327/FUL
Attachments: 

 
 
Euan Calvert
Assistant Planning Officer (Development Management)
Planning, Housing & Related Services
Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, TD6 0SA
Tel: 01835 826513 | ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
 

From: Calvert, Euan 
Sent: Friday, September 15, 2023 11:08 AM
To: IDOX DMS Test <idoxdmstest@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: 20/01327/FUL
 
 
 
Euan Calvert
Assistant Planning Officer (Development Management)
Planning, Housing & Related Services
Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, TD6 0SA
Tel: 01835 826513 | ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
 
SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
 
CHEVIOT AREA COMMITTEE
 
15 DECEMBER 2004
 
APPLICATION FOR PLANNING PERMISSION
 
 
ITEM:                    REFERENCE NUMBER:  04/01984/OUT
 
OFFICER:                              Frank Bennett
LOCAL MEMBER:              Councillor A Nicol
PROPOSAL:                        Erection of house and garage
SITE:                      Land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton
APPLICANT:                        Mark Graham
AGENT:                              None
 
SITE AND APPLICATION DESCRIPTION:
 
The site, 0.03 acres in area, situated on the west side of the Heiton, is level ground contained by the gardens of adjacent 
residential properties. Some years ago, there was a timber chalet on the ground. There is now a garage /shed within the site which 
would be removed. The site can be accessed from a cul-de-sac road already serving the four neighbouring houses which has an 
entrance/exit on to Main Street.    The application is in outline, although the applicant has indicated he would erect a single storey 
house.
 
PLANNING HISTORY:
 
Planning approval for neighbouring houses was obtained in the mid 1970's and four houses subsequently built, with the 
application site being land containing a chalet which was removed, although the cleared site has remained undeveloped.
 
In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the site (Ref.R127/94) was given which subsequently lapsed in 1999.  The 
committee approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and Transportation whose comments were 
similar to those put forward in relation to the current application. These were that the access on to the Main Street was not of a 

Page 217

mailto:ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk
mailto:ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk


suitable standard to accommodate a fifth house and visibility on to the main A class road was inadequate. In response to these 
comments, the Director of Planning's advice to the Committee in 1994 was that "the bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill 
site which has already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet.  The determining issue with this 
application is that of the access road.  While I share some of the concern of the Director of Roads and Transportation, I believe 
that this application is not creating a worse situation to that which existed when the original chalet was in use.  I therefore do not 
believe that there are sufficient grounds upon which to justify refusal of the application".
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES:
 
Approved Structure Plan 2001-2011
 
None
 
Roxburgh Local Plan 1995
 
Policy 18
 
In established residential areas there will be a presumption in favour of retaining existing uses.  To protect the amenity and 
character of these areas any development should meet the following criteria:-
 
1.            Appropriate form of development for a residential area;
2.            Appropriate scale of development for a residential area;
3.            No unacceptable increase in traffic or noise;
4.            Not visually intrusive.
 
OTHER PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS:
 
None.
 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES:
 
Scottish Borders Council Consultees
 
Director of Technical Services - The access on to Main Street (an A class road) has practically zero visibility due to boundary 
hedges.  Unless the access entrance/exit can be widened to allow two cars to pass at the junction the visibility splays of 2.5 x 100 
metres in both directions could be achieved, support for the application could not be given.
 
Other Consultees
 
Scottish Water - It is understood from the applicant that Scottish Water have confirmed that as the property has an existing sewer 
connection and is to be rebuilt, they will permit the use of the existing connection, but for domestic purposes only.
 
Community Council - reply awaited.
 
OTHER RESPONSES:
 
 None.
 
PLANNING ISSUES:
 
Whether further development should be resisted until the road access junction on to the A698 has been widened and visibility 
improved.
 
ASSESSMENT OF APPLICATION:
 
The site is of sufficient size to accommodate a house, having previously accommodated a dwelling house. The land is within a 
residential area recognised in the Local Plan.  There have been no representations from neighbours although in a recent similar 
application (withdrawn) a neighbour expressed the view that the house should be single storey to have lesser impact on 
neighbours amenity.  The determining issue concerns the adequacy of the access junction on to the A698 and the visibility 
requirements at the access entrance.  The applicant has been unable to obtain agreement of householders to widen the road and Page 218



improve or improve visibility which would result in a loss of garden area of the properties concerned and a need to rebuild 
boundary walls.
 
The previous Planning Authority approved use of the access in question for four houses, and in 1994, its further use for an 
additional house.   In the latter instance, this was against the advice of the Director of Roads and Transportation.  Although this 
permission has now lapsed, it is maintained that the traffic situation may not be greatly different then as it is some years later, 
although undoubtedly there has been some increase in traffic on Main Street.  As part of the Sunlaws development for 82 houses 
to the south of the village, traffic calming measures for the village are in prospect with the objective of reducing the speed of 
vehicles passing through the village.  While this will not overcome the situation at the access entrance/exit, it should mean that 
vehicles are moving more slowly along the Main Street as vehicles from the access are emerging, and similarly, as vehicles are 
stationary getting ready to turn right off the main Road into the access.
 
In view of the history of the site in residential use, and the previously granting of consent it is considered that the application can 
be supported.
 
RECOMMENDATION BY HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT CONTROL:
 
The application is recommended for approval subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The subsequent approval by the Planning Authority of the means of access, the layout of the site, the design and siting of any 
buildings and the landscape treatment of the site.
Reason: Approval is in outline only.
 
2. The means of water supply and of both surface water and foul drainage to be submitted for the approval of the Planning 
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the site is adequately serviced.
 
3. The details of all boundary walls and/or fences to be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority before the 
development is commenced.
Reason : To safeguard the visual amenity of the area. 
 
4. The house and garage to be single storey
Reason: In the interests of maintaining the amenity and outlook of occupiers of neighbouring residential properties.
 
 
 
 
 
Original copy of report signed by 
BRIAN FRATER (Head of Development Control)
 
Euan Calvert
Assistant Planning Officer (Development Management)
Planning, Housing & Related Services
Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, TD6 0SA
Tel: 01835 826513 | ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 219

mailto:ecalvert@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 221

Agenda Item 6b



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



P
age 229



P
age 230



P
age 231



P
age 232



P
age 233



P
age 234



P
age 235



T
his page is intentionally left blank



From: Lisa Miller <lisa@fergusonplanning.co.uk>
Sent: 16 January 2024 12:31
To: localreview
Subject: RE: [OFFICIAL] Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish
Borders  - 
23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF

CAUTION: External Email 

Dear Fiona,

Thank you for sight of the further representations made by the applicant’s 
neighbours.

We would like to make the following points to members of the local review body 
clear:

1) The applicant has confirmed that there is currently no legal right for 
any of the neighbours to 
access or use his land as a turning area and is therefore under no legal 
obligation to continue to 
do so.  While private access itself is not a planning matter, members need to be
aware that the 
proposed development would include a designated, official turning area thus 
significantly 
improving the current situation for all properties so vehicles can exit the site
in a forward gear;
2) We note that the individuals resident at Carnlea have previously 
approached the applicant to 
buy the land in order to increase their own property curtilage, the offer was 
refused by the 
applicant as their intention is to live in Heiton on a permanent basis;
3) The pictures provided in the representations show a typical rural street
with on-street 
parking;  given this and the fact that a 20mph speed limit is in place, it is 
unlikely that there 
would be a significant amount of vehicles travelling at high speed in this type 
of setting 
therefore reinforcing the available traffic data that this area is not high risk
in terms of road 
safety.  Road markings are an accepted, effective, industry standard means of 
road safety 
measure therefore there is no reason why they can not work at this location.

Best wishes

Lisa

Lisa Miller 
Senior Planner

0131 385 8743 (Direct)

Page 237

Agenda Item 6c



From: localreview <localreview@scotborders.gov.uk>  
Sent: Thursday, December 21, 2023 12:24 PM 
To: Lisa Miller <lisa@fergusonplanning.co.uk> 
Subject: [OFFICIAL] Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders - 
23/01065/FUL and 
23/00051/RREF 
Importance: High

Dear Sir/Madam 

Further to my letter of 4 December 2023 ,  with regard to the review of the 
above application, please 
find attached further representations from interested parties.

Should you have comments to submit regarding these representations please do so 
before 5 p.m. on 
Monday, 15 January 2024.

Regards Fiona 

Fiona Henderson
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services 
Corporate Governance
Council Headquarters
NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA
? DDI : 01835 826502
? fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

From: Henderson, Fiona  
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 5:39 PM 
To: lisa@fergusonplanning.co.uk 
Subject: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders - 
23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF 
Importance: High

Dear Sir /Madam 

I acknowledge and thank you for your notice of review in respect of the above. 
All your documents referred to in your notice of review have been received and I
attach a formal 
acknowledgement of your Notice of Review.  

Regards 

Fiona Henderson
Democratic Services Officer
Democratic Services 
Corporate Governance
Council Headquarters
NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS  TD6 0SA

Page 238



? DDI : 01835 826502
? fhenderson@scotborders.gov.uk

********************************************************************** This 
email and 
any files transmitted with it are privileged, confidential and subject to 
copyright. Any unauthorised use 
or disclosure of any part of this email is prohibited. If you are not the 
intended recipient please inform 
the sender immediately; you should then delete the email and remove any copies 
from your system. 
The views or opinions expressed in this communication may not necessarily be 
those of Scottish Borders 
Council. Please be advised that Scottish Borders Council's incoming and outgoing
email is subject to 
regular monitoring and any email may require to be disclosed by the Council 
under the provisions of the 
Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 . 
********************************************************************** 

Page 239



This page is intentionally left blank



1

23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF1 Gill & Mark Harrop Further Representation December 2023

Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Erection of dwellinghouse

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Graham

23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF

We wish to submit further representations in respect of the review of the
above appeal application.

Firstly, we reiterate our previous submission with regards to this
application and now subsequent appeal.

We have read through the Appeal Statement written and submitted by
Ferguson Planning on behalf of the applicant Mr Graham

For clarity and accuracy sake it should be noted that a number of times
the main road running through Heiton is wrongly identified as the A968.
It is actually, the A698.

The statement, as indeed this whole situation seeks to repeat what has
already been addressed throughout the last application and appeal
processes. Then another application which was declared ‘Declined to
Determine’ and then now another application and its subsequent appeal.
Throughout all of these applications the concern regarding the road
safety aspect to the application has remained constant.

There are however a couple of things which we wish to address with
regards to points made within this document.

1. Photographs contained within the Appeal Statement Fig 6 page 17
(Scott Street, Galashiels) and Fig 7 page 18 (Cairneyhill) both
show junctions of a two-lane carriageway with another two-lane
carriageway. These photographs bear no resemblance whatsoever
to the junction of the A698 at the driveway access to the applicants
plot of land and neighbouring properties. And as such, would
appear irrelevant as comparisons to this application.

Please see photographs of the actual driveway junction with A698 Main
street.

These photographs, taken at mid-day on a weekday, also clearly
demonstrate how narrow the road is with parked vehicles. The width of
the running carriageway will be effected by the addition of any ‘build -out’
no matter how small or painted markings. The former would and the

Page 241



Page 242



3

23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF3 Gill & Mark Harrop Further Representation December 2023

And, as we have already stated in our previous submission – we believe
that ‘painting the road’ will simply be ignored and that any form of 'build
out' will have a potentially detrimental effect for residents who live
opposite the access point, i.e. in particular, number 8 Main Street. The
residents living at the row of cottages nos. 2 to 8 Main Street park their
vehicles on the road, as can be seen in these photographs, any type of
build out will result in a further narrowing of the carriageway. The A698
is a busy throughfare used regularly by agricultural vehicles, HGV’s,
buses and many other large vehicles as well as standard cars.

Some years ago Scottish Borders Council placed a number of traffic
calming measures throughout the length of Main Street through Heiton
village and a traffic island was located near to Heiton Village Hall. We
don’t know exactly when it appeared, but having been there some years
it was decided to remove all of these traffic calming measures, again as
narrowing the road had proved dangerous, as combines, wide loads etc
were forced to mount the pavement, so the idea of now narrowing the
road may not be viewed as desirable by SBC.

In August 2022 the Road Planning report stated:

‘The junction with the public road is exceptionally constrained both in
terms of geometry and visibility. The junction area is only wide enough
for one vehicle with no radii and visibility in both directions is effectively
zero with a vehicle having to encroach significantly into the running
carriageway before any form of visibility splays are afforded. Given the
above I must object to this proposal.’

And on 7th August 2023 the Road Planning Report stated:

‘Although I appreciate that the applicant has proposed a turning head to
alleviate some problems at the site, there remains the issue of the
junction with the public road. It is exceptionally constrained in terms of
geometry and visibility and is only wide enough for one vehicle. Visibility
in both directions is effectively zero, with a vehicle having to encroach
significantly into the running carriageway before any visibility is afforded.
Furthermore, since the land surrounding the access is outwith the
applicant’s control, there is no scope for suitable improvements. As
such, I must object to this proposal’

2. Point 3.20, page 20 states:

Page 243



4

23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF4 Gill & Mark Harrop Further Representation December 2023

‘Until fairly recently, the application site, in full ownership of the
Applicant, has been used unofficially as a turning area for vehicles
primarily by neighbours and delivery drivers. It is noted that the
three closest neighbours all objected to the proposed
development siting road safety issues.’

This statement is at best erroneous The turning circle has always been
at this location. It is NOT something which the applicant is adding to the
benefit of all. When we bought our property in 2010 and likewise when
other neighbours bought their property we were all informed that there
was a turning circle. This is something all neighbours have been aware
of some considerable amount of time and dates back to prior to the
ownership of the land by the applicant. So we categorically do not agree
this is an ‘unofficial’ turning space.

3. The Executive Summary on page 4 states:
Refusal of planning permission ensures the land will remain vacant
and continue to negatively impact the character and vitality of the
neighbourhood.

We know of a number of occasions where the applicant has been
approached about selling the land, so it would not necessarily sit unused
and vacant.

Finally to summarise:

We do not feel that anything has changed since the decision made at the
last appeal hearing, namely:

13 Dec 2021 Local Review Body LRB Decision Notice to the applicant /
agent states in its conclusion:

The Review Body agreed with the Roads Officer that the access road
was narrow with very limited junction visibility, inadequate junction radii
and poor surface condition. They noted that several properties already
used the access road/junction and that the addition of a further property
would result in the need for road improvements which could not be
achieved within the applicant’s ownership. Although Members did
acknowledge the benefits of the creation of a turning head for the access
road and the possibility that the current trial 20mph speed limit on the
A698 may be made permanent, they did not consider these benefits
outweighed the inadequacies of the current access and junction. For
reasons of road safety, they agreed with the Roads Officer and

Page 244



5

23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF5 Gill & Mark Harrop Further Representation December 2023

concluded that the proposal was not in compliance with Local
Development Plan Policies PMD2 and PMD5.

As such we respectfully request that the Local Review Body refuses the
appeal to grant planning permission for the proposed development of a
new dwellinghouse adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton.

We have to acknowledge that the Review Body may indeed overturn the
decision and allow the appeal and grant planning permission. In this
event we would ask that a condition be placed upon the use of the
turning circle. We feel that it should be specified that this must be kept
clear at all times and not used as additional parking / driveway at the
proposed new property. Indeed, this would ensure the comment, as
stated in point 3.23 page 20 of the statement:

‘The Applicant is still committed to the provision of a communal turning
space on his land, for all to use when necessary.’

Gill and Mark Harrop
Hillcrest
Heiton.
TD5 8JR

December 2023.

Page 245



This page is intentionally left blank



1  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Mr & Mrs Debattista 
Carnela 
Main Street 
Heiton, TD5 8 JR 
 
18 December 2023 
 
Dear Sir / Madam, 
 
Re: 23/01065/FUL and 23/00051/RREF - Erection of dwellinghouse. Land Adjacent Carnlea Main 
Street Heiton Scottish Borders 

Further to the above-noted appeal application, we wish to submit our additional comments as per below. 

Firstly, we reiterate our previous submissions in respect to this application. 

After having read through the Appeal Statement made on behalf of Mr Graham, we noted that the road 
running through the village of Heiton has been wrongly identified on three occasions as A968 instead of 
A698.   

We also noted that Figure 5 on page 10 (snippet below for ease of reference), shows the front corner of 
the land as part of Mr Graham’s property.  As noted in our previous correspondence this is part of our 
property.  We are re-including an extract of the land registry document dated 21/12/2021, hereunder 

 

Figure 5 (page 10 of the Appeal Statement) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 247



2  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Extract of the land registry document dated 21/12/2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 248



3  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

 

 

 

We believe that the Appeal Statement is indeed a repetition of what has already been addressed in the 
last application and the ones before that. In all the refusals, the road safety issue was a constant, and we 
understand that the comments made by the Road Planning report in this regard did not change. 

We note that in the Appeal Statement reference is made to Scott Street in Galashiels and Cairneyhill in 
Fife.  Looking at the pictures included in the Appeal Statement there is a notable difference between the 
mentioned street and the access road on Main Street, Heiton.  The visibility from the access road onto the  
Main Street is effectively zero, one needs to go out almost in the middle of the road to be able to see 
whether traffic is coming from either direction.  Although no accidents have been reported in the last two 
years we have been living here, it is a dangerous situation, especially when agricultural vehicles, HGVs 
and other large vehicles are passing through. 

We believe that markings on the road will not help the situation. It is a fact that although the speed limit is 
20 miles per hour, most often than not this is not respected. 

Regarding the comment stating that if planning permission is refused the land will remain vacant and will 
continue to negatively impact character and vitality of the neighbourhood, we understand that Mr 

Page 249



4  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Graham has been approached to consider selling the land, and therefore this will not necessarily be the 
case.  

Regarding the turning circle at the top of the access road, we feel that this needs to be part of the 
planning condition in the event that the decision is overturned, as emergency and delivery vehicles have 
had to reverse into our property in the past due to the land in question being fenced off.   

Ultimately, we feel that, since the last planning refusal, matters have not changed. 

 

Yours faithfully 

Daniela & Jean Pierre Debattista 

 

 

 

Page 250



1

From: John Littlewood <
Sent: 23 July 2023 14:06
To: Planning & Regulatory Services
Subject: 23/01065/FUL

CAUTION: External Email

Application No 23/01065/FUL
Land adjacent to Carnlea, Main St, Heiton TD5 8JR
23.07.23
Dear Mr Calvert
Thank you for including me in the planning Proposal.
I have studied the plans carefully; I see no reason why the application should not be approved.
The existing empty plot is a neglected eyesore overgrown with weeds & perhaps rats!  The rosebay willowherb is so
rampant that when they seed, the airborne seeds are like snow in summer, causing endless weeds across my garden
and drive!
The sooner this house it is built the better,
Thank you,
John Littlewood
29a Main Street, Heiton,

Page 251

Agenda Item 6d



1

From:
Sent: 27 August 2023 10:48
To: Calvert, Euan; Planning & Regulatory Services
Cc:
Subject: 23/01065/FUL | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street

Heiton Scottish Borders
Attachments: Barrier erected on plot of land blocking turning head..jpg

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Calvert,

As an addendum to our previous collective submissions with regard to the above planning
application. This email is written on behalf of ourselves and the two neighbouring households who
are named at the base of this email.
With regards to our previous submissions, we would ask that a condition be placed upon the use
of the turning head. We feel that it should be specified that this must be kept clear at all times and
not used as additional parking/ driveway at the proposed new build property.

This request is suggested as result of the fact that the applicant, Mr Graham, has, since early
June erected a barrier along the length of the plot. This has effectively blocked off any access to
the longstanding established turning space. As a result, vehicles are regularly having, if clear, to
use our driveways to turn around but more importantly on several occasions large vehicles have
had to reverse out onto the A698 which is clearly dangerous. Should the turning head be used as
parking, this has the potential to lead to the same situation and/or confrontation between
neighbouring houses, neither scenario is a desired outcome.
The barrier fence had actually blown down some weeks ago after strong winds, however on the
afternoon of Friday 25th August the barrier was restored to its standing position, please see
attached photograph.

Yours sincerely

Gill and Mark Harrop
Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista
Jim and Linda Wilson

Page 252



P
age 253



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY DECISION NOTICE

APPEAL UNDER SECTION 43A (8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING 
(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL 
REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Local Review Reference: 21/00019/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 20/01327/FUL

Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton

Applicant: Mr Mark Graham

                                                                                                        
DECISION

The Local Review Body upholds the decision of the appointed officer and refuses planning 
permission as explained in this decision notice and on the following grounds: 

1. The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards 
and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the 
development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to 
the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and it has not been 
demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the access, as specified, 
can be carried out.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The application relates to the erection of a dwellinghouse on land adjacent Carnlea, Main 
Street, Heiton.  The application drawings and documentation consisted of the following:

Plan Type Plan Reference No.

Location Plan PDK-20-137-001
Elevations 006-01
Elevations 007-01
Roof Plan 008-01
Site Plan and Section 009-02
Privacy and Overlooking Plan 010-02

Page 255

Agenda Item 6e



PRELIMINARY MATTERS

The Local Review Body considered the review, which had been competently made, under 
section 43A (8) of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 at its meeting on 18th 
October 2021.

After examining the review documentation at that meeting, which included a) Notice of Review 
(including the Decision Notice and Officer’s Report); b) Objections; c) Further Objection 
Comments and Applicant’s Response; d) General Comment; e) Other Information; and f) List 
of Policies, considered whether certain matters included in the review documents constituted 
new evidence under Section 43B of the Act and whether or not this evidence could be referred 
to in their deliberations. This related to further information in the form of Land Register of 
Scotland – Land certificate version 12/09/2006; Letters from Scottish Water  dated 20 April 
2004 and 24 February 2005; Excerpts from The Robert Burns Annual and Chronicle 1948 and 
Excerpts from the Federation Year Book 1951.

Members agreed that the information was new and considered that it met the Section 43B 
test, that it was material to the determination of the Review and could be considered. However, 
there was a requirement for further procedure in the form of written submissions to enable the 
Planning Officer and Roads Officer to comment on the new information.

The Review was, therefore, continued to the Local Review Body meeting on 13th December 
2021 where the Review Body considered all matters, including responses to the further 
information from the Planning Officer and Roads Officer, and the applicant’s reply to those 
responses. The Review Body also noted that the applicant had requested further procedure 
in the form of written submissions, a hearing and a site visit but did not consider it necessary 
in this instance and proceeded to determine the case.

REASONING

The determining issues in this Review were:

 (1) whether the proposal would be in keeping with the Development Plan, and
 (2) whether there were any material considerations which would justify departure from the 

Development Plan.

The Development Plan comprises: SESplan Strategic Development Plan 2013 and the 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. The LRB considered that the relevant listed 
policies were:

 Local Development Plan policies: PMD2, PMD5, HD3, HD4, EP13, IS2, IS7 and IS9

Other Material Considerations

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008

The Review Body noted that the proposal was for planning permission to erect a 
dwellinghouse on land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. Members noted that the site 
lay within the settlement boundary for Heiton as defined in the Local Development Plan and 
that, in many respects, the development was an appropriate infill opportunity in keeping with 
the surroundings and in compliance with the relevant Policies PMD2 and PMD5. The Review 

Page 256



Body had no general objections to the siting or design of the dwellinghouse and agreed with 
the Appointed Officer in these respects.

The Review Body also understood that the site had accommodated a residential property in 
the past according to information in the background papers, that previous planning 
permissions had been granted and that land registration documents appeared to confirm a 
right of access from the site to the A698. However, Members were also aware that such rights 
should not override all other material considerations and, in this respect, were of the opinion 
that the development would generate increased traffic utilising an inadequate and unsafe 
access onto the A698. They considered that traffic generation and volumes would be greater 
for the new development and on the A698 compared to those that would have existed when 
the site accommodated the previous property. As a consequence, there were greater road 
safety concerns over the proposal.

The Review Body agreed with the Roads Officer that the access road was narrow with very 
limited junction visibility, inadequate junction radii and poor surface condition. They noted that 
several properties already used the access road/junction and that the addition of a further 
property would result in the need for road improvements which could not be achieved within 
the applicant’s ownership. Although Members did acknowledge the benefits of the creation of 
a turning head for the access road and the possibility that the current trial 20mph speed limit 
on the A698 may be made permanent, they did not consider these benefits outweighed the 
inadequacies of the current access and junction. For reasons of road safety, they agreed with 
the Roads Officer and concluded that the proposal was not in compliance with Local 
Development Plan Policies PMD2 and PMD5.

The Review Body finally considered other material issues relating to the proposal including 
residential amenity impacts, water, drainage and developer contributions but were of the 
opinion that the issues did not influence the overall decision on the Review and could have 
been controlled by appropriate conditions and a legal agreement had the proposal been 
supported.

CONCLUSION

After considering all relevant information, the Local Review Body concluded that the 
development was contrary to the Development Plan and that there were no other material 
considerations that would justify departure from the Development Plan.  Consequently, the 
application was refused for the reasons stated above. 

Notice Under Regulation 22 of the Town & Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation 
and Local Review procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013.

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse 
permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed 
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant 
may question the validity of that decision by making an application to the Court of 
Session. An application to the Court of Session must be made within 6 weeks of the 
date of the decision.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the owner 
of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in 
its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the 

Page 257



carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner of 
the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase 
of the owner of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part V of the Town 
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Signed.................................................
Councillor S Mountford
Chairman of the Local Review Body

Date……….………………………………
…

Page 258



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     20/01327/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Mr Mark Graham 

 
AGENT :   PD Architecture 
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Erection of dwellinghouse 
 
LOCATION:  Land Adjacent Carnlea 

Main Street 
Heiton 
Scottish Borders 
 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 

        
A LOCATION PLAN  Location Plan Refused 
009  Proposed Site Plan Refused 
010  Proposed Plans & Elevations Refused 
006  Proposed Plans Refused 
007  Proposed Elevations Refused 
008  Proposed Roof Plan Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 6  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
12 neighbours were notified.  
 
Two comments were received noting no objection but requiring confirmation of ownership of a mutual 
boundary and recommending a turning circle be provided. Trees were requested to be retained and 
privacy issues highlighted. 
 
Three Objections were received raising the following planning issues: 
 
o Sunlight and daylight would be considerably diminished as a result of the roof pitch height. 
 
o Potential first floor accommodation in future. 
 
o Density of the site, the design is too large for the plot, over-development. 
 
o Height of the development. 
 
o Inadequate access and increased traffic.  
 
o Overlooking. 

Page 259



 
o Overshadowing. 
 
Consultations: 
 
Scottish Water: No objection. 
 
Community Council: Object. Too close to neighbouring houses and insufficient vehicular access.  The 
development would require adoption of the road. 
 
Roads Planning:  
 
First response: Unable to support the proposal.  The existing private access is very constrained with 
no formal turning area. 
 
Second response: A turning area has been demonstrated. This requires the use of a driveway for 
Hillcrest, which is unacceptable.  A solution avoiding this would be to move the turning area east to the 
midpoint of the site. This solution would remove concerns with regards to the ability of vehicles to enter 
and exit the private access in a forward gear.  
 
However the objection is sustained until: 
 
1. The sub-standard access onto the public road is widened to 5.5m wide with 6m radii and  
2. Visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m in either direction are provided. 
3. Access surfaced with a bound surface. 
 
The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it would 
be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to the detriment of road safety. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
SBC Local Development Plan 2016  
 
PMD2 Quality Standards 
PMD5 Infill Development 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
 
Developer Contributions, April 2015 
Guidance on Householder Developments, July 2006 
Placemaking and Design, 2010 
Landscape and Development, 2008 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Euan Calvert  (Assistant Planning Officer) on 24th May 2021 
 
This is a full planning application for the erection of a dwellinghouse on a vacant site in Heiton, Kelso. 
  
Site  
 
This is a vacant site within a cu-de-sac of four neighbouring houses dating from approval in the mid1970s.  
This site was said to be occupied by a chalet at this time however the site was cleared and has remained 
undeveloped since. 
 
Planning History 

Page 260



 
R127/94 
 
In June 1994, full planning consent for a house on the site was granted and subsequently lapsed in 1999.  
The Planning Committee approved this application contrary to the advice of the Director of Roads and 
Transportation.  The Committee stated ""the bungalow is (would be) located on an in-fill site which has 
already demonstrated its ability to accommodate a house when used for the chalet."  
 
04/01984/OUT and 05/00012/REM 
 
These applications were also for the erection of one house on the site. The Director of Roads and 
Transportation maintained their objection.  Access to the main street was deemed an unsuitable standard to 
accommodate a fifth house and visibility on to the main A class road was inadequate (the access 
entrance/exit was required to be widened to allow two cars to pass at the junction and the visibility splays of 
2.5 x 100 metres were required in both directions).  
 
The Planning Officer's report noted the site was of sufficient size to accommodate a house, having 
previously accommodated a dwellinghouse and that the land is within a residential area. The Officer 
recommended approval to the Cheviot Area Committee, overruling The Director of Roads and 
Transportation, noting that road widening and improved visibility were all dependent on third party land who 
would incur loss of garden area and the need to move a boundary retaining wall.  The mitigating 
circumstances were stipulated as "traffic calming measures for the village are in prospect" and that there 
was "history of the site in residential use". 
 
Proposals 
 
The site and layout has been designed to be similar to the previously approved building.  It is a T-planned 
footprint featuring a projection on the principal elevation of similar scale to the approved bungalow.  The 
main roof of this proposal would have a higher ridge than that previously approved, which would 
accommodate a vaulted ceiling over the public lounge and kitchen areas. 
 
Amendments have been provided throughout the course of application: 
 
o Window removed from Bedroom 3, replaced with a Velux combination window, the vertical element 
to be gazed with obscure glass. 
o Window facing Hillcrest in the Master Bedroom to be glazed with obscure glass. 
o A new beech hedge 1800mm high, to be planted along the East and North boundaries, as privacy 
and overlooking screening. 
o The Conifer tree is to be felled. 
 
Amended elevations have been provided to demonstrate the relationship of this building to the neighbour, 
Hillcrest.  The residential amenity impacts have been considered in respect of overlooking, privacy, 
daylighting, sunlight and overshadowing impacts. 
 
Planning Policy  
 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards  
 
Requires all development to be of high quality and be compatible with the character and neighbouring built 
form.  Boundary treatments are considered essential to ensure proper effective assimilation with the wider 
surroundings. 
 
The Placemaking and Design 2010 SPG seeks for new development to contribute to the locally distinctive 
built character. 
 
Policy PMD5: Infill Development  
 
Development on non-allocated, infill or windfall, sites, including the re-use of buildings within Development 
Boundaries as shown on proposal maps will be approved where the following criteria are satisfied: 
 

Page 261



a) where relevant, it does not conflict with the established land use of the area; and 
b) it does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and 
c) the individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the social and economic 
infrastructure and it does not lead to over-development or 'town and village cramming'; and 
d) it respects the scale, form, design, materials and density in context of its surroundings; and 
e) adequate access and servicing can be achieved, particularly taking account of water and drainage and 
schools capacity; and 
f) it does not result in any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to adjoining properties as a result of 
overshadowing or overlooking. 
 
All applications will be considered against the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking 
and Design. Developers are required to provide design statements as appropriate. 
 
Policy IS7 
 
The Roads Planning Officer makes comment with regard to road safety standards, access and parking 
accommodation. 
 
Policy HD3 
 
Siting, scale and location of development is considered with regard to protecting neighbouring residential 
amenity. 
 
Policy EP13 
 
Seeks to protect trees and hedgerows from development. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Principle 
 
The Local Development Plan 2016 identifies this site falling within the Development Boundary, but not 
allocated and it is therefore appropriate to consider Policy PMD5: Infill Development. 
 
I find the site to satisfy several but not all of the infill policy criteria: 
 
1. The proposal does not conflict with the established land use. The land is vacant and it has previously 
been confirmed by the Council that the change to private residential use will not conflict with neighbouring 
use;   
 
2. This is a tight site but the choice of design and rear location from the Main Street would avoid any 
adverse impacts to the character and amenity of Heiton. The site has previously been an acceptable infill 
development opportunity. In terms of design, the building presented would be a suitable addition to the 
neighbouring built form, both appearing modern but retaining similar form as the neighbouring bungalows.  I 
am satisfied that development would appear contiguous in size and plot ratio as the neighbours, specifically 
noting that Craimar opposite features 1.5 storey form; and 
 
3. A further residential dwelling would contribute to sustaining the social and economic infrastructure of 
Heiton.  Developer Contributions Policy would require contribution to Kelso High School in accordance with 
policy IS2. However, contributions have not been agreed or reconciled because of overarching issues 
arising from the Road Planning Officer's sustained objection to a house on this site.  The site is considered 
to be over-development. The site does not satisfy visitor parking, visibility and junction requirements 
currently; and 
 
4. I am satisfied that the building to plot ratio are within the margins of acceptability in terms of scale, form, 
design, materials and density and are not dissimilar to the previous approval; and 
 
5. There are material concerns over vehicular safety in accessing this site and these have been 
irreconcilable throughout prolonged discussions.  The agent has insisted that the previous permission was 
implemented, 04/01984/OUT/ 05/00012/REM, however the Planning Authority cannot accept this as no 

Page 262



evidence has been presented of operational development or that the site was previously occupied as a 
dwellinghouse (described as a chalet in 1994) or of commencement in terms of the Building Warrant.  
Through the passage of time the land use has reverted to vacant land, not a site of a dwellinghouse.  The 
agent contends that drainage, demolition and clearance of site constituted development however these 
operations may have been undertaken outwith the requirements of planning permission.  
 
In accordance with Policy IS7, the Roads Planning Officer requires three items to be secured to achieve 
future support to development of this dwellinghouse: 
 
1. Access onto the public road is currently substandard for a 5th dwelling and it must be widened to 5.5m 
wide with 6m radii and; 
2. Visibility splays of 2.4m by 43m must be provided in either direction; 
3. This access to be surfaced with bound surface; 
4. Provision of visitor turning and parking within the cul-de-sac. 
 
Without these items being provided, the development is contrary to both Policy PMD2 and parking standards 
within Policy IS7, in that the extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access would be to the detriment of 
public road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
Public mains water is proposed and waste water to the mains sewer. Both would be acceptable in this 
village location; and 
 
6 I do not identify any significant loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy to neighbouring properties as a result of 
overshadowing or overlooking (owing to the appropriate choice of floor level, cut in to the slope).  Locations 
of windows, overshadowing and privacy matters have been considered.  I have assessed the distance to the 
nearest neighbour and the choice of window locations.  It has been demonstrated that the amendments 
would ensure neighbouring residential amenity in accordance with overlooking and loss of privacy guidance. 
Obscure glass would protect privacy of the habitable bedroom in the front projection.  A 1.8m privacy hedge 
would be added behind the existing west boundary to introduce further privacy between plots. This hedge 
would compensate for the loss of (relatively juvenile) trees shown to be removed. 
 
The principle of the development of one dwelling on this site has not been adequately demonstrated.  Policy 
PMD5 of the Local Development Plan 2016 requires means of access to the public road network to be 
satisfactory achievable to standards identified above. The road improvements  cannot be secured by a 
suspensive as the land is outwith the control of the applicant. 
 
External Appearance: Materials, Fabrics and Colours 
 
The proposed external finishes would be quite appropriate to the location within the estate and in 
accordance with Placemaking and Design SPG, 2010. 
 
Landscaping 
 
A condition would be required in the event of approval to ensure the boundary treatments (the proposed 
hedge) were implemented in accordance with a full specification. 
 
Three objections have been received. I have addressed the points concerning loss of neighbouring 
residential amenity above. I do not identify any significant adverse impacts on the nearest neighbours.  The 
density/ plot ratio would be high but not harmful to daylight or privacy standards of neighbours.  The density 
would be similar to and therefore reflective of the neighbouring built form in this residential estate.  The 
proposal is therefore not considered to be an incongruous addition. 
 
The Community Council and the objectors' concerns over suitable safe vehicular access and egress (and 
visitor parking) are noted and are reasons for refusal. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill 
Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional 

Page 263



vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and 
it has not been demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the access, as specified, can be 
carried out.  
  
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: 

Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in 
additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular 
and pedestrian, and it has not been demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the 
access, as specified, can be carried out.  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 

 

Page 264



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
LOCAL REVIEW BODY DECISION NOTICE

APPEAL UNDER SECTION 43A (8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING 
(SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL 
REVIEW PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Local Review Reference: 21/00019/RREF

Planning Application Reference: 20/01327/FUL

Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton

Applicant: Mr Mark Graham

                                                                                                        
DECISION

The Local Review Body upholds the decision of the appointed officer and refuses planning 
permission as explained in this decision notice and on the following grounds: 

1. The proposed development would not comply with Policies PMD2: Quality Standards 
and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that the 
development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a substandard access to 
the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and it has not been 
demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the access, as specified, 
can be carried out.

DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL

The application relates to the erection of a dwellinghouse on land adjacent Carnlea, Main 
Street, Heiton.  The application drawings and documentation consisted of the following:

Plan Type Plan Reference No.

Location Plan PDK-20-137-001
Elevations 006-01
Elevations 007-01
Roof Plan 008-01
Site Plan and Section 009-02
Privacy and Overlooking Plan 010-02

Page 265



PRELIMINARY MATTERS

The Local Review Body considered the review, which had been competently made, under 
section 43A (8) of the Town & Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 at its meeting on 18th 
October 2021.

After examining the review documentation at that meeting, which included a) Notice of Review 
(including the Decision Notice and Officer’s Report); b) Objections; c) Further Objection 
Comments and Applicant’s Response; d) General Comment; e) Other Information; and f) List 
of Policies, considered whether certain matters included in the review documents constituted 
new evidence under Section 43B of the Act and whether or not this evidence could be referred 
to in their deliberations. This related to further information in the form of Land Register of 
Scotland – Land certificate version 12/09/2006; Letters from Scottish Water  dated 20 April 
2004 and 24 February 2005; Excerpts from The Robert Burns Annual and Chronicle 1948 and 
Excerpts from the Federation Year Book 1951.

Members agreed that the information was new and considered that it met the Section 43B 
test, that it was material to the determination of the Review and could be considered. However, 
there was a requirement for further procedure in the form of written submissions to enable the 
Planning Officer and Roads Officer to comment on the new information.

The Review was, therefore, continued to the Local Review Body meeting on 13th December 
2021 where the Review Body considered all matters, including responses to the further 
information from the Planning Officer and Roads Officer, and the applicant’s reply to those 
responses. The Review Body also noted that the applicant had requested further procedure 
in the form of written submissions, a hearing and a site visit but did not consider it necessary 
in this instance and proceeded to determine the case.

REASONING

The determining issues in this Review were:

 (1) whether the proposal would be in keeping with the Development Plan, and
 (2) whether there were any material considerations which would justify departure from the 

Development Plan.

The Development Plan comprises: SESplan Strategic Development Plan 2013 and the 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016. The LRB considered that the relevant listed 
policies were:

 Local Development Plan policies: PMD2, PMD5, HD3, HD4, EP13, IS2, IS7 and IS9

Other Material Considerations

 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight  2006
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011
 SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008

The Review Body noted that the proposal was for planning permission to erect a 
dwellinghouse on land adjacent to Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton. Members noted that the site 
lay within the settlement boundary for Heiton as defined in the Local Development Plan and 
that, in many respects, the development was an appropriate infill opportunity in keeping with 
the surroundings and in compliance with the relevant Policies PMD2 and PMD5. The Review 

Page 266



Body had no general objections to the siting or design of the dwellinghouse and agreed with 
the Appointed Officer in these respects.

The Review Body also understood that the site had accommodated a residential property in 
the past according to information in the background papers, that previous planning 
permissions had been granted and that land registration documents appeared to confirm a 
right of access from the site to the A698. However, Members were also aware that such rights 
should not override all other material considerations and, in this respect, were of the opinion 
that the development would generate increased traffic utilising an inadequate and unsafe 
access onto the A698. They considered that traffic generation and volumes would be greater 
for the new development and on the A698 compared to those that would have existed when 
the site accommodated the previous property. As a consequence, there were greater road 
safety concerns over the proposal.

The Review Body agreed with the Roads Officer that the access road was narrow with very 
limited junction visibility, inadequate junction radii and poor surface condition. They noted that 
several properties already used the access road/junction and that the addition of a further 
property would result in the need for road improvements which could not be achieved within 
the applicant’s ownership. Although Members did acknowledge the benefits of the creation of 
a turning head for the access road and the possibility that the current trial 20mph speed limit 
on the A698 may be made permanent, they did not consider these benefits outweighed the 
inadequacies of the current access and junction. For reasons of road safety, they agreed with 
the Roads Officer and concluded that the proposal was not in compliance with Local 
Development Plan Policies PMD2 and PMD5.

The Review Body finally considered other material issues relating to the proposal including 
residential amenity impacts, water, drainage and developer contributions but were of the 
opinion that the issues did not influence the overall decision on the Review and could have 
been controlled by appropriate conditions and a legal agreement had the proposal been 
supported.

CONCLUSION

After considering all relevant information, the Local Review Body concluded that the 
development was contrary to the Development Plan and that there were no other material 
considerations that would justify departure from the Development Plan.  Consequently, the 
application was refused for the reasons stated above. 

Notice Under Regulation 22 of the Town & Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation 
and Local Review procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013.

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority to refuse 
permission for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed 
development, or to grant permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant 
may question the validity of that decision by making an application to the Court of 
Session. An application to the Court of Session must be made within 6 weeks of the 
date of the decision.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the owner 
of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in 
its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the 

Page 267



carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner of 
the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase 
of the owner of the land’s interest in the land in accordance with Part V of the Town 
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Signed.................................................
Councillor S Mountford
Chairman of the Local Review Body

Date……….………………………………
…

Page 268



Your Ref: 23/01065/FUL

12 Aug 2023

Scottish Borders Council,
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
Melrose
Scottish Borders
TD6 0SA

Dear Sirs

Re: 23/01065/FUL|Erection of dwelling house|Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main
Street, Heiton

One of the South of Scotland Regional Economic Strategy six themes is ‘thriving and distinct
communities’ and a key priority in this theme is housing. In order to sustain rural villages
support should be given the development of low impact housing ‘to better integrate
generations, attract new people to the area and ensure those farthest from the labour
market have a stable platform from which to progress and prosper’

SBC’s Local Development Plan outlines that the Housing Needs and Demand Assessment
identified a continued need for some 100 houses per annum over the next 5 years and that
the plan will ‘seek to encourage the delivery of affordable housing opportunities to meet
local need’

It is understood that this site had previously been granted planning permission, but this
lapsed before construction could start. The subsequent application and appeal were
unsuccessful, and this new application has taken on board design considerations that lead to
the refusal – repositioning of windows to avoid overlooking, reduction in the height of the
dwelling and the inclusion of a turning circle. The applicant appears to have taken all
reasonable steps within their control to make changes to the plan.

We understand from the application that there are currently four properties on this private
road and there has been for at least a decade. Each dwelling has at least one vehicle and
according to the SWECO transport report the existing access has no history of road safety
issues.

It is noted that visibility splay is a key concern. If it is necessary, despite it not being an
issue for the current dwellings, the suggestion of painted markings is reasonable. However,
the creation of a small build out to increase visibility splay has the potential to cause
disruption to the flow of traffic and parking issues for neighbouring properties and therefore
poses some concern.

This application appears to align with the local development plan regeneration policy (ED5)
which aims to encourage redevelopment of land, supporting bringing land back into

Heiton and Roxburgh Community Council

Page 269

Agenda Item 6f



productive use, and the infill development policy (PMD5). Both policies state that
development on sites will be approved in all cases where the following criteria is satisfied:

a) Does not conflict with established land use of area.
b) Does not detract from the character and amenity of the surrounding area.
c) The individual and cumulative effects of the development can be sustained by the

social and economic infrastructure.
d) It respects the scale, form, design and materials and density in context of its

surroundings.
e) Adequate access and servicing can be achieved.
f) It does not result in any significant to loss of daylight, sunlight or privacy as a result

of overshadowing or overlooking.

There is no known reason this criterion is not satisfied.

This application also appears to support the LDP Policy HD2: Housing in the countryside,
which states ‘the council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development in village
locations’.

Yours sincerely

Chloe Brown (Mrs)

On behalf of Heiton and Roxburgh Community Council

Page 270



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Monday, 24 July 2023 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders, TD5 8JR 

Planning Ref: 23/01065/FUL  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0091078-6ZS 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse. 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 There is currently sufficient capacity in the Roberton Water Treatment Works to 
service your development. However, please note that further investigations may be 
required to be carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us. 
 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 This proposed development will be serviced by Heiton Waste Water Treatment 
Works. Unfortunately, Scottish Water is unable to confirm capacity currently so to 
allow us to fully appraise the proposals we suggest that the applicant completes a 
Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) Form and submits it directly to Scottish Water via 
our Customer Portal or contact Development Operations. 

 

 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 271

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

Asset Impact Assessment  
 
Scottish Water records indicate that there is live infrastructure in the proximity of your 

development area that may impact on existing Scottish Water assets.  

 
100mm Combined Sewer within your site boundary. 
 

The applicant must identify any potential conflicts with Scottish Water assets and contact our 
Asset Impact Team via our Customer Portal for an appraisal of the proposals.  
 
The applicant should be aware that any conflict with assets identified will be subject to 
restrictions on proximity of construction. Please note the disclaimer at the end of this 
response.  
 
Written permission must be obtained before any works are started within the area of our 
apparatus  
 

 
 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   

Page 272

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 

Page 273

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 5kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Ruth Kerr. 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 

Page 274

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/
http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 275



Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

23/01065/FUL Page 1 of 2 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Mark Payne 
Roads Planning Officer

mark.payne@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 825018 

Date of reply 7th August 2023 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01065/FUL 
Case Officer: 

Applicant Mr Mark Graham 

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse 

Site Location Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders   

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

There is a history of recent applications at this site which Roads Planning have 
objected to on road safety concerns. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

 Access 
 Visibility 

Assessment There are two changes since the previous application which relate to Roads 
Planning: 

1) The proposed Local Development Plan allowing a maximum of 5 dwelling 
units to be served from a private access road. 

2) A proposed build out from the private access on to the A698 to create better 
visibility. 

Regarding point 1 above, it is my view that although the private access road would 
not have to conform to an adoptable standard, the access from the private road is 
still unsuitable for this level of development. 
Regarding point 2, I would not support any scheme to narrow the carriageway 
along the A698 as this is incongruous with the road through Heiton and any 
scheme in isolation may have a detrimental effect on road safety. 

Although I appreciate that the applicant has proposed a turning head to alleviate 
some problems at the site, there remains the issue of the junction with the public 
road. It is exceptionally constrained in terms of geometry and visibility and is only 
wide enough for one vehicle. Visibility in both directions is effectively zero, with a 
vehicle having to encroach significantly into the running carriageway before any 
visibility is afforded. Furthermore, since the land surrounding the access is outwith 
the applicant’s control, there is no scope for suitable improvements. 

As such, I must object to this proposal. 

Page 276

mailto:mark.payne@scotborders.gov.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

23/01065/FUL Page 2 of 2 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object Do not object, 
subject to conditions

Further 
information required

Reason of Objection The proposal does not comply with policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that it would be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to 
the detriment of road safety.   

Signed: DJI 

Page 277



This page is intentionally left blank



1  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Mr & Mrs Debattista 
Carnela 
Main Street 
Heiton, TD5 8 JR 
 
2 August 2023 
 
To whom it may concern 
 
Re: 23/01065/FUL | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street, Heiton Scottish 
Borders 

Please find below our concerns and objections regarding this new development. 

1. Application history 

Application 20/01327/FUL was refused and subsequently the appeal to the refusal (21/00019/REF) was 
upheld by the Local Review Body in Nov/Dec 2021. In 2022 a further application was made  
(22/01105/FUL | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders) 
with the same plans and the case was ultimately stopped as ' Declined to Determine'. 

We note the new plans submitted and appreciate the new design considerations, particularly the 
positioning of the windows and doors on the East side overlooking our property, Carnlea. We note that 
this will be mitigated by planting a hedge of 1800mm in height.  We understand that a new hedge will take 
a number of years to reach the suggested height of 1800mm. 

We also note the revised height of the new proposed property, which reflects the height of a bungalow.  

2. Ownership of land  
 

We note that the concern raised in our objection letter dated 2 August 2022 was not taken into account.   
 
The corner at the front of the property (refer to Picture 1 – part highlighted in yellow) forms part of our 
property and this can be verified in the land registry document dated 21/12/2021, an extract of which is 
being copied hereunder (refer to Picture 2 and Picture 2a). 
 

In view of this we request that the plans submitted are revised accordingly.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 279

Agenda Item 6g



2  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Picture 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 280



3  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Picture 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 281



4  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Picture 2a  
 

 

 

  

Page 282



5  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

 

3. Access - Road safety 

Our concern and comments as per our letter dated 2 August 2022 remain (comments copied below for 
ease of reference).  We understand that this still applies and that the law has not been updated to date.  

We understand that there is a proposed change to the Local Development Plan regarding “Private 
Accesses” which will increase the number of dwellings via a private access from four dwellings to five.  
However, we understand that this is still to be adopted and approved by Ministers. 

“We understand the Local Review Board rejected the previous proposed applications since it was not 
compliant with “policies PMD2: Quality Standards and PMD5: Infill Development of the Local 
Development Plan 2016 in that the development would result in additional vehicular traffic on a 
substandard access to the detriment of road safety, both vehicular and pedestrian, and it has not been 
demonstrated that the improvements required to upgrade the access, as specified, can be carried out”  

We also note that the Road planning Officer has pointed out in the past that  “The access onto the A689 
from our shared access road would have to be widened to 5.5m wide with 6m radii and visibility splays of 
2.4m by 43m in either direction as well as being surfaced to my specification before I would be able to 
support this proposal. The land required to implement these improvements would appear to be out with 
the control of the applicant and as such I must continue to object.”  In order for this to be satisfied a 
substantial amount of our garden needs to be taken up. This is obviously unacceptable. Furthermore, the 
house on the opposite side of the access road would need to be partially demolished for the access road 
to be widened to the measurements specified by the Road planning Officer. 

The proposed dwelling house has 3 bedrooms, and therefore possibly 6 people would be residing in the 
said property with each having their own car. This will definitely generate a lot of traffic in the access road 
and unsafe access onto A698. 

As noted by the Review Board, the access road is narrow with very limited junction visibility and has 
inadequate junction radii.  The addition of a further property would result in the need of road improvement 
as noted by the Road Planning Officer which cannot be achieved. In fact we note that in the planning 
application under Section 12 Accesses and Rights of Way the applicant has ticked point A: 

There will be no new access to a highway (either vehicle or pedestrian), no alteration to an existing 
access to a public road and no alteration to any public right of way or other public path.” 

We further note in the report prepared by Ferguson Planning that as a “..Traffic calming measures are 
proposed in the formal of a small build out or paint markings, north and south of the junction of the access 
lane with the A698. An indicative layout for this is provided in Appendix 1 of the Transport Supporting 
Statement. Since the previous application, the 20mph zone has also now been formally established on 
the A698.”  

Our views regarding the above statement are the following: 

- A small build out will be dangerous to road safety, especially since large agricultural vehicles, 
HGVs, buses and many other large vehicles as well as standard cars make regular use of A698.  
This will also affect the resident residing opposite the access road. 

- A painting will merely be ignored and will have no effect on the safety of cars coming out of the 
access road. 

In addition to the above, we would also like to point out that the garage situated on the said plot of land is 
not, and has not been, accessible, at least in the last couple of years.  This can be seen from the pictures 
below (Picture 3 and 4). 

Page 283



6  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

In addition, you will also note that a barrier has been also erected, and therefore leaving no turning point 
for our neighbours. 

Picture 3 

 

 

 
 

  

Page 284



7  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Picture 4 

 

 

 
 
 

  

Page 285



8  Daniela and Jean Pierre Debattista 
   

Conclusion. 

Taking into account the above matters, we feel that there is still a concern about the access road and the 
safety of all the vehicles passing through A698.  The proposed amendments would not make the use of 
A698 any safer. 

In addition the proposed changes to the Local Development Plan regarding “Private Accesses”  are still 
not adopted. 

 

Yours sincerely 

Jean Pierre and Daniela Debattista 

 

Page 286



Gill and Mark Harrop page 1 
 

23/01065/FUL | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street 

Heiton Scottish Borders 

We object to this application on the following grounds: 

Contrary to Local Plan 

Detrimental to Residential Amenity 

Inadequate access 

Increased traffic 

Road safety 

Firstly, we appreciate the design considerations that have been applied for with these 

newly submitted plans, particularly the positioning of windows to avoid overlooking 

towards the west – Hillcrest thereby affording privacy.  Also the height being one of a 

true bungalow and the inclusion of a ‘turning circle’. 

However, that said, on Monday 7th June 2023, Mr Graham had erected a makeshift 

barrier, so preventing the availability of vehicles to turn safely without utilising one or 

another of the neighbours driveways. Part of this has since blown over in high winds. 

Photograph taken at 1234hrs 07.06.2023. shortly 

after this barrier was erected. 

We do however still have concerns with regard to the access situation, the very reason 

the previous applications have been turned down, both initially (20/01327/FUL | 

Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish 

Borders 

and on appeal, ( 21/00019/RREF | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea 

Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders) 

And subsequently when six months later a further application was made( 

22/01105/FUL | Erection of dwellinghouse | Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street 

Heiton Scottish Borders) 

Page 287



Gill and Mark Harrop page 2 
 

These plans were exactly the same and the case was ultimately stopped as ' Declined 

to Determine'  

We still have the same issues with the access, something which the applicant admits 

he has no control over as he doesn't own the land either side of the access point onto 

Main Street, (A698) 

The applicant/ agent has submitted a Transport report written by SWECO which on 

page 2 states: 

Additionally, in January 2023 the 20mph speed limit through Scottish Borders towns 

became permanent, this reduction in speed limit along the A698 will further improve 

the safety of the access, as it now connects to a low-speed environment within Heiton. 

Whilst it has to be said the mean speed in the village has reduced from over 30 mph it 

has certainly not dropped to a mean speed of under 20mph. Or indeed in some case 

anywhere near approaching 20 mph. So whilst in an ideal situation of 20mph or less, 

the suggested decrease in visibility splay from 43 m to 25m would seem somewhat 

appropriate, it has to be acknowledged that a high percentage of drivers still do not 

conform to the required 20 mph speed restriction. 

Suggestions of traffic calming measures (page 5) - There is potential to deliver either 

painted markings or a small build out to the south and north for the access road, 

which would act as both traffic calming and allow for a suitable visibility splay to be 

achieved.  

We feel that painting the road will simply be ignored and that any form of 'build out' 

will have a detrimental effect on road safety and also have a potentially detrimental 

effect for residents who live opposite the access point, i.e. in particular, number 8 

Main Street. The residents living at the row of cottages nos. 2 to 8 Main Street park 

their vehicles on the road and any type of build out will result in a further narrowing 

of the carriageway. The A698 is a busy throughfare used regularly by agricultural 

vehicles, HGV’s, buses and many other large vehicles as well as standard cars. 

Some years ago Scottish Borders Council placed a number of traffic calming measures 

throughout the length of Main Street through Heiton village and I know that a traffic 

island was located near to Heiton Village Hall. 

We don’t know exactly when it appeared, but having been there some years it was 

decided to remove all of these traffic calming measures, again as narrowing the road 

had proved dangerous, as combines, wide loads etc were forced to mount the 

pavement, so the idea of now narrowing the road may not be viewed as desirable by 

SBC.  

13 Dec 2021 Local Review Body LRB Decision Notice to the applicant / agent states 

in its conclusion:  

The Review Body agreed with the Roads Officer that the access road was narrow with 

very limited junction visibility, inadequate junction radii and poor surface condition. 

Page 288



Gill and Mark Harrop page 3 
 

They noted that several properties already used the access road/junction and that the 

addition of a further property would result in the need for road improvements which 

could not be achieved within the applicant’s ownership. Although Members did 

acknowledge the benefits of the creation of a turning head for the access road and the 

possibility that the current trial 20mph speed limit on the A698 may be made 

permanent, they did not consider these benefits outweighed the inadequacies of the 

current access and junction. For reasons of road safety, they agreed with the Roads 

Officer and concluded that the proposal was not in compliance with Local 

Development Plan Policies PMD2 and PMD5.  

Thus showing that the Review Board have already considered the possible effect of a 

20 mph speed limit through Heiton and the provision of a ‘turning head’ 

Furthermore, page 4 of the report by SWECO states: 

Proposed changes to the Local Development Plan (LDP) in relation to ‘Private 

Accesses’ would allow an increase in the number of dwellings access via a private 

access from four dwelling as per the current adopted plan, to five. Should the draft 

LDP be adopted without amendment to this is policy, the proposals would not require 

upgrading the access to an adoptable standard. 

After a call to SBC Planning Policy and GIS department on Friday 28th July 2023 we 

were informed that these changes may well take place but given the report hasn’t been 

approved by SBC Councillors and is not due to go before them until 28th September, 

at which point it then needs to be sent for ratification by Ministers, the adoption of 

these amendments will at best not be until the end of 2023 and very probably 2024.  

To say that this application  is ‘jumping the gun’ seems quite appropriate. 

In summary: 

1. We fail to see just how effective either paint or more importantly a single ‘build 

out’ would be to effect any kind of behavioural change which would make 

using the private access drive onto the A698 any safer. 

2. As it stands the proposed changes to the Local Development Plan (LDP) in 

relation to ‘Private Accesses’ have not yet been adopted and are consequently 

not yet applicable. Therefore this application has been submitted too early to 

benefit from these ‘proposed’ changes. 

3. To effect a change to the road layout, as proposed now, to accommodate the 

building of one house, would have a detrimental effect to the residents of the 

existing houses adjacent and opposite the access, living on Main Street  

When we purchased our property in 2010 we were well aware of the access 

issues, however that was our choice. The same applies to other neighbours. 

 

Gill and Mark Harrop 

Hillcrest Heiton TD5 8JR 

Page 289



Comments for Planning Application 23/01065/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 23/01065/FUL

Address: Land Adjacent Carnlea Main Street Heiton Scottish Borders

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse

Case Officer: Euan Calvert

 

Customer Details

Name: Mr JAMES WILSON

Address: Tandarra, Main Street, Heiton, Scottish Borders TD5 8JR

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Neighbour

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Inadequate access

  - Road safety

Comment:Mr & Mrs Wilson

Tandarra

Main St

Heiton

Td5 8JR

 

3rd August 2023

 

To Chief Planning Officer

 

Re: 23/01065/FUL

 

(1) Application History

 

Please Find Our Views And Concerns On The Submitted Plans

 

The new submitted plans provide a turning circle which is good.

On the 7th June Mr Graham erected a barrier as you can see on Mr & Mrs Harrops' photo with no

access for vehicles turning and on numerous occasions goods vehicles were having to reverse

down to Carnlea's drive (if no cars in their drive) to safely vacate the drive and also some vehicles

have reversed back down the drive onto main A698 which is very dangerous.

 

We have been in our house Tandarra for a long time, after the old house on the existing plot was
Page 290



demolished and the plot sold, the ground has not been cleared for building it has been strimmed a

few times, there is been no use of the garage since the plot was sold as you can see on Mr & Mrs

Debattistas' photo.

 

(2) Road safety Access

 

On the new application there is no change to the access onto the A689 The Road Planning Officer

has pointed out in the past applications that "The access onto the A689 from a shared access

road would have to be widened to 5.5m wide".

The proposed plans suggest Painting Markings on the road that wont help they will just be

ignored, the speed limit has been dropped to 20 mph but the majority of drivers don't comply to

this. The other suggestion is to make a build out which will effect all the people that have to park

on the road especially No8 opposite the drive as they have no other parking place.

As there is a lot of heavy vehicles on this busy road, combines, wide loads often have to mount

the pavement.

A build out will result in further narrowing.

 

 

Jim & Linda Wilson

 

Page 291



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
26th February 2024 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00051/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 23/01065/FUL 
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Land Adjacent Carnlea, Main Street, Heiton 
Applicant: Mr Mark Graham 
 
National Planning Framework 4 (NPF4) 
 
Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land, and empty buildings  
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 15: Local Living and 20 Minute Neighbourhoods 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 
Policy 17: Rural Homes  
Policy 18: Infrastructure First  
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP) 
 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
PMD5: Infill development 
HD2: Housing in the Countryside 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
ED5: Regeneration 
EP13: Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows 
IS2: Developer Contributions 
IS6: Road Adoption Standards 
IS7: Parking Provisions and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment Standards and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
 
Other Material Considerations  
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance on:  

• Placemaking and Design 2010 
• Householder Development (Privacy and Sunlight) 2006 
• Landscape and Development 2010 
• Development Contributions updated April 2023 

 
 

Page 293

Agenda Item 6h



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100652597-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Ferguson Planning

Ferguson

Planning

Island Street

54

Shiel House

01896 668744

TD1 1NU

Scotland

Galashiels

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 295

Agenda Item 7a



Page 2 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Mr

Michael

Scottish Borders Council

Johnson Island Street

54

Shiel House

TD1 1NU

Land west of Garden House, Briery Yards, Hawick

Scotland

617079

Galashiels

353631

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

per Agent

Page 296



Page 3 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the 
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

  Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application.

  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

  Refusal Notice.

 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

  No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement 
must set out all matters you consider require  to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a 
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: *  (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce 
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at 
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that 
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer  at the time the  Yes   No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before 
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Erection of dwellinghouse

Please see Local Review Statement

Page 297



Page 4 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend 
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review 
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be 
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or 
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other 
parties only,  without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *
 Yes   No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *  Yes   No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *  Yes    No

If there are reasons why you think the local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site inspection, please 
explain here.  (Max 500 characters) 

Please see Appendix 1 of Local Review Statement

22/00532/PPP

07/09/2023

None

29/03/2023

Page 298



Page 5 of 5

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure  you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure 
to submit all this  information may result in your appeal  being deemed invalid. 

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?.  *  Yes   No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this  Yes   No
review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name   Yes   No   N/A
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the 
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what  Yes   No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider 
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review 
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely 
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on  Yes   No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a 
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the 
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.
 

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: - Ferguson Planning

Declaration Date: 22/11/2023
 

Page 299



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal Details
Proposal Name 100652597
Proposal Description Notice of Review for Planning Application at 
Briery Yards
Address  
Local Authority Scottish Borders Council
Application Online Reference 100652597-001

Application Status
Form complete
Main Details complete
Checklist complete
Declaration complete
Supporting Documentation complete
Email Notification complete

Attachment Details
Notice of Review System A4
Application Form Attached A4
Decision Notice 22-00532-PPP Attached A4
Report of Handling 22-00532-PPP Attached A4
Local Review Statement Attached A4
16_544_PPP_1001 Location Plan Attached A2
23_01_L_1_001 Landownership Plan Attached A4
Notice_of_Review-2.pdf Attached A0
Application_Summary.pdf Attached A0
Notice of Review-001.xml Attached A0

Page 301



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
  

1 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

M I C H A E L  J O H N S O N  

N O V E M B E R  2 0 2 3  

 

P
age 303



 
 

 
 
  

2 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

C O N T E N T S  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................................................................ 3 

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................ 6 

DETERMINATION OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH BORDERS 
COUNCIL AND PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT ...................................... 9 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL AND  CASE FOR APPELLANT ........................ 15 

CONCLUSION ............................................................................................. 22 

CORE DOCUMENTS .................................................................................. 24 

 

 

 
 

 Ref: B-PAT-0314  
Council ref: 22/00532/PPP 
Prepared by: Ruaraidh Thompson MRTPI 

Approved by: Tim Ferguson MRTPI 

Date of Issue: November 2023 

P
age 304

https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131666
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131667
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131668
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131668
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131669
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131670
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Patterson,%20Ryan%20-%20Briery%20Yards%20Appeal/Reports/Briery_Yards_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.1.docx#_Toc151131671


 
 

 
 
  

3 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

E X E C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y  

P
age 305



 
 

 
 
  

4 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 GHJGHJHJGHJHJG

This Local Review Statement is submitted on behalf of Michael 

Johnson “the Appellant” against the decision of Scottish Borders 

Council to refuse Planning Permission in Principle 22/00532/PPP 

proposing erection of a new dwelling on land west of Garden House, 

Briery Yards, Hawick. All Core Documents (CD) are referenced in 

Appendix 1. 

 

The proposed development is considered to accord with adopted 

policy and represent sustainable development. The case for the 

Appellant is summarised below: 

• The proprietors (Mr Patterson and Miss Deans) have owned 

and managed an agricultural unit which focuses on horses at 

Briery Yards for around six years. Unfortunately, they were 

required to sell Garden House (adjacent to the site) which had 

been owned by Miss Deans’ mother to settle the estate and 

move into Hawick in 2022. 

• The appeal site lies within the sense of place and setting of the 

existing Building Group at Briery Yards. The existing Building 

Group comprises three existing dwellings (Briery Lodge, 

Briery Yards, and Garden House) orientated around the 

private way that runs east from the D14/3 minor public road 

and separated from the surrounding countryside by 

established woodland. 

• The proposed dwelling stands opposite Garden House across 

the private way and is enclosed on three sides by woodland so 

would have little impact on either residential amenity or 

 

landscape setting. No new dwellings have been approved at Briery 

Yards in the period of the current LDP. 

• The agricultural holding owned and operated by the proprietors has 

need of a residential presence on-site for animal welfare purposes. 

The proprietors are currently visiting the site twice per day (once in 

the morning, once in the evening). Care requirements for the horses 

are heavy during the day through the winter and heavy at night in the 

summer. 

• The proposed dwelling would allow the proprietors to obtain a family 

home at the agricultural unit, which would significantly reduce the 

number of vehicle trips to and from the site. Animal welfare would also 

improve as a presence on-site could be guaranteed throughout the 

night, in a way that would not be possible without the house. 

• The consultation response of the Roads Planning team has not taken 

cognisance of the existing use of the private way and junction with the 

public road.  

• The proprietors make a minimum of 28 no. vehicle trips to and from 

the site each week at present. If a new dwelling was obtained on-site 

then daily trips to and from the site to attend to the horses would stop. 

Typical vehicle movements associated with a single dwelling is 20 no. 

individual trips (10 no. return trips). This represents a reduction of 8 

no trips per week or 29%. 

• A review of Crashmap records confirms no road incidents (slight, 

serious, or fatal) were recorded at the access or surrounding road in 

the Years 2013-22. The absence of road incidents is demonstrative of 

the safe operation of the junction. 

P
age 306



 
 

 
 
  

5 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

• The proposed dwelling is required for the proprietors to 

become resident on the agricultural unit again and directly 

attend to the care of the animals and management of the unit. 

This will not be possible 

without the proposed dwelling to obtain a family home on-site. 

It is considered that the proposed dwelling accords with Policy 

HD2. 

• As the principal dwelling of an agricultural unit, erection of the 

proposed dwelling is supported by NPF4 under both Policy 17 

(branch a), criterion v.) and Policy 29 (branch a), criterion i.). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 307



 
 

 
 
  

6 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

I N T R O D U C T I O N  

P
age 308



 
 

 
 
  

7 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This Statement supports a Notice of Review of the delegated 

decision of Scottish Borders Council to refuse to grant Planning 

Permission in Principle for the erection of a dwelling on land west 

of Garden House, Briery Yards, Hawick. 

 

1.2. The site lies east of the D14/3 minor public road along a private 

way which provides access to three existing dwellings. The appeal 

site and its surroundings stand on the north bank of the River 

Teviot, opposite the Riverside Carvan Park on the south bank. A 

traditional stone bridge spans the river to the east of both the 

appeal site and Riverside Carvan Park. The bridge is a Category C 

Listed Building (HES ref: LB8373) which was built between 1822 

and 1840. 

 
1.3. The private way which provides access to the site serves three other 

existing dwellings – Briery Yards, the Garden House, and Briery 

Lodge. Together the three existing dwellings are considered to 

represent an existing Building Group. The appeal site lies at the 

end of the private way, significantly removed from the public road 

and sharing a strong relationship with the nearby existing 

dwellings. 

 
1.4. The appeal site and its surroundings at Briery Yards are operated 

as a small agricultural unit which focusses on equestrian use has 

now been established for around six years. The presence of the 

agricultural unit has informed the desire for the proprietors to 

  

become resident on-site. The appeal site is currently used to 

accommodate the stables within the agricultural unit.  

 

1.5. The new dwelling is proposed to enable the proprietors to establish a 

new family home adjacent to their stables and horses. Animal welfare 

requirements necessitate an overnight residential presence on the 

agricultural unit to enable safe operation and subsequent expansion. 

The new dwelling is proposed to secure a house within the agricultural 

unit and meet the expected animal welfare requirements. 

 

1.6. The site comprises a small field upon which the existing stable stands. 

Enclosed grazing extends from the south, east, and west elevations of 

the stable, fenced off from the rest of the field. The agricultural unit 

makes active use of the stable, enclosed grazing, and the larger field 

adjacent. New stabling would be consolidated within the site while the 

large field would be remain in equestrian grazing. 

 
1.7. Besides equestrian rearing and grazing, the agricultural unit also 

incorporates sheep grazing. Sheep grazing is rotated around several 

fields although rarely occupies more than two at any one time. 

 
1.8. It is proposed that the new house would be served by private foul and 

surface water drainage arrangements and mains water supply. The 

Appellant is content to secure servicing details via condition. 

 

 

  

P
age 309



 
 

 
 
  

8 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

 

  

Fig 1: Extract from 16-544-PPP-1001 Location Plan  
(Source: Stuart Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design). 

P
age 310



 
 

 
 
  

9 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

D E T E R M I N A T I O N  O F  A P P L I C A T I O N  B Y  S C O T T I S H  
B O R D E R S  C O U N C I L  A N D  P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y  C O N T E X T  

P
age 311



 
 

 
 
  

10 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY COUNCIL AND PLANNING POLICY 
 

2.1 Planning Application 22/00532/PPP was refused on 7th September 

2023. The Decision Notice (CD5) cited two reasons for refusal, set 

out below: 

 

“1. The proposed development would be contrary to Policy 

HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016, 

New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary 

Planning Guidance and Policy 17 of National Planning 

Framework 4 in that the site does not form part of an existing 

building group of at least three houses or buildings currently 

in residential use, or capable of conversion to residential use 

and it has not been adequately demonstrated that the 

proposed house is a direct operational requirement to support 

an established rural business or other enterprise at this 

location. This would lead to an unsustainable form of 

development which would have a detrimental impact on the 

character and amenity of the rural area. This conflict with the 

development plan is not overridden by any other material 

considerations. 

 

2. The development is also contrary to Policy PMD2 of the 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 in that the 

proposed dwellinghouse would result in additional vehicular 

traffic on a substandard access to the public road to the 

detriment of road safety. This conflict with the development 

plan is not overridden by any other material considerations.” 

 
Local Development Plan 

2.2 Policy HD2 contains six sections, each of which details circumstances in 

which new houses will be considered acceptable. Section (F) which 

addresses development supported by an Economic Requirement is 

considered to represent the pertinent material consideration in the 

determination of the appeal proposal. 

 

2.3 Section (A) of Policy is replicated below: 

“(A) Building Groups 

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of 

the building group, whichever is the greater, associated with existing 

building groups may be approved provided that: 

a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing 

group of at least three houses or building(s) currently in 

residential use or capable of conversion to residential use. Where 

conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least 

three houses, no additional housing will be approved until such 

a conversion has been implemented, 

b) the cumulative impact of new development on the character of 

the building group, and on the landscape and amenity of the 

surrounding area will be taken into account when determining 

new applications. Additional development within a building 

group will be refused if, in conjunction with other developments 

in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse impacts, 

c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy 

should not exceed two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in  

P
age 312



 
 

 
 
  

11 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

addition to the group during the Plan period. No further 

development above this threshold will be permitted. 

In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be 

supported, the proposal should be appropriate in scale, siting, 

design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to the 

character of the group.” 

 

2.4 Section (F) of Policy provides that: 

“(F) Economic Requirement 

Housing with a location essential for business needs may be 

acceptable if the Council is satisfied that: 

a) the housing development is a direct operational requirement 

of an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise 

which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it is for a 

worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the 

presence of that worker on-site is essential to the efficient 

operation of the enterprise. Such development could include 

businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity 

if located within an existing settlement, or 

b) it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, 

horticultural, forestry, or other enterprise which is itself 

appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the 

unit that is subject of the application, and the development 

will release another house for continued use by an 

agricultural, horticultural, forestry, or other enterprise which 

is itself appropriate to the countryside, and 

c) the housing development would help support a business 

that results in a clear social or environmental benefit to the  

area, including the retention or provision of employment or the 

provision of affordable or local needs housing, and 

d) no appropriate site exists within a building group, and 

e) there is no suitable house or other building capable of 

conversion for the required residential use.” 

 
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

2.5 The Policy sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and design, 

accessibility and open space / biodiversity requirements, whereby the 

proposal must: 

• Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use of 

energy and resources, in terms of layout, orientation, 

construction and energy supply; 

• Make provision for sustainable drainage; 

• Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of 

waste and recycling; 

• Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration with 

the surroundings; 

• Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of 

context; 

• Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the 

surroundings; 

• Be finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of 

which complement the highest quality of architecture in the 

locality; 

• Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the 

surrounding area, neighbouring uses and neighbouring built 

form; 

• Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site; 

P
age 313



 
 

 
 
  

12 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

• Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure 

attractive edges, and to help integration with the 

surroundings; 

• Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties; 

• Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the 

site access; 

• Incorporate adequate access and turning space for vehicles 

including those used for waste collection purposes; and 

• Retain physical or natural features which are important to 

the amenity or biodiversity of the area. 

 

2.6 Policy ED10 states that “development, except proposals for 

renewable energy development, which results in the permanent 

loss of prime quality agricultural land or significant carbon rich soil 

reserves, particularly peat, will not be permitted unless: 

a) the site is otherwise allocated within this local plan 

b) the development meets an established need and no other 

site is available 

c) the development is small and directly related to a rural 

business. 

 

National Planning Framework 4 

2.7 The National Planning Framework 4 was adopted in February 2023. 

The document addresses national planning policy and the 

Government’s approach to achieving a net zero sustainable Scotland 

by 2045. 

 

2.8 Policy 16 Quality Homes is relevant to the proposal. Criterion c) states that 

“development proposals for new homes that improve affordability and 

choice by being adaptable to changing and diverse needs, and which 

address identified gaps in provision, will be supported. This could include: 

i. self-provided homes; 

ii. accessible, adaptable and wheelchair accessible homes; 

iii. build to rent; 

iv. affordable homes; 

v. a range of size of homes such as those for larger families; 

vi. homes for older people, including supported accommodation, 

care homes and sheltered housing; 

vii. homes for people undertaking further and higher education; 

and 

viii. homes for other specialist groups such as service personnel.” 

 

2.9 Policy 17 Rural Homes states that “development proposals for new 

homes in rural areas will consider how the development will contribute 

towards local living and take into account identified local housing needs 

(including affordable housing), economic considerations and the 

transport needs of the development as appropriate for the rural 

location: 

i. is on a site allocated for housing within the LDP; 

ii. reuses brownfield land where a return to a natural state has 

not or will not happen without intervention; 

iii. reuses a redundant or used building; 

iv. is an appropriate use of a historic environment asset or is 

appropriate enabling development to secure the future of 

historic environment assets; 

P
age 314



 
 

 
 
  

13 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

v. is demonstrated to be necessary to support the sustainable 

management of a viable rural business or croft, and there is 

an essential need for a worker (including those taking 

majority control of a farm business) to live permanently at or 

near their place of work; 

vi. is for a single home for the retirement succession of a viable 

farm holding; 

vii. is for the subdivision of an existing residential dwelling; the 

scale of which is in keeping with the character and 

infrastructure provision in the area; or 

viii. reinstates a former dwelling house or is a one-for-one 

replacement of an existing permanent house.” 

 

2.10 Policy 29 Rural Development is relevant to the proposed 

development. Branch a) states that “development proposals that 

contribute to the viability, sustainability and diversity of rural 

communities and local rural economy will be supported, including: 

i. farms, crofts, woodland crofts or other land use businesses, 

where use of good quality land for development is 

minimised and business viability is not adversely affected; 

 

ii. diversification of existing businesses; 

iii. production and processing facilities for local produce and 

materials, for example sawmills, or local food production; 

iv. essential community services; 

v. essential infrastructure; 

vi. reuse of a redundant or unused building; 

 

 

vii. appropriate use of a historic environment asset or is 

appropriate enabling development to secure the future of 

historic environment assets; 

viii. reuse of brownfield land where a return to a natural state has 

not or will not happen without intervention; 

ix. small scale developments that support new ways of working 

such as remote working, homeworking and community 

hubs; or 

x. improvement or restoration of the natural environment.” 

 

Supplementary Guidance 

2.11 The Supplementary Guidance ‘New Housing in the Borders 

Countryside’ includes the following criteria for any new housing in the 

countryside: 

• No adverse effect on the viability of a farming unit or conflict 

with the operations of a working farm; 

• Satisfactory access and other road requirements; 

• Satisfactory public or private water supply and drainage 

facilities; 

• No adverse effect on countryside amenity, landscape or 

nature conservation; 

 

• No adverse impact on ancient monuments, archaeological 

sites, or on gardens or designed landscapes; 

• Appropriate siting, design and materials in accordance 

with relevant Local Plan policies. The safeguarding of 

known mineral resources from sterilisation unless this is 

acceptable following an assessment of the environmental 

implications. 

P
age 315



 
 

 
 
  

14 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 
2.12 The section of the Guidance, which covers the expansion of 

existing Building Groups, states that all applications for new 

houses at existing Building Groups will be tested against an 

analysis of:  

a) the presence or, otherwise of a group; and 

b) the suitability of that group to absorb new development. 

 
2.13 The Guidance sets out that the existence of a Building Group “will 

be identifiable by a sense of place which will be contributed to by: 

• natural boundaries such as water courses, trees or 

enclosing landform, or 

• man-made boundaries such as existing buildings, roads, 

plantations or means of enclosure.” 

 
2.14 When expanding an existing building group, the Guidance 

includes the following points: 

▪ The scale and siting of new development should reflect 

and respect the character and amenity of the existing 

group;  

▪ New development should be limited to the area contained 

by that sense of place;  

▪ A new house should be located within a reasonable 

distance of the existing properties within the building 

group with spacing guided by that between the existing 

properties; 

▪ Ribbon development along public roads will not normally 

be permitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 316



 
 

 
 
  

15 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

2.1 Engagement.  Housing.  Retail / Town Centre Regenration. 

G R O U N D S  O F  A P P E A L  A N D   
C A S E  F O R  A P P E L L A N T  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

P
age 317



 
 

 
 
  

16 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

GROUNDS OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR APPELLANT 
 

3.1 It is submitted that the Planning Application should be approved 

on the basis of the Grounds of Appeal set out below. It is the 

submission of the Appellant that the proposal accords with the 

relevant adopted policy of the Local Development Plan and 

Supplementary Guidance and that there are no material 

considerations which justify the refusal of the Application. 

 

GROUND 1: The proposed development represents the erection 

of a dwelling on a site which is well related to the existing Building 

Group at Briery Yards and would contribute positively to the local 

sense of place and setting. 

 

GROUND 2: The proposed development represents the erection 

of a dwelling which is appropriate to the countryside location and 

is justified by an economic requirement. 

 
GROUND 3: It is proposed to use an existing access to the public 

road network. The existing access already accommodates traffic 

for three existing dwellings and the agricultural unit and operates 

safely. The proposed development would reduce use of the 

access by domiciling the proprietors on the agricultural unit. 

 
3.2 During the course of the Application’s determination, the 

following consultee responses were received from Council 

Officers and partners: 

• Roads Planning – Objection. 

• Scottish Water – No objection. 

 

GROUND 1: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTS THE 

ERECTION OF A DWELLING ON A SITE WHICH IS WELL RELATED 

TO THE EXISTING BUILDING GROUP AT BRIERY YARDS AND 

WOULD CONTRIBUTE POSITIVELY TO THE LOCAL SENSE OF 

PLACE AND SETTING. 

 

3.3 It is the Appellant’s position that the appeal site lies within the setting 

and forms part of an existing Building Group at Briery Yards 

orientated around the private way and that the proposed dwelling 

would enhance the sense of place. 

 

3.4 It is common ground between the Appellant and the Planning 

Authority that the appeal site sits within the sense of place and setting 

of a cluster of existing dwellings. However, Report of Handling 

22/00532/PPP states “there are 2 dwellings (Brieryyards and The 

Garden House) located within a reasonable distaicne of the 

application site and within an identified sense of place (as required by 

the SPG on Housing in the Countryside)”. However, the appointed 

Planning Officer considers that Briery Lodge (the third existing 

dwelling) lies too far from the appeal site “and separated by 

substantial woodland” to form part of the cluster. 

 
3.5 Therefore, disagreement could be summarised as the Planning 

Authority consider the site lies within the sense of place and setting of 

an existing cluster of 2 no. existing dwellings – one too few to 

constitute an existing Building Group – by contrast the Appellant 

considers that the site lies within the sense of place and setting of an 

existing Building Group comprising 3 no. existing dwellings. 

P
age 318



 
 

 
 
  

17 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

3.6 The Appellant’s position is that the appeal site lies on land used 

for equestrian stabling, in a parcel of land enclosed from 

surrounding fields by established woodland. The parcel contains 

3 no. existing dwellings and therefore represents an existing 

Building Group, beyond the extent of the public road network 

accessed by a private way. 

 
3.7 The feature around which the existing Building Group is 

orientated is the existing private way, which extends eastward 

from the D14/3 minor public road. Like the appeal site, all existing 

dwellings at Briery Yards can be accessed only across the hard 

surface of the private way. While Briery Lodge is dependent on a 

significantly shorter stretch of track, all three existing dwellings sit 

adjacent to the private way, as does the appeal site.  

 
3.8 The whole Building Group sits distinct from the D14/3 (adopted 

road) to the west and has a sheltered setting, separated from the 

nearby large open grazing fields by established woodland. These 

landscape features are considered to satisfy the guidance 

provided in 2.b.1 of the New Housing in the Borders Countryside 

Supplementary Guidance. 

 
3.9 Given the location of the site within the land parcel which contains 

three existing dwellings, orientated around an existing private 

way, and enclosed from the surrounding countryside by 

established woodland, the site is considered to be contained 

within the sense of place and setting of the existing Building 

Group at Briery Yards and well related to the other existing 

dwellings; especially Briery Yards and Garden House. Therefore,  

the proposed development is considered to accord with criterion a) 

of section (A) of Policy HD2. 

 

3.10 The appeal proposal is for the erection of a single detached dwelling 

in a relatively large plot – 0.13ha (0.32 acres). The density of proposed 

development is considered to be broadly representative of the 

existing pattern of development at Briery Yards and particularly with 

the Garden House (with which the proposed dwelling would have a 

partially symmetrical relationship). 

 

3.11 The application site benefits from landscape enclosure in the form of 

established woodland extending round three sides of the appeal site. 

The north-east boundary of the site benefits from significantly less 

enclosure than the other three boundaries however this relationship 

is common to both the appeal site and the Garden House. As the 

Garden House is clearly acceptable in landscape terms it is 

considered that the proposed dwelling is also acceptable in 

landscape terms. Given the limited landscape and amenity impacts 

associated with the proposed development, it is considered that an 

“unacceptable adverse impact” would not be created and the 

proposed development accords with criterion b) of section (A). 

 
3.12 As the existing Building Group at Briery Yards comprises three 

existing dwelling, extension by two additional dwellings is allowed for 

by the Policy. The proposed development is considered to accord 

with criterion c) of section (A) as one new dwelling is proposed and 

no dwellings have been approved or built in the Building Group since 

adoption of the current LDP. 

 

P
age 319



 
 

 
 
  

18 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

3.13 The Planning Authority and Appellant agree that the appeal site 

sits within the sense of place and setting of a cluster of existing 

dwellings. While the Planning Authority consider that the cluster 

comprises two existing dwellings only, the Appellant disagrees. 

The Appellant considers that the appeal site sits within the sense 

of place and setting of three existing dwellings comprising an 

existing Building Group orientated around the private way and 

enclosed from the surrounding countryside by established 

woodland. There have been no new dwellings consented within 

the current LDP period and it is considered that there are no 

significant cumulative impacts associated with the proposed 

development. Therefore, the appeal proposal is considered to 

accord with section (A) of Policy HD2.  

 

GROUND 2: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTS THE 

ERECTION OF A DWELLING WHICH IS APPROPRIATE TO THE 

COUNTRYSIDE LOCATION AND IS JUSTIFIED BY AN ECONOMIC 

REQUIREMENT. 

 

3.14 It is the Appellant’s position that the proposed development 

represents the erection of a new dwelling to serve as the principal 

dwelling of the agricultural unit. The necessity for the new 

dwelling grows out of animal welfare requirements. 

 

3.15 It is common ground between the Appellant and the Planning 

Authority that an agricultural unit is established on-site and in 

surrounding fields which creates animal welfare requirement  

for a house within the unit. The appointed Planning Officer takes the 

view that a residential presence for welfare of the horses does not 

necessitate the Appellant being resident or a permanent house being 

required. The Report of Handling explains this as “it is accepted that 

not living on site does not suit the Applicant's lifestyle, but this is not 

in itself sufficient justification for new dwelling at this location”. 

 
3.16 Disagreement centres on the whether the proprietors require a home 

on-site to attend to pre-existing animal welfare issues. The Appellant 

does not agree with the appointed Planning Officer that it would be 

appropriate to seek alternative arrangements to obtain a residential 

presence. The proprietors of the agricultural unit and have always led 

the business since first launch, both commercially and operationally 

(rearing and caring for the horses). They require a new dwelling within 

the agricultural unit to retain leadership of the farm and rationalise 

costs associated with operating. 

 
3.17 The Appellant’s position is that the proposed development is 

supported by an economic requirement and lies on an appeal site that 

is not used for grazing and accommodates the farm’s stabling, which 

faces the existing dwelling Garden House across the private way 

opposite. It is considered that the proposed development is 

supported by section (F) of Policy HD2. 

 

3.18 The maintenance of horse welfare places a burden upon the 

stockperson that is significantly more onerous than almost any other 

livestock. While summer and winter present their own challenges, 

  

P
age 320



 
 

 
 
  

19 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

neither is significantly lesser than the other. Again, this is almost 

distinct to the horse. 

 
3.19 In winter, horses require to be housed (stabled). This creates a 

requirement to be fed every day, bedding replaced two to three 

times per week, and physically inspected a minimum of twice per 

day. Additionally, each horse needs to be exercised a minimum 

of two times and preferably three or four times per week. 

 

3.20 In summer, horses can be grazed more freely. However, it is 

absolutely essential that brood mares are inspected regularly 

throughout the day and into the night to identify and attend to 

problems during birthing. The requirement for physical 

inspection reduces to as little as once per day during summer, 

with a particular focus on lameness. Exercising remains a 

necessity during summer, despite horses being put to pasture. It 

is preferable for exercise regimen to be maintained at least twice 

per week, including in longer exercise periods when conditions 

are favourable. 

 
3.21 Sheep grazing within the agricultural unit creates animal welfare 

requirements of its own, which reinforces the overall need. 

However, the requirements placed upon the proprietors by 

sheep grazing are largely supplementary to those of the horses. 

 
3.22 The animal welfare requirement for a dwelling on-site is 

considered to have been clearly demonstrated. Equestrian 

development is considered to represent a countryside use which 

is appropriate to the character of the rural area by its nature. On  

this basis, the proposed development is considered to satisfy criterion 

a) of section (F). 

 
3.23 Criterion b) of section (F) relates to people who were previously 

employed in uses that by their nature are appropriate to the 

countryside (e.g. agriculture, equestrian, forestry). As the proposed 

development satisfies criterion a) of section (F), criterion b) is not 

applicable. 

 
3.24 The agricultural unit, which the proprietors own and manage, offers 

social benefits in its contribution towards horse riding recreation, for 

which the Borders is one of the principal areas in Scotland. 

Additionally, the appeal site lies further north than most horse-riding 

yards around Hawick and therefore removes the necessity for anyone 

coming from the north (Selkirk, Galashiels, Melrose, and further afield) 

or east (Jedburgh) to drive through Hawick town centre. On this basis, 

the proposed development is considered to satisfy criterion c). 

 

3.25 The appeal site sits opposite Garden House across the private way. 

The appeal site sits down the private way in the sense of place and 

setting of the existing Building Group at Briery Yards and removed 

from the public road to the west. For these reasons, it is considered 

that the proposal satisfies criterion d) of section (F). 

 
3.26 Other than the stabling, no existing buildings stand within the 

agricultural unit. Stabling is currently in use and to be retained in 

active use by the proposed development. Moreover, stabling is 

provided in timber buildings which are not capable of reuse. 

Therefore, there are no existing buildings within the agricultural unit  

P
age 321



 
 

 
 
  

20 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

capable of conversion and criterion e) of section (F) is considered 

to be satisfied. 

 
3.27 The principle of development of the erection of a new dwelling is 

considered to be acceptable in accordance with section (F) of 

Policy HD2. The proposal represents the erection of a new 

dwelling to provide a family home adjacent to the stables for the 

management of the agricultural unit. A clear animal welfare 

requirement for a house on-site has been demonstrated and is 

considered to be a significant issue in the determination of this 

Notice of Review. 

 
3.28 The policy provisions of NPF4 are considered to strengthen the 

acceptability of the principle of development. Criterion v. under 

branch a) of Policy 17 supports development that is 

“demonstrated to be necessary to support the sustainable 

management of a viable rural business or croft, and there is an 

essential need for a worker (including those taking majority control 

of a farm business) to live permanently at or near their place of 

work”. 

 
3.29 As addressed above, the new dwelling is proposed as the 

principal dwelling of the agricultural unit. The proposed dwelling 

stands in the agricultural unit and is for the purpose of the 

proprietors becoming resident on-site and retaining leadership 

of the farm. This is necessary for animal welfare reasons and 

operational efficiency. Therefore, the proposed development is 

considered to accord with NPF4 Policy 17, under branch a). 

 

3.30 Similarly, criterion i. under branch a) of Policy 29 supports “farms, 

crofts, woodland crofts or other land use businesses, where use of 

good quality land for development is minimised and business viability 

is not adversely affected“. 

 

3.31 The proposed dwelling is a direct requirement of the agricultural unit. 

The appeal site is not used for grazing as existing and the proposed 

development would not remove any land from grazing. Therefore, the 

proposed development would not remove any land from production 

or affect business viability and is considered to accord with NPF4 

Policy 29, under branch a). 

 

GROUND 3: IT IS PROPOSED TO USE AN EXISTING ACCESS TO 

THE PUBLIC ROAD NETWORK. THE EXISTING ACCESS ALREADY 

ACCOMMODATES TRAFFIC FOR THREE EXISTING DWELLINGS 

AND THE AGRICULTURAL UNIT AND OPERATES SAFELY. THE 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WOULD REDUCE USE OF THE 

ACCESS BY DOMICILING THE PROPRIETORS ON THE 

AGRICULTURAL UNIT. 

 
3.32 It is noted that the consultation response of the Roads Planning team 

objects to the Planning Application on the basis that: 

 

“I am unable to support this application due to the significant shortfall 

in visibility at the junction of the private track with the public road. 

Given the neighbouring boundary and the alignment of the road, it is 

unlikely that any improvement works will resolve this issue.” 

 

P
age 322



 
 

 
 
  

21 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

3.33 Unfortunately, the consultation response of the Roads Planning 

team has not made a full informed assessment of the proposed 

development. 

 

3.34 As existing, the proprietors are visiting the site twice per day, 

sometimes in separate cars, to attend to the horses. This creates 

a minimum of 2 no. return trips (4 no. total trips) per day, when a 

single car is used. When two separate cars are used 4 no. return 

trips (8 no. total trips) are recorded per day. It must be noted that 

this level of movement represents the minimum recorded, on 

days in which there are no deliveries and no visitors to the 

agricultural unit. 

 
3.35 The establishment of a family home for the proprietors on-site 

would deliver a significant reduction in the number of vehicle trips 

on the private way. The proprietors are currently responsible for 

a minimum of 14 no. return trips (28 no. total trips) per week. 

Typical vehicle movement associated with a dwelling is 10 no. 

return trips (20 no. total trips) per week. 20 no. trips is equivalent 

to only 71% of 28 no. trips – which represents a 29% reduction in 

use of the private way by the proprietors. 

 
3.36 Reduction of vehicle trips by 29% is considered to represent a 

significant decrease in use of the private way. 

 
3.37 The road access and surrounding sections of the public road are 

currently operating safely. The Crashmap website 

(www.crashmap.co.uk) is populated with data from the public 

record. The local extract for the Hornshole Bridge and  

surrounding area confirms there have been no incidents of any kind 

(slight, serious, or fatal) in the last ten years (2013 to present). 

 
3.38 By comparison, there have been 98 no. road incidents in the Hawick 

local area in the same period. At this level of incidents, if the stretch of 

road was in any way unsafe at least one incident would have occurred 

in the vicinity. The absence of any incidents proves that the stretch of 

road in question, while far from perfect, is safe and has not been the 

cause of any incidents, still less injuries. 

 

3.39 The consultation response of the Roads Planning team has omitted 

these facts from the context considered. This omission has resulted in 

a judgemental error in the assessment. 

 
3.40 The road safety impact of the proposed development is considered 

to be acceptable. The proposed development represents an 

opportunity to significantly reduce use of the private way by 

eliminating daily return trips from the proprietors. The consultation 

response of the Roads Planning team has failed to provide a sound 

assessment of road safety impacts competent in the discipline of 

transport planning and deprived the appointed Planning Officer of 

the professional advice he required to determine the Application. 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 323



 
 

 
 
  

22 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

C O N C L U S I O N  

P
age 324



 
 

 
 
  

23 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

CONCLUSION 
 

4.1 The Notice of Review, supported by this Statement, requests that 

the Council overturns the decision to refuse Planning Permission 

in Principle for Application 22/00532/PPP and grant consent for 

erection of a new dwelling on land west of Garden House, Briery 

Yards. 

 

4.2 The proposed development represents the erection of a single 

dwelling to serve as the principal house within the agricultural 

unit `at Briery Yards. The Appellant is prepared to accept the new 

dwelling being tied within the equestrian unit, which is supported 

by a full and robust justication of the need for a new house on-

site. Therefore, the erection of the proposed dwelling upon the 

site is considered to be acceptable in accordance with Policy 

HD2(F). 

 

4.3 The proposed development represents the expansion of the 

existing Building Group at Briery Yards by a single dwelling.  

The site sits within the sense of place and setting of the existing 

Building Group, orientated around the private way.  

The proposed dwelling both reflects the existing pattern of 

development and respects the local character of Briery Yards. The 

proposed dwelling would have minimal impact on the amenity of 

surrounding properties and local landscape. Finally as the 

Building Group has capacity to expand by two dwellings over the 

LDP period and no new dwellings have been approved to date – 

the Building Group has capacity to expand under the terms of 

adopted policy. Therefore, the proposal is considered to accord 

with section (A) of Policy HD2. 

 

 

4.4 Vehicle access to the public road is proposed across the existing 

private way that provides access to agricultural unit and all three 

existing dwellings at Briery Yards. The consultation response received 

from the Roads Planning team neglects to consider the intensive 

existing use of the private way and its junction with the public road. It 

focuses on the simple fact that a new house is proposed and omits to 

consider the elimination of at minimum two return trips (four trips 

total) per day on the part of the proprietors. As a result the reduction 

of the proprietors’ vehicle trips by 29% has been overlooked and the 

inaccurate conclusion that the proposed development would 

increase use of the private way has been reached. In full cognisance 

of this context, the proposed development is considered to be 

acceptable in access and road safety terms. 

 

4.5 Should Planning Permission in Principle be granted, approval of the 

deferred details will be required at the next stage of the planning 

process. Therefore the scale, layout, appearance of elevations, and 

landscaping can be controlled by the Planning Authority. 

 
4.6 The Local Review Body is respectfully requested to allow the appeal 

and grant planning permission for erection of a new dwelling on land 

west of Garden House, Briery Yards. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 325



 
 

 
 
  

24 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

C O R E  D O C U M E N T S  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

P
age 326



 
 

 
 
  

25 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

CORE DOCUMENTS 
 

The following drawings, documents, and plans have been submitted 

to support the Notice of Review: 

• Notice of Review Form; 

• CD1 Local Review Statement; 

• Application Form; 

• CD2 16-544-PPP-1001 Location Plan, prepared by Stuart 

Patterson Building & Timber Frame Design; 

• CD3 23-01-L(-1)001 Landownership Plan, prepared by Rob 

Brydon & Sons; 

• CD4 Report of Handling 22/00532/PPP; and 

• CD5 Decision Notice 22/00532/PPP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 327



 
 

 
 
  

26 

L A N D  W E S T  O F  G A R D E N  H O U S E ,  B R I E R Y  Y A R D S  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

E:  t im@fergusonplanning.co.uk  

W W W . F E R G U S O N P L A N N I N G . C O . U K  

G A L A S H I E L S   

 
Shiel House 
54 Island Steet 
Galashiels  
TD1 1NU 
 
T:  01896 668 744 
M: 07960 003 357 

N O R T H E R N  I R E L A N D  

 
61 Moyle Road 
Ballycastle, Co. Antrim 
Northern Ireland 
BT54 6LG 
 
 
M: 07960 003 358 

 

E D I N B U R G H   

 
1st Floor, 38 Thistle Street 
Edinburgh 
EH2 1EN 
 
 
T:  0131 385 8801 
M: 07960 003 358 

P
age 328



Building & Timber Frame Design

5 Burnflat Lane, Hawick,

Stuart Patterson

email - stuartpattersondesign@gmail.com
phone - 01450 375772

Roxburghshire, TD9 0DZ

P
age 329

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UBlock Location

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
BRIERY YARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
The Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Briery

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
Yards

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
16-544-PPP-1001

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
1:1250..

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
DRAWING No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
26/10/21

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
PROPOSED BUILDING PLOT AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
Mr R. Patterson & Miss S. Deans

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
LOCATION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
HAWICK.

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
BRIERY YARDS, HORNSHOLE,

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
SCALES

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
DRAWING TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
CLIENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
%%uLocation Plan

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
SCALE 1:1250..

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Ordnance Survey (c) Crown Copyright 2021. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
LOCATION OF PROPOSED BUILDING PLOT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
BLUE HATCHED AREA REPRESENTS EXTENT OF LAND OWNED BY APPLICANT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
HAWICK.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 331



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

REF :   22/00532/PPP 

APPLICANT :   Mr Michael Johnson 

AGENT :

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse 

LOCATION:  Land West Of 
The Garden House 
Brieryyards 
Hornshole Bridge 
Hawick 
Scottish Borders 

TYPE :  PPP Application 

REASON FOR DELAY:  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAWING NUMBERS: 

Plan Ref      Plan Type Plan Status 

16-544-PPP-1001  Location Plan Refused 

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 

CONSULTEES 

RPS: Unable to support his application due to the significant shortfall in visibility at the junction of the 
private track with the public road. Given the neighbouring boundary and the alignment of the road, it is 
unlikely that any improvement works will resolve this issue. 
The proposal does not comply with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016 in that it would 
be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to the detriment of road safety. 

Scottish Water: There is currently sufficient capacity in the Roberton Water Treatment Works to 
service the development. However, further investigations may be required to be carried out once a 
formal application has been submitted. The nearest public water main is approx. 300m from the 
proposed site. There is no public Scottish Water, Waste Water infrastructure within the vicinity of this 
proposed development.  SW advise the applicant to investigate private treatment options. 

CC: No response 

ELL: No response 

REPRESENTATIONS 

None 

Page 333



PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

SBC LDP 

PMD1 
PMD2 
HD2 
EP1 
EP2 
EP3 
EP5 
EP13 
IS8 
IS9 

NPF4 
Policies 1, 2, 3, 4, 14, 17, 22 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Biodiversity 
New Housing in the Borders Countryside 

Recommendation by  - Barry Fotheringham  (Lead Planning Officer) on 1st September 2023 

Proposal and Site Description 

This application seeks planning permission in principle for the erection of a dwellinghouse on land to the 
west of the property known as The Garden House, Brieryyards near Hawick.  The site is an existing 
paddock/field and is accessed via a private drive from the minor public road over the Hornshole Bridge, 
north of the A698.   

To the southeast of the site and beyond a narrow belt of mature trees is the property known as Brieryyards.  
There are outbuildings to the north of this neighbouring property.  At the junction of the private drive with the 
public road, some 450m west of the application site is Briery Lodge.   

The Garden House is located within a former walled garden to the northeast of existing woodland.  There 
are mature trees surrounding Brieryyards and also along the length of the private drive.  To the north of the 
application site is open farmland, currently used for grazing. 

History 

There is no planning history associated with this site however the following applications are relevant: 
R030/93 Demolition of existing dwellinghouse and erection of dwellinghouse in walled garden - Approved 
April 1993 

Principle 

The application site is located outwith any defined settlement boundary and must therefore assessed 
principally against Policy HD2 of the LDP 2016.  The application was submitted before NPF4 was adopted 
but the application should also be considered against Policy 17 - Rural Homes.  Policy HD2 promotes 
appropriate rural housing provided a number of criteria can be met.  Under Part (A) housing of up to 2 
additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group may be approved provided the site is well 
related to an existing group of at least houses or buildings currently in residential use.  

It is considered that a building group of 3 of more houses (or buildings capable of conversion to residential 
use) does not exist at this location.  There are 2 dwellings (Brieryyards and The Garden House) located 
within a reasonable distance of the application site and within an identified sense of place (as required by 

Page 334



our SPG on Housing in the Countryside) but it is felt that Briery Lodge is too far divorced (and separated by 
substantial woodland) to be considered part of an existing building group.   

As the site does not fall within or adjacent to an existing building group, it must therefore be considered 
against Part (F) Economic Requirement of Policy HD2.  Housing with a location essential for business needs 
may be acceptable provided certain criteria are met.  The house must be a direct operational requirement of 
an established rural business at this location or is for use by a person(s) employed in such a rural business.  
There should be clear social or environmental benefit to the area, no appropriate sites should exist within a 
building group and there should be no suitable existing house available for the required residential use. 

In this case, the applicant was asked to provide additional supporting information to demonstrate the 
existence of an established building group and to justify the proposed dwelling as a suitable addition to that 
group.  If this could not be demonstrated the applicant was asked to justify the need for the dwelling to 
support an established business at this location.  The agent submitted a statement in support of the 
application but in my opinion, it does not confirm the presence of a building group.  The statement confirms 
that there are 3 dwellings associated with Brieryyards, however they are not contained within an identifiable 
sense of place as per our SPG.  The existing houses are separated by mature planting and the property 
known as Briery Lodge is not contained within the identifiable sense of place.  Briery Lodge is located 
approximately 450m west of the application site along a long private driveway and is separated from the 
existing houses (and the application site) by mature woodland.  In this case, the applicant has not submitted 
a compelling argument that a building group of three houses exists at this location.  The proposals are 
therefore contrary to Policy HD2 (A) of the LDP. 

The applicant owns 25 acres of land (approximately 10ha) and a registered smallholding number.  Of the 25 
acres, 22 acres are used for grazing with an additional 3 acres of land including stables buildings and horse 
exercise area.  Based on the information made available by the applicant, there does not appear to be an 
established agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other business at this location and the need for a worker to 
be on site for the efficient operation of that business has not been justified.  It appears that the applicant, 
who previously occupied The Garden House before it was sold, retains horses at this location, but does not 
operate an agricultural or other rural business at this location.  Whilst it might be convenient for the applicant 
to live close to their horses, the need for a house as a direct operational requirement to support an 
established agricultural business has not been justified.  The application therefore fails to comply with Part 
(F) of Policy HD3. 

There has been a change in circumstances, but this does not result in the need for e new dwelling at this 
location.  The applicant previously occupied The Garden House but this was sold following the passing of 
her mother.  The property was sold to settle the estate and the applicant relocated to Hawick.  It is accepted 
that not living on site does not suit the applicant's lifestyle, but this is not in itself sufficient justification for 
new dwelling at this location.  

Whilst the application was submitted before NPF4 was adopted, this is now the adopted policy position of 
the SG and forms part of the development plan.  Under Policy 17 - Rural Homes, development proposals for 
new homes in rural areas will be supported where the development is suitably scaled, sited and designed to 
be in keeping with the character of the area.  The development must also comply with a number of additional 
criteria.  The proposed house does not comply with criterion i - iv or vi - viii.  Only Criterion v is relevant to 
this case, however, it the proposed dwelling must demonstrated to be necessary to support the sustainable 
management of a viable rural business or croft, and there is an essential need for a worker (including those 
taking majority control of a farm business) to live permanently at or near their place of work.  As described 
above, there is no viable rural business or croft at this location, therefore the proposed dwelling fails to 
comply with Policy 17. 

Roads/Access 

RPS confirm that there is a significant shortfall in visibility at the junction of the private track with the public 
road and it is unlikely, given the alignment of the road and neighbouring ownership issues, that the any 
improvement works will resolve this matter.  RPS object to the application on the grounds that the house 
would result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to the detriment of road safety.  The 
proposals would be contrary to Policy PMD2. 

Page 335



The applicant acknowledges that the junction is substandard and have confirmed that they do not own 
adjoining land that would allow them to alter the current arrangement.  They advise that they are familiar 
with the road, and the junction and that they are prepared to make reasonable contributions to any traffic 
management calming measures that the planning authority deem suitable. 

Flooding 

The site is close to the River Teviot but does not fall within the 1 in 200 year flood envelope as defined by 
the SEPA flood maps.  The proposed development complies with Policy IS8 of the LDP and Policy 22 of 
NPF4. 

Landscape Designations 

The sit sis located within the Teviot Valleys Special Landscape Area but it is considered that a dwelling on 
this site will not have an adverse effect on this designation.   

Biodiversity 

The site is also close to the River Tweed SSSI and SAC but would not have an impact on these designated 
sites if permission was granted. 
The proposals would comply with Policies EP1, EP2 and EP5 of the LDP and Policies 3 and 4 of NPF4 

REASON FOR DECISION : 

The proposed development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development 
Plan 2016, New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance and Policy 17 of 
National Planning Framework 4 in that the site does not form part of an existing building group of at least 
three houses or buildings currently in residential use, or capable of conversion to residential use and it has 
not been adequately demonstrated that the proposed house is a direct operational requirement to support 
an established rural business or other enterprise at this location. This would lead to an unsustainable form of 
development which would have a detrimental impact on the character and amenity of the rural area. This 
conflict with the development plan is not overridden by any other material considerations. 

The development is also contrary to policy PMD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 in 
that the proposed dwellinghouse would result in additional vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to the 
public road to the detriment of road safety.   
This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by any other material considerations. 

Recommendation:  Refused

 1 The proposed development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local 
Development Plan 2016, New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning 
Guidance and Policy 17 of National Planning Framework 4 in that the site does not form part of an 
existing building group of at least three houses or buildings currently in residential use, or capable of 
conversion to residential use and it has not been adequately demonstrated that the proposed house 
is a direct operational requirement to support an established rural business or other enterprise at 
this location. This would lead to an unsustainable form of development which would have a 
detrimental impact on the character and amenity of the rural area. This conflict with the development 
plan is not overridden by any other material considerations. 

 2 The development is also contrary to policy PMD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 
2016 in that the proposed dwellinghouse would result in additional vehicular traffic on a sub-
standard access to the public road to the detriment of road safety.   
This conflict with the development plan is not overridden by any other material considerations. 

Page 336



“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 

Page 337



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



P
age 347

A
genda Item

 7b



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

Wednesday, 06 April 2022 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

Land West Of The Garden House, Brieryyards Hornshole Bridge, Hawick 

Planning Ref: 22/00532/PPP  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0062045-W69 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 

Water Capacity Assessment 
 
Scottish Water has carried out a Capacity review and we can confirm the following: 
 

 There is currently sufficient capacity in the Roberton Water Treatment Works to 
service your development. However, please note that further investigations may be 
required to be carried out once a formal application has been submitted to us. 
 

 The nearest public water main is approx. 300m from the proposed site.  
 
 

Waste Water Capacity Assessment 
 

 Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Waste 
Water infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we 
would advise applicant to investigate private treatment options.  

 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 349

Agenda Item 7c

mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 
 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 
 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

Page 350

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

Page 351

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SW Public 

General 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 50kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Angela Allison 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

 

 

Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 352

http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800   www.scotborders.gov.uk 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION

Comments provided 
by

Roads Planning Service Contact e-mail/number:

Officer Name and 
Post:

Paul Grigor
Roads Planning Officer

pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 826663

Date of reply 29th April 2022 Consultee reference:

Planning Application 
Reference

22/00532/PPP Case Officer: Brett Taylor     

Applicant Mr Michael Johnson
Agent N/A
Proposed 
Development

Erection of dwellinghouse

Site Location Land West Of The Garden House Brieryyards Hornshole Bridge Hawick Scottish 
Borders

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and 
Site description

Key Issues
(Bullet points)

 Access
 Visibility

Assessment I am unable to support his application due to the significant shortfall in visibility at 
the junction of the private track with the public road. Given the neighbouring 
boundary and the alignment of the road, it is unlikely that any improvement works 
will resolve this issue.

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to conditions

 Further information 
required

Recommended
Conditions/Reason 
For Refusal

The proposal does not comply with Policy PMD2 of the Local Development Plan 
2016 in that it would be result in extra vehicular traffic on a sub-standard access to 
the detriment of road safety.  

Recommended
Informatives

AJS

Page 353

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/
mailto:pgrigor@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
26th February 2024 
 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00052/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 22/00532/PPP 
Development Proposal:  Erection of dwellinghouse 
Location: Land West of The Garden House, Brieryyards, Hornshole Bridge, Hawick 
Applicant: Mr Michael Johnson 
 
National Planning Framework 4 
 
Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 4: Natural Places 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 
Policy 17: Rural Homes 
Policy 22: Flood Risk and Water Management 
Policy 29: Rural Development 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP) 
 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
ED10: Protection of Prime Quality Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils 
HD2: Housing in the Countryside 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP1: International Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP2: National Nature Conservation Sites and Protected Species 
EP3: Local Biodiversity 
EP5: Regeneration 
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 
IS8: Flooding 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment and SUDS 
IS13: Contaminated Land 
 
Other Material Considerations: 
 
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on;  

• Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Guidance 2005 
• New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance 2008 

 
 

Page 355

Agenda Item 7d



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100633590-002

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Ferguson Planning

Ferguson

Planning

Island Street

54

Shiel House

01896 668744

TD1 1NU

Scotland

Galashiels

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Page 357

Agenda Item 8a



Page 2 of 5

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Scottish Borders Council

Shiel House

54

per Agent

TD1 1NU

Land north of Mos Eisley, Teviothead, TD9 0LG

Scotland

605458

Galashiels

340554

Island Street

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Buccleuch Estates Ltd

Page 358



Page 3 of 5

Description of Proposal
Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the 
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Type of Application
What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

  Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application.

  Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

  Refusal Notice.

 Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

  No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) – deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review
You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement 
must set out all matters you consider require  to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a 
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: *  (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce 
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at 
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that 
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer  at the time the  Yes   No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before 
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works

Please see Local Review Statement

Page 359



Page 4 of 5

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend 
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? *

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? *

Review Procedure
The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review 
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be 
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or 
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other 
parties only,  without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *
 Yes   No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? *  Yes   No

Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? *  Yes    No

Checklist – Application for Notice of Review
Please complete the following checklist to make sure  you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure 
to submit all this  information may result in your appeal  being deemed invalid. 

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?.  *  Yes   No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this  Yes   No
review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name   Yes   No   N/A
and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the 
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *
Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what  Yes   No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider 
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review 
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely 
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.
Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on  Yes   No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a 
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the 
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.
 

Please see Local Review Statement

23/01007/PPP

06/09/2023

04/07/2023

Page 360



Page 5 of 5

Declare – Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: - Ferguson Planning

Declaration Date: 27/11/2023
 

Page 361



This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal Details
Proposal Name 100633590
Proposal Description Erection of new dwelling at Teviothead
Address  
Local Authority Scottish Borders Council
Application Online Reference 100633590-002

Application Status
Form complete
Main Details complete
Checklist complete
Declaration complete
Supporting Documentation complete
Email Notification complete

Attachment Details
Notice of Review System A4
Application Form Attached A4
Planning Statement Attached A4
10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202_D 
Proposed Site Plan

Attached A3

10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1201_C Site 
Location Plan

Attached A3

10270-CSY-02-XX-D-A-6201 Street 
Elevation

Attached A3

Preliminary Ecological Assessment Attached A4
Report of Handling 23-01007-PPP Attached A4
Decision Notice 23-01007-PPP Attached A4
Local Review Statement Attached A4
Notice_of_Review-2.pdf Attached A0
Application_Summary.pdf Attached A0
Notice of Review-002.xml Attached A0

Page 363



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
  

1 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 B U C C L E U C H  E S T A T E S   

N O V E M B E R  2 0 2 3  

 

P
age 365



 
 

 
 
  

2 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

C O N T E N T S  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ................................. 3 

INTRODUCTION............................................. 5 

REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY SCOTTISH 
BORDERS COUNCIL AND PLANNING 
POLICY CONTEXT ......................................... 9 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR 
APPELLANT ................................................... 13 

CONCLUSION .............................................. 19 

CORE DOCUMENTS ................................... 21 

 
 

 
Ref:  B-BST-0305 
Council ref: 23/01007/PPP 
Prepared by:  Kieran McFarlane MRTPI 

and Ruaraidh Thompson MRTPI 

Approved by: Tim Ferguson MRTPI  
Date of Issue: November 2023 

P
age 366

https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658583
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658584
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658585
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658585
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658585
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658586
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658586
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658587
https://fergusonplanning-my.sharepoint.com/personal/tim_fergusonplanning_co_uk/Documents/Company%20Share/LIVE%20PROJECTS/Buccleuch%20Estates%20-%20various/Teviothead/Notice%20of%20Review/Teviothead_Local_Review_Statement_DRAFT_v.2.docx#_Toc151658588


 
 

 
 
  

3 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 
E X E C U T I V E  S U M M A R Y   

P
age 367



 
 

 
 
  

4 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This Statement is submitted on behalf of Buccleuch Estates (the 

Appellant) against the decision by Scottish Borders Council to 

refuse Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of a 

dwellinghouse at Land north of Mos Eisley, Teviothead on 6th 

September 2023 (reference 23/01007/PPP). All Core Documents 

(CD) are referenced in Appendix 1.  

 

The proposed development is considered to accord with adopted 

policy and represent sustainable development. The case for the 

Appellant is summarised below: 

• The application site lies within the Southern Housing Market 

Area. 

• The application site sits within the sense of place and setting 

of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead. The Dispersed 

Building Group comprises five existing dwellings (Mos Eisley, 

Old School House, Beadles Cottage, Bowanhill Farm House, 

and the Old Manse) in addition to Teviothead Village Hall and 

Teviothead Church, enclosed between the A7 to the east and 

River Teviot to the west. 

• The proposed dwelling stands adjacent to Mos Eisley in the 

core of the Dispersed Building Group. Bowanhill Farm House 

and other agricultural buildings stand further to the north-east 

of the application site. Therefore, the proposed dwelling 

stands within the parcel of the Dispersed Building Group. 

 

• By comparison, the Old Manse and Teviothead Church stand south of 

the core of the Dispersed Building Group but still form part of the 

cluster 

• The proposed development accords with section (B) of Policy HD2 

which addresses Dispersed Building Groups. Despite this the Report 

of Handling considers section (A) only, which it uses to justify a refusal. 

• The consultation response of the Community Council outlines no 

objection to the proposed development and expresses more general 

support for more new housing in the Teviothead area. The reasons for 

supporting new housing centre on supporting the rural population 

and delivering improvements for the local community. 

• Consultation responses have been received from Roads Planning, 

Environmental Health, Scottish Water. No objection is contained 

within the response of any. 

• The proposed dwelling would be delivered on a self-build basis by a 

successor in title offering an opportunity to establish a new family 

home in the local area. Therefore, the proposed development is in 

accordance with Policy 16 of NPF4. 

• The Southern Housing Market Area is considered to be the only part 

of the Borders that represents a “remote rural area”. As the application 

site forms part of a Dispersed Building Group and the Community 

Council has outlined support for new housing in the local area, the 

proposed development accords with Policy 17 of NPF4. 

• The proposed development is squarely supported by the Rural 

Revitalisation principle established as one of the “six spatial 

principles” in NPF4.  

P
age 368



 
 

 
 
  

5 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

1.1.Engagement.  Housing.  Retail / Town Centre Regenration. 

I N T R O D U C T I O N   

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

P
age 369



 
 

 
 
  

6 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

2 Introduction 
1.1 This Statement supports a Notice of Review of the delegated 

decision of Scottish Borders Council to refuse to grant Planning 

Permission in Principle for the erection of a dwellinghouse on 

land north of Mos Eisley. 

 

1.2 The application site extends to 1765m2 and comprises rough 

grazing land bounded by a low stone wall on its south-west 

boundary. The site sits in a row of existing dwellings that extends 

from south-west towards the site, clearly visible in Fig.1.  

 

1.3 The application site sits adjacent to the north-east of the existing 

dwelling ‘Mos Eisley’. Mos Eisley sits adjacent to another existing 

dwelling ‘The Old School House’, which in turn stands adjacent to 

‘Beadles Cottage’. All three existing dwellings are detached 

houses which are bound together by a direct, linear relationship 

without setoff or separation. All three existing dwelling are 

orientated to the east.  

 

1.4 Mos Eisley and Old School House are accessed from the D170 

minor public road while Beadles Cottage is accessed from the 

D28/3. Teviothead Village Hall stands opposite Beadles Cottage, 

across the D28/3. Direct access to the site is already provided by 

the D170 fully contiguous with access to the nearby existing 

dwellings. Both minor public roads extend from a junction with 

the A7 circa 75 metres south of the site.  

 

1.5 The application site also shares a relationship with Bowanhill 

Farm (to the north-east) and the Old Manse of Teviothead Church  

 
(to the south-west). Bowanhill Farm shares the fundamental location 

of the site enclosed between the River Teviot to the west and the 

shallow embankment of the A7 to the east. Teviothead Church and its 

Manse share an intrinsic link with the local community as their purpose 

is to serve the ecclesiastical and pastoral needs of local people. As 

they would not exist without the presence of the local population, the 

link to the local built environment is essential and inflexible. 

 

1.6 It is proposed to erect a new detached dwelling centrally within the 

site. The new dwelling is proposed in roughly ‘L-plan’ form and will be 

placed in a garden extending from three elevation of the proposed 

dwelling (incorporated as Fig.2). It is conceptually proposed to 

organise new residential accommodation over two levels. 

 

1.7 The application site and its surroundings are considered to comprise 

a Dispersed Building Group of 5 no. existing dwellings, Teviothead 

Village Hall, and Teviothead Church. The Dispersed Building Group 

comprises a core of three existing dwellings – Mos Eisley, Old School 

House, and Beadles Cottage (illustrated in Fig.3) – and the further 

associated buildings – Bowanhill Farm, Teviothead Church, and the 

Old Manse. 

 
1.8 The remainder of this Statement considers the site context and 

relevant planning policy, before evaluating the accordance of the 

proposed development with the National Planning Framework 4, the 

Local Development Plan and other material considerations.  

 
 

P
age 370



 
 

 
 
  

7 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 
 

  

Fig 1: Extract from 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1201(B) Site Location Plan (Source: CSY Architects). 

P
age 371



 
 

 
 
  

8 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

Fig 2: Extract from 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202(D) Proposed Site Plan 
(Source: CSY Architects). 

P
age 372



 
 

 
 
  

9 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

R E F U S A L  O F  A P P L I C A T I O N  B Y  S C O T T I S H  B O R D E R S  
C O U N C I L  A N D  P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y  C O N T E X T  

P
age 373



 
 

 
 
  

10 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

REFUSAL OF APPLICATION BY COUNCIL AND PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 

 
2.1 Planning Application 23/01007/PPP was refused on 6th 

September 2023. The Decision Notice (CD8) cited one reason for 

refusal, as set out below:  

 

“1. The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), Policies 9 
and 17 of NPF4 (2023) and the New Housing in the Borders 
Countryside Guidance (2008) because it would constitute 
housing in the countryside that would lead to an unjustified 
sporadic expansion of development into a previously 
undeveloped field likely leading to extension of the group 
that would adversely affect its character. These policy conflicts 
are not sufficiently overridden by other material 
considerations.” 

 

National Planning Framework 4 

 

2.2 National Planning Framework 4 was adopted in February 2023. 

The document addresses national planning policy and the 

Government’s approach to achieving a net zero sustainable 

Scotland by 2045.  

 

2.3 One of the six overarching spatial principles of NPF4 is to support 

rural revitalisation. This takes the form of encouraging sustainable 

development in rural areas, recognising the need to grow and 

support urban and rural communities together. The adopted text 

confirms that the strategy and policies “support development that 

helps to retain and increase the population of rural areas of 

Scotland”. 

 

2.4 Policy 16: Quality Homes sets out that development proposals for 

new homes that improve affordability and choice by being adaptable 

to changing and diverse needs, and which addresses identified gaps 

in provision, will be supported. This includes self-provided homes. In 

addition, it states that proposals for new homes on land not allocated 

for housing in the LDP will be supported where it is consistent with 

policy on rural homes.  

 

2.5 The intent of Policy 17: Rural Homes is to encourage, promote and 

facilitate the delivery of more high quality, affordable and sustainable 

rural homes in the right locations.  

 
2.6 Branch a) of the Policy sets out that “development proposals for new 

homes in rural areas will be supported where the development is 

suitably scaled, sited and designed to be in keeping with the character 

of the area and the development.” 

 
2.7 Branch c) of the Policy makes provision that “new homes in remote 

rural areas will be supported where the proposal: 

i. supports and sustains existing fragile communities; 
ii. supports identified local housing outcomes; and 

iii. is suitable in terms of location, access, and environmental 
impact.” 

 

Local Development Plan  

 

2.8 Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (LDP) 

details the circumstances in which new houses will be considered 

acceptable. This sets out details on support for development relating  

P
age 374



 
 

 
 
  

11 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

to dispersed housing groups and is considered to represent the 

pertinent material consideration in the determination of the 

appeal proposal.  

 

2.9 Section B of Policy HD2 addresses development proposals for 

housing related to dispersed building groups. The adopted text 

of section B has been copied below: 

 

“(B) Dispersed Building Groups 

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building 

groups comprising 3 houses or more, and a more dispersed 

pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may be 

appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible 

community, economic or environmental benefits. In these cases 

the existence of a sense of place will be the primary consideration. 

 

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed 

building groups that meet the above criteria may be approved 

provided that: 

 

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised 

dispersed community in the Southern Borders housing 

market area, 

b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this 

policy should not exceed two housing dwellings in addition 

to the group during the Plan period. No further development 

above this threshold will be permitted, 

c) the design of housing will be subject to the same 

considerations as other types of housing in the countryside 

proposals.” 

 
Supplementary Guidance 

 
2.10 The Supplementary Guidance ‘New Housing in the Borders 

Countryside’ includes the following criteria and guidance for new 

dwellings within countryside: 

• Recognises locations where a more dispersed building 

pattern in the norm, these are referred to as “anchor points” 

and found within the Southern Housing Market Area. A 

lower threshold may be accepted in instances where the 

development would bring tangible environmental benefits.  

• No adverse effect on the viability of a farming unit or conflict 

with the operations of a working farm; 

• Satisfactory access and other road requirements; 

• Satisfactory public or private water supply and drainage 

facilities; 

• No adverse effect on countryside amenity, landscape or 

nature conservation; 

• No adverse impact on ancient monuments, archaeological 

sites, or on gardens or designed landscapes; 

• Appropriate siting, design and materials in accordance with 

relevant Local Plan Policies; 

• The safeguarding of known mineral resources from 

sterilisation unless this is acceptable following an 

assessment of the environmental implications. 

  

P
age 375



 
 

 
 
  

12 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

Fig 3: Annotated aerial image of existing Building Group at Teviothead. 

P
age 376



 
 

 
 
  

13 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 
G R O U N D S  O F  A P P E A L  A N D  C A S E  F O R  
A P P E L L A N T  

P
age 377



 
 

 
 
  

14 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

GROUNDS OF APPEAL AND CASE FOR APPELLANT 
 

 

3.1 The decision of the Planning Authority to refuse the Application 

is challenged on the basis of the Grounds of Appeal set out 

below. It is the submission of the Appellants that the proposed 

development accords with the relevant adopted policy of 

National Planning Framework 4, the Local Development Plan and 

Supplementary Guidance and that there are no material 

considerations which justify the refusal of the application. 

 

GROUND 1: THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT REPRESENTS 

THE ERECTION OF A DWELLING ON A SITE WHICH IS WELL 

RELATED TO THE DISPERSED BUILDING GROUP AT 

TEVIOTHEAD AND WOULD CONTRIBUTE POSITIVELY BY 

DELIVERING NEW HOUSING AND SUPPORTING THE 

SUSTAINABILITY OF THE LOCAL COMMUNITY. 

 

3.2 During the course of application determination, the following 

consultee responses were received from Council Officers and 

external consultees: 

• Roads Planning – No objection. 

• Environmental Health – No objection. 

• Community Council – No objection. 

• Scottish Water – No objection. 

 

3.3 The Report of Handling (CD7) explains that the Planning Officer 

considers the proposed development to be contrary to criteria a) 

& b) of section (A) of Policy HD2. However, no consideration  

is given to the accordance of the proposed development with  

 
section (B) of the Policy – which is necessary as the site lies within the 

Southern Housing Market Area. 

 

3.4 In addition, while it is acknowledged within the Report of Handling 

that there is an existing Building Group at this location, this 

assessment failed to define what the Planning Authority considered to 

be the defined Building Group, its boundaries, and which buildings 

this comprises. 

 
3.5 It is the Appellant’s position that the application site lies within the 

setting and forms part of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead 

(shown in Fig.4). Teviothead is situated within the Southern Housing 

Market Area where a more dispersed residential pattern is the norm. 

This is confirmed within the Scottish Borders LDP Policy Maps (visible 

in Fig.5).  

 
3.6 The application site sits in the core of the Dispersed Building Group, 

facing onto a minor public road that extends west from the A7. 

Teviothead Village Hall stands opposite Beadles Cottage in the core 

of the group. All existing dwellings and other buildings within the 

Dispersed Building Group lie between the adopted surface of the A7 

to the east and the channel of the River Teviot to the west – including 

Bowanhill Farm, Teviothead Church, and the Old Manse which are 

associated with the Group but with less spatial proximity. 

 

 

 
  

P
age 378



 
 

 
 
  

15 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

  

Fig 4: Aerial image of Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead with 
approximate boundaries (in orange) between the A7 and River Teviot. 

P
age 379



 
 

 
 
  

16 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

3.7 It should be noted that the Frostlie Burn flows under the A7 and 

lies between Teviothead Church and the Old Manse to the west 

and the rest of the Dispersed Building Group to the east. 

However, Frostlie Burn is a tributary stream of the River Teviot and 

neither the banks nor channel of the river itself. The Frostlie Burn 

does not delineate the group as Teviothead Church and the 

Village Hall share a tandem and dual-pole relationship at the 

heart of the local community. 

 
3.8 The new dwelling is proposed in a row of existing dwellings at the 

core of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead. The 

application site sits directly adjacent to the existing dwelling Mos 

Eisley. Bowanhill Farm and its principal farmhouse lie further to 

the north-east and further from the core of the Group than the 

proposed dwelling. It is considered that the site stands in the core 

of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead in the South 

Borders Housing Market Area and satisfies criterion a) of section 

(B). 

 
3.9 No consents for new dwellings have been granted at Teviothead 

in the period of the current Local Development Plan. This was 

accepted in the Report of Handling. Therefore, the proposed 

development is considered to satisfy criterion b) of section (B).  

 
3.10 As the proposed development is an Application for Planning 

Permission in Principle, the detailed design is deferred to the next 

stage of the planning process. However, a conceptually Proposed 

Site Plan (copied in Fig.2) has been submitted that gives the 

proposed dwelling ‘L-plan’ form and a footprint which leaves a 

modest setback distance from the existing dwelling Mos  

Eisley adjacent. This is considered to represent replication of the  

existing development pattern in the core of the Dispersed Building 

Group (a row of houses) to satisfy criterion c) of section (B). 

 

3.11 The proposed development comprises the erection of a new dwelling 

upon a site in the core of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead. 

The site sits in a row of existing dwellings and directly adjacent to Mos 

Eisley. No new dwellings have been approved at Teviothead within 

the current LDP period. The proposed layout is considered to 

replicate the local pattern of development at Teviothead. Therefore, 

the principle of development is considered to be acceptable as the 

proposed development accords with section (B) of Policy HD2. 

 

Other Material Considerations 

3.12 It is considered that the proposed development clearly accords with 

section (B) of Policy HD2 – therefore there is no requirement to accord 

with any other section of the Policy. 

 

3.13 However, it is considered that the proposed development does 

accord with section (A). The Report of Handling asserts that 

development would extend the Building Group into an undeveloped 

field. However, the adjacent field is not undeveloped as the 

residential curtilages for Mos Eisley and the Old School House have 

previously been bitten out of it.  

 
3.14 The appointed Planning Officer commits a further error by asserting 

that approving development would make it “extremely difficult” to 

refuse further planning applications. This consideration is factually 

inaccurate as each planning application is determined upon its own 

merits, existence of precedent is not a material consideration. 

 

  

P
age 380



 
 

 
 
  

17 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

  

Fig 5: Extract from Policy Map of Scottish Borders Local Development Plan showing Teviothead (circled in purple) 
at the heart of the Southern Housing Market Area (Source: Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016). 

P
age 381



 
 

 
 
  

18 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

3.15 It is considered that there is no prospect of the proposed dwelling 

being delivered by a housebuilder or other corporate developer. 

Development of the proposed dwelling would be delivered on a 

self-build basis – either by the Appellant or a successor in title. 

Therefore, the proposed dwelling is considered to satisfy 

criterion i. under branch c) of Policy 16 as it represents a self-

provided home. On this basis, the proposed development 

accords with Policy 16 of NPF4. 

 
3.16 It is considered that the Southern Housing Market Area 

represents a “remote rural area” in planning policy terms.  

This contrasts with the rest of the Borders which, while mostly 

rural, is not remote to the same extent. 

 
3.17 The consultation response of the Community Council makes clear 

that there is a need for housing locally. The Community Council 

explain this as “we are keen to see more good quality homes to 

improve the housing stock for residents and more houses help to 

maintain the rural population”. 

 
3.18 As the proposed development represents a new house in a 

remote rural area where new housing is required to support an 

existing fragile community, it is considered to satisfy criterion i. 

under branch c) of Policy 17. 

 
3.19 As addressed above, the application site lies within and forms 

part of a Dispersed Building Group. The site shares a boundary 

with the adopted public road, beyond the extent of the A7. The 

Report of Handling concurs with the conclusions of the 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal that the environmental impact of  

 

the proposed development would not be significant. As the location  

of the proposed dwelling, access thereto, and environmental impact 

are acceptable in planning terms, the proposed dwelling is 

considered to satisfy criterion iii. under branch c) of Policy 17. 

 
3.20 To achieve accordance with branch c) of Policy 17, a development 

proposal must satisfy criterion iii. as well as either criterion i. or ii. It is 

considered that the proposed development has been demonstrated 

to satisfy criteria i. & iii. and therefore is made in accordance with 

branch c) of Policy 17, accordance with which is sufficient to establish 

the principle of development in planning policy terms. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
age 382



 
 

 
 
  

19 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 

C O N C L U S I O N  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

P
age 383



 
 

 
 
  

20 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

CONCLUSION 
 
 

4.1 The Notice of Review, supported by this Statement, respectfully 

requests that the Council overturns the decision to refuse 

Planning Permission in Principle for Application 23/01007/PPP 

and grant consent for the erection of a dwelling together with 

access, garden, and associated works on land north of Mos Eisley, 

Teviothead.  

 

4.2 The proposed development represents the enlargement of the 

Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead by one new dwelling 

upon a site within the sense of place and setting of the cluster. 

The application site is abutted to the south-west by the existing 

dwelling Mos Eisley which sits in a row of three existing dwellings 

in the core of the Dispersed Building Group. The site sits 

contained within the bookend created by Bowanhill Farm to the 

north-east. No new dwellings have been consented within the 

current LDP period and there are no significant cumulative 

impacts associated with the proposal. Therefore, the principle of 

development is considered to be acceptable as the proposed 

development accords with section (B) of Policy HD2. 

 

4.3 It is the position of the Appellant that the proposed development 

has been incorrectly assessed. LDP policy was inaccurately 

applied when the Planning Authority issued their delegated 

decision. It has been demonstrated that the site sits within a 

Dispersed Building Group and therefore section (B) of Policy HD2 

is the relevant policy consideration to the Application.  

 

 

4.4 The proposed development supports the sustainable growth of an 

existing rural community and will improve housing choice in the local 

area. Teviothead is a small existing community which comprises of five 

existing dwellings, a church, and a village hall. It is considered that the 

Rural Revitalisation principle applies strongly to Teviothead, 

especially the direction to support rural population growth. The 

proposed development is considered to accord with Policies 16 and 

17 of NPF4. 

 
4.5 Vehicle and pedestrian access to the site is proposed from the D170 

minor public road across the south-east boundary. Two parking 

spaces are included within the proposal. The proposed development 

is considered to be acceptable in transport terms. 

 
4.6 The site has been assessed as having relatively low ecological value, 

with no habitat suitable for protected species on-site and relatively 

little habitat close to the site. A series of measures include bird nesting 

and bat boxes as well as planting of native shrubs to improve habitats 

on site will ensure there is a biodiversity net gain.  

 
4.7 The Local Review Body is respectfully requested to allow the appeal 

and grant Planning Permission in Principle for the erection of a 

dwellinghouse at land north of Mos Eisley, Teviothead.  

 

 
  

P
age 384



 
 

 
 
  

21 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D   
 C O R E  D O C U M E N T S  

P
age 385



 
 

 
 
  

22 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

CORE DOCUMENTS 
 

 
The following drawings, documents, and plans have been submitted to 

support the Notice of Review: 

 

• Notice of Review Form; 

• CD1 Local Review Statement; 

• Application Form 

• CD2 (Application) Planning Statement; 

• CD3 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1201(B) Site Location Plan; 

• CD4 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202(D) Existing and Proposed 

Site Plans; 

• CD5 10270-CSY-02-XX-D-A-6201 Existing and Proposed 

Perspectives; 

• CD6 Preliminary Ecological Assessment; 

• CD7 Report of Handling 23/01007/PPP; and 

• CD8 Decision Notice 23/01007/PPP. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  

P
age 386



 
 

 
 
  

23 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

E:  t im@fergusonplanning.co.uk  

W W W . F E R G U S O N P L A N N I N G . C O . U K  

G A L A S H I E L S   

 
Shiel House 
54 Island Steet 
Galashiels  
TD1 1NU 
 
T:  01896 668 744 
M: 07960 003 357 

E D I N B U R G H   

 
1st Floor, 38 Thistle Street 
Edinburgh 
EH2 1EN 
 
 
T:  0131 385 8801 
M: 07960 003 358 

N O R T H E R N  I R E L A N D  

 
61 Moyle Road 
Ballycastle, Co. Antrim 
Northern Ireland 
BT54 6LG 
 
 
M: 07960 003 358 

 

P
age 387



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 1 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  N O R T H  O F  M O S  E I S L E Y ,  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

B U C C L E U C H  E S T A T E S  

J U N E  2 0 2 3  

 

P
age 389



 
 

 2 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 

C O N T E N T S  

 

I N T R O D U C T I O N . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 3  

T H E  P R O P O S A L . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 0 8  

P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1  

P L A N N I N G  A S S E S S M E N T . . . . 1 7  

C O N C L U S I O N . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 4  

 

 

Ref:  B-BST-0305 
Council ref: TBC 
Prepared by:  Ruaraidh Thompson MRTPI 

Approved by:  Tim Ferguson MRTPI 

Date of Issue: June 2023 

P
age 390



 
 

 3 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 

I N T R O D U C T I O N  

P
age 391



 
 

 4 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

1.1 This Planning Statement, prepared by Ferguson Planning, is 

submitted to Scottish Borders Council on behalf of Buccleuch 

Estates. This Statement supports an Application for Planning 

Permission in Principle for erection of a new dwelling together with 

access, garden, and associated works on land north of Mos Eisley, 

Teviothead. 

 

1.2 The application site extends to 1765m2 and comprises rough 

grazing bounded by a low stone wall on south-west boundary.  

The site sits in a row of existing dwellings that extends from south-

west towards the site, clearly visible in Fig.1.  

 

1.3 The application site sits adjacent to the north-east of the existing 

dwelling “Mos Eisley”. Mos Eisley sits adjacent to another existing 

dwelling “The Old School House”, which in turn stands adjacent to 

“Beadles Cottage”. All three existing dwellings are detached houses 

which are bound together by a direct, linear relationship without 

setoff or separation. All three existing dwellings are orientated to 

the east. 

 

1.4 Mos Eisley and Old School House are accessed from the D170 minor 

public road while Beadles Cottage is accessed from the D28/3. 

Teviothead Village Hall stands opposite Beadles Cottage, across 

D28/3. Direct access to the site is already provided by the D170 fully 

contiguous with access to the nearby existing dwellings. Both minor 

public roads extend from a junction with the A7 circa 75 metres 

south of the site. 

 

 

 

I N T R O D U C T I O N  

1.5 The application site also shares a relationship with Bowanhill Farm 

(to the north-east) and the Old Manse of Teviothead Church (to the 

south-west). Bowanhill Farm shares the fundamental location of the 

site enclosed between the River Teviot to the west and the shallow 

embankment of the A7 to the east. Teviothead Church and its Manse 

share an intrinsic link with the local community as their purpose is to 

serve the ecclesiastical and pastoral needs of local people. As they 

would not exist without the presence of the local population, the link 

to the local built environment is essential and inflexible. 

 

1.6 The application site and its surroundings are considered to comprise 

a Dispersed Building Group of 5 no. existing dwellings, Teviothead 

Village Hall, and Teviothead Church. The Dispersed Building Group 

comprises a core of three existing dwellings – Mos Eisley, Old School 

House, and Beadles Cottage – and the further associated buildings – 

Bowanhill Farm, Teviothead Church, and the Old Manse, shown in 

context Fig.2. 

 

1.7 There are no Listed Buildings on-site or in the Dispersed Building 

Group. No Conservation Area has been designated in the area. 

However, it is notable that the former Caerlanrig Chapel (Canmore 

ID: 344510) stood opposite the existing Teviothead Church. 

Caerlanrig Chapel is recorded as the place of execution of Johnnie 

Armstrong, perhaps the most famous Border Reiver. A stone stands 

upon the recorded site of his grave. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 392



 
 

 5 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

1.8 The River Teviot is covered by both the Site of Special Scientific 

Interest (SSSI) and Special Area of Conservation (SAC) designations 

that have been applied to the River Tweed. While neither 

designation covers the site, they extend to circa 110 metres of the 

north-west boundary.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 393



 
 

 6 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
     

Fig 1: Extract from 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1201(B) Site Location Plan (Source: CSY Architects). 

P
age 394



 
 

 7 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  

Fig 2: Aerial image of Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead with 
approximate boundaryies (in orange) between the A7 and River Teviot. 

P
age 395



 
 

 8 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
 
  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  

T H E  P R O P O S A L  

P
age 396



 
 

 9 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  

2.1 The proposal is for the erection of a new dwelling together with 

access, garden, and associated works. The layout and access 

arrangements of the proposed dwelling are conceptually 

illustrated on 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202(C) Proposed Site Plan, 

visible in Fig.3.  

 

2.2 It is proposed to erect the new dwelling centrally within the site. 

The new dwelling is proposed in roughly ‘L-plan’ form and will be 

placed in a garden extending from three elevations of the 

proposed dwelling. It is conceptually proposed to organise new 

residential accommodation over two levels. 

 

2.3 An illustrative impression has been prepared presenting a design 

which fits with the character of existing dwellings in the 

surrounding area and can be seen in Fig.5. Should planning 

permission be granted for the proposed development then the 

Applicant will develop this concept into a detailed design 

informed by and in accordance with adopted policy for the 

further consideration of the Planning Authority. 

 
2.4 The proposed dwelling will be serviced by new private 

arrangements for drainage of foul water. The Applicant proposes 

to connect to a private supply sourced from neighbouring land 

on the Estate. 

 

2.5 Access to the site is proposed across the south-east boundary from 

the D170 minor public road. The new access would be taken from 

the north-east extent of the road, without extending the road 

further into the countryside. The new access would be the third 

residential access on this section of minor public road, adding to Old 

School House and Mos Eisley. 

 

2.6 As the Application is for Planning Permission in Principle, the 

requirement to submit detailed drawings to secure the outstanding 

elements of the design in the next stage of the planning process is 

acknowledged.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T H E  P R O P O S A L  

P
age 397



 
 

 10 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

      

Fig 3: Extract from 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202(C) Proposed Site 
Plan (Source: CSY Architects). 

P
age 398



 
 

 11 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
 
  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  

P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y  

P
age 399



 
 

 12 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  
P L A N N I N G  P O L I C Y  

3.1 This section provides an overview of key planning polices relevant 

to the proposed development. The Development Plan comprises 

National Planning Framework 4 and the Scottish Borders Local 

Development Plan (2016). 

 

3.2 National Planning Framework 4 sets out national planning polices 

which are material to the determination of planning applications. 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) contains local 

planning policy that forms the cornerstone of the adopted planning 

policy context. 

 
NATIONAL PLANNING FRAMEWORK 4 (2023) 

 
3.3 The National Planning Framework 4 was published in February 

2023. The document addresses national planning policy and the 

Government’s approach to achieving a net zero sustainable 

Scotland by 2045.  

 

3.4 National Planning Framework 4 establishes “six overarching spatial 

principles”. The principle which is most pertinent to the proposal is 

Rural Revitalisation. Rural Revitalisation is defined as 

encouragement of “sustainable development in rural areas, 

recognising the need to grow and support urban and rural 

communities”. The adopted text confirms that the strategy and 

policies “support development that helps to retain and increase the 

population of rural areas of Scotland.” 

 
 

 
 

 

3.5 Policy 16 Quality Homes is also relevant to the proposal. Criterion 

c) states that “development proposals for new homes that improve 

affordability and choice by being adaptable to changing and diverse 

needs, and which address identified gaps in provision, will be 

supported. This could include: 

i. self-provided homes; 

ii. accessible, adaptable and wheelchair accessible 

homes; 

iii. build to rent; 

iv. affordable homes; 

v. a range of size of homes such as those for larger 

families; 

vi. homes for older people, including supported 

accommodation, care homes and sheltered housing; 

vii. homes for people undertaking further and higher 

education; and 

viii. homes for other specialist groups such as service 

personnel.” 

 

3.6 Policy 17 Rural Homes states that “development proposals for new 

homes in rural areas will be supported where the development is 

suitably scaled, sited, and designed to be in keeping with the 

character of the area and the development.” 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 400



 
 

 13 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

3.7 Policy 3 Biodiversity requires that development proposals 

“contribute to the enhancement of biodiversity, including where 

relevant, restoring degraded habitats and building and 

strengthening nature networks and the connections between them. 

Proposals should also integrate nature-based solutions, where 

possible.” Specific to local development, Policy 3 leads 

development proposals to “include appropriate measures to 

conserve, restore and enhance biodiversity, in accordance with 

national and local guidance. Measures should be proportionate to 

the nature and scale of development”. 

 

3.8 Policy 11 Energy sets out that “development proposals for all forms 

of renewable, low-carbon and zero emissions technologies will be 

supported. These include: 

i. wind farms including repowering, extending, expanding 
and extending the life of existing wind farms; 

ii. enabling works, such as grid transmission and 
distribution infrastructure; 

iii. energy storage, such as battery storage and pumped 
storage hydro; 

iv. small scale renewable energy generation technology; 

v. solar arrays; 

vi. proposals associated with negative emissions 
technologies and carbon capture; and 

vii. proposals including co-location of these technologies.” 

 

 

 

 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

 

3.9 Local planning policy relevant to the proposal is contained within 

the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016). Key policies 

include: 

• Policy PMD1: Sustainability 

• Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

• Policy HD2: Housing in the Countryside 

• Policy HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 

 

Policy PMD1: Sustainability 

3.10 The preparation of the Local Development Plan was heavily 

informed by the acknowledged “need for action on climate change” 

and the Council’s Environmental Strategy, which sit behind the 

‘support and encouragement of sustainable development’ across 

the Borders. Policy PMD1 sets out the “sustainability principles 

which underpin all the Plan’s policies” and that the Council expects 

to inform development proposals and planning decisions: 

a) the long term sustainable use and management of land 

b) the preservation of air and water quality 

c) the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, 

and species 

d) the protection of built and cultural resources 

e) the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly 

non-renewable resources 

f) the minimisation of waste, including waste water and 

encouragement to its sustainable management 

g) the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public 

transport in preference to the private car 

 

 

 

 

P
age 401



 
 

 14 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  • Be able to be satisfactorily accommodated within the site; 

• Provide for appropriate boundary treatments to ensure 

attractive edges, and to help integration with the 

surroundings; 

• Incorporate access for those with mobility difficulties; 

• Not have an adverse impact on road safety in terms of the 

site access; 

• Incorporate adequate access and turning space for 

vehicles including those used for waste collection 

purposes; and 

• Retain physical or natural features which are important to 

the amenity or biodiversity of the area. 

 

Policy HD2: Housing in the Countryside 

3.12 Section A of Policy HD2 addresses development proposals for 

housing related to existing Building Groups. The adopted text of 

section A has been copied below: 

“(A) Building Groups 

Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase 

of the building group, whichever is the greater, associated with 

existing building groups may be approved provided that: 

a) the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an 

existing group of at least three houses or building(s) 

currently in residential use or capable of conversion to 

residential use. Where conversion is required to establish a 

cohesive group of at least three houses, no additional 

housing will be approved until such a conversion has been 

implemented, 

 

 

 

 

 

h) the minimisation of light pollution 

i) the protection of public health and safety 

j) the support of community services and facilities 

k) the provision of new jobs and support to the local 

economy 

l) the involvement of the local community in the design, 

management, and improvement of their environment. 

 

Policy PMD2: Quality Standards 

3.11 The Policy sets out a range of sustainability, placemaking and 

design, accessibility and open space / biodiversity requirements, 

whereby the proposal must: 

• Take appropriate measures to maximise the efficient use 

of energy and resources, in terms of layout, orientation, 

construction and energy supply; 

• Make provision for sustainable drainage; 

• Incorporate appropriate measures for separate storage of 

waste and recycling; 

• Incorporate appropriate landscaping to help integration 

with the surroundings; 

• Create a sense of place, based on a clear understanding 

of context; 

• Be of a scale, massing and height appropriate to the 

surroundings; 

• Be finished externally in materials, the colours and 

textures of which complement the highest quality of 

architecture in the locality; 

• Be compatible with, and respect, the character of the 

surrounding area, neighbouring uses and neighbouring 

built form; 

 

 

 

P
age 402



 
 

 15 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

b) the cumulative impact of new development on the 

character of the building group, and on the landscape and 

amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account 

when determining new applications. Additional 

development within a building group will be refused if, in 

conjunction with other developments in the area, it will 

cause unacceptable adverse impacts, 

c) any consents for new build granted under this part of this 

policy should not exceed two housing dwellings or a 30% 

increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No 

further development above this threshold will be 

permitted.” 

 

3.13 Section B of Policy HD2 addresses development proposals for 

housing related to existing Building Groups. The adopted text of 

section B has been copied below:  

“(B) Dispersed Building Groups 

In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building 

groups comprising 3 houses or more, and a more dispersed 

pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may be 

appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible 

community, economic or environmental benefits. In these cases 

the existence of a sense of place will be the primary 

consideration. 

 

Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed 

building groups that meet the above criteria may be approved 

provided that: 

 

 

a) the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised 

dispersed community in the Southern Borders housing 

market area, 

b) any consents for new build granted under this part of this 

policy should not exceed two housing dwellings in addition 

to the group during the Plan period. No further 

development above this threshold will be permitted, 

c) the design of housing will be subject to the same 

considerations as other types of housing in the countryside 

proposals.” 

 

Policy HD3: Residential Amenity 

3.14 The Policy states that “development that is judged to have an 

adverse impact on the amenity of existing or proposed residential 

areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character 

of these areas, any development will be assessed against: 

a) the principle of the development, including where 

relevant, any open space that would be lost; and 

b) the details of the development itself particularly in terms 

of: 

i. the scale, form, and type of development in terms 

of its fit within a residential area, 

ii. the impact of the proposed development on the 

existing and surrounding properties particularly in 

terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlight 

provisions. These considerations apply  especially in 

relation to garden ground or ‘backland’ 

development, 

iii. the generation of traffic or noise, 

iv. the level of visual impact.” 

 

 

 

 

P
age 403



 
 

 16 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  

Supplementary Guidance 

3.15 The Supplementary Guidance ‘New Housing in the Borders 

Countryside’ includes the following criteria for any new housing in 

the countryside: 

• No adverse effect on the viability of a farming unit or 

conflict with the operations of a working farm; 

• Satisfactory access and other road requirements; 

• Satisfactory public or private water supply and drainage 

facilities; 

• No adverse effect on countryside amenity, landscape or 

nature conservation; 

• No adverse impact on ancient monuments, archaeological 

sites, or on gardens or designed landscapes; 

• Appropriate siting, design and materials in accordance with 

relevant Local Plan policies. 

• The safeguarding of known mineral resources from 

sterilisation unless this is acceptable following an 

assessment of the environmental implications. 

 
 

 

 

 

3.16 The section of the Guidance, which covers the expansion of existing 
Building Groups, states that all applications for new houses at 
existing Building Groups will be tested against an analysis of:  

a) the presence or, otherwise of a group; and 

b) the suitability of that group to absorb new development. 

 
3.17 The Guidance sets out that the existence of a Building Group “will 

be identifiable by a sense of place which will be contributed to by: 

• natural boundaries such as water courses, trees or 

enclosing landform, or 

• man-made boundaries such as existing buildings, roads, 

plantations or means of enclosure.” 

 

 

P
age 404



 
 

 17 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  

P L A N N I N G  A S S E S S M E N T  

P
age 405



 
 

 18 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  P L A N N I N G  A S S E S S M E N T  

Principle of Development 

4.1 The application site lies in a row of existing dwellings. The existing 

dwelling Mos Eisley sits directly adjacent to the south-west of the 

site. In addition to abutting the application site on its north-east 

boundary Mos Eisley also abuts the Old School House upon its 

south-west boundary. In turn the Old School House is flanked by 

Mos Eisley to the north-east and Beadles Cottage to the south-west. 

Bowanhill Farm lies circa 200 metres beyond the application site to 

the north-east while the Old Manse stands circa 300 metres south-

west of Beadles Cottage. 

 

Existing Building Group 

4.2 Given the location of the site adjacent to Mos Eisley, sitting 

contiguous with the existing extent of the minor public, in a row of 

existing dwellings the application site is considered to accord with 

criteria a) of section (A). The tree lined hedgerow boundary planting 

proposed is considered to strengthen this relationship and 

reinforce the sense of place of the existing Building Group (visible 

in Fig.4.) together with Mos Eisley, the Old School House, and 

Beadles Cottage. 

 

4.3 A review of the Council’s online planning records has confirmed 

that no new or existing dwellings have been consented in the 

existing Building Group at Teviothead within the current LDP 

period. The proposal is for the erection of a new dwelling within the 

setting of an existing Building Group comprising three dwellings. 

While details of appearance, layout, and scale are deferred for 

future consideration, the type and form of development proposed 

are considered to be acceptable on the site. 

 

 

 

 

4.4 Views of the site would largely be in profile with the other existing 

dwellings in the Building Group. Views from the A7 to the east are 

almost entirely obscured by mature trees, reinforced by established 

hedgerows which sit elevated above the adopted surface of the 

carriageway. The existing landform would lend profound benefit to 

screening views of the proposed dwelling. Existing views from the 

south are defined by the frontages of Mos Eisley and the Old School 

House. The existing vantages would be reinforced by the new 

dwelling which would strengthen the character of the existing 

Building Group. The River Teviot lies to the east and Bowanhill Farm 

to the north, neither of which are frequented by members of the 

public. In worst case scenario, the proposed dwelling would be nly 

as visible from these vantages as the existing dwelling Mos Eisley. 

 
4.5 Given the limited landscape impacts associated with the proposed 

development, it is considered that an “unacceptable adverse 

impact” would not be created and that the proposal accords with 

criteria b) of section (A). 

 
4.6 The Building Group at Teviothead comprises three existing 

dwellings, extension by two additional dwellings is allowed for by 

the Policy. The proposal is considered to accord with criteria c) of 

section (A) as no new dwellings have been consented within the 

current LDP period and one new dwelling is proposed. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 406



 
 

 19 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

Fig 4: Annotated aerial image of existing Building Group at Teviothead. 

P
age 407



 
 

 20 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  

4.7 The proposal comprises the erection of a new dwelling upon a site 

which is well related an existing Building Group lying within the local 

setting and defined sense of place. There have been no new 

dwellings consented within the current LDP period and it is 

considered that there are no associated significant cumulative 

impacts. Therefore, the principle of development is considered to 

be acceptable as the proposal accords with section (A) of Policy 

HD2. 

 
Dispersed Building Group 

4.8 The application site sits in the core of the Dispersed Building Group, 

facing onto a minor public roads that extends west from the A7. 

Teviothead Village Hall stands opposite Beadles Cottage in the core 

of the group. All existing dwellings and other buildings within the 

Dispersed Building Group lie between the adopted surface of the 

A7 to the east and the channel of the River Teviot to the west – 

including Bowanhill Farm, Teviothead Church, and the Old Manse 

which are associated with the group but with less spatial proximity 

(as seen in Fig.2.). 

 

4.9 It should be noted that the Frostlie Burn flows under the A7 and lies 

between Teviothead Church and the Old Manse to the west and the 

rest of the Dispersed Building Group to the east. However, Frostlie 

Burn is a tributary stream of the River Teviot and neither the banks 

nor channel of the river itself. The Frostlie Burn does not delineate 

the group as Teviothead Church and the Village Hall share a tandem 

and dual-pole relationship at the heart of the local community. 

 

4.10 The new dwelling is proposed in a row of existing dwellings at the 

core of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead. The application 

site sits directly adjacent to the existing dwelling Mos Eisley. 

Bowanhill Farm and its principal farmhouse lie further to the north-

east and further from the core of the group than the proposed 

dwelling. It is considered that the site stands in the core of the 

Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead in the South Borders 

Housing Market Area and satisfies criterion a) of section (B). 

 

4.11 Planning permission has not been granted for any new dwellings in 

the period of the adopted Local Development Plan. As only one new 

dwelling is proposed the proposal is consistent with criterion b) of 

section (B). 

 
4.12 As the Application is for Planning Permission in Principle, detailed 

design is deferred to the next stage of the planning process. 

However, the proposal retains and replicates the existing 

development pattern in the core of the Dispersed Building Group. 

The development pattern of the core very clearly takes the form of 

a row of houses. The row is arranged in direct adjacency with no 

offsetting between curtilage boundaries. This relationship has been 

replicated between the proposed dwelling and Mos Eisley and is 

considered to satisfy criterion c) of section (B). 

 
4.13 The proposal is considered to represent both “self-provided homes” 

(item i.) under criterion c) of NPF4 Policy 16. 

 
 

 

 

P
age 408



 
 

 21 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  4.14 It is considered that there is no prospect of the proposed dwelling 

being delivered by a housebuilder or other corporate developer. 

Development of the proposed dwelling would be delivered on self-

build basis – either by the Applicant or a successor in title. 

Therefore, the proposed dwelling is considered to satisfy item i. in 

criterion c) of Policy 16 as it represents a self-provided home. 

 

4.15 The proposal comprises the erection of a new dwelling upon a site 

within the core of the Dispersed Building Group at Teviothead.  

The site sits in a row of existing dwellings and directly adjacent to 

Mos Eisley. There have been no new dwellings consented within the 

current LDP period. The proposed layout is considered to replicate 

the local pattern of development at Teviothead. Therefore, the 

principle of development is considered to be acceptable as the 

proposal accords with section (B) of Policy HD2 and Policy 16 of 

NPF4. 

 
Residential Amenity 

4.16 The proposal has been prepared to provide for good amenity for 

the occupiers of the proposed dwelling and surrounding dwellings. 

The type of development (a single detached dwelling) is considered 

to be appropriate to the site and the local area. Consideration of 

whether the scale of the proposed development is suitable, is 

deferred for future consideration. However, it is considered that 

the indicative form shown on 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202(C) 

Proposed Site Plan and 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-6201 Proposed 

House Visualisation is broadly representative of appropriate 

development on the site. The site is considered to be sufficient in 

size to comfortably accommodate the proposed dwelling. 

 

 

 

4.17 The location of the site is generally conducive to good residential 

amenity with three existing dwellings forming the core of the 

Dispersed Building Group. Mos Eisley would be the closest existing 

dwelling, sitting adjacent to the south-west behind a stone garden 

wall. The Applicant is content to secure appropriate boundary 

hedging and planting at the subsequent stage of the planning 

process to ensure that the occupants of each dwelling are provided 

with good quality amenity.  

 

4.18 Views of the site from public vantage points are primarily from the 

minor public road across the south-east boundary. The character 

and outlook from these viewpoints are defined by the existing 

dwellings to which they provide access. The character shall be 

reinforced by the proposal. Extensive screening from the A7 is 

already existent which prevents views of the site. Overall the visual 

impact of the proposal on the local area is considered to be slight 

in degree. 

 
4.19 As the proposal provides for good amenity on-site and in the 

surrounding area it is considered to accord with Policy HD3. 

 
Access and Parking 

4.20 Access to the new dwelling is proposed across the south-east 

boundary of the site to the minor public road D170. The existing 

dwellings Mos Eisley and Beadles Cottage take access directly from 

the D170 and the road has the possessive character of residential 

access. 

 

 

 

P
age 409



 
 

 22 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

  

4.21 The road terminates before reaching the north-east boundary of 

the site. The road is not a throughway and ends in a turning head 

which extends partly across the south-east boundary. As a result 

the road is lightly trafficked with no vehicles relying on further 

egress, considered to be safe and acceptable for the proposed 

dwelling. 

 

4.22 The new dwelling is proposed with two parking spaces within its 

residential curtilage, beyond the adopted surface of the minor 

public road. These arrangements are considered to be consistent 

with standards expected by the Council as Public Roads Authority. 

 
Ecology 

4.23 A Preliminary Ecological Assessment of the site has been prepared 

by Ellendale Environmental to support the proposal.  

The Assessment has identified no habitat suitable for protected 

species on-site and relatively little habitat close to the site. No 

further on-site surveys or assessments have been recommended. 

 

4.24 The Assessment detailed general recommendations for supporting 

wildlife and mitigating possible impact during the construction 

phase in section 4.2 & 4.3 which have been accepted by  

the Applicant. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Site Servicing 

4.25 The proposed dwelling will be serviced by connection to a private 

water supply within the Estate. Foul and surface water drainage will 

be managed by connection to private means. The Applicant is 

content to secure connection details via condition. 

 

4.26 The Applicant is committed to delivering sustainable development 

by designing out polluting operations and activity. The Applicant 

envisages incorporating renewable energy (micro) generation 

equipment in the proposed dwelling. Technologies being 

considered at the present time include solar panels, air source heat 

pump, and possibly heat recovery systems designed bespoke for 

the development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 410



 
 

 23 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
  

Fig 5: Extract from 10270-CSY-02-XX-D-A-6201 showing the proposed dwelling in context 
with neighbouring existing dwellings from south-west perspective (Source: CSY Architects). 

P
age 411



 
 

 24 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
 
  

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  

C O N C L U S I O N  

P
age 412



 
 

 25 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
  C O N C L U S I O N  

5.1 Ferguson Planning has been appointed by the Applicant to submit 

an Application for Planning Permission in Principle for erection of a 

new dwelling together with access, garden, and associated works 

on land north of Mos Eisley, Teviothead. 

 

5.2 The proposal represents the enlargement of a Dispersed Building 

Group by one new dwelling upon a site within the sense of place 

and setting of the group. The application site is abutted to the 

south-west by the existing dwelling Mos Eisley which sits in a row 

of three existing dwellings in the core of the Dispersed Building 

Group. The site sits contained within the bookend created by 

Bowanhill Farm to the north-east. No new dwellings have been 

consented within the current LDP period and there are no 

significant cumulative impacts associated with the proposal. 

Therefore, the principle of development is considered to be 

acceptable as the proposal accords with section (B) of Policy HD2. 

 
 

 

 

 

5.3 The proposal supports the sustainable growth of an existing rural 

community and improving house choice in the local area. 

Teviothead is a small existing community which comprises six 

existing dwellings, a church, and a village hall. It is considered that 

the Rural Revitalisation principle applies strongly to Teviothead, 

especially the direction to support rural population growth. The 

proposal is considered to accord with Policy 16 of NPF4. 

 

5.4 Vehicle and pedestrian access to the site is proposed from the D170 

minor public road across the south-east boundary. Two parking 

spaces are included within the proposal. The proposed 

development is considered to be acceptable in transport terms. 

 

5.5 It is considered that the proposal is in accordance with relevant 

adopted policy of the Local Development Plan and is not afflicted 

by any other material considerations. It is respectfully requested 

that planning permission is granted. 

 

 

 

 

P
age 413



 
 

 26 

N E W  D W E L L I N G  A T  T E V I O T H E A D  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

G A L A S H I E L S  E D I N B U R G H  N O R T H E R N  I R E L A N D  

Shiel House 
54 Island Street 
Galashiels TD1 1NU 
 
T: 01896 668 744 
M: 07960 003 358 

37 One George Street 
Edinburgh 
EH2 2HN 
 
T: 0131 385 8801 
M: 07960 003 358 

61 Moyle Road 
Ballycastle, Co. Antrim 
Northern Ireland 
BT54 6LG 
 
 M: 07960 003 358 

E: tim@fergusonplanning.co.uk 

W W W . F E R G U S O N P L A N N I N G . C O . U K  

P
age 414





Buccleuch Estates Ltd 
per Ferguson Planning 
54 Island Street 
Galashiels
Scottish Borders
TD1 1NU

Dear Sir/Madam

Our Ref: 23/01007/PPP
Your Ref:
E-Mail: stuart.small@scotborders.gov.uk
Date: 7th September 2023

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Land East of  Mos Eisley Teviothead Hawick Scottish Borders

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works

APPLICANT: Buccleuch Estates Ltd

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application.

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice.

Yours faithfully

John Hayward

Planning & Development Standards Manager

Please ask
for:

Stuart Small
01835 825055

Page 415

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                         

Regulatory Services

With reference to your application validated on 5th July 2023 for planning permission under the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.

Dated 6th September 2023
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 23/01007/PPP

To :     Buccleuch Estates Ltd per Ferguson Planning 54 Island Street Galashiels Scottish Borders 
TD1 1NU

Proposal :   Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works

at :   Land East of  Mos Eisley Teviothead  Hawick Scottish Borders

Page 416

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


                                         

Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  23/01007/PPP

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved:

Plan Ref Plan Type Plan Status

Location Plan Location Plan Refused
10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202 Proposed Site Plan Refused
10270-CSY-02-XX-D-A-6201 Proposed Elevations Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL

1 The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan
(2016), Policies 9 and 17 of NPF4 (2023) and the New Housing in the Borders Countryside 
Guidance (2008) because it would constitute housing in the countryside that would lead to an 
unjustified sporadic expansion of development into a previously undeveloped field likely leading to 
extension of the group that would adversely affect its character. These policy conflicts are not 
sufficiently overridden by other material considerations.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or 
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval 
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A 
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of 
this notice.  To seek a review of the decision, please complete a request for local review form and return it to 
the Clerk of the Local Review Body, Democratic Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, 
Melrose TD6 OSA.

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority 
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of 
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use 
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the 
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the 
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
Page 417

http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/
https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/762/request_for_local_review


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

REF :   23/01007/PPP 

APPLICANT :   Buccleuch Estates Ltd 

AGENT : Ferguson Planning 

DEVELOPMENT : Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works 

LOCATION:  Land East Of  
Mos Eisley 
Teviothead 
Hawick 
Scottish Borders 

TYPE :  PPP Application 

REASON FOR DELAY:  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DRAWING NUMBERS: 

Plan Ref      Plan Type Plan Status 

A Location Plan  Location Plan Refused
10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202  Proposed Site Plan Refused
10270-CSY-02-XX-D-A-6201  Proposed Elevations Refused 

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 1  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 

Education and Lifelong Learning: No response 

Roads Planning Service: No objection, subject to condition 

I shall have no objections to the principle of this proposal provided a condition is attached to any 
consent given. I would note that given there is an existing field access for the site at the rear of the 
turning head it would be expected that the new access to the property from the public road would also 
be taken from this location as per the proposed site plan drawing no.10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202 rev 
D. 

Environmental Health: No objection, subject to conditions and informatives 

Environmental Health has no objections in principle to the application, however we have the following 
comments to make: 

Private water supply 

The Planning Statement refers to the dwelling being connected to a private water supply on the estate, 
however no further detail is provided at this point. Full details should be submitted in order to ensure 
the development is adequately serviced with a sufficient supply of wholesome water and there are no 
unacceptable impacts upon the amenity of any neighbouring properties. It is therefore recommended 
that the condition provided below (Condition 1) is attached to the consent if granted. The information 

Page 419



required to be submitted to satisfy this condition is provided by the private water supply informative, 
also provided below. 

Private drainage arrangements 

Private drainage arrangements are proposed, however no further detail has been provided at this 
stage. Private drainage systems often cause public health problems when no clear responsibility or 
access rights exist for maintaining the system in a working condition. Problems can also arise when 
new properties connect into an existing system and the rights and duties have not been set down in 
law. It is recommended that a condition is attached to the planning consent requiring evidence to be 
submitted of the arrangements in place to ensure the system will be maintained in a suitable condition. 
Condition 2 is proposed in order to secure this and an informative on how to fulfil this condition is 
provided below. 

Community Council: Observations only 

Generally as a CC we welcome new houses or upgrades to existing buildings in our area as we are 
keen to see more good quality homes to improve the housing stock for residents and more houses 
help to maintain the rural population. There is obviously scope for a few new houses within the 
Teviothead 'village' area. 

This planning application is for a new house on a plot adjacent to existent residences. As this is just an 
application in principle there are no details given of any proposed building but any detail given by the 
applicant would suggest that the plot would be sold on for a 'self provided home' and a fairly 
substantial 2 storey building is envisaged. We would comment that we feel that the biggest 
requirement in our area is for affordable houses, affordable houses to rent that would be suitable for 
older people and families with young children. 

The applicant states that the plot would adjoin 3 existing plots and states "All three existing dwellings 
are detached houses which are bound together by a direct, linear relationship without setoff or 
separation". Whilst this may be true of the plots the dwellings themselves on these plots are well 
separated and each retains its privacy and there is no affect on light or shade between the properties. 
A new 2 storey residence as shown on the site plan would however have a considerable impact on the 
adjoining Mos Eisley both in terms of privacy, views and light. The new house would be much closer to 
its neighbour than the distance separating the existing residences. The morning sunshine especially 
could be completely cut out. As detailed by the owner of Mos Eisley there would be a huge impact on 
privacy. If as mentioned a high hedge was planted on the boundary this may partially mitigate the 
privacy issue but would exacerbate the light and view issues. This would be an unacceptable outcome 
for the residents of Mos Eisley especially given that there are options within the field to provide a site 
which would drastically reduce the impact on the existing residences. 

The application states that the new house would connect to a private water supply. Given the number 
of other properties already reliant on this supply the CC endorses the response from Environmental 
Health and agrees that a full report on the water supply is completed to reassure the existing users 
that the supply will be able to accommodate another user. 

Finally we feel that as well as the owners of Mos Eisley being on the neighbour notification list, the 
residents in the other 2 properties in the 3 existing properties should also have been notified. 

Scottish Water: No objection  

One letter or representation was received from a Mr Richard Mackie, his full objection can be viewed 
on Public Access. In summary the objection letter raised the following concerns: 

- Water Supply 
- Not in keeping with existing buildings 
- Overlooking 
- Loss of Light 
- Loss of Privacy  
- Impact on local nature habitats 

Page 420



PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 

National Planning Framework 4 (2023) 

Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land and empty buildings 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 
Policy 17: Rural Homes 
Policy 18: Infrastructure first 
Policy 22: Flood risk and water management 

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 

PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
HD2: Housing in the Countryside 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP3: Local Biodiversity 
IS2: Development Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment and SUDS 

Supplementary Planning Guidance 

Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Guidance 2005 
Development Contributions Supplementary Planning Guidance 2011 (Updated 2023) 
New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance (2008) 
Privacy and Amenity Supplementary Planning Guidance (2006) 
Placemaking and Design Supplementary Planning Guidance (2010) 

Recommendation by  - Stuart Small  () on 5th September 2023 

This application seeks planning permission in principle for the erection of a dwellinghouse with access and 
associated works at Land East of Mos Eisley, Tevitohead. An indicative site plan and visuals of a proposed 
dwelling have been provided. The application is also supported by a planning statement. The site is 
greenfield land outside of any defined development boundary. The proposed site is not subject to any 
historical or natural designations. 

Assessment 

Principle 

The key policies in which this proposal will be assessed are Local Plan Policy HD2 and NPF4 Policy 17 
which set out the criteria for the acceptability of new houses in the countryside. Only criterion A) of Policy 
HD2 is relevant to this proposal which relates to an existing building group. There are three further tests in 
which the proposal must satisfy to be compliant with criterion A). These are: 

a) the application site must relate well to an existing group of three houses;  
b) the cumulative impact of new development on the  
character of the building group and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into  
account and;  
c) any consents should not exceed two dwellings or a 30% increase to the group during the Plan period. 

It is accepted that there is an existing building group at this location. Part C) of criterion A is satisfied as 
there has been no other development of this building group during the plan period. However, it is proposed 

Page 421



to erect the dwellinghouse on a large undeveloped greenfield plot that could likely result in further pressure 
for more development between Mos Eisley and the existing properties to the north east. Our SPG 
recommends against extending into undeveloped fields, as this one will do. The lack of a strong natural 
boundary between Mos Eisley and the site is not justification in itself for extending into the field. There is no 
natural enclosure to the group in that direction until it meets properties to the north-east. This proposal may 
have limited impact in its own right, being screened from the A7, but it will result in encroachment into the 
field beyond which it would be extremely difficult to resist further development. Any further development 
proposals for housing could make essentially the same case.  Each application must be determined on its 
own merits, but the commencement of development into this field is likely to underpin any future decisions. 
To grant planning permission in principle for a house on this undeveloped greenfield site would amount to 
ribbon development which, though not extending along a public road, would conflict with the form and 
character of the existing building group by risking its future coalescence with the buildings to the north-east. 
This risk would not be appropriately addressed by planting, which is a method of artificially curtailing groups 
that our current SPG does not promote. For this reason the proposal is considered to be contrary to Part A) 
and B) of Criterion A. 

The development of greenfield land conflicts with NPF4 Policy 9 since the proposal does not comply with 
LDP Policy HD2. The proposal also does not satisfy the criteria for the acceptability of rural homes in Policy 
17 of NPF4 and is therefore considered to be contrary to this policy also.  

Visual Impact and Design 

Indicative plans submitted with this application propose a large two storey dwelling but the acceptability of 
this would be considered at the AMC stage and not as part of this application. 

Impact on Residential Amenity 

The proposed site is large and would accommodate ample separation between this property and Mos Eisley 
allowing for little to no harm to residential amenity. It is considered that the proposed development of a 
dwelling on this site could comply with policy HD3 of the Local Development Plan, and the Householder 
Development SPG. Again this would be assessed in full at the AMC stage. 

Parking and Road Safety 

Policy PMD2 requires that development incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles, and 
ensures that there is no adverse impact on road safety. Policy IS7 requires that car parking should be 
provided in accordance with the Council's adopted standards. There is suitable space for two parking 
spaces on this site and the Roads Planning Service have raised no objection subject to conditions. 

Biodiversity and Ecology 

A Preliminary Ecological Assessment was submitted with this application. This found that there were several 
protected/notable species and a large number of bird species within 2km of the site. Suitable mitigation 
would be required should planning permission be granted in the future. The site is not subject to any natural 
heritage designation but given the site is greenfield land a biodiversity enhancement scheme would be 
required. 

Services and Drainage 

The application form states that the proposed dwelling would be connected to a private water supply. 
Scottish Water have confirmed that there is no public water and waste water infrastructure within the vicinity 
of this proposed development. Environmental Health raised no objection to the proposal and confirmed in 
their response that exact details of the private water supply and overall drainage could be secured by 
conditions to comply with Policy IS9. 

Development Contributions 

Development contributions are currently not being sought for this area. 

Page 422



REASON FOR DECISION : 

The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016), 
Policies 9 and 17 of NPF4 (2023) and the New Housing in the Borders Countryside Guidance (2008) 
because it would constitute housing in the countryside that would lead to an unjustified sporadic expansion 
of development into a previously undeveloped field likely leading to extension of the group that would 
adversely affect its character. These policy conflicts are not sufficiently overridden by other material 
considerations. 

Recommendation:  Refused

 1 The development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 
(2016), Policies 9 and 17 of NPF4 (2023) and the New Housing in the Borders Countryside 
Guidance (2008) because it would constitute housing in the countryside that would lead to an 
unjustified sporadic expansion of development into a previously undeveloped field likely leading to 
extension of the group that would adversely affect its character. These policy conflicts are not 
sufficiently overridden by other material considerations. 

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 

Page 423



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 8

Newtown St Boswells Melrose TD6 0SA  Tel: Payments/General Enquiries 01835 825586  Email: regadmin@scotborders.gov.uk 

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.

Thank you for completing this application form:

ONLINE REFERENCE 100633590-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The  Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when 
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Type of Application
What is this application for? Please select one of the following: *

  Application for planning permission (including changes of use and surface  mineral working).

  Application for planning permission in principle.

  Further application, (including renewal of planning permission, modification, variation or removal of a planning condition etc)

  Application for Approval of Matters specified in conditions.

Description of Proposal
Please describe the proposal including any change of use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Is this a temporary permission? *  Yes   No

If a change of use is to be included in the proposal has it already taken place?  Yes   No
(Answer ‘No’ if there is no change of use.) *

Has the work already been started and/or completed? *

 No   Yes – Started   Yes - Completed

Applicant or Agent Details
Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application)  Applicant  Agent

Erection of new dwelling together with access, garden, and associated works

Page 425



Page 2 of 8

Agent Details
Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

First Name: * Building Name:

Last Name: *  Building Number:

Address 1
Telephone Number: * (Street): *

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: *

Fax Number: Country: *

Postcode: *

Email Address: *

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

  Individual    Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details
Please enter Applicant details

Title: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Building Number:

Address 1
Last Name: * (Street): *

Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: *

Extension Number: Country: *

Mobile Number: Postcode: *

Fax Number:

Email Address: *

Ferguson Planning

Ferguson

Planning

Island Street

Shiel House

54

54

Shiel House

per Agent

01896 668744

TD1 1NU

TD1 1NU

Scotland

Scotland

Galashiels

Galashiels

Island Street

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Ruaraidh@fergusonplanning.co.uk

Buccleuch Estates Ltd

Page 426



Page 3 of 8

Site Address Details
Planning Authority: 

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:  

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing Easting

Pre-Application Discussion
Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *  Yes   No

Site Area
Please state the site area:

Please state the measurement type used:  Hectares (ha)   Square Metres (sq.m)

Existing Use
Please describe the current or most recent use: *  (Max 500 characters)

Access and Parking
Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *  Yes   No

If Yes please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing. Altered or new access points, highlighting the changes 
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

1765.00

Agriculture

Scottish Borders Council

Land north of Mos Eisley, Teviothead, TD9 0LG

605458 340554

Page 427



Page 4 of 8

Are you proposing any change to public paths, public rights of way or affecting any public right of access? *  Yes   No

If Yes please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas highlighting the changes you propose to make, including 
arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements
Will your proposal require new or altered water supply or drainage arrangements? *  Yes   No

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (eg. to an existing sewer)? *

  Yes – connecting to public drainage network

  No – proposing to make private drainage arrangements

  Not Applicable – only arrangements for water supply required

As you have indicated that you are proposing to make private drainage arrangements, please provide further details.

What private arrangements are you proposing? *

 New/Altered septic tank.

 Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewage treatment plants, or passive sewage treatment such as a reed bed).

 Other private drainage arrangement (such as chemical toilets or composting toilets).

Please explain your private drainage arrangements briefly here and show more details on your plans and supporting information: *

Do your proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?? *  Yes   No
(e.g. SUDS arrangements) *

Note:- 

Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Selecting ‘No’ to the above question means that you could be in breach of Environmental legislation.

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? *

  Yes

  No, using a private water supply

  No connection required

If No, using a private water supply, please show on plans the supply and all works needed to provide it (on or off site).

Assessment of Flood Risk
Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your application can be 
determined. You may wish to contact your Planning Authority or SEPA for advice on what information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? *  Yes    No   Don’t Know

Application is for Planning Permission in Principle. Applicant content to secure detailed drainage arrangements in subsequent 
phase of planning process.

Page 428



Page 5 of 8

Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *  Yes   No

If Yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if 
any are to be cut back or felled.

All Types of Non Housing Development – Proposed New Floorspace
Does your proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? *  Yes   No

Schedule 3 Development
Does the proposal involve a form of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country  Yes   No   Don’t Know
Planning (Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013 *

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in the area of the development. Your planning 
authority will do this on your behalf but will charge you a fee. Please check the planning authority’s website for advice on the additional 
fee and add this to your planning fee.

If you are unsure whether your proposal involves a form of development listed in Schedule 3, please check the Help Text and Guidance 
notes before contacting your planning authority.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest
Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an  Yes    No
elected member of the planning authority? *

Certificates and Notices
CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 – TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? *  Yes    No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? *  Yes    No

Do you have any agricultural tenants? *  Yes    No

Are you able to identify and give appropriate notice to ALL the other owners? *   Yes    No

Certificate Required
The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate B

Page 429



Page 6 of 8

Land Ownership Certificate
Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) 
Regulations 2013

I hereby certify that 

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner [Note 4] of any part of the land to which the application relates at the 
beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application; 

or –

(1) - I have/The Applicant has served notice on every person other than myself/the applicant who, at the beginning of the period of 21 
days ending with the date of the accompanying application was owner [Note 4] of any part of the land to which the application relates.

Name:

Address:

Date of Service of Notice: *

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding;

or –

(2) - The land or part of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding and I have/the 
applicant has served notice on every person other than myself/himself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the 
date of the accompanying application was an agricultural tenant.  These persons are:

Name:

Address:

Date of Service of Notice: *

Signed: Ferguson Planning

On behalf of: Buccleuch Estates Ltd

Date: 04/07/2023

 Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Scottish Borders CouncilCouncil Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose, Scotland, TD6 0SA

04/07/2023

Page 430



Page 7 of 8

Checklist – Application for Planning Permission
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information 
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed 
invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.

a) If this is a further application where there is a variation of conditions attached to a previous consent, have you provided a statement to 
that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

b) If this is an application for planning permission or planning permission in principal where there is a crown interest in the land, have 
you provided a statement to that effect? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

c) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle or a further application and the application is for 
development belonging to the categories of national or major development (other than one under Section 42 of the planning Act), have 
you provided a Pre-Application Consultation Report? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013

d) If this is an application for planning permission and the application relates to development belonging to the categories of national or 
major developments and you do not benefit from exemption under Regulation 13 of The Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013, have you provided a Design and Access Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

e) If this is an application for planning permission and relates to development belonging to the category of local developments (subject 
to regulation 13. (2) and (3) of the Development Management Procedure (Scotland) Regulations 2013) have you provided a Design 
Statement? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

f) If your application relates to installation of an antenna to be employed in an electronic communication network, have you provided an 
ICNIRP Declaration? *
 Yes   No   Not applicable to this application

g) If this is an application for planning permission, planning permission in principle, an application for approval of matters specified in 
conditions or an application for mineral development, have you provided any other plans or drawings as necessary:

  Site Layout Plan or Block plan.

  Elevations.

  Floor plans.

  Cross sections.

  Roof plan.

  Master Plan/Framework Plan.

  Landscape plan.

  Photographs and/or photomontages.

  Other.

If Other, please specify: *  (Max 500 characters) 

Illustrative Streetscape

Page 431



Page 8 of 8

Provide copies of the following documents if applicable:

A copy of an Environmental Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Design Statement or Design and Access Statement. *  Yes   N/A

A Flood Risk Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

A Drainage Impact Assessment (including proposals for Sustainable Drainage Systems). *  Yes   N/A

Drainage/SUDS layout. *  Yes   N/A

A Transport Assessment or Travel Plan  Yes   N/A

Contaminated Land Assessment. *  Yes   N/A

Habitat Survey. *  Yes   N/A

A Processing Agreement. *  Yes   N/A

Other Statements (please specify). (Max 500 characters)

Declare – For Application to Planning Authority
I, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application to the planning authority as described in this form. The accompanying
Plans/drawings and additional information are provided as a part of this application.

Declaration Name: - Ferguson Planning

Declaration Date: 04/07/2023
 

Planning Statement

Page 432



Location Plan - Existing
(1:2500)

Drain

Old
The

170.7m

Mos Eisley

Bowanhill

House

Hall

173.1m

LB

Bowan Hill

Rive
r T

ev
iot Henderson's Knowe

Cottage
177.6m

School

Track

Sinks

Beadles

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

N

scale:

title:

client:

project:

status:

date:

drawn:

number:

BERWICK 9 West Street  TD15 1AS  01289 541 173
DALKEITH 98 High Street  EH22 1HZ  0131 663 9735
GALASHIELS 1 Wilderhaugh  TD1 1QJ 01896 753077

@ A3

Disclaimer:
This generation of drawings is for the stated purpose only and
should not be used for any other purpose without the originators
consent.  Do not scale from this drawing.

suitability: rev:

- - - - - -

Buccleuch Estates
Borders

10367
Teviothead - Bowanhill

Site Location Plan

PPP

1:2500

ZM

23/05/2023

CSY XX XX D A 1201
C

10000

0 50

scalebar - 1:2500

100m

Revisions :

A: 06.06.23-ZM. Blue line added
B: 07.06.23-ZM. Red and blue lines clarified
C: 21.06.23-ZM. Boundary line clarified

P
age 433



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 435

A
genda Item

 8b



P
age 436



P
age 437



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Upper Teviotdale and Borthwick Water Community Council

Chairman: Mr Walter Douglas Secretary:
Carlenrig Farm
Teviothead
HAWICK  TD9 0LH

Observations and response to planning application 23/01007/PPP

Generally as a CC we welcome new houses or upgrades to existing buildings in our area as
we are keen to see more good quality homes to improve the housing stock for residents
and more houses help to maintain the rural population.

There is obviously scope for a few new houses within the Teviothead ‘village’ area.

This planning application is for a new house on a plot adjacent to existent residences. As
this is just an application in principle there are no details given of any proposed building but
any detail given by the applicant would suggest that the plot would be sold on for a ‘self
provided home’ and a fairly substantial 2 storey building is envisaged. We would comment
that we feel that the biggest requirement in our area is for affordable houses, affordable
houses to rent that would be suitable for older people and families with young children.

The applicant states that the plot would adjoin 3 existing plots and states “All three existing
dwellings are detached houses which are bound together by a direct, linear relationship
without setoff or separation”. Whilst this may be true of the plots the dwellings themselves
on these plots are well separated and each retains its privacy and there is no affect on light
or shade between the properties. A new 2 storey residence as shown on the site plan would
however have a considerable impact on the adjoining Mos Eisley both in terms of privacy,
views and light. The new house would be much closer to its neighbour than the distance
separating the existing residences. The morning sunshine especially could be completely
cut out. As detailed by the owner of Mos Eisley there would be a huge impact on privacy. If
as mentioned a high hedge was planted on the boundary this may partially mitigate the
privacy issue but would exacerbate the light and view issues. This would be an
unacceptable outcome for the residents of Mos Eisley especially given that there are
options within the field to provide a site which would drastically reduce the impact on the
existing residences.

The application states that the new house would connect to a private water supply. Given
the number of other properties already reliant on this supply the CC endorses the response
from Environmental Health and agrees that a full report on the water supply is completed
to reassure the existing users that the supply will be able to accommodate another user.

Finally we feel that as well as the owners of Mos Eisley being on the neighbour notification
list, the residents in the other 2 properties in the 3 existing  properties should also have
been notified.

Page 439

Agenda Item 8c



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, 13 July 2023 
 

 

 

Local Planner 
Development Management 
Scottish Borders Council 
Newtown St. Boswells 
TD6 0SA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Customer, 
 

Land East Of Mos Eisley, Teviothead, Hawick, TD9 0LQ 

Planning Ref: 23/01007/PPP  

Our Ref: DSCAS-0090512-RPV 

Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works 
 

 
Please quote our reference in all future correspondence 

 

Audit of Proposal 

Scottish Water has no objection to this planning application; however, the applicant should be 
aware that this does not confirm that the proposed development can currently be serviced. 
Please read the following carefully as there may be further action required. Scottish Water 
would advise the following: 
 
 

Water Assessment 
 

 Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Water 
infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we would 
advise applicant to investigate private options.  
 

Foul Assessment 
 

 Unfortunately, according to our records there is no public Scottish Water, Waste 
Water infrastructure within the vicinity of this proposed development therefore we 
would advise applicant to investigate private treatment options.  

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Development Operations 

The Bridge 

Buchanan Gate Business Park 

Cumbernauld Road 

Stepps 

Glasgow 

G33 6FB 

 

Development Operations 
Freephone  Number - 0800 3890379 

E-Mail - DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk 
www.scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

Page 440

mailto:DevelopmentOperations@scottishwater.co.uk


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Please Note 
 

 The applicant should be aware that we are unable to reserve capacity at our water 
and/or waste water treatment works for their proposed development. Once a formal 
connection application is submitted to Scottish Water after full planning permission 
has been granted, we will review the availability of capacity at that time and advise 
the applicant accordingly. 

 

 
 

 

Surface Water 
 
For reasons of sustainability and to protect our customers from potential future sewer 
flooding, Scottish Water will not accept any surface water connections into our combined 
sewer system. 
 
There may be limited exceptional circumstances where we would allow such a connection 
for brownfield sites only, however this will require significant justification from the customer 
taking account of various factors including legal, physical, and technical challenges. 
 
In order to avoid costs and delays where a surface water discharge to our combined sewer 
system is anticipated, the developer should contact Scottish Water at the earliest opportunity 
with strong evidence to support the intended drainage plan prior to making a connection 
request. We will assess this evidence in a robust manner and provide a decision that reflects 
the best option from environmental and customer perspectives.  
 

General notes: 
 

 Scottish Water asset plans can be obtained from our appointed asset plan providers: 
 

 Site Investigation Services (UK) Ltd 
 Tel: 0333 123 1223   
 Email: sw@sisplan.co.uk 
 www.sisplan.co.uk 

 
 Scottish Water’s current minimum level of service for water pressure is 1.0 bar or 

10m head at the customer’s boundary internal outlet.  Any property which cannot be 
adequately serviced from the available pressure may require private pumping 
arrangements to be installed, subject to compliance with Water Byelaws. If the 
developer wishes to enquire about Scottish Water’s procedure for checking the water 
pressure in the area, then they should write to the Customer Connections department 
at the above address. 

 
 If the connection to the public sewer and/or water main requires to be laid through 

land out-with public ownership, the developer must provide evidence of formal 
approval from the affected landowner(s) by way of a deed of servitude. 
 

 Scottish Water may only vest new water or waste water infrastructure which is to be 
laid through land out with public ownership where a Deed of Servitude has been 
obtained in our favour by the developer. 
 

Page 441

http://www.sisplan.co.uk/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 The developer should also be aware that Scottish Water requires land title to the 
area of land where a pumping station and/or SUDS proposed to vest in Scottish 
Water is constructed. 
 

 Please find information on how to submit application to Scottish Water at our 
Customer Portal. 

 
 

Next Steps:  
 

 All Proposed Developments 
 
All proposed developments require to submit a Pre-Development Enquiry (PDE) 
Form to be submitted directly to Scottish Water via our Customer Portal prior to any 
formal Technical Application being submitted. This will allow us to fully appraise the 
proposals. 

 
Where it is confirmed through the PDE process that mitigation works are necessary 
to support a development, the cost of these works is to be met by the developer, 
which Scottish Water can contribute towards through Reasonable Cost Contribution 
regulations. 
 

 Non Domestic/Commercial Property:  
 
Since the introduction of the Water Services (Scotland) Act 2005 in April 2008 the 
water industry in Scotland has opened to market competition for non-domestic 
customers.  All Non-domestic Household customers now require a Licensed Provider 
to act on their behalf for new water and waste water connections. Further details can 
be obtained at www.scotlandontap.gov.uk  

 

 Trade Effluent Discharge from Non-Domestic Property: 
 

 Certain discharges from non-domestic premises may constitute a trade 

effluent in terms of the Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968.  Trade effluent arises 

from activities including; manufacturing, production and engineering; vehicle, 

plant and equipment washing, waste and leachate management. It covers 

both large and small premises, including activities such as car washing and 

launderettes. Activities not covered include hotels, caravan sites or 

restaurants.  

 If you are in any doubt as to whether the discharge from your premises is 

likely to be trade effluent, please contact us on 0800 778 0778 or email 

TEQ@scottishwater.co.uk using the subject “Is this Trade Effluent?".  

Discharges that are deemed to be trade effluent need to apply separately for 

permission to discharge to the sewerage system.  The forms and application 

guidance notes can be found here. 

 Trade effluent must never be discharged into surface water drainage systems 

as these are solely for draining rainfall run off. 

 For food services establishments, Scottish Water recommends a suitably 

sized grease trap is fitted within the food preparation areas, so the 

Page 442

https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/business-and-developers/development-services
http://www.scotlandontap.gov.uk/
https://www.scottishwater.co.uk/en/Help-and-Resources/Document-Hub/


 
 

 
 
 
 
 

development complies with Standard 3.7 a) of the Building Standards 

Technical Handbook and for best management and housekeeping practices 

to be followed which prevent food waste, fat oil and grease from being 

disposed into sinks and drains. 

 The Waste (Scotland) Regulations which require all non-rural food 

businesses, producing more than 5kg of food waste per week, to segregate 

that waste for separate collection. The regulations also ban the use of food 

waste disposal units that dispose of food waste to the public sewer. Further 

information can be found at www.resourceefficientscotland.com 

 

I trust the above is acceptable however if you require any further information regarding this 
matter please contact me on 0800 389 0379 or via the e-mail address below or at 
planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk.  
 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Ruth Kerr. 

Development Services Analyst 

PlanningConsultations@scottishwater.co.uk 

 

 

 
Scottish Water Disclaimer:  
 
“It is important to note that the information on any such plan provided on Scottish Water’s 
infrastructure, is for indicative purposes only and its accuracy cannot be relied upon.  When the 
exact location and the nature of the infrastructure on the plan is a material requirement then you 
should undertake an appropriate site investigation to confirm its actual position in the ground and 
to determine if it is suitable for its intended purpose.  By using the plan you agree that Scottish 
Water will not be liable for any loss, damage or costs caused by relying upon it or from carrying 
out any such site investigation." 

Page 443

http://www.resourceefficientscotland.com/
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk
mailto:planningconsultations@scottishwater.co.uk


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by 

Officer Name and Post: Contact e-mail/number: 

 Environmental Health 
Craig Liddle 

PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk 

Date of reply 26 July 2023 Consultee reference: 23/01738/PLANCO 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01007/PPP Case Officer: 
Stuart Small      

Applicant Buccleuch Estates Ltd  

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works 

Site Location Land East Of Mos Eisley Teviothead Hawick Scottish Borders  
 

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

The applicant proposes the erection of a single dwelling on agricultural land.  The 
site is located within a rural location adjacent to a group of existing dwellings. 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

• Private water supply 

• Private drainage arrangements 
 

Assessment Environmental Health has no objections in principle to the application, however we 
have the following comments to make: 
 
Private water supply 
 
The Planning Statement refers to the dwelling being connected to a private water 
supply on the estate, however no further detail is provided at this point.  Full details 
should be submitted in order to ensure the development is adequately serviced with 
a sufficient supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts 
upon the amenity of any neighbouring properties.  It is therefore recommended that 
the condition provided below (Condition 1) is attached to the consent if granted.  
The information required to be submitted to satisfy this condition is provided by the 
private water supply informative, also provided below. 
 
Private drainage arrangements 
 
Private drainage arrangements are proposed, however no further detail has been 
provided at this stage.  Private drainage systems often cause public health 
problems when no clear responsibility or access rights exist for maintaining the 
system in a working condition.  Problems can also arise when new properties 
connect into an existing system and the rights and duties have not been set down 
in law.  It is recommended that a condition is attached to the planning consent 
requiring evidence to be submitted of the arrangements in place to ensure the 
system will be maintained in a suitable condition.  Condition 2 is proposed in order 
to secure this and an informative on how to fulfil this condition is provided below. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object  Do not object, 
subject to 
conditions 

 Further information 

required 

Page 444

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

Recommended 
Conditions 

1. No development is to commence until a report has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Planning Authority, demonstrating the provision of an 
adequate water supply to the development in terms of quality and quantity. The 
report must also detail all mitigation measures to be delivered to secure the 
quality, quantity and continuity of water supplies to properties in the locality 
which are served by private water supplies and which may be affected by the 
development. The provisions of the approved report shall be implemented prior 
to the occupation of the building(s) hereby approved. 

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is adequately serviced with a 
sufficient supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts 
upon the amenity of any neighbouring properties. 
 

2. No development should commence until the applicant has provided evidence 
that arrangements are in place to ensure that the private drainage system will be 
maintained in a serviceable condition.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect on 
amenity and public health. 
 

 

Recommended 
Informatives 

Private water supply 
 
To fulfil this Condition (Condition1), the following information should be provided: 

1. A description of the source(s) / type of the supply – i.e. whether the supply 
is taken from a watercourse, loch, spring, well or borehole, or any other 
source or combination of sources. 
 

2. The location of the source(s) of the supply – i.e. the appropriate eight figure 
Ordnance Survey National Grid Reference(s). 

 
3. The estimated maximum average volume of water provided by the supply in 

cubic metres per day (m³/day), including the details of any pump tests / flow 
rate tests undertaken to determine this estimate. For boreholes / wells, refer 
to BS ISO 14686:2003 “Hydrometric determinations - Pumping tests for 
water wells - Considerations and guidelines for design, performance and 
use”. 

 

4. The intended use of the proposed building(s) – e.g. owner-occupied 
domestic dwelling(s), rented domestic dwelling(s), holiday accommodation, 
etc. 

 
5. Where there are existing users of the supply: 
a) the addresses of all properties served; 
b) the existing occupancy levels of all such properties, as far as is reasonably 

practicable. As a minimum, the provision of the number of bedrooms per 
property will allow an estimate to be made of potential occupancy levels; 

c) the current use of all properties served – i.e. as above; 
d) information identifying if and how the development will impact on the 

existing users; and 
e) the details of any mitigating measures to be implemented to ensure the 

quality, quantity and continuity of the water supply to the existing users will 
be secured. 
 

Page 445

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

6. Where there are other properties’ private water supplies in the vicinity of the 
development that may be affected thereby (e.g. neighbouring boreholes, 
wells, springs, etc.): 

a) information identifying if and how the development will impact on these 
other supplies; and 

b) the details of any mitigating measures to be implemented to ensure the 
quality, quantity and continuity of the water supply to these other properties 
will be secured.  
 

7. Details of all laboratory analysis / tests carried out to demonstrate that the 
water supplied to the development will be wholesome. For clarification, the 
quality of the water throughout the building(s) must conform to the 
requirements of the legislative provisions appropriate to the use of the 
supply, as described below. 
 

8. Details of all water treatment systems to be installed to ensure that the 
water supplied to the development will be wholesome. 

 
For information, the minimum daily volume of water that requires to be supplied by 
a private water supply must be equivalent to 200 litres of water per person per day 
who will be using the supply. It is the provision of this quantity that must be ensured 
and, as such, water storage facilities may be necessary for this purpose. When 
designing storage facilities, the minimum recommended capacity is three days’ 
reserve, in order to allow for supply interruption / failure. 
 
If the supply only serves owner-occupied domestic dwellings, it will be classed as 
an “Exempt” (formerly “Type B”) private water supply and the quality of the water 
must comply with the requirements of The Private Water Supplies (Scotland) 
Regulations 2006 (“the 2006 Regulations”). If there is any commercial use of the 
supply, it will be classed as a “Regulated” supply and the water quality must comply 
with the requirements of The Water Intended for Human Consumption (Private 
Supplies) (Scotland) Regulations 2017 (“the 2017 Regulations”). Additionally, the 
supply will require to be sampled (monitored) on at least an annual basis and 
Scottish Borders Council will be required to undertake a risk assessment of the 
supply and reviews of said risk assessment periodically. 
 
Finally, if for any reason the supply to be used is or will be a Regulated supply, it is 
an offence for the development to use it unless a risk assessment (or a review of an 
existing risk assessment) has been carried out by Scottish Borders Council at least 
8 weeks before said intended first use by the development. It is also an offence for 
the development to use the supply prior to Scottish Borders Council confirming (by 
notice to the applicant) that it may be used by the development, on the basis that 
the intended use does not constitute a potential danger to human health. As such, 
the applicant must contact the Environmental Health Department of Scottish 
Borders Council sufficiently in advance of the intended occupation of the building(s) 
to ensure that compliance with these legislative provisions is able to be secured. 
 
Private drainage system 
 
Private drainage systems often impact on amenity and cause other problems when 
no clear responsibility or access rights exist for maintaining the system in a working 
condition. Problems can also arise when new properties connect into an existing 
system and the rights and duties have not been set down in law. To discharge the 
Condition relating to the private drainage arrangements, the Applicant should 
produce documentary evidence that the maintenance duties on each dwelling 

Page 446

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk  

 

served by the system have been clearly established by way of a binding legal 
agreement. Access rights should also be specified. 
 
 

 
 

Page 447

http://www.scotborders.gov.uk/


Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA 
Customer Services:  0300 100 1800    www.scotborders.gov.uk

REF: 23/01007/PPP Page 1 of 1 

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 

PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION 

Comments provided 
by Roads Planning Service

Officer Name, Post 
and Contact Details 

Ryan Johnston 
Roads Planning Technician

ryan.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 826999 

Date of reply 07/08/2023 Consultee reference: 

Planning Application 
Reference 

23/01007/PPP Case Officer: 
Stuart Small      

Applicant Buccleuch Estates Ltd

Agent Ferguson Planning 

Proposed 
Development 

Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works 

Site Location Land East Of  Mos Eisley Teviothead Hawick Scottish Borders  

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application 
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be 
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations. 

Background and  
Site description 

Key Issues 
(Bullet points) 

Assessment I shall have no objections to the principle of this proposal provided a condition 
similar to the one below is attached to any consent given. 

I would note that given there is an existing field access for the site at the rear of the 
turning head it would be expected that the new access to the property from the 
public road would also be taken from this location as per the proposed site plan 
drawing no.10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1202 rev D. 

Recommendation  Object  Do not object Do not object, 
subject to conditions

Further 
information required

Recommended 
Conditions 

Parking and turning for two vehicles, excluding garages, must be provided within 
the curtilage of the plot before the dwellinghouse is occupied and retained 
thereafter in perpetuity. The parking area formed should be a minimum of 6 metres 
by 3 metres per space and the gradient should be no steeper than 1 in 12, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing with the Council. 
Reason: To ensure the property is served by adequate parking at all times. 

Recommended 
Informatives 

Signed: DJI 

Page 448

mailto:ryan.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk


Page 449

Agenda Item 8d



2

new property. One of which would be directly facing the new building and a balcony/balcony door directly
overlooking it (image 3,4,5 and 6)

Also from the plans, the proposed building is significantly larger than the existing three. It certainly appears to
be much larger than Mos Eisley which is currently the largest of the three buildings having formally been a
school. The proposed building looks to be almost double the size of The Old School House and Beadle’s cottage.
It should be noted that the building at the West of The Old School House is a shed and not part of the house
itself. Is there an estimated square footage of the proposed new building? And how does it compare to the
existing three?

3. Overlooking
As can be seen from image 7, Mos Eisley has a balcony at the East side of the building. This balcony clearly
overlooks the entirety of the proposed development. While the proposed building terminates prior to the
balcony, should one be constructed, there will still be clear privacy issues for both buildings. There couldn’t be a
better example of one property overlooking another.

4.Light

While I note from the plans that the proposed property terminates about midway the length of Mos Eisley, a
hedge row etc. at such close proximity to maintain privacy would have a large negative effect on the natural
light coming in to Mos Eisley. It should be noted that image 3, 4, 5 and 6 were all taken while standing on the
proposed site. This shows just how close a hedge row would be at the boundary on the proposed  development.
Any foliage extending above the existing wall will negatively affect the light coming into these windows and glass
door.
Please note that the kitchen door (image 4), while not the front door,  is the main entrance to Mos Eisley. This
door and the surrounding windows are the largest that allow light to enter the kitchen. Image 5 Is the only
window into our utility room which would also be negatively affected. Image 3 is a living room window which
will also be negatively affected not just by foliage, but by the proposed building itself.
It seems to me that should the proposal go ahead, residents of Mos Eisley will be left with the choice to either
significantly lose light or significantly lose privacy.

5. Privacy

One of my biggest concerns regarding the proposed development is privacy. As you can see form image 8,
Anyone stood on the rear of the proposed property will have a direct view up to the balcony of Mos Eisley. The
access door to the balcony opens into the master bedroom of Mos Eisley. My wife and I choose to have this
door open most of the time and leave it open through the night the year round.
Even if the proposed development has no windows directly facing Mos Eisley, anyone just standing on the site in
the garden to the rear will have a clear view of the balcony and straight into my bedroom. Image 8 was also
taken while standing on the proposed site. There is a clear view into the bedroom and you can clearly see one of
my children sitting on my bed. Image 9 was taken from the back of the bedroom and shows a clear view through
to the proposed site.
It would take a tree line of almost forty feet to maintain privacy to the bedroom which would obviously come
with an even more unacceptable loss of light.
I consider a new property to be located here to be one of the grossest intrusions of privacy imaginable and I
urge you to reject the proposal.

6. Rare/endangered species

I believe that the survey to check for rare and endangered species is inadequate. Prior to Mos Eisley being
occupied, a section of wall on the boundary began to fall. Rather than repair it, the local farmer at the time

Page 450



Page 451



P
age 452



P
age 453



P
age 454



P
age 455



P
age 456



P
age 457



P
age 458



P
age 459



P
age 460



Page 461



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
26th February 2024 
 
 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00053/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 23/01007/PPP 
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse with access and associated works 
Location: Land East of Mos Eisley, Teviothead 
Applicant: Buccleuch Estates Ltd 
 
National Planning Framework 4 
 
Policy 1: Tackling the Climate and Nature Crises 
Policy 2: Climate Mitigation and Adaptation 
Policy 3: Biodiversity 
Policy 9: Brownfield, vacant and derelict land and empty buildings 
Policy 11: Energy 
Policy 14: Design, Quality and Place 
Policy 16: Quality Homes 
Policy 17: Rural Homes 
Policy 18: Infrastructure first 
Policy 22: Flood risk and water management 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016 (LDP) 
 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality Standards 
HD2: Housing in the Countryside 
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity 
EP3: Local Biodiversity 
IS2: Development Contributions 
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards 
IS9: Waste Water Treatment and SUDS 
 
Other Material Considerations: 
 
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on; 

• Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Guidance 2005 
• Development Contributions Supplementary Planning Guidance 2011 (Updated 2023) 
• New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance 2008 
• Privacy and Amenity Supplementary Planning Guidance 2006 
• Placemaking and Design Supplementary Planning Guidance 2010 

 
 

Page 463

Agenda Item 8e



This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of Review

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (AS
AMENDED)IN RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THETOWN AND COUNTRYPLANNING(SCHEMESOFDELEGATIONAND LOCAL REVIEWPROCEDURE)
(SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 20 13

IMPORTANT: Failure to supply all the relevant information could invalidate your notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicant(s) Agent (if any)

Name Name

Address Address

Postcode Postcode

Contact Telephone 1 Contact Telephone 1
Contact Telephone 2 Contact Telephone 2
E-mail* E-mail*

Mark this box to confirm all contact should be through
this representative:

Ye s No

*Do you agree to correspondence regarding your review being sent by e-mail?

Planning authority

Planning authorityʼs application reference number

Site address

Description of proposed
development

Date of application Date of decision (if any)

Page 1 of 4

Julie Harrison

Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles

EH45 9HE

Scottish Borders Council

23/00225/FUL

Replacement Windows

27/1/2023 8/12/2023

Page 465

Agenda Item 9a



Notice of Review
Note: this notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision notice or
from the date of expiry of the period allowed for determining the application.

Nature of application

1. Application for planning permission (including householder application)

2. Application for planning permission in principle

3. Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been
imposed; renewal of planning permission; and/or modification, variation or removal of a planning
condition)

4. Application for approval of matters specified in conditions

Reasons for seeking review (tick one box)

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

2. Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for determination of
the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time
during the review process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine
the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, such as:
written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions; and/or inspecting the land which is the
subject of the review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) you think is most appropriate for the handling of your
review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a combination of procedures.

1. Further written submissions

2. One or more hearing sessions

3. Site inspection

4 Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure

If you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement below) you
believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consider further submissions or a hearing are necessary:

Site inspection

In the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspect the review site, in your opinion:
Yes No

1. Can the site be viewed entirely from public land?

2 Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely, and without barriers to entry?

If there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site
inspection, please explain here:

Page 2 of 4

Internal state of windows not visible from outside.  Not all windows visible without
entering private lane.  One of windows is not visible from any external location.

Location of property on a private road, state of current bedroom windows.

Page 466



Notice of Review
Statement

You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review of your application. Your statement must set out all matters
you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not have a further
opportunity to add to your statement of review at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your
notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely on and wish the Local Review Body to
consider as part of your review.

If the Local Review Body issues a notice requesting further information from any other person or body, you will have
a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can be
continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation with this form.

Yes No
Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the
determination on your application was made?

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising new material, why it was not raised with the
appointed officer before your application was determined and why you consider it should now be considered in your
review.

Page 3 of 4

This is to support our planning appeal related to correspondence ongoing with Scottish Borders Council (SBC) since
our applications were submitted back in January 2023.  This only relates to the replacement windows part of our
proposals – SBC have intimated that other aspects of our proposals are acceptable.
Throughout the process we have requested clarity on whether uPVC would be allowed and although we received
nothing concrete to confirm whether this was allowed,now had confirmation that only Timber sash and case
replacements are acceptable to SBC.  This was provided on 17/10/23, although we’ ve been asking for clear
guidance from the start.  We have no issue with matching the replacement windows to the style and also the size of
the double glazing unit, our only point of contention is the material being timber rather than uPVC.  SBC have now
formally rejected our proposals which allows us to progress an appeal.  Given the following we wish to appeal:
? uPVC provides better thermal efficiency, requires less maintenance, is less prone to impacts of weather and is
also cheaper (both to replace and maintain)
? Our property is located in a private lane and is only partially visible to our neighbours who have raised no
objections to our plans.  The frontage is only visible to neighbours in Kingsmuir Hall (3 flats, 1 on each floor of the
original Hall).  The rear is only accessible to us and is only visible to Lower Kingsmuir Hall occupants if they are in
their garden or from the top floor of Kingsmuir House if guests in the property should be looking out of their windows.
? Peebles Civic Society have not objected to replacement with uPVC
? We have continued to maintain our commitment to replacements that are sympathetic to the existing historic style
of the building and in keeping with the existing size, style and appearance
? Replacement will improve the current look by removing external aluminium secondary glazing that exists on some
windows
? We are endeavouring to reduce the impact of our home on the environment aligned to the climate emergency and
we feel this aligns to what Scottish Government is also trying to achieve
? Neighbouring building has already had uPVC windows installed that are not aligned to historic style which were
retrospectively approved
? Other properties that are located in the conservation area and on main roads, and therefore more visible, have
been allowed uPVC replacements that do retain the historic style.  An example is the recently approved plans for 9A
Bonnington Road.  The replacements look great, retain the historic look and do not detract from the appearance of
the overall building where the lower flat retains historic timber sash and case.
? We are unclear who would have special interest in us replacing with timber and how that would manifest in the
future – would we expect our property to be examined in some way by these interested parties to study the timber
sash and case windows given they wouldn’ t be original?  Who are these interested parties?
? It does feel like there is more interest in the past, rather than the future of our home and the impact it continues to
have on the environment
? Internet searches of our property have returned no historical references to understand why our home would be of
special interest to anyone.  The only returned results relate to the listing, rather than the property history
? Given the recent Scottish Govt ‘ Proposals for a Heat in Buildings Bill’ Consultation paper anything that helps
us achieve optimal efficiency in our home allows us to bring our home up to spec and achieve an EPC rating in the
future that meets climate crisis objectives

We have worked towards compromising by applying with timber sash and case replacements in the front of the
property, but to no avail.  We have also requested a site visit to work with SBC and make it clear how little visibility
our property has to others except our neighbours, but have been told that wouldn’ t be possible.  We would
welcome a site visit to make it clear the current state of our windows, especially in the upstairs rear bedrooms, and
the location / visibility of the property to others.

Page 467



Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit
with your notice of review and intend to rely on in support of your review. Note: there will be no
opportunity to submit further documents to accompany this notice of review.

Note: the planning authority will make a copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any notice of the
procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until such time as the review is
determined. It may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropriate boxes to confirm you have provided all supporting documents and evidence relevant to
your review:

Full completion of all parts of this form

Statement of your reasons for requiring a review

All documents, materials and evidence which you intend to rely on (e.g. plans and drawings or other
documents) which are now the subject of this review.

Note: where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation
or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions,
it is advisable to provide the application reference number, approved plans and decision notice from that earlier
consent.

Declaration

I the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the planning authority to review the
application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Signed Date

Page 4 of 4

Planning Appeal Supporting Letter
CORRESPONDENCE VIA EMAIL WITH SCOTTISH BORDERS PLANNING DEPT

The completed form should be returned to the Clerk of the Local Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council
Headquarters, Newtown St. Boswells TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk

18/12/2023

Page 468



Middle House 

Kingsmuir Hall 

Bonnington Road 

Peebles 

EH45 9HE 

28 October 2023 

Sco�sh Government's Division of Planning and Environmental Appeals Division

Planning and Environmental Appeals Division 
Ground Floor 
Hadrian House 
Callendar Business Park 
Callendar Road 
Falkirk 
FK1 1XR 

Dear Sir / Madam 

Ref 23/00225/FUL and 23/00140/LBC for address above 

This le�er is to support our planning appeal related to correspondence ongoing with Sco�sh Borders 

Council (SBC) since our applica�ons were submi�ed back in January 2023.  This only relates to the 

replacement windows part of our proposals – SBC have in�mated that other aspects of our proposals 

are acceptable. 

Throughout the process we have requested clarity on whether uPVC would be allowed and although 

we received nothing concrete to confirm whether this was allowed, we’ve now had confirma�on that 

only Timber sash and case replacements are acceptable to SBC.  This was provided on 17/10/23, 

although we’ve been asking for clear guidance from the start.  We have no issue with matching the 

replacement windows to the style and also the size of the double glazing unit, our only point of 

conten�on is the material being �mber rather than uPVC.  SBC have now formally rejected our 

proposals which allows us to progress an appeal.  Given the following we wish to appeal: 

 uPVC provides be�er thermal efficiency, requires less maintenance, is less prone to impacts 

of weather and is also cheaper (both to replace and maintain) 

 Our property is located in a private lane and is only par�ally visible to our neighbours who 

have raised no objec�ons to our plans.  The frontage is only visible to neighbours in 

Kingsmuir Hall (3 flats, 1 on each floor of the original Hall).  The rear is only accessible to us 

and is only visible to Lower Kingsmuir Hall occupants if they are in their garden or from the 

top floor of Kingsmuir House if guests in the property should be looking out of their 

windows. 

 Peebles Civic Society have not objected to replacement with uPVC 

 We have con�nued to maintain our commitment to replacements that are sympathe�c to 

the exis�ng historic style of the building and in keeping with the exis�ng size, style and 

appearance 

Page 469



 Replacement will improve the current look by removing external aluminium secondary 

glazing that exists on some windows 

 We are endeavouring to reduce the impact of our home on the environment aligned to the 

climate emergency and we feel this aligns to what Sco�sh Government is also trying to 

achieve 

 Neighbouring building has already had uPVC windows installed that are not aligned to 

historic style which were retrospec�vely approved

 Other proper�es that are located in the conserva�on area and on main roads, and therefore 

more visible, have been allowed uPVC replacements that do retain the historic style.  An 

example is the recently approved plans for 9A Bonnington Road.  The replacements look 

great, retain the historic look and do not detract from the appearance of the overall building 

where the lower flat retains historic �mber sash and case. 

 We are unclear who would have special interest in us replacing with �mber and how that 

would manifest in the future – would we expect our property to be examined in some way 

by these interested par�es to study the �mber sash and case windows given they wouldn’t 

be original?  Who are these interested par�es?

 It does feel like there is more interest in the past, rather than the future of our home and the 

impact it con�nues to have on the environment 

 Internet searches of our property have returned no historical references to understand why 

our home would be of special interest to anyone.  The only returned results relate to the 

lis�ng, rather than the property history

 Given the recent Sco�sh Govt ‘Proposals for a Heat in Buildings Bill’ Consulta�on paper 

anything that helps us achieve op�mal efficiency in our home allows us to bring our home up 

to spec and achieve an EPC ra�ng in the future that meets climate crisis objec�ves

We have worked towards compromising by applying with �mber sash and case replacements in 

the front of the property, but to no avail.  We have also requested a site visit to work with SBC 

and make it clear how li�le visibility our property has to others except our neighbours, but have

been told that wouldn’t be possible.  We would welcome a site visit to make it clear the current 

state of our windows, especially in the upstairs rear bedrooms, and the loca�on / visibility of the 

property to others. 

Please do let us know if you require any further informa�on to support our appeal.

Yours faithfully 

Julie Harrison 

Page 470



CORRESPONDENCE VIA EMAIL WITH SCOTTISH BORDERS PLANNING DEPT

Timeline of correspondence

Date DescripƟon
14/02/2023 Acknowledgement leƩ er for applicaƟon 23/00225/FUL
14/02/2023 Acknowledgement leƩ er for applicaƟon 23/00140/LBC
03/04/2023 Response from Ranald Dods and Sanne Roberts (HDO) on

proposed planning
05/04/2023 Response to Sanne Roberts (HDO) re consultaƟon response
07/04/2023 Response from Sanne Roberts (HDO) re further info provided
07/04/2023 Response to Sanne Roberts (HDO) re email 7/4/23
07/04/2023 Further info to Sanne Roberts (HDO) re email 7/4/23
12/04/2023 Response from Sanne Roberts (HDO) re further info provided
24/04/2023 Email to Sanne Roberts (HDO) to check progress
24/04/2023 Response from Ranald Dods re email to check progress
24/04/2023 Response to Ranald Dods re email 24/04/2023
17/05/2023 Email to Ranald Dods to check progress
25/05/2023 Response from Ranald Dods requesƟng more informaƟon
26/05/2023 Response to Ranald Dods requesƟng more informaƟon on what

is acceptable re windows
26/05/2023 Response from Ranald Dods with window guidance and note that

uPVC may be acceptable in some instances
06/06/2023 Response to Ranald Dods confirming addiƟonal info added to

portal
16/06/2023 Response to Ranald Dods confirming addiƟonal info added to

portal
16/06/2023 Response from Ranald Dods confirming need to add all

documents to both FUL and LBC applicaƟons
20/07/2023 Email to Ranald Dods to check progress
21/07/2023 Response from Ranald Dods re latest addiƟonal informaƟon

provided
27/07/2023 Response from architect related to correspondence not available

on the portal (Soured a local architects firm to provide drawings
requested (D H Farmer, Peebles))

02/10/2023 Email to Ranald Dods confirming all addiƟonal informaƟon added
to portal

11/10/2023 Email to Ranald Dods to request update
17/10/2023 Response from Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
20/10/2023 Response to Ranald Dods re. email 17/10/23
28/11/2023 Enquiry to SBC re decision Ɵmescales
28/11/2023 Response from Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
28/11/2023 Response to Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
28/11/2023 Response from Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
28/11/2023 Response to Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
28/11/2023 Response from Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
29/11/2023 Enquiry to SBC re decision Ɵmescales
29/11/2023 Response from Ranald Dods aŌer request for update
5/12/2023 Response from Barry Fotheringham re complaint raised to get a

planning decision logged to allow us to appeal
5/12/2023 Response to Barry Fotheringham re complaint response

Page 471



6/12/2023 Response from Barry Fotheringham re complaint response
8/12/2023 ConfirmaƟon of planning decision to reject uPVC replacement

windows
Copy of Correspondence sorted by earliest to latest date:

From: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Date: Mon, 3 Apr 2023, 11:37
Subject: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall
To

Dear Miss Harrison

You will doubtless have seen the consultaƟon response from our Heritage and Design Officer (HDO)
in the online file (23/00140/LBC).  In that she states:

“It would be most appropriate for solar panels to be fiƩ ed in a more discreet

locaƟon, for example the south roof slope to the rear (two storey) secƟon of

Middle House as this would be a much less visible locaƟon. Any accepted panels

should be black framed and glare should be minimised, to reduce their impact

further.

“It is proposed to relocate the boiler to within a window recess. It is unclear from

the descripƟon how the window would be finished. There is concern this would

result in a non-tradiƟonal appearance which would detract from the listed

building.

“The historic sash and case windows to this property contribute to its character

and special interest. In accordance with policy in the SPG, repair of windows on a

like for like basis is preferred. This can include refurbishment and draughtproofing

of the windows which can be very effecƟve. Replacement with Ɵmber windows to

match the exisƟng on a like for like basis would be supported, and can include

double glazed units. There are no specific and jusƟfied circumstances that would

suggest uPVC should be accepted in this case”.

I do not disagree with that assessment. Before we can support the applicaƟons, we will need some
further informaƟon, that will include the details set out in the HDO’s response. You should refer to

Page 472



our supplementary planning guidance on “Replacement Windows and Doors”, which is available on
our website. We will also need exisƟng and proposed elevaƟons (rather than just a roof plan
contained within another document) to show the impact of the solar panels.  I should say that I
found the plans somewhat confusing and those could be set out a lot more clearly.  Notwithstanding
the HDO’s comments, I note that you have supplied a window brochure but that does not detail
which window it is proposed to install. In addiƟon, to make a proper assessment, we would need to
have an idea of the dimensions of the windows (including astragals) which it is proposed to
replace.  Ideally that should be set out on a drawing.

Please arrange for the addiƟonal informaƟon to be uploaded via the portal by the 11th of April.  If you
require addiƟonal Ɵme to do that, please let me know

Yours sincerely,

Ranald Dods

Planning Officer

Development Management

Planning Housing and Related Services

Scottish Borders Council

Tel:       01835 825 239

E-mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: 05 April 2023 06:37
To: Roberts, Sanne <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy  Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Ms Roberts

I'm wriƟng in response to your comments that Ranald Dods has forwarded on and to provide more
informaƟon as requested.

Solar panels

In terms of the locaƟon, the south slope of the rear extension would only fit 4 solar panels as there is
an adjoining roof that connects the front and rear aspects of the building. We invesƟgated this
opƟon when geƫ ng 3 quotes through (as advised by Home Energy Scotland).  Installing only that
number of panels is not viable in terms of cost versus kW output.  We'd be happy to provide details

Page 473



of the 3 firms should you wish to verify that independently.  In terms of visibility to others Middle
House is not visible from Bonnington Road and the front aspect is only seen by the 4 neighbours who
have access to the front lane.  We are happy to adhere to the requirements for black frame and glare
reducƟon should our applicaƟon be approved.

Boiler relocaƟon

We are no longer planning to relocate the boiler to a window recess and it will remain close to
current locaƟon but moved within a kitchen cupboard to accommodate removal of the wall. Please
let us know if you need further informaƟon on that aspect.

Windows

When we received the home report for our new home the windows were shown as Category 1 by
Allied Surveyors (ie: No immediate acƟon or repair is needed.). This is the extract from the survey
(please let me know if you would like a copy of the full survey).

"Windows, external doors and joinery

Repair category: 1

Notes: Missing ironmongery was noted to some of the windows."

Given the survey informaƟon we didn't expect to need windows immediately but having just
endured our first winter we've realised that the 3 rear bedroom windows let in rain and we've had a
large build up of ice, plus the windows raƩ le in their frames. I have pictures of the ice inside the
windows, one of which I've aƩ ached. We've also been paying approx £450 per month in energy
costs.  We certainly can't afford to replace/ repair all of the windows at once, but we do need to deal
with the bedroom windows. We've also discovered that as the EPC cerƟficate makes no menƟon of
the windows as an improvement we have no access to a loan via Energy savings trust so will have to
find funds ourselves for this unexpected expense.

In terms of choosing uPVC over Ɵmber, this is preferred mainly due to cost and thermal efficiency,
but I've shared a link here on benefits of choosing uPVC:

hƩ ps://www.sashwindowsuk.com/blog/5-differences-between-wood-effect-upvc-windows-and-
Ɵmber-
windows#:~:text=Leading%20on%20from%20point%20number,the%20most%20cost%2DeffecƟve%2
0opƟon.

We're keen to have windows appear in keeping with the exterior look and do our bit to reduce
emissions from our home by doing what we can and would be happy to align to that.

Overall we're also keen to help to achieve Scotland's net zero ambiƟons by doing what we can within
our new home which is sympatheƟc to the heritage but allows the building to survive into the future.

Please do let us know if you could visit our home or the lane outside and we'll be happy to meet with
you to demonstrate any of the above informaƟon.

Page 474



Many thanks

Julie Harrison

On Fri, 7 Apr 2023, 11:04 Roberts, Sanne, <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Julie Harrison,

Thank you for your email. Unfortunately I am unable to visit your property, but can make the
following comments on the addiƟonal informaƟon provided in your email.

Solar Panels: It is useful to understand what alternaƟves have been invesƟgated for the solar panels.
Can the number of panels on the front roof slope be reduced to one row (below the rooflights) with
a further four placed on the south slope of the rear extension? This would provide a similar output
whilst reducing the impact on the listed building.

Boiler: Please provide an annotated photograph showing the proposed locaƟon of the boiler. The
plans should also be updated to show the revised proposal.

Windows: As per the council’s policy and Historic Environment Scotland’s Managing Change
Guidance, I am sƟll unable to support upvc windows as a replacement to historic Ɵmber sash and
case windows. Well-maintained Ɵmber windows should last much longer than upvc replacements,
which typically have a lifespan of 15-20 years at which point they require replacement with the old
frames having to go to landfill. Historic Ɵmber windows were generally of good quality Ɵmber and
many can be repaired even when they seem in very poor condiƟon. An independent joiner should be
able to advise on this. Slimline double glazed units and/or secondary glazing could be considered
alongside repair, or phased replacement in Ɵmber could be considered.

Please ensure Ranald Dods is kept in copy to any correspondence or further informaƟon, as he is
case officer for your applicaƟon and will make the final decision based on assessment of the case and
all consultaƟon responses. Any revised plans or new informaƟon should be submiƩ ed to the portal
directly.

Kind regards,

Sanne

Sanne Roberts, Heritage and Design Officer

On Fri, 7 Apr 2023, 13:03 Julie Harrison  wrote:

Many thanks Ms Roberts for your prompt response.

SOLAR PANELS:

Page 475



We did discuss alternaƟve placement of solar panels with the 3 firms who quoted and they all
considered that placement uƟlising the front south facing roof was the best opƟon with potenƟal to
add 4 more on the rear south facing secƟon, although that significantly increased the cost of
installaƟon due to the addiƟonal scaffolding and Ɵme taken.  We also took extensive advice from
home energy Scotland on other renewables and were advised that other opƟons weren't viable for
our property.

Could you advise us if the current request would be acceptable?

WINDOWS:

In terms of the windows we'll need to alter our planning applicaƟon to maximise the benefit of
replacement if we're unable to keep costs down with cheaper methods.  Would it be possible to
replace the two rear facing bedroom windows and one west facing bedroom window with uPVC or
will Ɵmber replacements be the only acceptable opƟon? These are beyond repair and need to be
replaced. The internal shuƩ ers are not the originals and are also in a poor state of repair.

We'll leave those sash and case windows that already have secondary glazing as they are, which
relates to the 2 front facing windows, the west facing downstairs bathroom and staircase window
and the upstairs bathroom window

In terms of other windows, there are 3 non tradiƟonal ones as follows - would it be acceptable to
replace those with uPVC double glazed units that are sympatheƟc in style to the current windows in
place but allow us to open them!

- laundry window

- side and rear kitchen window

We also have a kitchen door that is non tradiƟonal - would we be able to replace this with uPVC? This
door is to the rear of the property and provides access from the porch.

In terms of uPVC ending up in landfill we were quoted based on uPVC windows made from recycled
uPVC, which is something that is increasing and wanted to sƟck with that as our source material from
the supplier.

Please let us know your thoughts on that basis and we can adjust our applicaƟon.

BOILER:

We'll submit boiler relocaƟon change to the portal.

Many thanks, Julie Harrison

From: Julie Harrison 
Sent: 07 April 2023 13:13

Page 476



To: Roberts, Sanne <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall

CAUTION: External Email

Apologies I also meant to share informaƟon and photos of our winter experience with the bedroom
windows.  We had to resort to window film and perspex to provide draught proofing which of course
leaves us unable to open the windows and allow fresh air in, which is not ideal.

Kind regards, Julie Harrison

On Wed, 12 Apr 2023, 09:54 Roberts, Sanne, <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Julie,

Thank you for your emails and the addiƟonal informaƟon. I will discuss this with colleagues who
ulƟmately will be the ones to assess and determine the applicaƟon.

Sanne

Sanne Roberts

Heritage and Design Officer

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: 24 April 2023 10:56
To: Roberts, Sanne <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Sanne

Did you manage to progress with discussions? Happy to provide any more informaƟon as required.

Many thanks, Julie Harrison

On Mon, 24 Apr 2023, 11:33 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Page 477



Julie,

Sanne has discussed this with me. I sƟll havaae to make a recommendaƟon on the proposal but I
may be asking for revised drawings.  I will revert when I have had a chance to re-examine the
applicaƟons.

Ranald

On Mon, 24 Apr 2023, 12:49 Julie Harrison wrote:

Ok, many thanks.  Please feel free to call me if easier to answer any queries.  My number is

Kind regards, Julie Harrison

From: Julie Harrison
Date: Wed, 17 May 2023, 10:43
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Roberts, Sanne <Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk>, Adrian McCarthy

Dear Mr Dods,

Has there been any progress on our planning applicaƟon? The main reason for our urgency is to get
at least the bedroom windows ordered and fiƩ ed prior to winter to avoid having the experience
we've had over our first winter. Happy to answer any quesƟons you might have to help resolve any
issues.

Apologies for chasing, I'm aware planning resources are stretched.

Many thanks

Julie Harrison

On Thu, 25 May 2023, 12:06 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Julie,

Having looked again at the file, I will need a set of revised drawings which show clearly what changes
are proposed.  The current drawings are confusing.

I find sheet of drawings (the one where you set out in text what the changes are) really
confusing.  The 2nd page has the plan orientated a different way and has a photograph in the
middle. It is also appears to have both exisƟng and proposed plans on it. I sƟll am not clear what

Page 478



windows you wish to replace and with what, especially in light of your email of the 7th of April.  In
that, I note that you menƟon that you want to replace a door with a uPVC one. That is an element
which was not in the original submission and would need to be subject of noƟficaƟon and
adverƟsement.

We sƟll don’t have a roof plan as a separate drawing showing where the solar panels are going to
be.  That should show the whole building so we can judge the context. We would also need exisƟng
and proposed elevaƟons, showing the solar panels and the windows which will have work done / be
replaced.

Clearly you have put a good deal of Ɵme and effort into the applicaƟon but I don’t think that we
have sufficient informaƟon and clarity on what is proposed. If you feel that you can’t set out the
informaƟon clearly and provide properly scaled drawings showing the exisƟng and proposed works,
it may be beƩ er to engage a professional who could provide the drawings for you. That is, however,
a choice for you but I am regreƩ ably not able to make a recommendaƟon based on the informaƟon I
have.

Please could you let me know how you wish to proceed?  If you want to submit revised and
addiƟonal drawings, please do so via the portal by the 23rd of June. If you need addiƟonal Ɵme,
please let me know.

Ranald

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: 26 May 2023 07:35
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy Roberts, Sanne
<Sanne.Roberts@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Dods

Thanks for leƫ ng me know. I'll endeavour to get new documents to you by that date or let you know
more Ɵme is needed.

Can you at least give clarity on whether uPVC double glazed windows that look the same would be
acceptable then I can at least provide clear informaƟon on our request. I'm finding it quite difficult
to be clear with no indicaƟon from you on what's acceptable. I'd prefer not to waste your Ɵme and
ours puƫ ng in an applicaƟon that you'll reject because of the choice of materials.

Your quick response would be appreciated since we're now over 3 months past the original
applicaƟon date and this request puts us back to the beginning of the process.

Many thanks

Page 479



Julie Harrison

On Fri, 26 May 2023, 09:02 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Thank you.

Our guidance on replacement windows and doors (copy aƩ ached in case you have not already seen
that) is clear at page 6. Whilst it is difficult to say definiƟvely, it may be acceptable to introduce uPVC
windows into category c Listed buildings.

Ranald

On Tue, 6 Jun 2023, 20:06 Julie Harrison,  wrote:

Dear Mr Dods

AddiƟonal supporƟng documents have now been added via the portal as requested. I've checked
documents align to a recently approved applicaƟon where windows were double glazed uPVC
retaining the same sizes and look.  I've done the same for the solar panels aligned with previously
approved applicaƟons.

We originally tried to engage an architect but the Ɵmescales and addiƟonal cost led us down this
path. Given our desire to move quickly I hope aligning these to what you've previously accepted
helps to move things forward.

Many thanks

Julie Harrison

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: 16 June 2023 07:27
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Dods

I've also now added the new quotaƟon from a window supplier which details each window and the
kitchen door.

Page 480



Please let me know the decision on planning applicaƟon.

Julie Harrison

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: 20 July 2023 08:50
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy
Subject: 23/00225/FUL and 23/00140/LBC

CAUTION: External Email

Good morning Mr Dods

Can you advise when we can expect a decision on our planning applicaƟon?

Many thanks, Julie Harrison

On Fri, 21 Jul 2023, 12:26 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Ms Harrison,

I am afraid we sƟll are not in a posiƟon to support your applicaƟons. You will see that our Heritage
and Deign Officer has concerns about the impact of your proposals on the listed building.  Although
your property forms a part of that, the building has to be considered as a whole.

Whilst we are sympatheƟc to your desire to reduce costs and the need to reduce carbon emissions,
that has to be balanced with the need to safeguard the historic environment.  As you will see from
the HDO’s latest response to your submission, we can accept, subject to condiƟons, the solar panels
but the proposed windows and replacement door are items which would have a negaƟve effect on
the character of the listed building.

We may be able to accept, subject to the submission of appropriate drawings and details, double
glazed Ɵmber windows. That could be achieved by the installaƟon of slim profile glazing units into
the exisƟng frames. The alternaƟve would be new Ɵmber windows with double glazing (a maximum
thickness of 16mm would seem appropriate) installed.  A further alternaƟve would be the retenƟon
of the exisƟng windows and the installaƟon of internal secondary double glazing. That would not
require listed building consent or planning permission.  The rear door, which would be clearly visible
through the “conservatory”, should be a design and material more appropriate to a listed
building. We do, however, accept that the exisƟng door is of liƩ le historic merit.

As menƟoned above, we cannot support your applicaƟons in the current form and I realise that will
be disappoinƟng for you. Rather than refuse those, I suggest the applicaƟons are revised to show
Ɵmber windows with double glazing and giving us full details or, they are withdrawn.

Please let me know as soon as possible which course of acƟon you wish to take.

Page 481



Yours sincerely,

Ranald Dods

From
Date: Thu, 27 Jul 2023, 16:10
Subject: Planning ApplicaƟon, Middle House, Bonnington Road.
To

Dear Mrs Harrison

Further to your enquiry earlier this week, we have now had an opportunity to look on the council
planning portal, however the planning officer has not uploaded the e mail requesƟng further
informaƟon to the portal. We would be grateful if you could forward a copy of the request you have
had from Ranald detailing the informaƟon they require. Once we have had an opportunity to review
this we will revert with an offer of service and fee quote.

Kind Regards

David Farmer.

D & H Farmer Chartered Architects

Meldon Design Studio

2 Elcho Street Brae

Peebles

EH45 8HU

Tel. 01721 724247

mail@dhfarmer.co.uk

www.dhfarmer.co.uk

From: Julie Harrison
Date: Mon, 2 Oct 2023, 09:36
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00225/FUL and 23/00140/LBC
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy  <mail@dhfarmer.co.uk>

Dear Mr Dods

Page 482



All requested addiƟonal informaƟon now uploaded to the planning portal.

Regards, Julie Harrison

From: Julie Harrison
Date: Wed, 11 Oct 2
Subject: 23/00225/FUL and 23/00140/LBC
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>

Dear Mr Dods, can you advise when a decision will be made on our planning applicaƟons please.

Many thanks, Julie Harrison

From: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Date: Tue, 17 Oct 2023, 12:15
Subject: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall
To: Julie Harriso
Cc: david@dhfarmer.co.uk <david@dhfarmer.co.uk>

Dear Miss Harrison,

The HDO and I have spent a good deal of Ɵme on this one and given it considerable thought, given
your property is part of a larger assemblage and will have an impact on the overall appearance of
that.  Had the circumstances of the property been different, I doubt we would have had as many
discussions and been requesƟng so much from you. We recognise there have been improvements
made to the proposal but there are sƟll aspects that mean we cannot give the applicaƟons our full
support.

I have copied the HDO’s substanƟve comments below (in blue) and I do not disagree with those.  We
would welcome revised drawings which address these comments in order that we can lend full
support to the proposals.  Included in that is a design for the door within the porch and window
details so that we can avoid condiƟons being imposed.

The main elevaƟon of the principal villa of Kingsmuir Hall faces east, with its second ‘garden’
elevaƟon facing south. Middle House is formed from part of the service range, set to the rear of the
Hall. Middle House nevertheless has well-detailed elevaƟons, parƟcularly to what now forms its front
elevaƟon (south ‘garden’ elevaƟon) whilst the rear block is well-proporƟoned and reads with the
architecture (and window design) of the abuƫ ng elevaƟon of the main villa. Original windows also
survive to the rear block and stairwell, although it is acknowledged that a window and porch have
been inserted and further window altered to these elevaƟons, and to those of the neighbouring
coƩ age.

The historic sash and case windows to this property contribute to its character and special interest. It
appears from recent sales particulars that internal shutters also survive. In accordance with policy in
the SPG, repair of windows on a like for like basis is preferred, although sensitive replacement can be
accepted.

Page 483



Use of timber to the front elevation of the property is appropriate. The proposed elevational
drawings indicate that these would have frames to match the existing and slimline double glazed
units, which would be an appropriate approach. The submitted details however show standard
double glazed units and surface applied astragals, which do not reflect the original nor comply with
the council’s policy in the relevant SPG. New details should be supplied which reflect the approach
detailed on the proposed elevation drawing (up front or by condition).

The rear block is less visible, and has been subject to some alteration/inserted windows. Nevertheless
it remains part of the larger ensemble, and the rear elevation has a direct relationship with the north
elevation of the main villa. After much consideration of the information presented and SPG policy,
there appears limited scope to divert from the design and detailing of the existing window in any
proposed replacement. As per previous comments, replacement in timber to match the existing
remains appropriate.

The proposed replacement door shows glazing to the top half and a solid bottom section. This is
appropriate. No detailed design is shown; a four panelled door may be appropriate. Details of the
door could be conditioned.

Please could you upload the revisions to each file via the portal by the 31st of October so that I can
reconsult the HDO? If those revisions are acceptable, I would aim to determine the applicaƟons by
the 14th of November.  I have copied in David as he prepared the drawings for you and may be able to
offer further assistance.

Yours sincerely,

Ranald Dods

Planning Officer

Development Management

Planning Housing and Related Services

Scottish Borders Council

Tel:       01835 825 239

E-mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk

From: Julie Harrison
Date: Fri, 20 Oct 2023, 13:28
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 00225/FUL, Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: <david@dhfarmer.co.uk>, Adrian McCarthy

Dear Mr Dods

Page 484



Frankly this has gone on long enough and having now discovered quite by accident that I can appeal we will be going
down that route - Planning permission appeals - mygov.scot.  I am distraught that you now advise after 10 months of
communication that the only route acceptable is to replace with Timber windows.  You have continued to avoid
answering that question since the beginning.  We have continued to advise that we are dedicated to retaining the
historical look of the windows, have compromised with no clarity on what will be accepted and remained courteous
and responsive to your requests throughout.  Yet here we are, consigned to yet another winter of high bills and
therefore high impact on the climate.

Given the following (most of which has been previously shared), we find it hard to accept that replacing the existing
timber sash and case windows, some of which are in a bad state of repair, with uPVC double glazed windows that
match the historic character and style, is unacceptable to the SBC Planning Department:

- Middle House has obviously been much-changed over the years with three windows that are not the originals, and
a back porch and doors that have been added at some point but are not aligned to the historic make-up of the
existing building.

- The policy being referred to is guidance and the decision to allow uPVC windows that match the style is wholly up
to SBC.

- The decision to reject the latest proposal does not align with Scottish Government ambitions towards net zero.

- A recent application for the same uPVC windows that match the current style for a first floor flat on Bonnington
Road was accepted within SBC target timelines – the property is visible to passersby, plus sit directly above the
ground floor flat that still has timber sash and case. Also note that I gained a quote from exactly the same supplier
that replaced the windows in that property, but to no avail. Having walked past that building many times, it has been
much improved and is sympathetic to the character of the Victorian building and also sits within the Peebles
Conservation Area, as does ours.  The decision to accept that application (link below) is exactly the decision I’d
expect given our location and proposal): 23_00111_FUL-OFFICERS_REPORT-3761219.pdf (scotborders.gov.uk)

- Our building sits between Kingsmuir Hall and The Cottage – the Cottage has mainly uPVC windows that do not
match the original style, which we are happy to do.

- Middle House sits on a hidden lane that is only accessible (and therefore visible) to our neighbours in the lane.  The
rear of the building is accessible only to us, is only partially visible to one neighbour and is not visible to
passersby.  I’m unclear who would have ‘special interest’ if no-one can see the rear of the building.  I also do not
understand how that ‘special interest’ manifests itself.

- I am unclear why the thickness of uPVC double glazed units which would improve thermal efficiency and be
invisible to those who do not have access to the front of the building is so important.  Given the point above, no-one
would be able to determine the thickness of the unit from the front gate unless we allowed them access.

- Existing windows have ugly aluminium external secondary glazing, therefore replacement would enhance the
current appearance.  A decision to insist on timber sash and case would result in those having to remain.  We did not
expect to have the expense of replacement windows given the home report that stated there was no issues with the
windows.

We will now appeal based on your response via the proper channels.

Julie Harrison

From: Scottish Borders Council <noreply@scotborders.gov.uk>

Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 2:20 PM

Page 485



To: Planning & Regulatory Services <prs@scotborders.gov.uk>

Subject: Enquiry received -Peebles - PDM000804

CAUTION: External Email

Hi

Please see the below enquiry:

Name: Julie Harrison

Business:

Address: Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles, EH45 9HE

Email

Telephone:

Enquiry: Planning applications

Planning reference: 23/00225/ful & 23/00140/lbc

Enquiry details: Hi, can you please let me know how long I can expect to await a decision on our
planning? Discussions have been ongoing since February and we are keen to appeal the expected
rejection as soon as possible so that we can move forward. I've already emailed Ranald Dods
(13/12/2023) and left a message for someone to call me back (27/11/2023). Thanks, Julie Harrison

Location: Peebles

Location description: Middle House

Google Maps URL: http://www.google.co.uk/maps/search/?api=1&query=55.6453647,-3.1886204

Thank you

On Tue, 28 Nov 2023, 15:44 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Miss Harrison,

Thank you for your email.  I apologise that I did not respond directly to your last email.  I have been
concentraƟng on other casework and have had to set that aside just now.

It is disappoinƟng that we have not been able to reach a saƟsfactory soluƟon, given the Ɵme the
Heritage and Design Officer (HDO) and I have taken in looking at this proposal.   I note that, as your
iniƟal submission was not clear and lacked some detail, I asked on the 3rd of April for further
informaƟon by the 11th of that month and made a further request to you on the 25th of May.  The
informaƟon was provided on the 20th of June.

Page 486



Having discussed those submissions with the HDO, I wrote on the 21st of July.  In that email, I said
“Whilst we are sympatheƟc to your desire to reduce costs and the need to reduce carbon emissions,
that has to be balanced with the need to safeguard the historic environment. As you will see from the
HDO’s latest response to your submission, we can accept, subject to condiƟons, the solar panels but
the proposed windows and replacement door are items which would have a negaƟve effect on the
character of the listed building”. With that in mind and in order for us to support the applicaƟon
rather than refuse it, I asked for revisions to be made.  On the 2nd of October you emailed me to tell
me the informaƟon had been uploaded to the portal.  I advised the HDO on the 4th that revised
informaƟon had been submiƩ ed and asked for her views on that.

The HDO responded on the 12th of October, aŌer which I discussed maƩ ers with her again in order
to see if what was provided could be supported, mindful of the facts of the building and its lisƟng. I
advised you on the 17th of October that unfortunately we were sƟll unable to lend support to your
applicaƟon and invited you to submit revisions by the 31st of October with the aim, if those details
were acceptable, of the applicaƟons being determined by the 14th of November.  I was disappointed
that, rather than come forward with revisions which we could support, you inƟmated on the 20th of
October that you intended to appeal.

To be clear, from the start we have accepted that double glazing may be acceptable in this
property.  In her first response, of which I informed you on the 3rd of April, the HDO said, amongst
other things, “Replacement with timber windows to match the existing on a like for like basis
would be supported, and can include double glazed units. There are no specific and justified
circumstances that would suggest uPVC should be accepted in this case”.  That advice is in
line with our SPG on replacement windows.  Our position on that has not changed and I
reiterate here that initial response.

Rather than draw things out further for you through the appeal process, I request again that
you submit revisions which would allow us to support replacement windows in your listed
building.  Please make those submissions by the 8th of December and, if satisfactory, I will
aim to determine the applications by the 15th of December.  As always, if you need additional
time to make those, please let me know.

Yours sincerely,

Ranald Dods

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 3:48 PM
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy 
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00225/FUL & 23/00140/LBC

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Dods, we would sƟll like to appeal your decision and the only way for us to do that is for
you to reject our applicaƟon. Therefore please do that as soon as possible and we'll appeal.

Many thanks

Page 487



Julie Harrison

On Tue, 28 Nov 2023, 16:14 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Miss Harrison,

We have not made a decision yet and are offering you a chance to respond.  Do I take it that you are
unwilling to make revisions in order to comply with our SPG and the advice from the HDO which
would allow us to support the applicaƟons?

Ranald Dods

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: Tuesday, November 28, 2023 4:20 PM
To: Dods, Ranald <R
Cc: Adrian McCarth
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00225/FUL & 23/00140/LBC

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Dods, yes that's correct. You've effecƟvely cut off our right to appeal by encouraging us to
amend to fit the advice.  We have tried to compromise already and have already revised our plans to
do so.  Now you've provided a clear 'no' to uPVC windows across the board and we now wish to
appeal that decision. UnƟl you've done so our right to appeal is closed.

Regards, Julie Harrison

On Tue, 28 Nov 2023, 16:39 Dods, Ranald, <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk> wrote:

Miss Harrison

I note your opinion although I disagree that, in asking for revisions in line with council guidance,
your right of appeal has been denied. NegoƟaƟon to make a proposal acceptable is part of the
applicaƟon process.

I will try to determine the applicaƟons in the coming weeks, accepƟng that I have other cases to
determine as well.

Ranald Dods

From: Julie Harrison
Date: Tue, 28 Nov 2023, 16:45
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] 23/00225/FUL & 23/00140/LBC
To: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Cc: Adrian McCarthy 

Dear Mr Dods, I'm sorry that's not clear?  When will you file your decision so that we can move
forward?  We have already waited 2 weeks for your response to previous email. Given you inƟmated

Page 488



2 weeks for us to provide revised plans I would expect you to be able to reject this week given your
decision is already made.

Many thanks, Julie Harrison

From: Scoƫ sh Borders Council <noreply@scotborders.gov.uk>

Sent: Wednesday, November 29, 2023 11:31 AM

To: Planning & Regulatory Services <prs@scotborders.gov.uk>

Subject: Enquiry received -Peebles - PDM000808

CAUTION: External Email

Hi

Please see the below enquiry:

Name: Julie Harrison

Business:

Address: Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles, EH45 9HE

Email:

Telephone:

Enquiry: Planning applicaƟons

Planning reference: 23/00225/ful & 23/00140/lbc

Enquiry details: We want to appeal against a planning decision but I'm unable to find out when this
will be recorded aŌer email communicaƟons with Ranald Dods yesterday. Is there anyone I can speak
to that can help? We want to appeal decision to not allow uPVC replacement double glazed windows
in keeping with the style of current ones, which Mr Dods has advised are not acceptable. The sooner
we resolve this the sooner we can move forward and also reduce our energy bills. Can someone help
me to understand when this planning decision will be formally logged? The latest plans were logged
with planning 2nd October. If you require any further informaƟon please don't hesitate to call or
email me. Many thanks, Julie Harrison

LocaƟon: Peebles

LocaƟon descripƟon: Middle House

Google Maps URL: hƩ p://www.google.co.uk/maps/search/?api=1&query=55.6453647,-3.1886204

Thank you

From: Dods, Ranald <Ranald.Dods@scotborders.gov.uk>
Date: Wed, 29 Nov 2023, 14:02
Subject: [OFFICIAL] 23/00225/FUL & 23/00140/LBC
To: Julie Harrison

Page 489



Miss Harrison,

I advised you yesterday aŌer you confirmed that you were unwilling to submit revisions which would
enable us to support your applicaƟons that I will determine them in the near future and I sƟll intend
to do that. It is unfortunately not possible to issue a decision instantly as I will need to write reports
on the proposals. I have other cases which need to be determined before I can dedicate Ɵme to
wriƟng the reports for your applicaƟons. Rest assured, once I have those done, I will turn my
aƩ enƟon to your applicaƟons.

In the meanƟme, I thank you for your paƟence.

Ranald Dods

Dear Ms Harrison
I refer to complaint reference CPT001282 received on 29th November 2023 regarding
Planning Applications.
I have considered your complaint, reviewed your applications, and discussed this matter with
Mr Dods and am satisfied that the application has been handled in the correct manner.
However, I can understand why you might be frustrated with the process, particularly as the
on-going negotiations have prevented you from submitting an appeal against non-
determination for the listed building consent application. When a planning (or related)
application is submitted to SBC for our consideration, we will always manage that application
with a view to reaching a positive outcome. In other words, it is our aim to manage
applications, and make amendments as necessary, to ensure that the application is
approved. Where there is a reasonable prospect of an application being supported, albeit
with some modifications or amendments, the appointed officer will always enter into
negotiations with the applicant or their agent in order that we can support the application. I
can see from the case file that Mr Dods has confirmed our policy position with regards to
your application and has made several attempts to request amended plans that show
replacement windows that are compliant with our policy and supporting guidance.
Unfortunately amended plans that would allow us to support your application have not been
forthcoming. Rather than refuse your applications, Mr Dods has (quite rightly in my opinion)
made every effort to support your proposed development and avoid what could be a lengthy
appeal process. As the amended drawings have not been submitted as requested by Mr
Dods (that would allow us to support you application and issue a consent notice) Mr Dods
has confirmed that he will proceed to determine your application this week. This will allow
you to appeal our decision to refuse your application.

Page 490



If you remain dissatisfied you can ask for your complaint to be considered further at the next
stage of our complaints procedure. You do this by contacting our Customer Advice &
Support Service. You can find the contact details at scotborders.gov.uk/contact.

If you raise your complaint to that next stage and remain unhappy after receiving our final
decision, either with the decision or the way your complaint has been handled, you can ask
the Scottish Public Services Ombudsman to consider your complaint. We will tell you how to
do this when we send you our final decision.
I trust this information clarifies the position for you, however if you require further information
or assistance please do not hesitate to contact me at the address shown below.
Further information regarding our complaints procedure can be found at
scotborders.gov.uk/complaintsprocedure.
Yours sincerely
Barry Fotheringham

Lead Planning Officer

From: Julie Harrison
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 4:37 PM
To: Fotheringham, Barry <bfotheringham@scotborders.gov.uk>
Subject: Re: [OFFICIAL] Complaint CPT001282

CAUTION: External Email

Dear Mr Fotheringham

Thank you, I have now been able to access and read the response.

My only issue with the response is that we did indeed provide new plans as a compromise towards
what is acceptable to SBC but to no avail.  We're keen to appeal the decision as soon as possible,
especially given the expense we're now incurring for our gas bills whilst we're sƟll unable to proceed
unƟl resoluƟon.  There are a variety of reasons why we're appealing which I've already outlined to
Mr Dods.

Thank you for confirming we'll receive a decision now that will allow us to progress an appeal.

Many thanks

Julie Harrison

From: Fotheringham, Barry <bfotheringham@scotborders.gov.uk>
Date: Wed, 6 Dec 2023, 11:45
Subject: RE: [OFFICIAL] Complaint CPT001282
To: Julie Harrison

Dear Ms Harrison

Thank you for your e-mail. I note your comments regarding submission of addiƟonal informaƟon,
however this fell short of our policies for replacement windows in Listed Buildings.  I understand Mr

Page 491



Dods offered you further opportuniƟes to revise your plans but unfortunately we have not received
amended drawings that will allow us to support your applicaƟon.

I hope to be in posiƟon to agree Mr Dods recommendaƟon later on today and you should receive a
decision by the end of this week.

Regards

Barry Fotheringham

Lead Planning Officer

Planning, Housing & Related Services

Scottish Borders Council

Tel:      01835 826745

E-mail: bfotheringham@scotborders.gov.uk

From: Planning & Regulatory Services <prs@scotborders.gov.uk>
Date: Fri, 8 Dec 2023, 12:23
Subject: [OFFICIAL] 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL - Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington
Road, Peebles
To

Good AŌernoon

Please find the decision noƟces for the above applicaƟons aƩ ached.

Kind regards

Planning & Regulatory Services

Scoƫ sh Borders Council

Page 492



Miss Julie Harrison
Middle House 
Kingsmuir Hall 
Bonnington Road 
Peebles 
Scottish Borders 
EH45 9HE 

Please ask 
for: 


Ranald Dods 
01835 825239 

Our Ref: 23/00225/FUL

Your Ref: 

E-Mail: ranald.dods@scotborders.gov.uk

Date: 8th December 2023

Dear Sir/Madam 

PLANNING APPLICATION AT Middle House Kingsmuir Hall Bonnington Road Peebles 
Scottish Borders EH45 9HE 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:  Replacement windows 

APPLICANT:  Miss Julie Harrison

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application. 

Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at 
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.   

Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice. 

Yours faithfully 

John Hayward 

Planning & Development Standards Manager 

Page 493

https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/


Regulatory Services

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended) 

Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 
2013 

Application for Planning Permission Reference : 23/00225/FUL 

To :    Miss Julie Harrison Middle House Kingsmuir Hall Bonnington Road Peebles 
Scottish Borders  

With reference to your application validated on 14th February 2023 for planning permission under 
the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :- 

Proposal :   Replacement windows 

at :   Middle House Kingsmuir Hall Bonnington Road Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9HE  

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the 
attached schedule. 

Dated 7th December 2023 
Planning and Regulatory Services 
Environment and Infrastructure  
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St Boswells 
MELROSE
TD6 0SA

John Hayward 
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 494



Regulatory Services

APPLICATION REFERENCE :  23/00225/FUL 

Schedule of Plans and Drawings Approved: 

Plan Ref   Plan Type  Plan Status 

1 of 10  Location Plan  Refused 
D001  Existing Elevations  Refused 
D002  Proposed Elevations  Refused 
4 of 10  Brochures  Refused 
5 of 10  Brochures  Refused 
6 of 10  Other  Refused 
7 of 10  Other  Refused 
8 of 10  Other  Refused 
9 of 10  Other  Refused 
10 of 10 Brochures  Refused 

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

The development would be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 2016, policy 7 of 
NPF4 and the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" in that that the material, frame 
dimensions and specifications of the proposed windows would have an unacceptable adverse 
impact on and detract from the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  No 
overriding case for the development as proposed has been substantiated.  These conflicts with 
the development plan are not overridden by other material considerations. 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT 

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission 
for or approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant 
permission or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to 
review the case under Section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) within three months from the date of this notice.  To seek a review of the decision, 
please complete a request for local review form and return it to the Clerk of the Local Review 
Body, Democratic Services, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, Melrose TD6 OSA. 

If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning 
Authority or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become 
incapable of reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of 
reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be 
permitted, the owner may serve on the Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the 
purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the provisions of Part 5 of the Town and 
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended). 

Page 495

https://www.scotborders.gov.uk/downloads/file/762/request_for_local_review


This page is intentionally left blank



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO  
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER 

 
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING) 

 
REF :     23/00225/FUL 
 
APPLICANT :    Miss Julie Harrison 
 
AGENT :    
 
DEVELOPMENT :  Replacement windows 
 
LOCATION: Middle House 

Kingsmuir Hall 
Bonnington Road 
Peebles 
Scottish Borders 
EH45 9HE 
 

 
TYPE :    FUL Application 
 
REASON FOR DELAY:   
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DRAWING NUMBERS: 
 
Plan Ref      Plan Type  Plan Status 
        
1 of 10  Location Plan Refused 
D001  Existing Elevations Refused 
D002  Proposed Elevations Refused 
4 of 10  Brochures Refused 
5 of 10  Brochures Refused 
6 of 10  Other Refused 
7 of 10  Other Refused 
8 of 10  Other Refused 
9 of 10  Other Refused 
10 of 10  Brochures Refused 
 
NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0  
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
No representations received. 
 
Consultation responses received from:  AHSS - objection to the use of uPVC windows; Peebles Civic 
Society - no objection. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES: 
 
In determining the application, the following policies and guidance were taken into consideration: 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016): 
PMD1 - Sustainability; 
PMD2 - Quality standards; 
ED9 - Renewable energy developments; 
EP9 - Conservation areas. 

Page 497



 
NPF4 
Policy 1 - Tackling the climate and nature crisis; 
Policy 2 - Climate mitigation and adaptation; 
Policy 7 - Historic assets and places; 
Policy 11 - Energy; 
Policy 14 - Design, quality and place. 
 
Supplementary Planning Guidance: 
Placemaking and design; 
Renewable energy. 
 
Historic Environment Scotland Guidance 
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland 
Managing Change guidance series (micro-renewables; roofs; windows) 
 
Revised drawings were submitted during the consideration of this application. 
  
 
Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 5th December 2023 
 
The application is made for the installation of solar PVs on the roof and for 11 replacement windows at  
Middle House, Bonnington Road.   The property is a category C listed building within the conservation area, 
although not within the core area / prime frontage as defined in the "Replacement Windows and Doors" 
SPG.  Two windows to the front (south elevation) would be timber framed, the remainder would be uPVC.  
As the building is listed, a listed building consent application has been submitted for the proposal (reference 
23/00140/LBC) and that will be considered separately.   
 
In terms of section 64(1) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 (as 
amended) ("PLBCASA"), the planning authority has a general duty as respects conservation areas in 
exercise of planning functions to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the 
character or appearance of the area.  Without prejudice to section 64 of the PLBCASA, section 59(1) of the 
PLBCASA requires that planning authorities, in determining planning applications which affect a listed 
building or its setting, shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or 
any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses (in particular, listed buildings).  
Here "preserving" in relation to the building means preserving it either in its existing state or subject only to 
such alterations or extensions as can be carried out without serious detriment to its character.   
 
Solar panels 
Solar panels are proposed on the south facing roofplane.  It would be most appropriate for solar panels to be 
fitted in a more discreet location, for example the south roof slope to the rear (two storey) section of Middle 
House as this would be a much less visible location.  It is understood that more discreet locations for the 
solar panels had been tested and no other option was possible nor is a reduction in the scale of the array, if 
it is to remain viable.  It is recognised that, taking account of the terms of policy 1 of NPF4, there is a need to 
address the climate emergency and, on balance, they could be accepted in this instance.   
 
Windows 
Policy EP7 of the LDP states that the council will support development proposals that conserve, protect and 
enhance the character, integrity and setting of listed buildings.  Amongst other things, external alterations 
must be of the highest quality, respect the original building in terms of design and materials and maintain or 
enhance the special architectural and historic quality of the building.  Policy 7 of NPF4 sets out that 
development proposals for alterations to a listed building will be supported only where they will preserve its 
character, special architectural or historic interest and setting.    
 
The council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" provides further detail on how the provisions of the 
development plan will be applied.  It states that the introduction of double glazing may be acceptable and, in 
specific and justified circumstances, replacement may be with uPVC.  There is a requirement that the 
replacement unit has the same glazing pattern and method of opening and, where astragals are required, 
they are of the same proportion and design as the original window, with stick-on astragals not permitted.  
 

Page 498



The proposals would see original timber windows replaced with uPVC double glazed windows. The 
submitted elevation drawings do not show the full effect that the frames of these would have on the property 
and particularly on the north elevation of the assemblage.  The manufacturer's brochure contains 
photographs of the windows installed on buildings elsewhere and it is clear that the frames would be of a 
considerable depth and size which would be clearly evident when compared to the original windows on this 
property and others within Kingsmuir Hall.  In addition, the deep thickness to the glazing would also be 
evident.  This would present a bulky frame of notably poorer proportions than the slim frames currently seen 
in the building.  This heavy appearance would appear discordant, compared to the more elegant design of 
the existing windows.  As a result, they would not satisfy the requirements of the SPG that, when allowing 
for replacement windows, requires such windows to be of the same proportion and design.  The HES 
Managing Change guidance note "Windows" also states that the success of a replacement window will 
depend on its detailed design and on how well the new replicates the old.  For the reasons set out above, 
the proposals would also conflict with HES guidance. 
 
Despite protracted efforts to achieve a change from uPVC to wood, the applicant confirmed they were 
unwilling to submit further revisions.  Despite the lack of visibility from the public realm and the terms of the 
SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors", whilst the replacement windows would not be detrimental to the 
character or appearance of this part of the conservation area, there would be a serious detriment to the 
special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  As a result, planning permission should be 
refused. 
 
 
REASON FOR DECISION : 
 
The development would be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 2016, policy 7 of NPF4 and 
the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" in that that the material, frame dimensions and 
specifications of the proposed windows would have an unacceptable adverse impact on and detract from the 
special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  No overriding case for the development as 
proposed has been substantiated.  These conflicts with the development plan are not overridden by other 
material considerations. 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Refused 
 
 1 The development would be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 2016, policy 7 of 

NPF4 and the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" in that that the material, frame 
dimensions and specifications of the proposed windows would have an unacceptable adverse 
impact on and detract from the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  No 
overriding case for the development as proposed has been substantiated.  These conflicts with the 
development plan are not overridden by other material considerations. 

 
 
 
“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”. 
 
 

Page 499



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 501



Page 502



Page 503



Page 504



Page 505



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 507

Agenda Item 9b



P
age 508



P
age 509



Page 510



Page 511



Page 512



Page 513



Page 514



Page 515



Page 516



Page 517



Page 518



Page 519



Page 520



Page 521



Page 522



Page 523



Page 524



Page 525



P
age 526



P
age 527



P
age 528



P
age 529



P
age 530



P
age 531



P
age 532



P
age 533



P
age 534



P
age 535



P
age 536



P
age 537



P
age 538



P
age 539



P
age 540



P
age 541



Page 542



Page 543



Page 544



P
age 545



Page 546



P
age 547



P
age 548



P
age 549



P
age 550



P
age 551



P
age 552



P
age 553



P
age 554



P
age 555



P
age 556



P
age 557



Page 558



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL

APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO 
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER

PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)

REF : 23/00140/LBC

APPLICANT : Miss Julie Harrison

AGENT :

DEVELOPMENT : Replacement windows

LOCATION: Middle House
Kingsmuir Hall
Bonnington Road
Peebles
Scottish Borders
EH45 9HE

TYPE : LBC Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________

DRAWING NUMBERS:

Plan Ref    Plan Type Plan Status
       
1 of 10 Location Plan Refused
D001 Existing Elevations Refused
D002 Proposed Elevations Refused
4 of 10 Brochures Refused
5 of 10 Brochures Refused
6 of 10 Other Refused
7 of 10 Other Refused
8 of 10 Other Refused
9 of 10 Other Refused
10 of 10 Brochures Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

No representations received.

Consultation responses received from:  Heritage and Design Officer - objection; AHSS - objection.  This 
[property] forms part of a converted house and therefore the windows should continue to match the other 
portions of the listed house.  uPVC windows are not identical, thanks to their thicker frames and therefore 
any replacement windows should be like-for-like in all respects.  Slimline double glazing, refurbishment 
to enhance ease of opening and more modern secondary double-glazing solutions would not be 
problematic; Peebles Civic Society - no objection.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:

In determining the application, the following policies and guidance were taken into consideration:

Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016

Page 559

Agenda Item 9c



PMD1 - Sustainability
PMD2 - Quality standards
ED9 - Renewable energy developments
EP7 - Listed buildings

NPF4
Policy 1 - Tackling the climate and nature crisis
Policy 2 - Climate mitigation and adaptation
Policy 7 - Historic assets and places
Policy 11 - Energy
Policy 14 - Design, quality and place
Policy 16 - Quality homes

Supplementary Planning Guidance:
Placemaking and design;
Renewable energy;
Replacement windows and doors.

Historic Environment Scotland Guidance
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland
Managing Change guidance series (micro-renewables; roofs; windows)

Revised drawings were submitted during the consideration of this application.

Recommendation by  - Ranald Dods  (Planning Officer) on 5th December 2023

Site and proposal
Middle House, Bonnington Road is a category C listed building within the conservation area, although not 
within the core area / prime frontage as defined in the "Replacement Windows and Doors" SPG.  In terms of 
section 14(2) of the Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended), 
the planning authority has a duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its 
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.  

Middle House is part of the former service range to the rear of Kingsmuir Hall.  Although that service range 
has been extended and subdivided into separate houses, the application site remains as part of the larger 
assemblage.  Middle House is described under a sub-heading in the listing description.

The application which is not accompanied by a detailed condition survey, as required by the SPG 
"Replacement Windows and Doors", is made for the installation of solar PVs on the roof and for 11 
replacement windows.  Also proposed would be the replacement of a modern timber double glazed window 
(within the conservatory extension) to a uPVC unit.  As the building is within the conservation area, a 
planning application has been submitted for the proposal (reference 23/00225/FUL) and that will be 
considered separately.  This report considers only the impact on the listed building.

In determining the application, the following factors were considered:

Planning history
There is some planning history associated with the site.  That can be summarised as follows:
00/01467/LBC, internal alterations and installation of rooflights, granted, 16 Feb 01

Policy
The key LDP policy against which this proposal is assessed is EP7, listed buildings.  In terms of NPF4, the 
key is policy 7, historic assets and places.  As set out below, the proposal does not comply fully with the 
terms of these key policies.

Policy EP7 of the LDP states that the council will support development proposals that conserve, protect and 
enhance the character, integrity and setting of listed buildings.  Amongst other things, external alterations 
must be of the highest quality, respect the original building in terms of design and materials and maintain or 
enhance the special architectural and historic quality of the building.  Policy 7 of NPF4 sets out, amongst 

Page 560



other things, that development proposals for alterations to a listed building will be supported only where they 
will preserve its character, special architectural or historic interest and setting.   

The council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" provides further detail on how the provisions of the 
development plan will be applied.  It states that the introduction of double glazing may be acceptable and, in 
specific and justified circumstances, replacement may be with uPVC.  There is a requirement that the 
replacement unit has the same glazing pattern and method of opening and, where astragals are required, 
they are of the same proportion and design as the original window, with stick-on astragals not permitted. 

Assessment
The application proposes two elements:  replacement windows and; solar PV panels.  An assessment of 
each is given below.

Windows
The relationship between Middle House and Kingsmuir Hall is clear when viewing the north elevation.  The 
property has to be viewed with the wider assemblage in mind.  Save for the dormer windows in the roof, the 
windows on the north elevation all appear of unified design and construction.  Whilst it is acknowledged that 
the applicant wishes to improve the energy efficiency to the property, if new windows are to be provided then 
this must be balanced against the policies of the development plan and the statutory tests referred to earlier.

The submitted elevation drawings do not show the full effect that uPVC frames would have on the north 
elevation of the assemblage.  The manufacturer's brochure contains photographs of the proposed windows 
installed on buildings elsewhere and it is clear that the frames would be of a considerable depth and size 
which would be clearly evident when compared to the original windows on this property and others within 
Kingsmuir Hall.  In addition, the deep thickness to the glazing would also be evident.  This would present a 
bulky frame of notably poorer proportions than the slim frames currently seen in the building.  This heavy 
appearance would appear discordant, compared to the more elegant design of the existing windows.  As a 
result, they would not satisfy the requirements of the SPG that, when allowing for replacement windows, 
requires such windows to be of the same proportion and design.  The HES Managing Change guidance note 
"Windows" also states that the success of a replacement window will depend on its detailed design and on 
how well the new replicates the old.  For the reasons set out above, the proposals would also conflict with 
HES guidance.

Having assessed the proposal, the HDO commented that the "…historic sash and case windows to this 
property contribute to its character and special interest.  In accordance with policy in the SPG, repair of 
windows on a like for like basis is preferred.  This can include refurbishment and draughtproofing of the 
windows which can be very effective.  Replacement with timber windows to match the existing on a like for 
like basis would be supported, and can include double glazed units.  There are no specific and justified 
circumstances that would suggest uPVC should be accepted in this case".

In light of that response, the applicant made a further submission which still proposed uPVC replacements 
throughout.  The HDO commented that the "…building relates to an historic service range; the front and rear 
elevations form the side elevations to the main Hall and have been designed to relate to the main Hall.  It is 
acknowledged that there is a mixture of timber and other material windows, and that external aluminium 
secondary glazing has been installed to some windows.  Nevertheless, the majority of windows are 
original/historic.  Of the modern replacements, the frames still tend to remain slim which lessens the impact 
of these.  It remains most appropriate and in accordance with policy for the windows to be retained and/or 
replaced in timber.  These could be repaired or replaced in timber with slimline glazing and/or internal 
secondary glazing.  The front elevation is most significant in this regard, alongside the windows of the rear 
block and stairwell.  For replacement of non-original windows, the frames should still be designed to be as 
slim as possible and would appropriately match the slimness of the frames to the timber windows, although 
alternative materials could be considered".  

The applicant was advised of this response and that revisions would be required as the proposals would 
have a negative effect on the character of the listed building.  They were also advised that  "We may be able 
to accept, subject to the submission of appropriate drawings and details, double glazed timber windows.  
That could be achieved by the installation of slim profile glazing units into the existing frames.  The 
alternative would be new timber windows with double glazing (a maximum thickness of 16mm would seem 
appropriate) installed.  A further alternative would be the retention of the existing windows and the 

Page 561



installation of internal secondary double glazing.  That would not require listed building consent or planning 
permission".

The revisions submitted in response to that request did make some welcome improvements, being the 
proposed installation of timber windows to the front (south) elevation  Whilst the elevation drawings refer to 
slim profile double glazing, the submitted details appear to contradict that, showing standard double glazing 
thickness with applied astragals.  Aside from that, the majority of the proposed replacements remained as 
uPVC.  

In response to the revisions, the HDO commented that "The main elevation of the principal villa of Kingsmuir 
Hall faces east, with its second 'garden' elevation facing south.  Middle House is formed from part of the 
service range, set to the rear of the Hall. Middle House nevertheless has well-detailed elevations, 
particularly to what now forms its front elevation (south 'garden' elevation) whilst the rear block is well-
proportioned and reads with the architecture (and window design) of the abutting elevation of the main villa.  
Original windows also survive to the rear block and stairwell, although it is acknowledged that a window and 
porch have been inserted and further window altered to these elevations, and to those of the neighbouring 
cottage. 

"The historic sash and case windows to this property contribute to its character and special interest.  It 
appears from recent sales particulars that internal shutters also survive.  In accordance with policy in the 
SPG, repair of windows on a like for like basis is preferred, although sensitive replacement can be accepted.  
Use of timber to the front elevation of the property is appropriate.  The proposed elevational drawings 
indicate that these would have frames to match the existing and slimline double glazed units, which would 
be an appropriate approach.  The submitted details however show standard double glazed units and surface 
applied astragals, which do not reflect the original nor comply with the council's policy in the relevant SPG.  
New details should be supplied which reflect the approach detailed on the proposed elevation drawing (up 
front or by condition). 

"The rear block is less visible, and has been subject to some alteration/inserted windows.  Nevertheless it 
remains part of the larger ensemble, and the rear elevation has a direct relationship with the north elevation 
of the main villa.  After much consideration of the information presented and SPG policy, there appears 
limited scope to divert from the design and detailing of the existing window in any proposed replacement.  
As per previous comments, replacement in timber to match the existing remains appropriate". 

Subsequent to that response, the applicant was twice invited to make revisions in order to allow support to 
be given to the proposal.  The confirmed, however, that they were unwilling to make further revisions.  
Having discussed the matter further with the HDO, on the basis that the installation of the proposed windows 
would result in serious detriment to the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building, the 
application cannot be supported.

The proposals would not meet those tests of preserving the building and the features of special architectural 
and historic interest which it possesses.  In any case, the energy efficiency of historic buildings can be 
improved by other means more in keeping with the historic environment as described in HES guidance.  On 
that basis, the proposed use of uPVC would affect adversely the property's features of special architectural 
or historic interest and would not serve to preserve the listed building and its setting.

Solar panels
It has to be noted that the proposed solar PVs would, on balance, be acceptable.  Proposals such as these 
are likely to increase as we transition away from reliance on carbon fuels and each case must be treated on 
its own merits.  In this instance, solar panels were proposed on the south facing roofplane.  The Heritage 
and Design Officer (HDO) noted initially that it would be most appropriate for solar panels to be fitted in a 
more discreet location, for example the south roof slope to the rear (two storey) section of Middle House as 
this would be a much less visible location.  Any accepted panels should be black framed and glare should 
be minimised, to reduce their impact further.  In a later consultation reply, the HDO commented that it was 
understood that more discreet locations for the solar panels had been tested and no other option was 
possible nor is a reduction in the scale of the array, if it is to remain viable.  Whilst the panels introduce 
additional clutter to the roofscape which erodes its historic integrity and architectural character, it is 
recognised that, taking account of the terms of policy 1 of NPF4, there is a need to address the climate 
emergency and, on balance, they could be accepted in this instance, subject to the panels being are set 
close to the roof plane, being black with black frames (or frameless) and having a finish to minimise glare.  

Page 562



That having been said, those form part of this wider application and it follows that if one of the elements of 
the proposed development is unacceptable, the whole application must be refused.
 
Rear door
The rear door, which would be clearly visible through the "conservatory", should be a design and material 
more appropriate to a listed building.   We do, however, accept that the existing door is of little historic merit.  
The design of the door proposed in the revisions would, were the proposal to be otherwise  acceptable, be 
suitable.

Conclusion
Whilst the council supports the need to reduce carbon emissions and is sympathetic to an applicant's desire 
to reduce costs, that has to be balanced with the need to safeguard the historic environment.  Were the 
proposals to be otherwise acceptable, support could, on balance, have been given to the installation of solar 
panels.  However, despite protracted efforts to achieve a satisfactory outcome, the applicant was unwilling to 
submit suitable window details which would allow that balance to be reached on the whole development 
proposals.  The development would therefore be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 
2016, policy 7 of NPF4 and the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors".

REASON FOR DECISION :

The development would be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 2016, policy 7 of NPF4 and 
the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" in that that the material, frame dimensions and 
specifications of the proposed windows would have an unacceptable adverse impact on and detract from the 
special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  No overriding case for the development as 
proposed has been substantiated.  These conflicts with the development plan are not overridden by other 
material considerations.

Recommendation:  Refused

 1 The development would be contrary to policy EP7 of the Local Development Plan 2016, policy 7 of 
NPF4 and the council's SPG "Replacement Windows and Doors" in that that the material, frame 
dimensions and specifications of the proposed windows would have an unacceptable adverse 
impact on and detract from the special architectural and historic interest of the listed building.  No 
overriding case for the development as proposed has been substantiated.  These conflicts with the 
development plan are not overridden by other material considerations.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other 
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 563



This page is intentionally left blank



 

AHSS Cases Panels |  National Office  |  15 Rutland Square, Edinburgh EH1 2BE  
0131 557 0019  |  nationaloffice@ahss.org.uk  |  www.ahss.org.uk    

The Architectural Heritage Society (AHSS) is a registered charity: SC007554REG. The Society is registered as a Company Limited by Guarantee: SC356726 
Chair: Martin Robertson BA (Hons) Dip Hist Art 
 

Speaking for  
Scotland’s Buildings 
 

@theahss 

6th March 2023 
 
Ranald Dodds 
Planning and Economic Development 
Scottish Borders Council 
Council Headquarters 
Newtown St. Boswells 
Melrose 
TD6 0SA 
 
Dear Ranald Dodds, 
 
RE: 23/00140/LBC & 23/00225/FUL | Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles 
 
Thank you for your consultation on this application.  
 
The AHSS Forth & Borders Cases Panel has examined the application for replacement windows to a C-listed 
property, and we object to the proposed uPVC windows. 
 
This forms part of a converted house, and therefore the windows should continue to match the other portions of the 
listed house.  uPVC windows are not identical, thanks to their thicker frames, and therefore any replacement 
windows should be like-for-like in all respects.  Slimline double glazing, refurbishment to enhance ease of opening, 
and more modern secondary double-glazing solutions would not be problematic. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
James Seabridge-Cooper, Convener 
on behalf of the Forth & Borders Cases Panel 
 

Page 565

Agenda Item 9d



Comments for Planning Application 23/00225/FUL

 

Application Summary

Application Number: 23/00225/FUL

Address: Middle House Kingsmuir Hall Bonnington Road Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9HE

Proposal: Replacement windows

Case Officer: Ranald Dods

 

Customer Details

Name: Dr The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland

Address: AHSS National Office, 15 Rutland Square, Edinburgh EH1 2BE

 

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Member of Public

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

  - Contrary to Local Plan

  - Designated Conservation Area

  - Listed Building

  - Poor design

Comment:Thank you for your re-consultation. The proposal still appears to largely favour uPVC

windows, and our objections before still stand. As part of a larger listed property, all aspects of the

glazing across all subdivided properties needs to continue to present a coherent style and use of

material. The replacement of the existing wooden sash windows with short-lived uPVC is a false

economy and detracts from the special interest and coherence of the listed property, and we

continue to object to that element of the proposals. Ample alternatives are well-described in the

Scottish Borders SPG on glazing, HES publications, and the Heritage Officer's submissions here.

Page 566



 

www.peeblescivicsociety.co.uk 
secretary@peeblescivicsociety.co.uk 

c/o The Bridge, Volunteer Resource Centre, School Brae, Peebles EH45 8AL 

       
     
       

                                               
                                             

 

3rd March 2023 

23/00140/LBC and 23/00225/FUL. Replacement roof lights, installation of PV array to roof 

and internal alterations. Middle House Kingsmuir Hall  Bonnington Road Peebles  

We welcome the removal of the external aluminium secondary glazing, but if the windows 

are replaced by uPVC ones it is essential that they are recessed into the existing openings in 

accordance with paragraphs 4.28, 4.29 and 4.33 of the SPG Replacement Windows and 

Doors, to ensure that the externally exposed widths at jambs and head will be within the 

traditional range of 15-20mm. We have no objection to the PV array, especially as it is not 

visible to the public. 

Yours 

Anthony Newton 

(Secretary, Peebles Civic Society) 

Page 567

http://www.peeblescivicsociety.co.uk/


 

www.peeblescivicsociety.co.uk 
secretary@peeblescivicsociety.co.uk 

       
     
       

                                               
                                             

 

19/10/2023 

23/00225/FUL and 23/00140/LBC | Replacement windows | Middle House Kingsmuir Hall 

Bonnington Road Peebles Scottish Borders EH45 9HE 

We have not objection to this application. 

Yours 

Anthony Newton 

(Secretary, Peebles Civic Society) 

Page 568

http://www.peeblescivicsociety.co.uk/


 
 
Local Review Body – List of Policies  
26th February 2024 
 
 
Local Review Reference: 23/00054/RREF 
Planning Application Reference: 23/00225/FUL 
Development Proposal: Replacement windows 
Location: Middle House, Kingsmuir Hall, Bonnington Road, Peebles 
Applicant: Miss Julie Harrison 
 
National Planning Framework 4 
 
Policy 1: Tackling the climate and nature crisis 
Policy 2: Climate mitigation and adaptation 
Policy 7: Historic assets and places 
Policy 11: Energy 
Policy 14: Design, quality and place 
 
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan (2016) 
 
PMD1: Sustainability 
PMD2: Quality standard 
ED9: Renewable energy developments 
EP9: Conservation areas 
 
Other Material Considerations 
 
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on; 

• Placemaking and Design 2010 
• Renewable Energy 2007 
• Replacement Windows and Doors 2015 

Page 569

Agenda Item 9e



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - STATEMENT_OF_APPEAL-3859139
	NOR 3 - PHOTOS-3859225
	NOR 4 -  4LETTER_ENCLOSED_WITH_REVIEW_FORM
	Item 4(a) - 23_01014_FUL_-_APPLICATION_FORM
	Item 4(a) - 23_01014_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICE
	Item 4(a) - 23_01014_FUL_-_REPORT_OF_HANDLING

	4b Papers Referred to in the Officer's Report
	4c Additional Information
	Item 4(c) - 23_00407_FUL_-_REPORT_OF_HANDLING
	Item 4(c) - 18_00460_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICE
	Item 4(c) - 16_01096_TCA_-_DECISION_LETTER

	4d Consultations Replies
	4e List of Policies
	5a Notice of Review
	5b Papers referred to in the Officer's Report
	5c Additional Information
	5d Consultation Replies
	5e Objections
	5f List of Policies
	6a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - REVIEW_SUMMARY_OF_DOCUMENTS-3871427
	NOR 3 - APPEAL_STATEMENT-3871425
	NOR 4 - APPLICATION_FORM_23_01065_FUL-3871426
	NOR 5 - DESIGN_AND_ACCESS_STATEMENT-3871432
	NOR 6 - SITE_PLAN_AS_EXISTING_AND_DEMOLITION-3871443
	NOR 7 - PROPOSED_SITE_LAYOUT_PLAN-3871439
	NOR 8 - BLOCK_PLAN-3871428
	NOR 9 - PROPOSED_FLOOR_LAYOUT_AND_NORTH_ELEVATION_PLAN-3871438
	NOR 10 - PROPOSED_SOUTH_EAST_AND_WEST_ELEVATIONS_PLAN-3871440
	NOR 11 - SITE_SECTION-3871444
	NOR 12 - CGI_NORTH_WEST-3871429
	NOR 13 - CGI_SOUTH_WEST-3871430
	NOR 14 - HISTORICAL_MAP-3871434
	NOR 15 - ROADS_AUTHORITY_CONSULTATION_RESPONSE-3871442
	NOR 16 - HEITON_AND_ROXBURGH_COMMUNITY_COUNCIL_CONSULTATION_RESPONSE
	NOR 17 - TRANSPORT_STATEMENT-3871445
	NOR 18 - REPORT_OF_HANDLING-3871441
	NOR 19 - DECISION_NOTICE-3871431
	NOR 20 - PLANNING_COMMITTEE_REPORT_0401984OUT-3871437

	6b Papers Referred to in the Officers Report
	6c Further Representations
	Item 6(c) - FURTHER_REPRESENTATION_-_GILLMARK_HARROP
	Item 6(c) -FURTHER_REPRESENTATION_-_DAIELA___JEAN_PIERRE_DEBATTISTA-3887180

	6d General Comments
	6e Additional Information
	Item 6(e) - 20-01327-FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3904204
	Item 6(e) - 21-00019-RREF_-_LRB_DECISION_NOTICE

	6f Consultation Replies
	6g Objections
	6h List of Policies
	7a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - REVIEW_SUMMARY_OF_DOCUMENTS-3872305
	NOR 3 - CD1_- LOCAL_REVIEW_STATEMENT-3872307
	NOR 4 - CD2_16_544_PPP_1001_LOCATION_PLAN-3872302
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	NOR 5 - CD3_23_01_L_1_001_LANDOWNERSHIP_PLAN-3872303
	NOR 6 - CD4_REPORT_OF_HANDLING_22_00532_PPP-3872309
	NOR 7 - APPLICATION_FORM-3872304

	7b Paper's referred to in the Officer's Report
	7c Consultation Replies
	7d List of Policies
	8a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - REVIEW_SUMMARY_OF_DOCUMENTS
	NOR 3 - LOCAL_REVIEW_STATEMENT-3873955
	NOR 4- PLANNING_STATEMENT
	NOR 5 - DECISION_NOTICE_23-01007-PPP
	NOR 6 - REPORT_OF_HANDLING_23-01007-PPP
	NOR 7 - APPLICATION_FORM-3873952
	NOR 8 - 10000-CSY-XX-XX-D-A-1201_C_SITE_LOCATION_PLAN-3873949
	Sheets and Views
	1201-C_Sitelocationplan



	8b Paper's referred to in the Officers Report
	8c Consultation Replies
	8d Objections
	8e List of Policies
	9a Notice of Review
	NOR 2 - PLANNING_APPEAL_SUPPORTING_LETTER-3885671
	NOR 3 - CORRESPONDENCE_VIA_EMAIL_WITH_SCOTTISH_BORDERS_PLANNING
	Item 9(a) - 23_00225_FUL_-_DECISION_NOTICE-3886159
	Item 9(a) - 23_00225_FUL_-_OFFICERS_REPORT-3886160
	Item 9(a) - 23_00225_FUL_-_APPLICATION_FORM-3886165

	9b Papers Referred to in the Officers Report
	9c Additional Information
	9d Consultation Replies
	9e List of Policies

